




NOTICE OF PROPOSED PROPERTY TAX INCREASE FOR
THE VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH

I. A public hearing to approve a proposed property tax levy
increase for the Village of Antioch for 2011 will be held
on December 5, 2011 at 7:00 pm at the Village Hall, 874
Main Street.

Any person desiring to appear at the public hearing and present
testimony to the taxing district may contact Candi L. Rowe,
Village Clerk, 874 Main Street, Antioch, IL, 847-395-1000.

II. The corporate and special purpose property taxes extended
for 2010 were $3,179,844.10

The proposed corporate and special purpose property taxes
to be levied for 2011 are $3,415,050.07. This represents a
7.40% increase over the previous year

III The property taxes extended for debt service for 2010 were
$392,423.51

The estimated property taxes to be levied for debt service
for 2011 are $402,555.00. This represents a 2.58% increase
over the prior year.

IV. The total property taxes extended in 2010 were $3,572,267.61

The estimated total property taxes to be levied for 2011 are
$3,817,605.07. This represents a 6.87% increase over the
previous year.

Candi L. Rowe RMC, CMC
Village Clerk
Village of Antioch

Ad 184076 Pub: 11-25-2011



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 1 of 2 – November 21, 2011 Village Board of Trustees – Regular Meeting  

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES; REGULAR MEETING 

Municipal Building:  874 Main Street, Antioch, IL  
November 21, 2011 

 
I.  CALL TO ORDER 
  Mayor Hanson called the November 21, 2011 regular meeting before the Board of Trustees to 
order at 7:30 p.m. in the Antioch Municipal Building:  874 Main Street, Antioch, Illinois. 
 
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 Mayor Hanson and the Board of Trustees led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
III. ROLL CALL 
 Following the Pledge of Allegiance, roll call indicated the following Trustees were present:  
Sakas, Poulos, and Jozwiak. Also present were Mayor Hanson, Administrator Keim, Attorney Long and 
Clerk Rowe.  Absent:  Trustees Pierce, Crosby and Dominiak. 
 
 Trustee Dominiak arrived at 7:32 p.m. 
 
IV. MAYORAL REPORT 

Mayor Hanson officially recognized those who helped remodel the Board Room. He said that he 
appreciated everyone’s hard work and efforts and the meeting room looks fantastic.  Staff members who 
volunteered their time were: Chief Somerville, his wife Linda Somerville, Al Manders, John Laskowski, 
his wife Sharon Laskowski, Wally Henning, and Dustin Nilsen.  Mayor Hanson said that he is very proud 
to work with dedicated employees and he appreciated their time, including the assistance of some of 
their spouses who also volunteered their time.  
 

Clerk Rowe read the Mayoral Proclamation designating the month of December as the Drunk 
and Drugged Driving Prevention Month in the Village of Antioch.  
 
V. CITIZENS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD  
 There were no citizens present in the audience who wished to address the Board. 
  
VI. CONSENT AGENDA 

Trustee Poulos moved, seconded by Trustee Sakas to approve the following consent agenda 
items as presented: 

1. Approval of the November 7, 2011 regular meeting minutes as presented. 
2. Approval of a Resolution regarding 2012 Meeting Schedules; Resolution No. 11-93.  

Upon roll call, the vote was: 
YES:  4:  Sakas, Poulos, Dominiak and Jozwiak. 
NO:  0. 
ABSENT:  2: Pierce and Crosby. 
THE MOTION CARRIED. 
 
VII. REGULAR BUSINESS

3. Consideration of accounts payable as prepared by staff – Trustee Dominiak moved, 
seconded by Trustee Jozwiak to approve payment of accounts payable as prepared by staff and in the 
amount of $251,072.77.  Upon roll call, the vote was: 
YES:  4:  Sakas, Poulos, Dominiak and Jozwiak. 
NO:  0. 
ABSENT:  2: Pierce and Crosby. 
THE MOTION CARRIED. 

 
4. Consideration of a Resolution authorizing the disposal of Surplus Property -  

Trustee Jozwiak moved, seconded by Trustee Poulos to approve as presented Resolution No. 11-94 
authorizing the Village Administrator to sell, salvage or otherwise dispose of equipment. Upon roll call, 
the vote was:  
YES:  4:  Sakas, Poulos, Dominiak and Jozwiak. 
NO:  0. 
ABSENT:  2: Pierce and Crosby. 
THE MOTION CARRIED. 

 
5. Consideration of a Resolution Authorizing a Special Event Liquor License to the 

Antioch Chamber of Commerce for the Antioch Chamber Membership Dinner – Trustee Jozwiak 
moved, seconded by Trustee Dominiak to approve as presented Resolution No. 11-95 authorizing a 
Special Event Liquor License to the Antioch Chamber of Commerce for the Antioch Chamber 
Membership Dinner being held on February 21, 2012. Upon roll call, the vote was:  
YES:  4:  Sakas, Poulos, Dominiak and Jozwiak. 
NO:  0. 
ABSENT:  2: Pierce and Crosby. 



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 2 of 2 – November 21, 2011 Village Board of Trustees – Regular Meeting  

THE MOTION CARRIED. 
 

6. Consideration of a Resolution Approving Annual Donations from Antioch Senior 
Council – Trustee Dominiak moved, seconded by Trustee Jozwiak to approve as presented Resolution 
No. 11-96 approving the annual donations from the Antioch Senior Center Council.  

 
Mayor Hanson read into the record comments from Trustee Crosby who could not be present at 

the meeting.  Trustee Crosby indicated in his letter that the Senior Council members are competent 
money managers and it is his opinion that denying them the opportunity to make the donations listed 
would be neither appropriate nor respectful to the heartfelt desire the seniors have to help make a 
difference, nor to their judgment as money managers.  Trustee Crosby’s letter went on to say that he 
believed the Board should allow them the flexibility to spend the money on good causes they have 
identified.  Trustee Poulos said he hoped the seniors were serious about fundraising and he expressed 
concern about the funds depleting if they didn’t.  He asked if the Village could assist them with any 
fundraising ideas.  Mayor Hanson said the said the Dolly Spiering was a gift and enabled the Village to 
do a lot more with the senior center.  He said that we have to realize that we need to make sure we 
have arrangements in place for the future of the senior center.  Upon roll call, the vote was:  
YES:  4:  Sakas, Poulos, Dominiak and Jozwiak. 
NO:  0. 
ABSENT:  2: Pierce and Crosby. 
THE MOTION CARRIED. 

 
VII. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
  Administrator Keim said that Trustee Pierce asked him to remind Board members that a 
representative from SWALCO will be at the November 28 Environmental Commission meeting. 
 
VIII. VILLAGE CLERK’S REPORT
 Clerk Rowe reminded Trustees of the Annual Christmas Parade on November 25. She asked 
Trustees to let her know if they would be participating in the parade. 
  
IX. TRUSTEE REPORTS  

Trustee Poulos discussed street signs being close to the road on Depot Street.  Administrator 
Keim said that staff is away and they will be relocating some signs.   

 
Trustee Dominiak wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving. 

 
X. EXECUTIVE SESSION
 Mayor Hanson and the Board of Trustees did not go into executive session. 
 
XI. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further discussion, Trustee Dominiak moved, seconded by Trustee Jozwiak to 
adjourn the regular meeting of the Board of Trustees at 7:53p.m. 
 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
  
       __________________________ 
       Candi L. Rowe, RMC/CMC 
       Village Clerk 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Request For Board Action 

REFERRED TO BOARD:  December 5, 2011 AGENDA ITEM NO: 2 

 
 
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT:  Village Clerk’s Office  
 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of a Resolution for a Raffle License for Catholic Financial Life 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER:  
 
On November 30, 2011 the attached application was submitted to request a raffle license pursuant to 
Village Code 4-10-2, for Catholic Financial Life.  The raffle tickets are scheduled to be sold the day of the 
drawing, which is to be held on Sunday, December 25, 2011.  The applicant is requesting that the fees be 
waived for this raffle. 
 
DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:   
 

1. Resolution 
2. Application 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
 
Move to approve a resolution for a raffle license request for Catholic Financial Life, with the drawing to 
be held on December 25, 2011, waiving all fees. 



 

  

RESOLUTION NO. 11-xx 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A RAFFLE LICENSE FOR  

CATHOLIC FINANCIAL LIFE 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Antioch (“Village”) is a municipality located in Lake 
County, Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, Catholic Financial Life is a fraternal organization; and 

WHEREAS, Catholic Financial Life is hosting a fundraising event where raffle 
tickets are to be sold; and 

WHEREAS, Catholic Financial Life is scheduled to sell raffle tickets the day of 
the drawing to be held on December 25, 2011; and 

WHEREAS, Catholic Financial Life is requesting that the fees for the raffle be 
waived; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Board of Trustees of 
the Village as follows: 

On behalf of the Village, Catholic Financial Life is granted a raffle license with the 
drawing to be held on December 25, 2011 waiving all fees. 

PASSED this 5th day of December, 2011. 

AYES:            

    

NAYS:            

 

ABSENT:            

APPROVED this 5th day of December, 2011. 

 

 

 

             
      Lawrence M. Hanson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 

      
Candi L. Rowe, Village Clerk 







 Request For Board Action 
 

 

 

REFERRED TO BOARD   December 5, 2011 AGENDA ITEM NO: 3 

 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT:  Finance Department  

 

SUBJECT:  Consideration of a Resolution accepting the Municipal Compliance Report for the Fiscal Year Ending 

April 30, 2011. 

 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER: 

 

House Bill 5088 was signed into law on August 29, 2008 and became effective immediately. The content of the bill 

was negotiated by members of the Illinois Municipal League (IML), the Public Pension Fund Association (IPPFA), 

and the firefighter and police unions. Public Act 95-950 contains many provisions requiring new levels of 

compliance and reporting.  

 

In the past pension boards have relied upon audit and actuary reports to provide the information required under 

these statutes to the Village Board. Under the new amendments, police pension boards must now specifically 

certify and provide a formal report. 
 

The Antioch Police Pension Fund is required to file an annual Municipal Compliance Report with the Village 

Board of Trustees before the tax levy is filed on the last Tuesday of December. 

 

The Police Pension Board trustee, Wayne Hummer Trust Company, prepared the Municipal Compliance Report for 

the fiscal year ending April 30, 2011.   

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:   None 

  

 

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
 

1. Resolution 

2. Municipal Compliance Report 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: 

 

Move to Approve a Resolution accepting the Municipal Compliance Report for the Fiscal Year Ending April 30, 

2011 as prepared by Wayne Hummer Trust Company. 

 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 11- 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL 

COMPLIANCE REPORT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING APRIL 30, 2011 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Antioch, Lake County, Illinois (the “Village”) is a duly 
organized and existing municipality created under the provisions of the laws of the State 
of Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, the Municipal Compliance Report was prepared by Wayne Hummer 
Trust Company.; and 

WHEREAS, the corporate authorities have considered the presentation and 
recommendation of acceptance of the Municipal Compliance Report for the Fiscal Year 
ending April 30, 2011;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Board of Trustees of 
the Village of Antioch to accept as presented the Municipal Compliance Report for the 
Fiscal Year ending April 30, 2011 and as prepared by Wayne Hummer Trust Company.  

ADOPTED by the Mayor and Village Board of Trustees of the Village of Antioch, 
Lake County, Illinois, this ___day of December, 2011. 

APPROVED this ___ day of __________ 2011. 

AYES:   

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

       __________________________ 
       Lawrence M. Hanson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________ 
Candi L. Rowe, Village Clerk  

 





















 
 
 
 
 
 

Request For Board Action 

REFERRED TO BOARD    December 5, 2011 AGENDA ITEM NO:  5 
 
 
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT:  Finance  
 
 
SUBJECT:  Accounts Payable 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER:  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  $ 1,206,959.49 
 
DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:   

 
1. List and Amount of Accounts Payable for - $ 1,206,959.49    
2. Invoices over $10,000 – Informational Report 
3. Escrow Payable –  None 
4. List and Amount of Manual Checks for - None   

 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
 
Move to approve payment of accounts payable and manual checks in the amount of $ 1,206,959.49 
 



INVOICE-NO REFERENCE

PAYMENT

 AMOUNTFUND DEPARTMENT

Village of Antioch, IL

GL-EXP-ACCT DESCRIPTION

Accounts Payable -December 5,  2011

5 STAR SPORTS
GENERAL 2,799.00SPORTS CLASSES1129115SCONTRACT PAYMENT100-060-314-5488PARKS & REC

2,799.00Vendor Total

AFLAC
GENERAL 1,112.96EMPLOYEE VOL LIFE032051AFLAC INS WH PAYABLE100-002-000-2205NON-DEPARTMENTAL

1,112.96Vendor Total

ALTHOFF INDUSTRIES, INC.
GENERAL 450.95PD HEATING REPAIRS304825CONTRACT PAYMENT100-090-511-5488PUBLIC WORKS

450.95Vendor Total

AM AUDIT
GENERAL 663.19TELECOM/GAS/ELECTRIC AUDIT415CONTRACT PAYMENT100-010-110-5488ADMINISTRATION

663.19Vendor Total

ANTIOCH AUTO PARTS INC
GENERAL 60.95ANTIFREEZE030665FUEL & FLUIDS100-050-440-5566FIRE

GENERAL 60.95ANTIFREEZE030665FUEL & FLUIDS100-050-490-5566FIRE DISTRICT

GENERAL 5.34WIPER FLUID032699MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES100-050-440-5567FIRE

GENERAL 5.34WIPER FLUID032699MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES100-050-490-5567FIRE DISTRICT

132.58Vendor Total

ANTIOCH ELECTRIC SERVICES, INC
WATER & SEWER 180.00LIFT STATION REPAIR52720MAINTENANCE-EQUIPMENT800-090-830-5352PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 135.00PUMP #1 REPAIR52721MAINTENANCE-EQUIPMENT800-090-830-5352PUBLIC WORKS

315.00Vendor Total

Page 1 of 21



INVOICE-NO REFERENCE

PAYMENT

 AMOUNTFUND DEPARTMENT

Village of Antioch, IL

GL-EXP-ACCT DESCRIPTION

Accounts Payable -December 5,  2011

ANTIOCH FLOORING, INC.
GENERAL 1,230.31ABRASIVE STRIPS FOR STAIRS1122AFMAINT BLDGS100-080-430-5350POLICE

1,230.31Vendor Total

ANTIOCH POSTMASTER
GENERAL 190.002012 PERMIT FEE112011PFPOSTAGE100-010-110-5432ADMINISTRATION

WATER & SEWER 371.36D BILLS113011APPOSTAGE800-010-810-5432ADMINSTRATION

561.36Vendor Total

AT&T ILLINOIS
GENERAL 81.46847395945970425911110711TELEPHONE SVC100-090-511-5423PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 156.86847395858876007600110711TELEPHONE SVC100-080-430-5423POLICE

238.32Vendor Total

AVALON PETROLEUM COMPANY
WATER & SEWER 581.64FUEL910765FUEL & FLUIDS800-090-820-5566PUBLIC WORKS

581.64Vendor Total

BANK OF NEW YORK - WIRE
MFT 110,000.002002A02A112811PRINCIPAL - 2002A247-030-547-5686ENGINEERING

MFT 25,062.502002A02A112811INTEREST - 2002A247-030-547-5687ENGINEERING

DEBT SERVICE 275,000.00PRINCIPAL 1998A98A112911PRINCIPAL - 1998A400-040-723-5686FINANCE

DEBT SERVICE 12,506.25INTEREST 1998A98A112911INTEREST - 1998A400-040-723-5687FINANCE

WATER & SEWER 225,000.00PRINCIPAL 1998B98B112811PRINCIPAL-1998 B REV BOND800-040-753-5686ADMINSTRATION

WATER & SEWER 20,662.50INTEREST 1998B98B112811INTEREST-1998B REV BOND800-040-753-5687ADMINSTRATION

WATER & SEWER 100,000.00PRINCIPAL CI04I04112811PRINCIPAL - 2004 REV BOND800-040-704-5686ADMINSTRATION

WATER & SEWER 13,987.50INTEREST CI04I04112811INTEREST-2004 REV BOND800-040-704-5687ADMINSTRATION

782,218.75Vendor Total

Page 2 of 21



INVOICE-NO REFERENCE

PAYMENT

 AMOUNTFUND DEPARTMENT

Village of Antioch, IL

GL-EXP-ACCT DESCRIPTION

Accounts Payable -December 5,  2011

BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC.
WATER & SEWER 104.00WATER CONSULTANT0159836OTHER PROFESSIONAL SVC800-090-840-5438PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 382.49SERVICE CONTROLS0159837OTHER PROFESSIONAL SVC800-090-840-5438PUBLIC WORKS

486.49Vendor Total

BEST PETS, LTD.
PUBLIC SAFETY 68.97CANINE SUPPLIES8627-13OPERATING SUPPLIES129-080-428-5568POLICE

68.97Vendor Total

BRAINSTORM
GENERAL 24.00MAGNIFIERS146559SUPPLIES REC PROGRAMS100-060-314-5568PARKS & REC

24.00Vendor Total

Page 3 of 21



INVOICE-NO REFERENCE

PAYMENT

 AMOUNTFUND DEPARTMENT

Village of Antioch, IL

GL-EXP-ACCT DESCRIPTION

Accounts Payable -December 5,  2011

CALL ONE
GENERAL 190.54LOCAL/LONG DIST SRV111511VHTELEPHONE SVC100-010-110-5423ADMINISTRATION

WATER & SEWER 17.15LOCAL/LONG DIST SRV111511VHTELEPHONE SVC800-090-840-5423PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 485.23LOCAL/LONG DIST SRV111511VHTELEPHONE SVC100-090-511-5423PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 36.80LOCAL/LONG DIST SRV111511VHTELEPHONE SVC800-090-820-5423PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 18.27LOCAL/LONG DIST SRV111511VHTELEPHONE SVC800-090-830-5423PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 16.27LOCAL/LONG DIST SRV111511VHTELEPHONE SVC800-090-830-5423PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 126.14LOCAL/LONG DIST SRV111511VHTELEPHONE SVC800-090-830-5423PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 18.65LOCAL/LONG DIST SRV111511VHTELEPHONE SVC800-090-830-5423PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 30.40LOCAL/LONG DIST SRV111511VHTELEPHONE SVC800-090-830-5423PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 18.27LOCAL/LONG DIST SRV111511VHTELEPHONE SVC800-090-830-5423PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 16.40LOCAL/LONG DIST SRV111511VHTELEPHONE SERVICE100-040-113-5423FINANCE

GENERAL 40.18LOCAL/LONG DIST SRV111511VHTELEPHONE SVC100-030-215-5423ENGINEERING

GENERAL 76.30LOCAL/LONG DIST SRV111511VHTELEPHONE SVC100-070-216-5423PZB

GENERAL 372.53LOCAL/LONG DIST SRV111511VHTELEPHONE SVC100-050-490-5423FIRE DISTRICT

GENERAL 372.53LOCAL/LONG DIST SRV111511VHTELEPHONE SERVICE100-050-440-5423FIRE

GENERAL 48.80LOCAL/LONG DIST SRV111511VHTELEPHONE SVC100-010-425-5423ADMINISTRATION

GENERAL 767.24LOCAL/LONG DIST SRV111511VHTELEPHONE SVC100-080-430-5423POLICE

GENERAL 178.56LOCAL/LONG DIST SRV111511VHTELEPHONE SVC100-080-431-5423POLICE

GENERAL 293.87LOCAL/LONG DIST SRV111511VHTELEPHONE SVC100-060-312-5423PARKS & REC

GENERAL 108.18LOCAL/LONG DIST SRV111511VHTELEPHONE SVC100-060-334-5423PARKS & REC

GENERAL 23.51LOCAL/LONG DIST SRV111511VHTELEPHONE SVC100-060-313-5423PARKS & REC

3,255.82Vendor Total

CARTRIDGE WORLD - ANTIOCH
GENERAL 95.99OFFICE SUPPLIES9384OFFICE SUPPLIES100-080-430-5565POLICE

GENERAL 73.48OFFICE SUPPLIES9482OFFICE SUPPLIES100-040-113-5565FINANCE

169.47Vendor Total

Page 4 of 21



INVOICE-NO REFERENCE

PAYMENT

 AMOUNTFUND DEPARTMENT

Village of Antioch, IL

GL-EXP-ACCT DESCRIPTION

Accounts Payable -December 5,  2011

CINTAS FIRST AID & SAFETY
GENERAL 214.84FIRST AID BOXES0343743791OTHER PROFESSIONAL SVC100-010-110-5438ADMINISTRATION

214.84Vendor Total

CITIZENS MANAGEMENT INC
WORKERS COMPENSATION 255.83NOV WORKERS COMP CLAIMS120111SWCWORKERS COMP CLAIMS115-090-820-5676

WORKERS COMPENSATION -696.00NOV WORKERS COMP CLAIMS120111SWCWORKERS COMP CLAIMS115-090-511-5676

WORKERS COMPENSATION 3,220.00NOV WORKERS COMP CLAIMS120111SWCWORKERS COMP CLAIMS115-090-511-5676

WORKERS COMPENSATION 1,319.84NOV WORKERS COMP CLAIMS120111SWCWORKERS COMP CLAIMS115-090-511-5676

WORKERS COMPENSATION 352.24NOV WORKERS COMP CLAIMS120111SWCWORKERS COMP CLAIMS115-090-511-5676

WORKERS COMPENSATION 8,095.59NOV WORKERS COMP CLAIMS120111SWCWORKERS COMP CLAIMS115-090-511-5676

WORKERS COMPENSATION 1,319.84NOV WORKERS COMP CLAIMS120111SWCWORKERS COMP CLAIMS115-090-511-5676

13,867.34Vendor Total

COLETTE & ANO PLUMBING CO . INC
WATER & SEWER 492.50MANHOLE LEACHING PARTS/LABOR25484OTHER PROFESSIONAL SVC800-090-840-5438PUBLIC WORKS

492.50Vendor Total

COLORADO ELECTRIC SUPPLY
GENERAL 76.22XMAS LIGHTSLKV/017088OPERATING SUPPLIES100-090-511-5568PUBLIC WORKS

76.22Vendor Total

COMCAST CABLE
WATER & SEWER 59.9587711002301405410541110411TELEPHONE SVC800-090-840-5423PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 29.98877110023014133313331111TELEPHONE SERVICE100-050-440-5423FIRE

GENERAL 29.97877110023014133313331111TELEPHONE SVC100-050-490-5423FIRE DISTRICT

119.90Vendor Total

Page 5 of 21



INVOICE-NO REFERENCE

PAYMENT

 AMOUNTFUND DEPARTMENT

Village of Antioch, IL

GL-EXP-ACCT DESCRIPTION

Accounts Payable -December 5,  2011

CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY , INC.
WATER & SEWER 9,927.741-A314R4413011UTILITY - ELECTRIC800-090-840-5426PUBLIC WORKS

9,927.74Vendor Total

CREATIVE PRODUCT SOURCING INC
PUBLIC SAFETY 1,393.44GRADUATION T-SHIRTS41268OPERATING SUPPLIES129-080-426-5568POLICE

1,393.44Vendor Total

CURRAN CONTRACTING CO.
GENERAL 410.97RESURFACING77361MAINT-STREETS100-090-545-5353PUBLIC WORKS

410.97Vendor Total

DATA TECHNOLOGIES , INC.
GENERAL 4,213.51LICENSE FEE31443COMPUTER SOFTWARE100-040-113-5761FINANCE

GENERAL 2,207.08SUPPORT FEE31443COMPUTER SOFTWARE100-070-216-5761PZB

WATER & SEWER 3,611.58SUPPORT FEE31443COMPUTER SOFTWARE800-010-810-5761ADMINSTRATION

10,032.17Vendor Total

DAVE HANSON
WATER & SEWER 15.00MEETING111011DHTRAINING800-090-820-5331PUBLIC WORKS

15.00Vendor Total

FIRE & SECURITY SYSTEMS, INC.
GENERAL 129.00ALARM SERVICES114415CONTRACT PAYMENT100-010-110-5488ADMINISTRATION

129.00Vendor Total

Page 6 of 21



INVOICE-NO REFERENCE

PAYMENT

 AMOUNTFUND DEPARTMENT

Village of Antioch, IL

GL-EXP-ACCT DESCRIPTION

Accounts Payable -December 5,  2011

FIRST BANKCARD
GENERAL 132.03RETIREMENT LUNCHEON0474112011FOOD100-060-312-5570PARKS & REC

GENERAL 76.78SUPPLIES2406112011SUPPLIES REC PROGRAMS100-060-314-5568PARKS & REC

GENERAL 3.77SUPPLIES2575112011PROGRAM EXPENSE100-060-348-5448PARKS & REC

GENERAL 14.95INTERNET SERVICE26581111TELEPHONE SVC100-010-425-5423ADMINISTRATION

GENERAL 335.44BOARD ROOM 41204120112011MAINT BLDGS100-090-511-5350PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 19.00TRAINING 41204120112011TRAINING100-080-430-5331POLICE

GENERAL 949.99EQUIPMENT 41204120112011EQUIPMENT<$25K100-080-430-5755POLICE

GENERAL 368.56EQUIPMENT 41204120112011EQUIPMENT<$25K100-080-430-5755POLICE

GENERAL 25.00FOOD 41204120112011FOOD100-080-430-5570POLICE

GENERAL 377.86DOWNTOWN XMAS LIGHTS6404112011OPERATING SUPPLIES100-090-511-5568PUBLIC WORKS

PUBLIC SAFETY 96.95K-9 EQUIPMENT 88138813112011OPERATING SUPPLIES129-080-428-5568POLICE

GENERAL 395.41ROUTER & CABLES9462112011COMPUTER EQUIPMENT<$10K100-050-440-5760FIRE

DOLLY SPIERING 326.30FOOD9546112011FOOD235-060-335-5570SENIOR CENTER

DOLLY SPIERING 145.47SUPPLIES9546112011OPERATING SUPPLIES235-060-335-5568SENIOR CENTER

3,267.51Vendor Total

FIRST FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
GENERAL 4,643.00FIRE PAYROLL011SALARIES & WAGES100-050-440-5101FIRE

GENERAL 18,285.87FIRE PAYROLL011VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS100-050-440-5104FIRE

GENERAL 1,416.70FIRE PAYROLL011SOCIAL SECURITY100-050-440-5244FIRE

GENERAL 331.10FIRE PAYROLL011MEDICARE EXP100-050-440-5245FIRE

GENERAL 726.25MEDICAL INSURANCE011MEDICAL INSURANCE100-050-440-5203FIRE

GENERAL 7,620.00WORKERS COMP VILLAGE PORTION012WORKERS COMPENSATION100-050-440-5247FIRE

33,022.92Vendor Total

GASVODA & ASSOCIATES, INC.
WATER & SEWER 10,785.10RECYCLE PUMP REPAIR11IS0966MAINTENANCE-EQUIPMENT800-090-840-5352PUBLIC WORKS

10,785.10Vendor Total

Page 7 of 21



INVOICE-NO REFERENCE

PAYMENT

 AMOUNTFUND DEPARTMENT

Village of Antioch, IL

GL-EXP-ACCT DESCRIPTION

Accounts Payable -December 5,  2011

GENERATION 3 MEDIA
GENERAL 50.00TOURNAMENT SECTION SPONSOR08431ADVERTISING100-060-312-5433PARKS & REC

50.00Vendor Total

GRAINGER, INC.
WATER & SEWER 73.05AXIAL FAN9671620244MAINTENANCE-EQUIPMENT800-090-840-5352PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 21.42GLASS FUSE9676008163MAINTENANCE-EQUIPMENT800-090-840-5352PUBLIC WORKS

94.47Vendor Total

HAWKINS, INC.
WATER & SEWER 3,005.80CHEMICAL SUPPLIES3276346CHEMICAL SUPPLIES/TREATMENT800-090-840-5573PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 1,485.70BULK CHEMICALS3281286CHEMICAL SUPPLIES/TREATMENT800-090-840-5573PUBLIC WORKS

4,491.50Vendor Total

HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS LTD
WATER & SEWER 1,693.00METERS4016827METERS800-090-820-5596PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 682.04METERS4017341METERS800-090-820-5596PUBLIC WORKS

2,375.04Vendor Total

HINCKLEY SPRINGS, INC.
GENERAL 73.37WATER COOLER40911111OFFICE SUPPLIES100-050-440-5565FIRE

GENERAL 73.36WATER COOLER40911111OFFICE SUPPLIES100-050-490-5565FIRE DISTRICT

146.73Vendor Total

HYDRAULIC SERVICES & REPAIRS
GENERAL 302.40COUPLER262234MAINT VEHICLES100-090-511-5351PUBLIC WORKS

302.40Vendor Total

Page 8 of 21



INVOICE-NO REFERENCE

PAYMENT

 AMOUNTFUND DEPARTMENT

Village of Antioch, IL

GL-EXP-ACCT DESCRIPTION

Accounts Payable -December 5,  2011

ILMO PRODUCTS COMPANY
GENERAL 74.00BREATHALYZER GAS TANK00382135EQUIPMENT<$25K100-080-430-5755POLICE

74.00Vendor Total

IMPRESSIONS COUNT
GENERAL 114.65DADDY DAUGHTER DANCE TICKETS34636PRINTING SVC100-060-348-5434PARKS & REC

GENERAL 35.00NO PARKING SIGNS34639PRINTING SVC100-060-348-5434PARKS & REC

149.65Vendor Total

INTERSTATE ALL BATTERY CENTER
GENERAL 199.90BATTERIES82005319MAINT VEHICLES100-090-511-5351PUBLIC WORKS

199.90Vendor Total

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL
GENERAL 595.54TRANSMISSION REPAIR084511111MAINTENANCE-EQUIPMENT100-090-511-5352PUBLIC WORKS

595.54Vendor Total

KALE UNIFORMS
GENERAL 174.00UNIFORMS593470UNIFORMS100-080-431-5569POLICE

GENERAL 38.99UNIFORMS594991UNIFORMS100-080-430-5569POLICE

GENERAL 38.99UNIFORMS594992UNIFORMS100-080-430-5569POLICE

GENERAL 146.97UNIFORMS594993UNIFORMS100-080-430-5569POLICE

398.95Vendor Total

KANSAS STATE BANK
GENERAL 674.64CONTRACT NUMBER 33426162616121011CONTRACT PAYMENT100-080-430-5488POLICE

674.64Vendor Total

Page 9 of 21



INVOICE-NO REFERENCE

PAYMENT

 AMOUNTFUND DEPARTMENT

Village of Antioch, IL

GL-EXP-ACCT DESCRIPTION

Accounts Payable -December 5,  2011

KIMBERLY BREWTON
GENERAL 263.20ZUMBA INSTRUCTOR112911KBCONTRACT PAYMENT100-060-314-5488PARKS & REC

263.20Vendor Total

LA SOUND
GENERAL 660.00FALL FEST SOUND SYSTEM1286CONTRACT PAYMENT100-060-348-5488PARKS & REC

GENERAL 540.00BANDSHELL LIGHT REPAIR1287MAINTENANCE-EQUIPMENT100-060-348-5352PARKS & REC

1,200.00Vendor Total

LAKES COMMUNITY BAND
DOLLY SPIERING 500.00DONATION112211LCBMISC. DONATIONS235-060-335-5932SENIOR CENTER

500.00Vendor Total

LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP
GENERAL 13,000.002011 AUDIT23357ACCOUNTING SVCS100-040-113-5435FINANCE

WATER & SEWER 7,000.002011 AUDIT23357ACCOUNTING SVCS800-010-810-5435ADMINSTRATION

20,000.00Vendor Total

LOCKMASTERS USA ,INC
GENERAL 120.11PADLOCK1024195OPERATING SUPPLIES100-090-511-5568PUBLIC WORKS

120.11Vendor Total

MCHENRY ANALYTICAL WATER LAB
WATER & SEWER 11.00WATER SAMPLE1105208LABORATORY TESTING800-090-820-5444PUBLIC WORKS

11.00Vendor Total

Page 10 of 21



INVOICE-NO REFERENCE

PAYMENT

 AMOUNTFUND DEPARTMENT

Village of Antioch, IL

GL-EXP-ACCT DESCRIPTION

Accounts Payable -December 5,  2011

MENARD, INC.
GENERAL 207.10XMAS LIGHTS70669OPERATING SUPPLIES100-090-511-5568PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL -29.99BULBS19116OPERATING SUPPLIES100-090-511-5568PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 5.99POOL SUPPLIES19287BMAINT - POOL100-060-313-5358PARKS & REC

GENERAL 40.46LUMBER53817BOPERATING SUPPLIES100-090-511-5568PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL -40.46LUMBER53849OPERATING SUPPLIES100-090-511-5568PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 51.20LUMBER9515OPERATING SUPPLIES100-090-511-5568PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 19.99GLOVES96512UNIFORMS800-090-820-5569PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 24.98CORD96512OPERATING SUPPLIES800-090-820-5568PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 30.48PAINT/TAPE96625MAINT-GROUNDS100-090-511-5355PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 48.97WOOD & SCREWS96626MAINT BLDGS100-090-511-5350PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 52.99CORD96647OPERATING SUPPLIES800-090-820-5568PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 43.90WET/DRY VACUUM96648OPERATING SUPPLIES800-090-820-5568PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 13.76SIGNS96968OPERATING SUPPLIES100-090-511-5568PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 4.76XMAS LIGHTS97193OPERATING SUPPLIES100-090-511-5568PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 185.79X-MAS LIGHTS98197OPERATING SUPPLIES100-090-511-5568PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 71.96TRANSMITTER98577OPERATING SUPPLIES800-090-820-5568PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 26.85XMAS LIGHTS98582OPERATING SUPPLIES100-090-511-5568PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 104.93XMAS LIGHTS98643OPERATING SUPPLIES100-090-511-5568PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 12.75XMAS LIGHTS98836OPERATING SUPPLIES100-090-511-5568PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 8.99LIGHT BULB99129MAINT BLDGS100-090-511-5350PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 24.45SPRAY PAINT99135OPERATING SUPPLIES100-090-511-5568PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 31.56SPRAYER & ANTIFREEZE99162MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES100-050-440-5567FIRE

GENERAL 31.55SPRAYER & ANTIFREEZE99162MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES100-050-490-5567FIRE DISTRICT

972.96Vendor Total

MES - ILLINOIS
GENERAL 5.00UNIFORMS00277310UNIFORMS100-050-440-5569FIRE

GENERAL 5.00UNIFORMS00277310UNIFORMS100-050-490-5569FIRE DISTRICT

10.00Vendor Total

Page 11 of 21



INVOICE-NO REFERENCE

PAYMENT

 AMOUNTFUND DEPARTMENT

Village of Antioch, IL

GL-EXP-ACCT DESCRIPTION

Accounts Payable -December 5,  2011

METROPOLITAN FIRE CHIEFS ASSN
GENERAL 20.002012 DUES111711MFCPROFESSIONAL DUES100-050-440-5403FIRE

GENERAL 20.002012 DUES111711MFCPROFESSIONAL DUES100-050-490-5403FIRE DISTRICT

40.00Vendor Total

MID AMERICAN WATER OF WAUCONDA
WATER & SEWER 104.00PVC PIPE FITTING129432WMAINT UTILITY SYSTEM800-090-830-5356PUBLIC WORKS

104.00Vendor Total

MIKE ROGERS
GENERAL 40.00PARADE HELP112911PROGRAM EXPENSE100-060-348-5448PARKS & REC

40.00Vendor Total

NICOR GAS
GENERAL 146.9800928410000000112911UTILITY - GAS100-050-440-5430FIRE

GENERAL 146.9800928410000000112911UTILITY - GAS100-050-490-5430FIRE DISTRICT

GENERAL 104.56586068100080008112911UTILITY - GAS100-090-511-5430PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 132.1314606810001001112911UTILITY - GAS800-090-820-5430PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 71.5446167310005005112911UTILITY - GAS100-060-313-5430PARKS & REC

GENERAL 177.1377706810007007112911UTILITY - GAS100-090-511-5430PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 72.7671590410008008112911UTILITY - GAS100-090-511-5430PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 68.8800706810009009112911UTILITY - GAS100-090-511-5430PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 21.1623458271048048112911UTILITY - GAS800-090-830-5430PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 19.3395560809774097741111UTILITY - ELECTRIC800-090-830-5426PUBLIC WORKS

961.45Vendor Total

PADDOCK PUBLICATIONS , INC
GENERAL 2.32ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION111111FDPUBLICATIONS100-050-440-5571FIRE

GENERAL 2.32ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION111111FDPUBLICATIONS100-050-490-5571FIRE DISTRICT

4.64Vendor Total

Page 12 of 21



INVOICE-NO REFERENCE

PAYMENT

 AMOUNTFUND DEPARTMENT

Village of Antioch, IL

GL-EXP-ACCT DESCRIPTION

Accounts Payable -December 5,  2011

PAYNE & DOLAN INC
GENERAL 2,003.56RESURFACING1109824MAINT-STREETS100-090-545-5353PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 2,209.48RESURFACING1111331MAINT-STREETS100-090-545-5353PUBLIC WORKS

4,213.04Vendor Total

PEST CONTROL SERVICES, INC.
GENERAL 67.00NOV SERVICES46477MAINT BUILDINGS100-050-440-5350FIRE

GENERAL 67.00NOV SERVICES46477MAINT BLDGS100-050-490-5350FIRE DISTRICT

134.00Vendor Total

PRE-PAID LEGAL SERVICES
GENERAL 225.20NOV EMPLOYEE VOL ADDITIONAL1360821111EE LEGAL DEDUCT PAYABLE100-002-000-2208NON-DEPARTMENTAL

225.20Vendor Total

PROPAC
GENERAL 1,070.14TRAFFIC WAND,SPARKPROOF TOOL329114EQUIPMENT<$25K100-010-425-5755ADMINISTRATION

1,070.14Vendor Total

PUMPING SOLUTIONS,INC
WATER & SEWER 150.53SPARE PARTS KIT FOR GAMMA PUMP9905-2891AMAINTENANCE SUPPLIES800-090-840-5567PUBLIC WORKS

150.53Vendor Total

QUILL CORPORATION , INC.
GENERAL 21.49OFFICE SUPPLIES7851596OFFICE SUPPLIES100-090-511-5565PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 27.98OFFICE SUPPLIES7859250OFFICE SUPPLIES100-090-511-5565PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 16.99OFFICE SUPPLIES7862528OFFICE SUPPLIES100-090-511-5565PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 69.98OFFICE SUPPLIES7879770OFFICE SUPPLIES100-090-511-5565PUBLIC WORKS

136.44Vendor Total

Page 13 of 21



INVOICE-NO REFERENCE

PAYMENT

 AMOUNTFUND DEPARTMENT

Village of Antioch, IL

GL-EXP-ACCT DESCRIPTION

Accounts Payable -December 5,  2011

RADIOSHACK CORPORATION
GENERAL 7.48ADAPTER013615EQUIPMENT<$25K100-080-430-5755POLICE

GENERAL 11.59SPEAKER024181EQUIPMENT<$25K100-080-430-5755POLICE

GENERAL 57.98CABLE/SOCKET024290EQUIPMENT<$25K100-080-430-5755POLICE

77.05Vendor Total

RAY O'HERRON CO. INC.
GENERAL 138.63TASER1127908-INEQUIPMENT<$25K100-080-430-5755POLICE

138.63Vendor Total

RAYMOND CHEVY-KIA
GENERAL 1,374.622004 IMPALA REPAIRCVCS344710MAINT VEHICLES100-090-511-5351PUBLIC WORKS

1,374.62Vendor Total

RICOH AMERICAS CORP
GENERAL 28.33TONER509826387CONTRACT PAYMENT100-010-110-5488ADMINISTRATION

GENERAL 181.18ACCT#036-24094-00120405705CONTRACT PAYMENT100-060-312-5488PARKS & REC

209.51Vendor Total

ROBIN MALPASS AND ASSOCIATES
GENERAL 4,545.45MARKETING CONTRACT110906-42OTHER PROFESSIONAL SVC100-070-242-5438PZB

4,545.45Vendor Total

ROYAL PUBLISHING
GENERAL 55.00FALL & WINTER PROGRAMS75527232ADVERTISING100-060-312-5433PARKS & REC

GENERAL 95.00ANTIOCH WINTER SPORTS PROGRAM7573283ADVERTISING100-060-312-5433PARKS & REC

150.00Vendor Total

Page 14 of 21



INVOICE-NO REFERENCE

PAYMENT

 AMOUNTFUND DEPARTMENT

Village of Antioch, IL

GL-EXP-ACCT DESCRIPTION

Accounts Payable -December 5,  2011

SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO
GENERAL 121.57PAINT4100-2MAINT-GROUNDS100-090-511-5355PUBLIC WORKS

121.57Vendor Total

STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE
GENERAL 11.25OFFICE SUPPLIES8020253120OFFICE SUPPLIES100-010-110-5565ADMINISTRATION

11.25Vendor Total

STATE BANK OF THE LAKES
CAPITAL PROJECTS 343.79NOTE 219385034112211PRINCIPAL300-090-545-5686PUBLIC WORKS

CAPITAL PROJECTS 1.36NOTE 219385034112211INTEREST300-090-545-5687PUBLIC WORKS

345.15Vendor Total

SUBURBAN LABORATORIES , INC.
WATER & SEWER 1,125.10ANNUAL SAMPLING13592OTHER PROFESSIONAL SVC800-090-840-5438PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 215.40SAMPLE TESTING13949OTHER PROFESSIONAL SVC800-090-840-5438PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 721.00QUARTERLY SLUDGE SAMPLING14000OTHER PROFESSIONAL SVC800-090-840-5438PUBLIC WORKS

2,061.50Vendor Total

SYNAGRO TECHNOLOGIES INC
WATER & SEWER 12,322.50SLUDGE HAULING36722SLUDGE HAULING800-090-840-5441PUBLIC WORKS

12,322.50Vendor Total

TERMINAL SUPPLY CO
GENERAL 83.52MACHINE SCREWS86634-00MAINT VEHICLES100-090-511-5351PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 16.27MACHINE SCREWS86634-01MAINT VEHICLES100-090-511-5351PUBLIC WORKS

99.79Vendor Total

Page 15 of 21



INVOICE-NO REFERENCE

PAYMENT

 AMOUNTFUND DEPARTMENT

Village of Antioch, IL

GL-EXP-ACCT DESCRIPTION

Accounts Payable -December 5,  2011

THOMAS HUEBNER
GENERAL 66.36CDL RENEWAL101511THOTHER PROFESSIONAL SVC100-090-545-5438PUBLIC WORKS

66.36Vendor Total

TREDROC TIRE SERVICES
GENERAL 270.00TIRES253851MAINTENANCE-EQUIPMENT100-090-511-5352PUBLIC WORKS

270.00Vendor Total

Page 16 of 21



INVOICE-NO REFERENCE

PAYMENT

 AMOUNTFUND DEPARTMENT

Village of Antioch, IL

GL-EXP-ACCT DESCRIPTION

Accounts Payable -December 5,  2011

UNIMERICA INSURANCE
GENERAL 25.00DEC LIFE INSURANCE3190001985LIFE INSURANCE100-010-110-5204ADMINISTRATION

GENERAL 25.00DEC LIFE INSURANCE3190001985LIFE INSURANCE100-070-217-5204PZB

GENERAL 25.00DEC LIFE INSURANCE3190001985LIFE INSURANCE100-010-115-5204ADMINISTRATION

GENERAL 12.50DEC LIFE INSURANCE3190001985LIFE INSURANCE100-070-216-5204PZB

GENERAL 112.50DEC LIFE INSURANCE3190001985LIFE INSURANCE100-080-431-5204POLICE

GENERAL 25.00DEC LIFE INSURANCE3190001985LIFE INSURANCE100-010-101-5204ADMINISTRATION

GENERAL 12.50DEC LIFE INSURANCE3190001985LIFE INSURANCE100-010-425-5204ADMINISTRATION

GENERAL 37.50DEC LIFE INSURANCE3190001985LIFE INSURANCE100-040-113-5204FINANCE

GENERAL 22.50DEC LIFE INSURANCE3190001985LIFE INSURANCE100-050-440-5204FIRE

GENERAL 2.50DEC LIFE INSURANCE3190001985LIFE INSURANCE100-050-490-5204FIRE DISTRICT

GENERAL 25.00DEC LIFE INSURANCE3190001985LIFE INSURANCE100-060-312-5204PARKS & REC

GENERAL 12.50DEC LIFE INSURANCE3190001985LIFE INSURANCE100-060-314-5204PARKS & REC

GENERAL 350.00DEC LIFE INSURANCE3190001985LIFE INSURANCE100-080-430-5204POLICE

GENERAL 100.00DEC LIFE INSURANCE3190001985LIFE INSURANCE100-090-511-5204PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 6.25DEC LIFE INSURANCE3190001985LIFE INSURANCE100-060-334-5204PARKS & REC

DOLLY SPIERING 6.25DEC LIFE INSURANCE3190001985LIFE INSURANCE235-060-335-5204SENIOR CENTER

GENERAL 75.00DEC LIFE INSURANCE3190001985LIFE INSURANCE100-090-545-5204PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 37.50DEC LIFE INSURANCE3190001985LIFE INSURANCE800-090-820-5204PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 37.50DEC LIFE INSURANCE3190001985LIFE INSURANCE800-010-810-5204ADMINSTRATION

WATER & SEWER 37.50DEC LIFE INSURANCE3190001985LIFE INSURANCE800-090-840-5204PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 742.75DEC LIFE INSURANCE3190001985LIFE INS WH PAYABLE100-002-000-2207NON-DEPARTMENTAL

1,730.25Vendor Total

Page 17 of 21



INVOICE-NO REFERENCE

PAYMENT

 AMOUNTFUND DEPARTMENT

Village of Antioch, IL

GL-EXP-ACCT DESCRIPTION

Accounts Payable -December 5,  2011

UNITED HEALTHCARE
GENERAL 285.80NOV DENTAL CLAIMS113011UHCDENTAL INSURANCE100-070-217-5201PZB

GENERAL 304.00NOV DENTAL CLAIMS113011UHCDENTAL INSURANCE100-060-348-5201PARKS & REC

GENERAL 1,221.30NOV DENTAL CLAIMS113011UHCDENTAL INSURANCE100-080-430-5201POLICE

GENERAL 148.50NOV DENTAL CLAIMS113011UHCDENTAL INSURANCE100-090-511-5201PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 288.00NOV DENTAL CLAIMS113011UHCDENTAL INSURANCE800-010-810-5201ADMINSTRATION

WATER & SEWER 558.40NOV DENTAL CLAIMS113011UHCDENTAL INSURANCE800-090-820-5201PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 884.36NOV DENTAL CLAIMS113011UHCDENTAL INSURANCE800-090-840-5201PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 519.97NOV DEDUCTIBLE CLAIMS113011UHCMEDICAL INSURANCE100-010-101-5203ADMINISTRATION

GENERAL 239.91NOV DEDUCTIBLE CLAIMS113011UHCMEDICAL INSURANCE100-050-440-5203FIRE

GENERAL 143.28NOV DEDUCTIBLE CLAIMS113011UHCMEDICAL INSURANCE100-070-217-5203PZB

GENERAL 3,654.85NOV DEDUCTIBLE CLAIMS113011UHCMEDICAL INSURANCE100-080-430-5203POLICE

GENERAL 2,206.70NOV DEDUCTIBLE CLAIMS113011UHCMEDICAL INSURANCE100-090-511-5203PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 352.44DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM25857085MEDICAL INSURANCE100-010-101-5203ADMINISTRATION

GENERAL 1,007.66DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM25857085MEDICAL INSURANCE100-010-110-5203ADMINISTRATION

GENERAL 1,712.54DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM25857085MEDICAL INSURANCE100-010-115-5203ADMINISTRATION

GENERAL 1,007.66DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM25857085MEDICAL INSURANCE100-010-425-5203ADMINISTRATION

GENERAL 352.44DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM25857085MEDICAL INSURANCE100-070-216-5203PZB

GENERAL 704.88DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM25857085MEDICAL INSURANCE100-040-113-5203FINANCE

GENERAL 1,447.49DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM25857085MEDICAL INSURANCE100-050-440-5203FIRE

GENERAL 352.44DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM25857085MEDICAL INSURANCE100-060-312-5203PARKS & REC

GENERAL 1,007.66DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM25857085MEDICAL INSURANCE100-060-348-5203PARKS & REC

GENERAL 503.83DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM25857085MEDICAL INSURANCE100-060-334-5203PARKS & REC

GENERAL 1,672.89DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM25857085MEDICAL INSURANCE100-070-217-5203PZB

GENERAL 20,289.93DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM25857085MEDICAL INSURANCE100-080-430-5203POLICE

GENERAL 6,531.20DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM25857085MEDICAL INSURANCE100-080-431-5203POLICE

GENERAL 6,613.52DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM25857085MEDICAL INSURANCE100-090-511-5203PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 2,687.73DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM25857085MEDICAL INSURANCE100-090-545-5203PUBLIC WORKS

DOLLY SPIERING 503.83DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM25857085MEDICAL INSURANCE235-060-335-5203SENIOR CENTER

WATER & SEWER 616.77DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM25857085MEDICAL INSURANCE800-010-810-5203ADMINSTRATION

WATER & SEWER 1,229.50DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM25857085MEDICAL INSURANCE800-090-820-5203PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 88.11DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM25857085MEDICAL INSURANCE800-090-830-5203PUBLIC WORKS

Page 18 of 21



INVOICE-NO REFERENCE

PAYMENT

 AMOUNTFUND DEPARTMENT

Village of Antioch, IL

GL-EXP-ACCT DESCRIPTION

Accounts Payable -December 5,  2011

WATER & SEWER 3,022.97DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM25857085MEDICAL INSURANCE800-090-840-5203PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 8,246.62DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM25857085RETIREE HEALTH INS EXPENSE100-005-000-5203NON-DEPARTMENTAL

GENERAL 6,240.00DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM25857085MED INS WH PAYABLE100-002-000-2203NON-DEPARTMENTAL

GENERAL 633.42DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM25857085MED INS WH PAYABLE100-002-000-2203NON-DEPARTMENTAL

GENERAL 0.01DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM25857085MEDICAL INSURANCE100-080-430-5203POLICE

GENERAL 5.75DEC DENTAL ADMIN FEE25857085BDENTAL INSURANCE100-010-101-5201ADMINISTRATION

GENERAL 5.75DEC DENTAL ADMIN FEE25857085BDENTAL INSURANCE100-010-110-5201ADMINISTRATION

GENERAL 17.25DEC DENTAL ADMIN FEE25857085BDENTAL INSURANCE100-010-115-5201ADMINISTRATION

GENERAL 5.75DEC DENTAL ADMIN FEE25857085BDENTAL INSURANCE100-010-425-5201ADMINISTRATION

GENERAL 5.75DEC DENTAL ADMIN FEE25857085BDENTAL INSURANCE100-070-216-5201PZB

GENERAL 11.50DEC DENTAL ADMIN FEE25857085BDENTAL INSURANCE100-040-113-5201FINANCE

GENERAL 11.50DEC DENTAL ADMIN FEE25857085BDENTAL INSURANCE100-050-440-5201FIRE

GENERAL 5.75DEC DENTAL ADMIN FEE25857085BDENTAL INSURANCE100-060-312-5201PARKS & REC

GENERAL 5.75DEC DENTAL ADMIN FEE25857085BDENTAL INSURANCE100-060-348-5201PARKS & REC

GENERAL 5.75DEC DENTAL ADMIN FEE25857085BDENTAL INSURANCE100-060-314-5201PARKS & REC

GENERAL 2.88DEC DENTAL ADMIN FEE25857085BDENTAL INSURANCE100-060-334-5201PARKS & REC

GENERAL 11.50DEC DENTAL ADMIN FEE25857085BDENTAL INSURANCE100-070-217-5201PZB

GENERAL 172.50DEC DENTAL ADMIN FEE25857085BDENTAL INSURANCE100-080-430-5201POLICE

GENERAL 57.50DEC DENTAL ADMIN FEE25857085BDENTAL INSURANCE100-080-431-5201POLICE

GENERAL 50.32DEC DENTAL ADMIN FEE25857085BDENTAL INSURANCE100-090-511-5201PUBLIC WORKS

GENERAL 34.50DEC DENTAL ADMIN FEE25857085BDENTAL INSURANCE100-090-545-5201PUBLIC WORKS

DOLLY SPIERING 2.87DEC DENTAL ADMIN FEE25857085BDENTAL INSURANCE235-060-335-5201SENIOR CENTER

WATER & SEWER 12.93DEC DENTAL ADMIN FEE25857085BDENTAL INSURANCE800-010-810-5201ADMINSTRATION

WATER & SEWER 15.81DEC DENTAL ADMIN FEE25857085BDENTAL INSURANCE800-090-820-5201PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 1.44DEC DENTAL ADMIN FEE25857085BDENTAL INSURANCE800-090-830-5201PUBLIC WORKS

WATER & SEWER 17.25DEC DENTAL ADMIN FEE25857085BDENTAL INSURANCE800-090-840-5201PUBLIC WORKS

77,740.61Vendor Total

Page 19 of 21



INVOICE-NO REFERENCE

PAYMENT

 AMOUNTFUND DEPARTMENT

Village of Antioch, IL

GL-EXP-ACCT DESCRIPTION

Accounts Payable -December 5,  2011

US TANKER-FIRE APPARATUS INC
CAPITAL PROJECTS 57,500.00FIRE TRUCK724VEHICLES >$35K300-050-490-5815FIRE

CAPITAL PROJECTS 128,200.00FIRE TRUCK724VEHICLES >$35k300-050-400-5815FIRE

185,700.00Vendor Total

USABLUEBOOK
WATER & SEWER 252.88BOTTLES/NET518749OPERATING SUPPLIES800-090-840-5568PUBLIC WORKS

252.88Vendor Total

VERITY THREE, INC
GENERAL 40.00TECH SUPPORT26244CONTRACT PAYMENT100-080-430-5488POLICE

GENERAL 273.00TECH SUPPORT26278CONTRACT PAYMENT100-080-430-5488POLICE

GENERAL 23.75TECH SUPPORT26343CONTRACT PAYMENT100-080-430-5488POLICE

GENERAL 500.00ONSITE DESKTOP, SERVER26484CONTRACT PAYMENT100-010-110-5488ADMINISTRATION

GENERAL 31.25ONSITE DESKTOP, SERVER26484CONTRACT PAYMENT100-060-312-5488PARKS & REC

868.00Vendor Total

VILL OF ANTIOCH SENIOR PETTY
DOLLY SPIERING 43.10FOOD112211SCFOOD235-060-335-5570SENIOR CENTER

DOLLY SPIERING 56.40SUPPLIES112211SCOPERATING SUPPLIES235-060-335-5568SENIOR CENTER

DOLLY SPIERING 64.68LUNCHEON FOOD112211SCBFOOD235-060-335-5570SENIOR CENTER

DOLLY SPIERING 34.00LINE DANCE INSTRUCTOR112211SCBOPERATING SUPPLIES235-060-335-5568SENIOR CENTER

198.18Vendor Total

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH PD PETTY CA
GENERAL 32.45FOOD112211PCFOOD100-080-430-5570POLICE

GENERAL 43.93SUPPLIES112211PCOPERATING SUPPLIES100-080-430-5568POLICE

GENERAL 41.41SUPPLIES112211PCMAINTENANCE SUPPLIES100-080-430-5567POLICE

117.79Vendor Total

Page 20 of 21



INVOICE-NO REFERENCE

PAYMENT

 AMOUNTFUND DEPARTMENT

Village of Antioch, IL

GL-EXP-ACCT DESCRIPTION

Accounts Payable -December 5,  2011

WAL-MART COMMUNITY
GENERAL 34.95CRAFT SUPPLIES37571211SUPPLIES REC PROGRAMS100-060-314-5568PARKS & REC

GENERAL 35.65CRAFT SUPPLIES37571211SUPPLIES REC PROGRAMS100-060-314-5568PARKS & REC

GENERAL 15.34FOOD37571211FOOD100-060-314-5570PARKS & REC

GENERAL 43.22CRAFT SUPPLIES37571211SUPPLIES REC PROGRAMS100-060-314-5568PARKS & REC

GENERAL 18.89CRAFT SUPPLIES37571211SUPPLIES REC PROGRAMS100-060-314-5568PARKS & REC

GENERAL 26.31OFFICE SUPPLIES37571211OFFICE SUPPLIES100-060-314-5565PARKS & REC

GENERAL 29.89CRAFT SUPPLIES37571211SUPPLIES REC PROGRAMS100-060-314-5568PARKS & REC

GENERAL 76.10OFFICE SUPPLIES3773PW1111OFFICE SUPPLIES100-090-511-5565PUBLIC WORKS

280.35Vendor Total

WAREHOUSE DIRECT BUSINESS PROD
GENERAL 153.44CLEANING SUPPLIES1344700-0CLEANING SUPPLIES100-090-511-5567PUBLIC WORKS

153.44Vendor Total

WI SCTF
GENERAL 65.00WI ACCOUNTING FEE36933911A/R GENERAL BILLINGS100-001-000-1110

65.00Vendor Total

ZEP SALES & SERVICE
GENERAL 286.62CLEANING SUPPLIES30471122CLEANING SUPPLIES100-090-511-5567PUBLIC WORKS

286.62Vendor Total

Grand Total: $1,206,959.49

Page 21 of 21



INVOICE-NO REFERENCE
PAYMENT
 AMOUNTFUND DEPARTMENT

Village of Antioch, IL

Invoices Over $10,000  Informational Report   December 5,  2011

GL-EXP-ACCT DESCRIPTION

CITIZENS MANAGEMENT INC
120111SWC NOV WORKERS COMP CLAIMS 255.83WORKERS COMPENSATION 115-090-820-5676 WORKERS COMP CLAIMS

120111SWC NOV WORKERS COMP CLAIMS -696.00WORKERS COMPENSATION 115-090-511-5676 WORKERS COMP CLAIMS

120111SWC NOV WORKERS COMP CLAIMS 3,220.00WORKERS COMPENSATION 115-090-511-5676 WORKERS COMP CLAIMS

120111SWC NOV WORKERS COMP CLAIMS 1,319.84WORKERS COMPENSATION 115-090-511-5676 WORKERS COMP CLAIMS

120111SWC NOV WORKERS COMP CLAIMS 352.24WORKERS COMPENSATION 115-090-511-5676 WORKERS COMP CLAIMS

120111SWC NOV WORKERS COMP CLAIMS 8,095.59WORKERS COMPENSATION 115-090-511-5676 WORKERS COMP CLAIMS

120111SWC NOV WORKERS COMP CLAIMS 1,319.84WORKERS COMPENSATION 115-090-511-5676 WORKERS COMP CLAIMS

13,867.34Vendor Total

DATA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
31443 LICENSE FEE 4,213.51GENERAL FINANCE 100-040-113-5761 COMPUTER SOFTWARE

31443 SUPPORT FEE 2,207.08GENERAL PZB 100-070-216-5761 COMPUTER SOFTWARE

31443 SUPPORT FEE 3,611.58WATER & SEWER ADMINSTRATION 800-010-810-5761 COMPUTER SOFTWARE

10,032.17Vendor Total

FIRST FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
011 FIRE PAYROLL 4,643.00GENERAL FIRE 100-050-440-5101 SALARIES & WAGES

011 FIRE PAYROLL 18,285.87GENERAL FIRE 100-050-440-5104 VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS

011 FIRE PAYROLL 1,416.70GENERAL FIRE 100-050-440-5244 SOCIAL SECURITY

011 FIRE PAYROLL 331.10GENERAL FIRE 100-050-440-5245 MEDICARE EXP

011 MEDICAL INSURANCE 726.25GENERAL FIRE 100-050-440-5203 MEDICAL INSURANCE

25,402.92Vendor Total

GASVODA & ASSOCIATES, INC.
11IS0966 RECYCLE PUMP REPAIR 10,785.10WATER & SEWER PUBLIC WORKS 800-090-840-5352 MAINTENANCE-EQUIPMENT

10,785.10Vendor Total

LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP
23357 PROFESSIONAL SVCS 13,000.00GENERAL FINANCE 100-040-113-5435 ACCOUNTING SVCS

23357 PROFESSIONAL SVCS 7,000.00WATER & SEWER ADMINSTRATION 800-010-810-5435 ACCOUNTING SVCS

Page 1 of 3



INVOICE-NO REFERENCE
PAYMENT
 AMOUNTFUND DEPARTMENT

Village of Antioch, IL

Invoices Over $10,000  Informational Report   December 5,  2011

GL-EXP-ACCT DESCRIPTION

20,000.00Vendor Total

SYNAGRO TECHNOLOGIES INC
36722 SLUDGE HAULING 12,322.50WATER & SEWER PUBLIC WORKS 800-090-840-5441 SLUDGE HAULING

12,322.50Vendor Total

UNITED HEALTHCARE
25857085 DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM 352.44GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 100-010-101-5203 MEDICAL INSURANCE

25857085 DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM 1,007.66GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 100-010-110-5203 MEDICAL INSURANCE

25857085 DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM 1,712.54GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 100-010-115-5203 MEDICAL INSURANCE

25857085 DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM 1,007.66GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 100-010-425-5203 MEDICAL INSURANCE

25857085 DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM 352.44GENERAL PZB 100-070-216-5203 MEDICAL INSURANCE

25857085 DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM 704.88GENERAL FINANCE 100-040-113-5203 MEDICAL INSURANCE

25857085 DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM 1,447.49GENERAL FIRE 100-050-440-5203 MEDICAL INSURANCE

25857085 DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM 352.44GENERAL PARKS & REC 100-060-312-5203 MEDICAL INSURANCE

25857085 DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM 1,007.66GENERAL PARKS & REC 100-060-348-5203 MEDICAL INSURANCE

25857085 DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM 503.83GENERAL PARKS & REC 100-060-334-5203 MEDICAL INSURANCE

25857085 DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM 1,672.89GENERAL PZB 100-070-217-5203 MEDICAL INSURANCE

25857085 DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM 20,289.93GENERAL POLICE 100-080-430-5203 MEDICAL INSURANCE

25857085 DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM 6,531.20GENERAL POLICE 100-080-431-5203 MEDICAL INSURANCE

25857085 DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM 6,613.52GENERAL PUBLIC WORKS 100-090-511-5203 MEDICAL INSURANCE

25857085 DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM 2,687.73GENERAL PUBLIC WORKS 100-090-545-5203 MEDICAL INSURANCE

25857085 DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM 503.83DOLLY SPIERING SENIOR CENTER 235-060-335-5203 MEDICAL INSURANCE

25857085 DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM 616.77WATER & SEWER ADMINSTRATION 800-010-810-5203 MEDICAL INSURANCE

25857085 DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM 1,229.50WATER & SEWER PUBLIC WORKS 800-090-820-5203 MEDICAL INSURANCE

25857085 DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM 88.11WATER & SEWER PUBLIC WORKS 800-090-830-5203 MEDICAL INSURANCE

25857085 DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM 3,022.97WATER & SEWER PUBLIC WORKS 800-090-840-5203 MEDICAL INSURANCE

25857085 DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM 8,246.62GENERAL NON-DEPARTMENTAL 100-005-000-5203 RETIREE HEALTH INS EXPENSE

25857085 DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM 6,240.00GENERAL NON-DEPARTMENTAL 100-002-000-2203 MED INS WH PAYABLE

25857085 DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM 633.42GENERAL NON-DEPARTMENTAL 100-002-000-2203 MED INS WH PAYABLE

25857085 DEC HEALTH INS PREMIUM 0.01GENERAL POLICE 100-080-430-5203 MEDICAL INSURANCE

Page 2 of 3



INVOICE-NO REFERENCE
PAYMENT
 AMOUNTFUND DEPARTMENT

Village of Antioch, IL

Invoices Over $10,000  Informational Report   December 5,  2011

GL-EXP-ACCT DESCRIPTION

66,825.54Vendor Total

US TANKER-FIRE APPARATUS INC
724 FIRE TRUCK 57,500.00CAPITAL PROJECTS FIRE 300-050-490-5815 VEHICLES >$35K

724 FIRE TRUCK 128,200.00CAPITAL PROJECTS FIRE 300-050-400-5815 VEHICLES >$35k

185,700.00Vendor Total

Grand Total: $344,935.57

Page 3 of 3



 Request For Board Action 
 

 

 

REFERRED TO BOARD   December 5, 2011 AGENDA ITEM NO: 6 

 
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT:  Finance Department  
 
SUBJECT:  Consideration of an Ordinance providing for the Levy of Taxes for the fiscal year beginning May 1, 
2011 and ending April 30, 2012. 
 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER: 

 

The Tax Levy Ordinance is the Village’s legal request to receive property taxes imposed upon properties lying 
within its corporate boundaries. This Ordinance sets forth the specific type and amount of property taxes the 
Village is requesting.   
 
The Village is requesting approximately $3,817,605 of property tax revenue; however, this request is calculated on 
an estimated equalized assessed value (EAV). The EAV is vital in the calculation used by the County to determine 
the tax rate. Since the actual EAV is not available at this time, an estimate is used. The impact of this estimate is an 
artificial inflation of property taxes requested. Additionally, the Village, as a non-home rule municipality, is subject 
to a Property Tax Extension Limitation (tax cap). The cap is the lesser of 5% or the percentage increase in the 
Consumer Price Index (CPI) during the 12 month calendar year preceding the levy year. The final tax extension is 
determined by Lake County. 
 
Taxes Levied for 2010 were $3,708,313. The final property taxes extended were $3,572,267 
 
The Tax Levy Ordinance must be filed with the county clerk no later than the last Tuesday in December.   

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Anticipated revenues of less than $3,817,605  
 

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
 

1. Ordinance 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 

 
Move to accept as presented an Ordinance providing for the Levy of Taxes for the fiscal year beginning May 1, 
2011 and ending April 30, 2012. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH 

 

 

ORDINANCE  2011 - ____  

 

 
AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE LEVY OF TAXES FOR THE 

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH, LAKE COUNTY, STATE OF ILLINOIS, FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING MAY 1, 2011 AND ENDING APRIL 30, 2012. 

 

 

 

ADOPTED BY THE  

 

PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

OF THE 

 

VILLAGE ANTIOCH 

 

THIS  ____ DAY OF ________________, 2011 

 

  

 
PUBLISHED IN PAMPHLET FORM BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE 

PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH, 

ILLINOIS THIS _____ DAY OF ________________, 2011. 

 

 

 

 



ORDINANCE 11-_____ 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE LEVY OF TAXES FOR THE 

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH, LAKE COUNTY, STATE OF ILLINOIS, FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING MAY 1, 2011 AND ENDING APRIL 30, 2012. 
 

 

BE IT ORDAINED, By the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of 
Antioch in the County of Lake, State of Illinois as follows: 
 
 SECTION I:  The following sum or sums, or so much thereof as shall be 
authorized by law, as heretofore appropriated for corporate purposes to be collected from 
taxes to be levied for the fiscal year beginning May 1, 2011 and ending April 30, 2012 be 
and the same are hereby levied upon all property subject to taxation within the VILLAGE 
OF ANTIOCH, County of Lake, State of Illinois, as the same is assessed and equalized 
for State and County purposes of the said current year. 

 

SECTION II:  That the extended balances of any item or items levied in and by this 
Ordinance may be guaranteed in making up any deficiency in any items under the same 
general appropriation and levy for the same general purpose. 
 
SECTION III:  That the purposes for which said amounts were heretofore appropriated 
and are now hereby levied respectfully as follows: 
 
 

SUMMARY 

  

Emergency Management Services     $       4,248  

Fire Protection          271,865  

Police Protection          271,865  

Police Pension          832,337  

IMRF          225,138  

Social Security & Medicare          301,600  

Corporate       1,372,066  

Insurance & Tort Judgements          118,941  

Audit            16,992  

General Obligation Bonds          402,555  

      $3,817,605  

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Fund Purpose & Object 

  Total 

Adopted   

FY2012  

Appropriation  

 Amount to be 

Provided 

From Other 

Sources  

 Amount to be 

Provided by 

Levying Taxes  

100 GENERAL FUND    

     

EMS     

  Personnel Costs 181,246   

  Contractual Services 50,400   

  Supplies & Materials 12,400   

  Capital Outlay 18,800     

         Total EMS 262,846 258,598 4,248 

     

 Fire Protection    

  Personnel Costs 1,486,112   

  Contractual Services 312,026   

  Supplies & Materials 67,700   

  Capital Outlay 102,000     

         Total Fire Protection 1,967,838 1,695,973 271,865 

     

 Police Protection    

  Personnel Costs 5,649,260   

  Contractual Services 260,700   

  Supplies & Materials 233,400   

  Capital Outlay 38,000     

         Total Police Protection 6,181,360 5,909,495 271,865 

     

 Pension & Employee Benefits    

  Police Pension 1,440,234 607,897 832,337 

  IMRF 460,972 235,834 225,138 

  SS/Medicare 866,700 565,100 301,600 

        Total Pension & Employee Benefits 2,767,906 1,408,831 1,359,075 

     

 Audit 38,000 21,008 16,992 

     

 Insurance/Tort 357,286 238,345 118,941 

     

 Other Corporate Purposes    

  General Government    

     Personnel Costs 5,779,552   

     Contractual Services 2,372,814   

     Supplies & Materials 647,310   

     Capital Outlay 67,900     

         Total General Government 8,867,576 7,495,510 1,372,066 

     

  Contingencies 100,000 100,000 0 

     

  Sub-total Other Corporate Purposes 8,967,576 7,595,510 1,372,066 

     

  Street & Bridge    

 Total General Fund & Other Corporate Purposes  20,542,812 17,127,762 3,415,050 

      

DEPOT PARKING FUND    

 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES      

 Maintenance-Buildings 1,500   



Fund Purpose & Object 

  Total 

Adopted   

FY2012  

Appropriation  

 Amount to be 

Provided 

From Other 

Sources  

 Amount to be 

Provided by 

Levying Taxes  

 Maintenance-Equipment 1,500   

 Maintenance-Grounds 1,500   

 Telephone Service 1,200   

 Utility - Electric 5,000   

 Utility-Gas 2,300   

 Administrative Services 7,500   

 Contract Payment 12,000   

  32,500   

      

 TOTAL DEPOT PARKING FUND 32,500 32,500 0 

      

UTILITY TAX FUND     

 Transfer to General Fund 500,000   

 Transfer to Capital Fund 500,000   

 Transfer to Reserve Fund 500,000   

 Transfer to Water & Sewer Fund 500,000   

 Transfer to Debt Service 500,000   

  2,500,000   

      

 TOTAL UTILITY TAX FUND 2,500,000 2,500,000 0 

      

PUBLIC SAFETY     

 DARE     

 SUPPLIES & MATERIALS     

 Operating Supplies 5,300   

      

 DUI SURCHARGE     

 SUPPLIES & MATERIALS     

 Operating Supplies 1,000   

      

 CONTROLLED ASSETS     

 Equipment<$25K 15,000   

      

 CANINE UNIT     

 SUPPLIES & MATERIALS     

 Operating Supplies 1,000   

      

 PRISONER REVIEW AGENCY     

 CONTROLLED ASSETS     

 Equipment<$25K 12,000   

      

      

 TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY FUND 34,300 34,300 0 

      

      

EMPLOYEE FUNDED BENEFITS     

 Reimbursements 60,000   

      

 TOTAL EMPLOYEE BENEFITS FUND 60,000 60,000 0 

      

      



Fund Purpose & Object 

  Total 

Adopted   

FY2012  

Appropriation  

 Amount to be 

Provided 

From Other 

Sources  

 Amount to be 

Provided by 

Levying Taxes  

DRUG SEIZURE FUND     

      

 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES     

 Administrative Services 1,000   

      

 SUPPLIES & MATERIALS     

 Operating Supplies 20,000   

      

      

 TOTAL DRUG SEIZURE FUND 21,000 21,000 0 

      

      

DOLLY SPIERING MEMORIAL FUND     

      

 PERSONNEL     

 Salaries & Wages 81,900   

 Part-Time Wages 20,900   

 Dental Insurance 3,100   

 Medical Insurance 18,000   

 Life Insurance 1,000   

 State Unemployment Insurance 1,000   

 Social Security 6,400   

 Medicare Expenses 1,500   

 IMRF Expenses 9,300   

  143,100   

 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES     

 Other Professional Services 1,500   

 Operating Supplies 2,000   

 Food 33,000   

  36,500   

 SUPPLIES & MATERIALS     

 Equipment<$25K 20,000   

 Buildings>$50K 50,000   

  70,000   

 OTHER EXPENDITURES     

 Misc. Donations 10,000   

      

 

TOTAL DOLLY SPIERING MEMORIAL 

FUND 259,600 259,600 0 

      

      

MOTOR FUEL TAX     

 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES     

 Maintenance – Streets 10,000   

 Engineering Services 30,000   

 Other Professional Services 5,000   

  45,000   

 SUPPLIES & MATERIALS     

 Operating Supplies 5,000   

      

 DEBT SERVICE     

 Principal 165,000   



Fund Purpose & Object 

  Total 

Adopted   

FY2012  

Appropriation  

 Amount to be 

Provided 

From Other 

Sources  

 Amount to be 

Provided by 

Levying Taxes  

 Interest 81,000   

  246,000   

 CAPITAL OUTLAY     

 Streets & Row 500,000   

      

      

 TOTAL MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND 796,000 796,000 0 

      

      

CAPITAL FUNDS     

      

 ADMINISTRATION     

      

 CAPITAL OUTLAY     

 Land 400,000   

 Buildings>$50K 150,000   

 Improvements O/T Bldg 50,000   

 Vehicles>$35K 50,000   

  650,000   

      

 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT     

 Equipment<$25K 15,000   

 Improvements O/T Buildings 5,000   

  20,000   

      

 ENGINEERING     

 Engineering Services 50,000   

 Infrastructure - Sidewalks 250,000   

 Neuhaven - Printing Services 5,000   

 Engineering Neuhaven Sub-Div Completion 150,000   

 Neuhaven Sub-Div Completion 6,000,000   

 TOTAL ENGINEERING 6,455,000   

      

 FIRE     

 Vehicles>$35K 35,000   

 Other Equipment>$25K 125,000   

 TOTAL FIRE 160,000   

      

 FIRE SAFETY     

 Improvements O/T Bldg 20,000   

 TOTAL FIRE SAFETY 20,000   

      

 FIRE DISTRICT     

  5,000   

 TOTAL FIRE DISTRICT 5,000   

      

 PARKS     

 Improvements O/T Bldg 3,000,000   

 TOTAL PARKS 3,000,000   

      

 JOINT VILLAGE/JOINT PARK     

 Improvements O/T Bldg 20,000   



Fund Purpose & Object 

  Total 

Adopted   

FY2012  

Appropriation  

 Amount to be 

Provided 

From Other 

Sources  

 Amount to be 

Provided by 

Levying Taxes  

 Equipment<$25K 20,000   

 Equipment >$25K 50,000   

 Engineering Services 50,000   

 Other Prof Services 10,000   

 Capital: Contracts 375,000   

 TOTAL JOINT VILLAGE/PARK 525,000   

      

 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT     

 Improvements O/T Bldg 301,300   

 TOTAL BUILDING 301,300   

      

 POLICE      

 Vehicles <$35K 93,000   

 Equipment<$25K 45,900   

 Vehicles>$35K 50,000   

 Other Equipment>$25K 30,000   

 TOTAL POLICE 218,900   

      

 DISPATCH     

 Other Professional Services 5,000   

 TOTAL DISPATCH 5,000   

      

 PUBLIC WORKS     

 Buildings>$50K 100,000   

 TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 100,000   

      

 STREETS     

 Principal 37,500   

 Interest 12,800   

 Vehicles>$35K 50,000   

 Other Equipment>$25K 37,500   

 Streets & Rows 2,316,000   

 TOTAL STREETS 2,453,800   

      

 SENIOR CENTER     

 Improvements O/T Bldg <$25K 20,000   

 Improvements O/T Bldg 10,000   

 TOTAL SENIOR CENTER 30,000   

      

 TOTAL CAPITAL FUNDS 13,944,000 13,944,000 0 

      

      

SSA #1 - PUBLIC PROJECTS     

 Infrastructure 800,000   

      

 TOTAL SSA# 1 PUBLIC PROJECTS FUND 800,000 800,000 0 

      

      

SSA #2 - PUBLIC PROJECTS     

 Infrastructure 400,000   

 Transfers Out     



Fund Purpose & Object 

  Total 

Adopted   

FY2012  

Appropriation  

 Amount to be 

Provided 

From Other 

Sources  

 Amount to be 

Provided by 

Levying Taxes  

      

 TOTAL SSA# 2 PUBLIC PROJECTS FUND 400,000 400,000 0 

      

      

PARK ACQUISITION FUND     

      

 CAPITAL OUTLAY     

 Improvements O/T Bldg <$25K 24,000   

 Equipment<$25K 22,500   

 Buildings-Maintenance 6,000   

 Buildings>$50K 100,000   

 Improvements O/T Bldg 24,000   

 Other Equipment>$25K 20,000   

 Professional Services 20,000   

 Contingency 12,000   

  228,500   

      

 TOTAL PARK ACQUISITION FUND 228,500 228,500 0 

      

DEBT SERVICE     

      

 2003 GO BONDS     

 Other Professional Services 1,000   

 Principal 127,500   

 Interest 24,500   

 TOTAL 2003 GO BONDS 153,000 56,970 96,030 

      

 1998A GO BONDS     

 Other Professional Services 1,000   

 Principal 412,500   

 Interest 60,000   

 TOTAL 1998A GO BONDS 473,500 166,975 306,525 

      

 2010-ERZ BONDS     

 Other Professional Services 135,000   

 Principal 300,000   

 Interest 144,000   

 TOTAL 1998A GO BONDS 579,000 579,000 0 

      

 TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 1,205,500 802,945 402,555 

      

      

WATER & SEWER FUND    

     

 ENTERPRISE ADMINISTRATION    

     

 PERSONNEL    

 Salaries & Wages 244,100   

 Overtime 100,000   

 Dental Insurance 4,000   

 Medical Insurance 19,900   



Fund Purpose & Object 

  Total 

Adopted   

FY2012  

Appropriation  

 Amount to be 

Provided 

From Other 

Sources  

 Amount to be 

Provided by 

Levying Taxes  

 Life Insurance 1,000   

 State Unemployment Insurance 1,000   

 Social Security 15,100   

 Medicare Expenses 3,500   

 IMRF Expenses 22,100   

  410,700   

 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES    

 Travel Expense 5,000   

 Training 5,000   

 Maintenance-Equipment 10,000   

 Maint Computer System 15,000   

 Computer Consultant Services 30,000   

 Professional Dues 5,000   

 General Insurance 65,300   

 Pager/Cell Phone Services 3,000   

 Postage 22,500   

 Advertising 1,000   

 Printing Services 6,000   

 Accounting Services 15,800   

 Engineering Services 50,000   

 Legal Services 150,000   

 Other Professional Services 39,000   

 Administrative Services 522,900   

 Contract Payment 10,000   

  955,500   

 SUPPLIES & MATERIALS    

 Office Supplies 5,000   

 Uniforms 5,000   

 Publications 1,000   

  11,000   

 CONTROLLED ASSETS    

 Computer Software 5,100   

     

 OTHER EXPENDITURES    

 Depreciation Expense 20,000   

 Miscellaneous Expense 10,000   

 Claims/Judgements 10,000   

 Transfers Out 500,000   

  540,000   

     

 TOTAL ENTERPRISE ADMINISTRATION 1,922,300   

     

     

 2004 REVENUE BONDS    

 Other Professional Services 1,000   

 Principal 150,000   

 Interest 48,000   

 TOTAL 2004 REVENUE BONDS 199,000   

     

 2006 DEBT CERTIFICATES    

 Other Professional Services 10,000   

 Principal 225,000   



Fund Purpose & Object 

  Total 

Adopted   

FY2012  

Appropriation  

 Amount to be 

Provided 

From Other 

Sources  

 Amount to be 

Provided by 

Levying Taxes  

 Interest 18,300   

 TOTAL 2006 DEBT CERTIFICATES 253,300   

     

 1998B REVENUE BONDS    

 Other Professional Services 1,000   

 Principal 337,500   

 Interest 76,800   

 TOTAL 1998B REVENUE BONDS 415,300   

     

 1998B REVENUE BONDS    

 Other Professional Services 1,000   

 Principal 857,100   

 Interest 542,900   

 TOTAL 1998B REVENUE BONDS 1,401,000   

     

 TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 2,268,600   

      

     

 WATER SERVICES    

     

 PERSONNEL    

 Salaries & Wages 156,600   

 Part-Time Wages 50,000   

 Wages-Seasonal 30,000   

 Overtime 22,500   

 Dental Insurance 4,700   

 Medical Insurance 22,400   

 Life Insurance 1,000   

 State Unemployment Insurance 1,000   

 Social Security 9,700   

 Medicare Expenses 2,300   

 IMRF Expenses 10,100   

  310,300   

 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES    

 Travel Expense 1,500   

 Training 1,500   

 Maint Buildings 1,000   

 Maintenance Equipment 7,500   

 Maint Utility System 67,500   

 Professional Dues 1,000   

 Telephone Service 1,300   

 Pager/Cell Phone Services 3,300   

 Utility - Electric 165,000   

 Rental Services 1,000   

 Utility - Gas 7,500   

 Advertising 1,000   

 Printing Services 1,000   

 Engineering Services 7,500   

 Other Professional Services 15,000   

 Medical Services 10,000   

 Contract Payment 87,000   

  379,600   



Fund Purpose & Object 

  Total 

Adopted   

FY2012  

Appropriation  

 Amount to be 

Provided 

From Other 

Sources  

 Amount to be 

Provided by 

Levying Taxes  

 SUPPLIES & MATERIALS    

 Office Supplies 1,000   

 Fuel & Fluids 9,000   

 Operating Supplies 15,000   

 Uniforms 1,100   

 Chemical Supplies 82,500   

 Meters 45,000   

  153,600   

 CONTROLLED ASSETS    

 Equipment<$25K 100,000   

 Computer Equipment<$10K 1,200   

  101,200   

     

 TOTAL WATER SERVICES 944,700   

     

     

 WATER CAPITAL    

     

 CAPITAL OUTLAY    

 Improvements O/T Bldg 300,000   

 Vehicles 100,000   

 Computer System 20,000   

 Equipment 50,000   

 Engineering Services 75,000   

     

 TOTAL WATER CAPITAL 545,000   

     

     

 SEWER SERVICES    

     

 PERSONNEL    

 Salaries & Wages 52,500   

 Overtime 7,500   

 Dental Insurance 1,500   

 Medical Insurance 7,500   

 Life Insurance 1,000   

 State Unemployment Insurance 1,000   

 Social Security 3,700   

 Medicare Expenses 1,000   

 IMRF Expenses 5,400   

  81,100   

 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES    

 Maintenance-Equipment 37,500   

 Maint Utility System 7,500   

 Professional Dues 12,000   

 Telephone Service 3,800   

 Lake County Treatment Services 255,000   

 Utility - Electric 165,000   

 Utility - Gas 3,800   

 Engineering Services 15,000   

 Legal Services 50,000   

 Other Professional Services 3,800   



Fund Purpose & Object 

  Total 

Adopted   

FY2012  

Appropriation  

 Amount to be 

Provided 

From Other 

Sources  

 Amount to be 

Provided by 

Levying Taxes  

 Permit Exp 20,000   

  573,400   

 SUPPLIES & MATERIALS    

 Fuel & Fluids 15,000   

 Maintenance-Supplies 3,000   

 Operating Supplies 1,500   

 Chemical Supplies 20,000   

  39,500   

 CONTROLLED ASSETS    

 Equipment<$25K 20,000   

     

     

 TOTAL SEWER SERVICES 714,000   

     

     

 SEWER CAPITAL    

     

 CAPITAL OUTLAY    

 Vehicles <$35K 20,000   

 Improvements O/T Bldg 50,000   

 Engineering Services 45,000   

 Infrastructure 1,350,000   

 Amortization Expense 300,000   

  1,765,000   

     

 TOTAL SEWER CAPITAL 1,765,000   

     

     

 TREATMENT PLANT    

     

 PERSONNEL    

 Salaries & Wages 202,100   

 Part-Time Wages 20,000   

 Wages-Seasonal 10,000   

 Overtime 15,000   

 Dental Insurance 9,200   

 Medical Insurance 47,900   

 Life Insurance 1,000   

 State Unemployment Insurance 1,000   

 Social Security 13,500   

 Medicare Expenses 3,100   

 IMRF Expenses 19,600   

  342,400   

 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES    

 Travel Expense 1,500   

 Training 1,500   

 Maintenance- Buildings 15,000   

 Maintenance-Equipment 15,000   

 Professional Dues 1,000   

 Garbage Disposal Services 10,800   

 Telephone Service 3,200   

 Pager/Cell Phone Services 1,000   



Fund Purpose & Object 

  Total 

Adopted   

FY2012  

Appropriation  

 Amount to be 

Provided 

From Other 

Sources  

 Amount to be 

Provided by 

Levying Taxes  

 Utility – Electric 165,000   

 Rental Services 2,000   

 Utility – Gas 15,000   

 Engineering Services 7,500   

 Other Professional Services 150,000   

 Sludge Hauling 82,500   

 Permit Exp 27,000   

  498,000   

 SUPPLIES & MATERIALS    

 Office Supplies 1,000   

 Fuel & Fluids 1,500   

 Maintenance Supplies 5,000   

 Operating Supplies 15,000   

 Uniforms 5,000   

 Chemical Supplies 57,000   

  84,500   

 CONTROLLED ASSETS    

 Equipment<$25K 7,500   

 Computer Equipment<$10K 9,000   

  16,500   

     

 TOTAL TREATMENT PLANT 941,400   

     

     

 INDUSTRIAL PRE-TREATMENT    

     

 PERSONNEL    

 Salaries & Wages 40,000   

 Part-Time Wages 20,000   

 Wages-Seasonal 10,000   

 Overtime 5,000   

 Dental Insurance 2,000   

 Medical Insurance 16,000   

 Life Insurance 1,000   

 State Unemployment Insurance 1,000   

 Social Security 1,000   

 Medicare Expenses 1,000   

 IMRF Expenses 5,000   

  102,000   

 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES    

 Travel Expense 2,000   

 Training 2,000   

 Engineering Services 12,000   

 Other Professional Services 18,000   

  34,000   

 SUPPLIES & MATERIALS    

 Office Supplies 2,000   

 Maintenance Supplies 5,000   

 Operating Supplies 5,000   

  12,000   

 CONTROLLED ASSETS    

 Equipment<$25K 4,000   



Fund Purpose & Object 

  Total 

Adopted   

FY2012  

Appropriation  

 Amount to be 

Provided 

From Other 

Sources  

 Amount to be 

Provided by 

Levying Taxes  

 Computer Equipment<$10K 9,000   

  13,000   

     

 TOTAL INDUSTRIAL PRE-TREATMENT 161,000   

     

     

 TREATMENT PLANT UPGRADE    

     

 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES    

 Training 15,000   

 Professional Dues 1,000   

 Legal Fees 5,000   

  21,000   

 SUPPLIES & MATERIALS    

 Publications 1,000   

     

 CAPITAL OUTLAY    

 Buildings 2,707,500   

 Equipment 10,000   

 Other Professional Services 5,000   

 Permits 30,000   

  2,752,500   

     

 TOTAL TREATMENT PLANT UPGRADE 2,774,500   

     

     

 TREATMENT PLANT CAPITAL    

     

 CAPITAL OUTLAY    

 Buildings>$50K 100,000   

 Improvements O/T Bldg 10,000   

 Vehicles>$35K 50,000   

 Other Prof Services 10,000   

     

 TOTAL TREATMENT PLANT CAPITAL 170,000   

     

 TOTAL WATER & SEWER FUND 12,206,500 12,206,500 0 

     

     

POLICE PENSION    

     

 PERSONNEL    

 Pension Exp For Retirees 663,000   

     

 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES    

 Professional Dues 3,800   

 Other Professional Services 24,000   

  27,800   

     

 TOTAL POLICE PENSION FUND 690,800 690,800 0 

     



Fund Purpose & Object 

  Total 

Adopted   

FY2012  

Appropriation  

 Amount to be 

Provided 

From Other 

Sources  

 Amount to be 

Provided by 

Levying Taxes  

     

NEUMANN HOMES REIMBURSEMENT    

 Connection Fees Expense 200,000   

     

 

TOTAL NEUMANN HOMES 

REIMBURSEMENT 

200,000 200,000 0 

     

     

SSA #1 AGENCY    

     

 DEBT SERVICE    

 Other Professional Services 156,100   

 Principal 148,500   

 Interest 1,033,600   

     

 TOTAL SSA#1 AGENCY FUND 1,338,200 1,338,200 0 

     

SSA #2 AGENCY    

     

 DEBT SERVICE    

 Other Professional Services 270,100   

 Principal 192,000   

 Interest 1,329,900   

     

 TOTAL SSA#2 AGENCY FUND 1,792,000 1,792,000 0 

     

SECTION IV:  That the Village Clerk of the Village of Antioch, is hereby directed to 
file a certified copy of the Ordinance with County Clerk of Lake County, Illinois, as 
required by law. 
 
SECTION V:  All ordinances of parts in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION VI:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from its passage and 
approval as provided by law. 
 

 

Voting Aye: 

Voting Nay:  

Abstaining: 

Absent: 

       
LAWRENCE M. HANSON, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

       

CANDI L. ROWE RMC, CMC 



 

 

 

TRUTH AND TAXATION CERTIFICATE 

 

 

 The undersigned, to-wit: Lawrence M. Hanson, Mayor of the Village of Antioch, 
Lake County, Illinois, does hereby certify that the Tax Levy Ordinance for the Village of 
Antioch was duly passed by the Board of Trustees on the    day of                       2011. 
 
 The undersigned further certified we are in compliance and that the Notice of 
Hearing Requirement of the Truth in Taxation Act (35 ILCS 200/18-55) does apply to 
this Year’s Tax Levy Ordinance. 
 
 
 
Dated this    day of              , 2011. 
 
 
    
    Lawrence M. Hanson 
    Mayor, Village of Antioch 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 

Candi Rowe, Village Clerk 
Village of Antioch 



 Request For Board Action 
 

 

 

REFERRED TO BOARD   December 5, 2011 AGENDA ITEM NO: 7 

 
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT:  Finance Department  
 
SUBJECT:  Consideration of an Ordinance abating the tax levied for the year 2011 to pay the principal of and 
interest on the: 
 

• $3,000,000 General Obligation Bonds, (Waterworks and Sewerage Revenue Alternate Revenue Source),  
Series 1998B; and 
 

• $2,000,000 General Obligation Bonds (Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2002A; and   
 

 
 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER: 

The Village will have Pledged Revenues derived from sources other than the levy of taxes for the purpose of paying 
principal of and interest on outstanding obligations.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   $422,919. 
      

 

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
 

1. Abatement Ordinance 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: 

 
Move to accept as presented an Ordinance  abating the taxes levied for the year 2011 to pay the principal of and 
interest on the $3,000,000 General Obligation Bonds, (Waterworks and Sewerage Revenue Alternate Revenue 
Source) Series 1998B; and the $2,000,000 General Obligation Bonds (Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Revenue Source), 
Series 2002A. 
 
 
 



MINUTES of the regular public meeting of the Mayor and 
Board of Trustees of the Village of Antioch, Lake County, 
Illinois held at the Village Hall, 874 Main Street, in said 
Village on the ___ day of _______, 2011. 

 
 

*********************** 
 
 
 The Mayor called the meeting to order and directed the Village Clerk to call the roll.  

Upon the roll being called, the following Trustees answered present:  __________ 

  

  

 The following Trustees were absent from the meeting:    

  

  
 
 

*********************** 
 

 
 The Mayor announced that the next item of business before the Board was the 

consideration of the adoption of an ordinance abating the tax heretofore levied for the year 2011 

to pay the principal and interest on the $3,000,000 General Obligation Bonds, (Waterworks and 

Sewerage Revenue Alternate Revenue Source), Series 1998B, dated October 1, 1998; and the 

$2,000,000 General Obligation Bonds (Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 

2002A, dated October 1, 2002. 

 Whereupon Trustee __________________ presented and the Village Clerk read in full an 

ordinance as follows: 



ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

AN ORDINANCE abating the tax heretofore levied for the year 
2011 to pay the principal of and interest on the $3,000,000 
General Obligation Bonds, (Waterworks and Sewerage Revenue 
Alternate Revenue Source), dated October 1, 1998; and the 
$2,000,000 General Obligation Bonds (Motor Fuel Tax Alternate 
Revenue Source), Series 2002A, dated October 1, 2002 of the 
Village of Antioch, Lake County, Illinois. 

 
 

********************* 
 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Board of Trustees (the "Corporate Authorities") of the 

Village of Antioch, Lake County, Illinois (the "Village"), by Ordinances adopted on October 26, 

1998 and January 21, 2002 (the "Ordinances"), did provide for the issue of $3,000,000 General 

Obligation Bonds (Waterworks and Sewerage Revenue Alternate Revenue Source), Series 

1998B, dated October 1, 1998 and the $2,000,000 General Obligation Bonds (Motor Fuel Tax 

Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2002A, (the "Bonds"), and the levy of a direct annual tax in 

each of said ordinances sufficient in an amount to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds; 

and  

 WHEREAS, the Village will have Pledged Revenues (as defined in the Ordinance) 

derived from sources other than the levy of taxes provided for in the ordinance mentioned above 

and which funds can be made available for the purpose of paying principal of and interest on said 

outstanding obligations up to and including June 1, 2013; and 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of the Village that the tax heretofore 

levied in each of said ordinances for the year 2011 to pay the principal of and interest on the 

Bonds be abated. 

 NOW THEREFORE, Be It Ordained by the Mayor and Board of Trustees of Village of 

Antioch, Lake County, Illinois as follows: 

 



 Section 1: Abatement of Tax:  The tax heretofore levied for the year 2011 in each of the 

Ordinances adopted October 26, 1998 and January 21, 2002 is hereby abated in its entirety.  

 Section 2: Filing of Ordinance: Forthwith upon the adoption of this ordinance, the 

Village Clerk shall file a certified copy hereof with the County Clerk of the County of Lake, 

Illinois, and it shall be the duty of said Country Clerk to abate said tax levied for the year 2011 in 

accordance with the provisions hereof. 

 Section 3: Effective Date: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect forthwith upon 

its passage by the Corporate Authorities and signing and approval by the Mayor. 

 PASSED by the Mayor and Board of Trustees of the Village of Antioch, Lake County, 

Illinois, this ____ day of ________, 2011. 

 

   
 Mayor, Village of Antioch 
 Lake County, Illinois 
 
AYES:   

   

NAYS:   

   

ABSENT:   

Recorded in the Village Records   

  
ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 
Village Clerk 
 
 
 
  



Trustee ________________________ moved and Trustee ________________________ 

seconded the motion that said ordinance as presented and read be adopted. 

 After a full discussion thereof, the Mayor directed that the roll be called for a vote upon 

the motion to adopt said ordinances read. 

 Upon the roll being called, the following Trustees voted AYE:   

  

and the following Trustees voted NAY:   

  

 

 Whereupon the Mayor declared the motion carried and said ordinance be adopted, 

approved and signed the same in open meeting and directed the Village Clerk to record the same 

in the records of the Mayor and Board of Trustees of Village of Antioch, Lake County, Illinois, 

which was done. 

 Other business not pertinent to the adoption of said ordinance was duly transacted at the 

meeting. 

 Upon motion duly made, seconded and carried, the meeting was adjourned. 

 

   
 Village Clerk 
  
 



STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
 )  SS 
COUNTY OF LAKE  ) 
 

 

CERTIFICATION OF ORDINANCE AND MINUTES 

 
 I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting Village Clerk 
of the Mayor and Board of Trustees (the "Board") of the Village of Antioch, Lake County, 
Illinois (the "Village"), and as such official I am the keeper of the records and files of the 
Village. 
 
 I do further certify that the foregoing constitutes a full, true and complete transcript of the 
minutes of the meeting of the Board held on the ____ day of ________, 2011, insofar as same 
relates to the adoption of an ordinance entitled: 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE abating the tax heretofore levied for the year 
2011 to pay the principal of and interest on the $3,000,000 
General Obligation Bonds, (Waterworks and Sewerage Revenue 
Alternate Revenue Source), Series 1998B, dated October 1, 
1998; and the $2,000,000 General Obligation Bonds (Motor Fuel 
Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2002A, dated October 1, 
2002; of the Village of Antioch, Lake County, Illinois. 

 

 
A true, correct and complete copy of which said ordinance as adopted at said meeting appears in 
the foregoing transcript of said minutes. 
 
 I do further certify that the deliberation of the Board on the adoption of said ordinance 
were taken openly; that the vote on the adoption of said ordinance was taken openly; that said 
meeting was called and held at a specified time and place convenient to the public; that notice of 
said meeting was duly given to all news media requesting such notice; that said meeting was 
called and held in strict compliance with the provisions of the Open Meeting Act of the State of 
Illinois, as amended, and with the provisions of the Illinois Municipal Code as amended, and that 
the Board has complied with all the provisions of said Act and said Code and with all of the 
procedural rules of the Board in the passage of said ordinance. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature and seal of the Village, 
this _________ day of ________________ 2011. 
 
 
   
 Village Clerk 
 
 
(SEAL) 



STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
 )  SS 
COUNTY OF LAKE ) 
 

 

FILING CERTIFICATE 

 
 I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting County Clerk 

of the County of Lake, Illinois (the "County"), and as such official I do further certify that on the 

_____ day of ____________, 2011, there was filed in my office a duly certified copy of 

ordinance entitled: 

 

AN ORDINANCE abating the tax heretofore levied for the year 
2011 to pay the principal of and interest on the $3,000,000 
General Obligation Bonds, (Waterworks and Sewerage Revenue 
Alternate Revenue Source), Series 1998B, dated October 1, 
1998; and the $2,000,000 General Obligation Bonds (Motor Fuel 
Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2002A, dated October 1, 
2002; of the Village of Antioch, Lake County, Illinois. 

 
 

duly adopted by the Mayor and Board of Trustees of the Village of Antioch, Lake County, 

Illinois (the "Village"), on the ____ day of _______ , 2011 and that the same has been deposited 

in the official files and records of my office. 

 I do further certify that the taxes heretofore levied for the year 2011 to pay the principal 

of and interest on the $3,000,000 General Obligation Bonds (Waterworks and Sewerage Revenue 

Alternate Revenue Source), dated October 1, 1998, and the $2,000,000 General Obligation 

Bonds (Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Revenue Source), dated October 1, 2002, as described in said 

ordinances will be abated in their entirety as provided in said Ordinance. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of said 

County this ______ day of ______________, 2011. 

 

 
   
 County Clerk 
 
 
(SEAL) 



 Request For Board Action 
 

 

 

REFERRED TO BOARD   December 5, 2011 AGENDA ITEM NO: 8 

 
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT:  Finance Department  
 
SUBJECT:  Consideration of an Ordinance abating the tax levied for the year 2011 to pay the 
principal of and interest on the Series 2010 Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds. 
 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER: 

The Village will have Pledged Revenues derived from utility taxes for the purpose of paying principal of and 
interest on outstanding obligations up to and including July 15, 2013.  
 
The total principal and interest obligation for the fiscal year 2013 is $294,100. This total is reduced by a Federal 
Recovery Zone credit of $76,095. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:   $218,005. 
 

 

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
 

1. Ordinance 
 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: 

 
Move to accept as presented an Ordinance abating the tax levied for the year 2011 to pay the 
principal of and interest on the Taxable General Obligation Bonds, (Utility Tax Alternate 
Revenue Source), Series 2010 (Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds). 
 
 



 

MINUTES of a ______________ public meeting of the Mayor and 

Board of Trustees, Lake County, Illinois, held at the Village Hall, 

874 Main Street, Antioch, Illinois, in said Village, at _____ _.M. 

on the ____ day of _______________, 20__. 

The meeting was called to order by the Mayor, and upon the roll being called, _________ 

the Mayor, and the following Trustees were physically present at said location:  

___________________________________________________________________________. 

The following Trustees were allowed by a majority of the members of the Mayor and 

Board of Trustees (the “Board”) in accordance with and to the extent allowed by rules adopted 

by the Board to attend the meeting by video or audio conference:_________________________  

_____________________________________________________________________________  

No Trustee was not permitted to attend the meeting by video or audio conference. 

The following Trustees were absent and did not participate in the meeting in any manner 

or to any extent whatsoever: ______________________________________________________  

_____________________________________________________________________________  

The Mayor announced that the Board would next consider the adoption of an ordinance 

abating the tax heretofore levied for the year 2011 to pay debt service on the Village’s 

outstanding Taxable General Obligation Bonds (Utility Tax Alternate Revenue Source), 

Series 2010 (Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds - Direct Payment). 

Whereupon the Village Clerk presented the following ordinance, copies of which were 

made available to all in attendance at said meeting who requested a copy: 

 



 

ORDINANCE NUMBER _____ 

AN ORDINANCE abating the tax heretofore levied for the year 2011 

to pay debt service on the Taxable General Obligation Bonds 

(Utility Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2010 (Recovery 

Zone Economic Development Bonds - Direct Payment), of the 

Village of Antioch, Lake County, Illinois. 

 * * * 

WHEREAS, The Village of Antioch, Lake County, Illinois (the “Village”), by an 

ordinance of the Mayor and Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of the Village adopted on the 7th 

day of June, 2010 (as supplemented by a Bond Order and Notification of Sale, the “Bond 

Ordinance”), has heretofore issued and has outstanding its Taxable General Obligation Bonds 

(Utility Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2010 (Recovery Zone Economic Development 

Bonds - Direct Payment) (the “Bonds”); and 

WHEREAS, a duly certified copy of the Bond Ordinance was filed in the office of the 

County Clerk of the County (the “County Clerk”); and 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined and does hereby determine that the Village has 

funds on hand and lawfully available to pay a portion of the principal of and interest on the 

Bonds (the “Available Funds”); and 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined and does hereby determine that it is necessary and 

in the best interests of the Village to apply the Available Funds to the payment of the Bonds and 

abate the tax heretofore levied for the year 2011 to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Available Funds have been deposited to the credit of the bond and interest 

fund of the Village established pursuant to the Bond Ordinance for the purpose of paying the 

principal of and interest on the Bonds: 



-2- 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It and It Is Hereby Ordained by the Mayor and Board of Trustees 

of the Village of Antioch, Lake County, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. Incorporation of Preambles.  The Board hereby finds that all of the recitals 

contained in the preambles to this Ordinance are full, true and correct and does incorporate them 

into this Ordinance by this reference. 

 Section 2. Abatement of Tax.  The tax heretofore levied for the year 2011 in the Bond 

Ordinance shall be abated in its entirety. 

 Section 3. Filing of Resolution.  Forthwith upon the adoption of this Ordinance, the 

County Clerk shall file a certified copy hereof with the County Clerk, and it shall be the duty of 

the County Clerk to abate said tax levied for the year 2011 in accordance with the provisions 

hereof. 

 Section 4. Superseder and Effective Date.  All ordinances, resolutions, and orders, or 

parts thereof, in conflict herewith, are to the extent of such conflict hereby superseded; and this 

Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval. 

ADOPTED: _____________, 20__ 

   

 Mayor, Village of Antioch 

 Lake County, Illinois 

 

AYES:   

   

NAYS:   

   

ABSENT:   

Recorded in the Village Records   

  

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 

Village Clerk 



 

Trustee __________________ moved and Trustee ___________________ seconded the 

motion that said ordinance as presented be adopted. 

After a full and complete discussion thereof, the Mayor directed that the roll be called for 

a vote upon the motion to adopt said ordinance. 

Upon the roll being called, the following Trustees voted AYE: ______________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________. 

NAY:  _________________________________________________________________  

_____________________________________________________________________________. 

 

Whereupon the Mayor declared the motion carried and said ordinance was adopted and 

approved by the Mayor, and the Mayor directed the Village Clerk to record the same in full in 

the records of the Mayor and Board of Trustees of the Village of Antioch, Lake County, Illinois, 

which was done. 

Other business not pertinent to the adoption of said ordinance was duly transacted at the 

meeting. 

Upon motion duly made, seconded and carried, the meeting was adjourned. 

 

 

 

   

Village Clerk 

 



 

 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 

 )  SS 

COUNTY OF LAKE ) 

CERTIFICATION OF ORDINANCE AND MINUTES 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting Village Clerk 

of the Village of Antioch, Lake, Illinois (the “Village”), and as such official I am the keeper of 

the records and files of the Mayor and Board of Trustees of the Village (the “Board”). 

I do further certify that the foregoing constitutes a full, true and complete transcript of the 

minutes of the meeting of the Board held on the ____ day of ____________, 20__, insofar as 

same relates to the adoption of Ordinance No. _________ entitled: 

AN ORDINANCE abating the tax heretofore levied for the year 2011 

to pay debt service on the Taxable General Obligation Bonds 

(Utility Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2010 (Recovery 

Zone Economic Development Bonds - Direct Payment), of the 

Village of Antioch, Lake County, Illinois. 

a true, correct and complete copy of which said ordinance as adopted at said meeting appears in 

the foregoing transcript of the minutes of said meeting. 

I do further certify that the deliberations of the Board on the adoption of said ordinance 

were conducted openly, that the vote on the adoption of said ordinance was taken openly, that 

said meeting was held at a specified time and place convenient to the public, that notice of said 

meeting was duly given to all of the news media requesting such notice, that an agenda for said 

meeting was posted at the location where said meeting was held and at the principal office of the 

Board on a day other than a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday and not less than 48 hours in 

advance of the holding of said meeting, that said agenda contained a separate specific item  

concerning the proposed adoption of said ordinance, a true, correct and complete copy of the 

agenda as so posted being attached hereto as Exhibit A, that said meeting was called and held in 

strict compliance with the provisions the Open Meetings Act of the State of Illinois, as amended, 

and with the provisions of the Municipal Code, as amended, and that the Board has complied 

with all of the applicable provisions of said Act and said Code and its procedural rules in the 

adoption of said ordinance. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of the Village, 

this ____ day of ______________, 20__. 

 

 

 

   

Village Clerk 

 

[SEAL]



 

 

 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 

 )  SS 

COUNTY OF LAKE ) 

FILING CERTIFICATE 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting Village Clerk 

of the Village of Antioch, Lake County, Illinois (the “Village”), and as such official I do further 

certify that on the ____ day of ________________, 20__, there was filed in my office a duly 

certified copy of Ordinance No. ________ entitled: 

AN ORDINANCE abating the tax heretofore levied for the year 2011 

to pay debt service on the Taxable General Obligation Bonds 

(Utility Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2010 (Recovery 

Zone Economic Development Bonds - Direct Payment), of the 

Village of Antioch, Lake County, Illinois. 

duly adopted by the Mayor and Board of Trustees of the Village on the ____ day of 

_______________, 20__, and approved by the Mayor, and that the same has been deposited in 

(and all as appearing from) the official files and records of my office. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of said County, 

this ____ day of _______________, 20__. 

  

County Clerk of  

The County of Lake, Illinois 

[SEAL] 

 

 

 



 Request For Board Action 
 

 

 

REFERRED TO BOARD   December 5, 2011 AGENDA ITEM NO: 9 

 
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT:  Finance Department  
 
SUBJECT:  Consideration of a Resolution providing for the retirement of indebtedness by the use of Motor Fuel 
Tax funds. 

 
 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER: 

There are sufficient motor fuel tax funds available when the above principal of and interest payments on the 
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2002A (MFT) are due. The indebtedness, as follows, may be retired with funds 
allotted to the municipality under the Motor Fuel Tax Law. 
      
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:   $171,275.00 

 

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
 

1. Resolution 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 

 
Move to accept as presented a Resolution providing for the retirement of principal of and interest payments on 
the $2,000,000 General Obligation Bonds (Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 
2002A.  
. 
 

Interest   6/1/2012 $23,137.50 
Interest 12/1/2012 $23,137.50 
Principal 12/1/2012                       $125,000.00 



Page 1 of 2 IL 494-0284 BLR 15411 (Rev. 7/05) 
Printed on 12/2/2011 2:51:26 PM 

 

 

 Obligation Retirement Resolution 
 (County or Municipal) 

 

A resolution providing for the retirement of certain municipal indebtedness by the use of motor fuel tax funds 
 

     WHEREAS, the MUNICIPALITY of ANTIOCH has outstanding  
 (County or Municipality)  
indebtedness described as follows: 
 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2002A     MFT Section Number: 02-00046-00-GB 

(Title of bond issue or paving district and municipal motor fuel tax section number) 

 
      

 
      

 
Bonds or 

Public Benefit 
Assessments 

Number of 
the Bonds or 
Assessments 

Interest 
or 

Principal 

 
Date 
Due 

 
Amount 

  INTEREST 6/1/2012 $23,137.50 
  INTEREST 12/1/2012 $23,137.50 
  PRINCIPAL 12/1/2012 $125,000.00 
     
     
     
     
 

and. 
 
     WHEREAS, in the opinion of this body, the indebtedness described in the preceding paragraph may be retired with funds 
allotted to the municipality under the Motor Fuel Tax Law, and 

 
     WHEREAS, it appears that sufficient motor fuel tax funds are or will be available when the above indebtedness is due, and 
 
     WHEREAS, the MAYOR AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES has, by resolution adopted  , 

 (County Board, Council or President and Board of Trustees)  

directed the Clerk of LAKE County to cancel the 2011 tax levy (for taxes  

 (year)  

collectable in 2012 ) which would have produced funds to pay this indebtedness.  (Not applicable to special  
 (year)  

assessment projects.) 
 

     NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that there is hereby appropriated the sum of One hundred and seventy-one 
thousand thousand, two hundred & seventy-five 

 dollars ($ 171,275.00 ) from funds allotted to the county or municipality  

under the Motor Fuel Tax Law for the payment of the above-described indebtedness, and 
 

     BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk shall immediately transmit three (3) certified copies of this resolution to the 
 

Regional Engineer, Department of Transportation, Schaumburg , Illinois. 



Page 2 of 2 IL 494-0284 BLR 15411 (Rev. 7/05) 
Printed on 12/2/2011 2:51:26 PM 

 

I, CANDI ROWE , MUNICIPAL Clerk in and 
 (County or Municipal)  
 

for the MUNICIPALITY of ANTIOCH hereby certify 
 (County or Municipality)  
 
the foregoing to be a true, perfect and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the 
 
MAYOR AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES at a meeting on  . 
(County Board, Council or President and Board of Trustees)  
 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this  day 
   

of  , A.D.  . 

 
  

 
  Clerk. 

  (County or Municipal)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(Seal) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Request For Board Action 
 

 

 

REFERRED TO BOARD   December 5, 2011 AGENDA ITEM NO: 10 

 
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT:  Finance Department  
 
SUBJECT:  Consideration of an Ordinance for Special Service Area Number one 
approving Administrative Report and amended Special Tax Roll For Levy Year 2011 
and abating Special Service Area Taxes. 

 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER: 

David Taussig & Associates, the Consultant of the Village, has prepared an Administrative Report Levy 
Year 2011, and has determined that the  2011 Special Tax Requirement for the SSA No. 1 Bonds is 
$1,048,770.03 and the 2011 Maximum Parcel Special Taxes which may be levied as calculated by the 
Consultant pursuant to the Administrative Report and taking into account prepayments is $907,221.01. 

The 2011 Levy will be insufficient to satisfy the 2011 Special Tax Requirement and a deficit of 
$141,549.02 is anticipated. 

 
Of the $911,182.67 of Special Taxes levied for calendar year 2011 pursuant to Section 6 of the Deercrest 
Bond Ordinance $3,961.66 (representing prepayments) of such Special Taxes is hereby abated resulting in 
a 2011 calendar year levy of $907,221.01. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   None 
 

 

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
 

1. Ordinance 
2. Administrative Report and Special Tax Roll 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: 

 
MOVE TO ACCEPT AS PRESENTED: An Ordinance for Special Service Area Number One 
approving Administrative Report and amended Special Tax Roll for Levy Year 2011 
and abating Special Service Area Taxes. 

 



 

4850-9218-3310.1 

Ordinance No. ______ 

ORDINANCE FOR VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH, ILLINOIS 

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NUMBER ONE 

APPROVING ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT AND 

AMENDED SPECIAL TAX ROLL FOR LEVY YEAR 2011 

AND ABATING SPECIAL SERVICE AREA TAXES 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH, LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. It is found and declared by the President and Board of Trustees of the 

Village of Antioch, Lake County, Illinois (the “Village”), as follows: 

(a) The President and Board of Trustees of the Village adopted Ordinance No. 

03-05-19 on May 5, 2003, as supplemented by a Determination dated May 29, 2003 (the 

“Deercrest Bond Ordinance”) which: (i) provided for the issuance of $10,685,000 of Special 

Service Area Number One Special Tax Bonds, Series 2003 (Deercrest Project) (the “SSA No. 1 

Bonds”) of the Village of Antioch for the purpose of paying the costs of certain improvements 

benefiting the Village’s Special Service Area Number One (the “Special Service Area”); and 

(ii) provided for the levy of Special Taxes upon all taxable property within the Special Service 

Area sufficient to pay the principal of the SSA No. 1 Bonds for each year at maturity or 

mandatory sinking fund redemption dates and to pay interest and Administrative Expenses of the 

Special Service Area for each such year and to fund any required reserve funds.  The Deercrest 

Bond Ordinance also directs the Village to calculate or to cause the Consultant appointed by the 

Village to calculate the Special Tax Requirement (as defined in the Deercrest Bond Ordinance); 

to amend the Special Tax Roll; to adopt an ordinance approving the amount of the current 

calendar year’s Special Tax Requirement and abate the taxes levied pursuant to such Ordinance 

each year to the extent the taxes levied exceed the Special Tax Requirement as calculated 

pursuant to the Special Service Area Number One Deercrest Project Special Tax Roll and Report 



 

2 
4850-9218-3310.1 

dated April 29, 2003 (the “Special Tax Report”) prepared by David Taussig & Associates, Inc. 

(the “Consultant”). 

(b) Pursuant to the Special Tax Report, the Consultant of the Village has 

prepared a report dated November 30, 2011 (the “Administrative Report”) which includes as 

Exhibit H thereto the Levy Year 2011 Amended Special Tax Roll (the “Amended Special Tax 

Roll”) a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, and has determined that the 2011 Special 

Tax Requirement for the SSA No. 1 Bonds is $1,048,770.03 and the 2011 Maximum Parcel 

Special Taxes which may be levied as calculated by the Consultant pursuant to the 

Administrative Report and taking into account prepayments is $907,221.01.  The 2011 Levy will 

be insufficient to satisfy the 2011 Special Tax Requirement and a deficit of $141,549.02 is 

anticipated. 

Section 2. Of the $911,182.67 of Special Taxes levied for calendar year 2011 

pursuant to Section 6 of the Deercrest Bond Ordinance $3,961.66 (representing prepayments) of 

such Special Taxes is hereby abated resulting in a 2011 calendar year levy of $907,221.01. 

Section 3. It is the duty of the County Clerk of Lake County to abate those taxes for 

levy year 2011 as provided in Section 2 of this Ordinance and as provided in the Amended 

Special Tax Roll. 

Section 4. The President and Board of Trustees of the Village hereby approve the 

Administrative Report and the Amended Special Tax Roll for Levy Year 2011 for the Special 

Service Area dated November 30, 2011 prepared by the Consultant as set forth in Exhibit A. 

Section 5. All ordinances, resolutions and orders or parts of ordinances, resolutions 

and orders in conflict with this ordinance are repealed to the extent of such conflict.  The Village 



 

3 
4850-9218-3310.1 

Clerk shall cause this Ordinance to be published in pamphlet form.  This Ordinance shall be in 

full force and effect after passage and publication as provided by law. 

Section 6. A copy of this Ordinance together with the Amended Special Tax Roll 

shall be filed with the County Clerk of Lake County and recorded with the Recorder of Deeds of 

Lake County.  The County Clerk of Lake County is hereby directed to extend the Special Taxes 

in accordance with the Amended Special Tax Roll. 



 

4 
4850-9218-3310.1 

 
PASSED by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village this December __, 2011. 

Voting Aye (list names):             

Voting Nay (list names):             

Abstaining (list names):             

Absent (list names):              

       
  Village Clerk 

SIGNED by the President this December ___, 2011. 

       
  President 

ATTEST: 

      
 Village Clerk 

Published in pamphlet form December ___, 2011. 
 



 

4850-9218-3310.1 

EXHIBIT A 

 

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH 

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NUMBER ONE 

 

Administrative Report Levy Year 2011 and 

Amended Special Tax Roll 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH 
 

 
 

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 1 
(DEERCREST / NEUHAVEN PROJECT) 

 
ADMINISTRATION REPORT 

LEVY YEAR 2011 
 
 

NOVEMBER 30, 2011 
 
 
 
 

 

    
 

 ASSOCIATES, INC. 

Public Finance 
Facilities Planning 
Urban Economics 

Newport Beach 
Riverside 

San Francisco 

DAVID 

TAUSSIG 
&  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 1 

 

2011 ADMINISTRATION REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PREPARED FOR 

 
VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH 

874 Main Street 
Antioch, IL 60002 

 
 

PREPARED BY 
 

DAVID TAUSSIG & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 

Corporate Office 
5000 Birch Street, Suite 6000 

Newport Beach, California  92660 
 

Division Offices 
Riverside, California 

San Francisco, California 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

i 

Table of Contents 
 
 
 
Section Page 
 

INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................................1 
AUTHORIZED SPECIAL SERVICES ..........................................................................................1 
BONDED INDEBTEDNESS .......................................................................................................1 
SPECIAL TAXES .....................................................................................................................2 

I. SPECIAL TAX REQUIREMENT ..............................................................................................3 

II. ACCOUNT ACTIVITY SUMMARY ..........................................................................................4 

III. MAXIMUM, ABATED, AND EXTENDED SPECIAL TAXES ......................................................6 

IV. PRIOR YEAR SPECIAL TAX COLLECTIONS .........................................................................8 
2010 SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS ................................................................................................8 
TAX SALES AND FORECLOSURES ..........................................................................................8 

V. DEVELOPMENT STATUS .......................................................................................................9 
EQUALIZED ASSESSED VALUE ..............................................................................................9 

VI. OUTSTANDING BONDS .......................................................................................................10 
SPECIAL TAX PREPAYMENTS ..............................................................................................10 
BOND  REDEMPTIONS FROM SPECIAL TAX PREPAYMENTS ..................................................10 

VII. EQUALIZED ASSESSED VALUE AND VALUE TO LIEN RATIO ............................................11 

VIII. AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAX RATES ..............................................................................12 
 
 

EXHIBIT A AERIAL EXHIBIT OF SSA BOUNDARIES 

EXHIBIT B DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE 

EXHIBIT C SPECIAL TAX ROLL AND REPORT  

EXHIBIT D FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS 

EXHIBIT E APPLICATION OF SPECIAL TAX 

EXHIBIT F APPLICATION OF EARNINGS 

EXHIBIT G SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

EXHIBIT H 2011 AMENDED SPECIAL TAX ROLL 



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 1 Page 1 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

Introduction 
 
This report calculates the 2011 special taxes required to pay annual debt service on the Village of 
Antioch (the "Village") Special Service Area Number One ("SSA No. 1") Special Tax Bonds, 
Series 2003 (Deercrest/Neuhaven) (the "Series 2003 Bonds") and administrative expenses and 
apportions the special taxes to each taxable parcel within SSA No. 1.  Pursuant to the Special 
Service Area Act (the "Act"), the Village Board is the governing body of SSA No. 1.  The 
Village Board must annually, prior to the last Tuesday of December, approve by ordinance the 
special taxes to be collected, abate the Maximum Parcel Special Taxes in excess of the special 
taxes to be collected, and direct the County Clerk of Lake County to extend the special taxes for 
collection.  The special taxes will be billed on the tax bill for ad valorem property taxes.   
 
SSA No. 1 was established by Ordinance No. 02-09-38 adopted by the Village Board on 
September 27, 2002, as amended by Ordinance No. 03-05-17 adopted by the Village Board on 
May 5, 2003 (the "Establishing Ordinance").  An aerial map of SSA No. 1 is attached hereto as 
Exhibit A.  The Establishing Ordinance authorized SSA No. 1 to provide special services, issue 
bonds, and levy a special tax to repay the bonds.   
 
Authorized Special Services  
 
The authorized special services include: 
 

• Certain engineering; 
• Soil testing and appurtenant work; 
• Mass grading and demolition; 
• Storm water management facilities; 
• Storm drainage systems and storm sewers; 
• Site clearing and tree removal; 
• Public water facilities; 
• Sanitary sewer facilities;  
• Erosion control measures; 
• Roads, streets, curbs, gutters, street lighting, traffic controls, equestrian paths and 

related street improvements; 
• Equipment and materials necessary for the maintenance thereof, landscaping, 

wetland mitigation and tree installation; 
• Costs for land and easement acquisitions relating to any of the foregoing 

improvements; and 
• Required tap-on and related fees for water or sanitary sewer services and other 

eligible costs.   
 
Bonded Indebtedness  
 
Ordinance No. 03-05-19 (the "Bond Ordinance"), adopted on May 5, 2003, approved the form of 
a trust indenture and preliminary limited offering memorandum and provided for the issuance of 
not more than $12,000,000 in Series 2003 Bonds.  The Series 2003 Bonds were issued in the 
amount of $10,685,000 in June 2003.  The current debt service schedule is attached hereto as 
Exhibit B and a brief summary of any optional redemption of bonds is contained in Section VI 
herein. 



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 1 Page 2 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

Special Taxes  
 
The Establishing Ordinance incorporates the Village of Antioch Special Service Area Number 
One Special Tax Roll and Report (the "Special Tax Roll and Report").  The Special Tax Roll and 
Report sets forth the Maximum Parcel Special Taxes which have been levied for the payment of 
principal of and interest on the Series 2003 Bonds and the administration and maintenance of 
SSA No. 1 and is attached hereto as Exhibit C.  A table of the Maximum Parcel Special Taxes is 
included in Section III herein. 
 
 
 



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 1 Page 3 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

I. Special Tax Requirement 
 
The 2011 Special Tax Requirement for SSA No. 1 is equal to $1,048,770.03.  As shown in Table 
1 below, the 2011 Special Tax Requirement is equal to the sum of the Series 2003 Bonds debt 
service for the twelve months ending March 1, 2013, estimated administrative expenses for such 
period, the contingency for estimated delinquent special taxes, and amount needed to restore the 
Reserve Fund to the Reserve Requirement, and less the estimated fund balances and excess 
reserve funds as of March 1, 2012 as shown in Table 3.  Due to the Neumann Homes bankruptcy 
proceedings, an increase in administrative expenses has been projected for bond counsel and 
bankruptcy counsel to the Village.  As shown in Table 1, the 2011 Maximum Parcel Special 
Taxes will be insufficient to satisfy the 2011 Special Tax Requirement and a deficit of 
$141,549.02 is anticipated.   
 
 

TABLE 1 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 1 

2011 SPECIAL TAX REQUIREMENT 
SOURCES OF FUNDS     $0.00 
ESTIMATED BALANCES AS OF MARCH  1, 2012   $0.00   
 BOND AND INTEREST FUND $0.00     
 RESERVE FUND $0.00     
 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE FUND $0.00     

USES OF FUNDS      $1,048,770.03 
DEBT SERVICE   $810,756.25   
 INTEREST (9/1/2012) $337,378.13     
 INTEREST (3/1/2013) $337,378.12     
 PRINCIPAL (3/1/2013) $136,000.00     

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES   $124,052.00   
 VILLAGE FEES  $1,500.00     
 TRUSTEE FEES  $4,000.00     
 ARBITRAGE REBATE FEES  $2,250.00     
 SSA CONSULTANT $10,302.00     
 LEGAL FEES – BOND COUNSEL $6,000.00     
 LEGAL FEES – BANKRUPTCY COUNSEL $100,000.00     

DELINQUENCY CONTINGENCY   $31,463.10   
 DELINQUENT SPECIAL TAXES $31,463.10     

RESERVE FUND REPLENISHMENT   $82,498.68   
 RESERVE FUND REPLENISHMENT $82,498.68     

2011 SPECIAL TAX REQUIREMENT     $1,048,770.03 
2011 MAXIMUM PARCEL SPECIAL TAXES     $907,221.01 
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)     ($141,549.02) 

 



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 1 Page 4 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

II. Account Activity Summary 
 
The Trust Indenture for the Series 2003 Bonds (the "2003 Indenture") establishes five funds and 
three accounts.  The five funds are the Bond and Interest Fund, Reserve Fund, Improvement 
Fund, Administrative Expense Fund, and Rebate Fund.  Within the Bond and Interest Fund are 
the Capitalized Interest Account and Special Redemption Account.  Within the Improvement 
Fund is the Cost of Issuance Account.  A diagram of the funds and accounts is attached hereto as 
Exhibit D.  
 
Money held in any of the funds and accounts can be invested at the direction of the Village and 
in conformance with the limitations set forth in the 2003 Indenture.  Investment interest earnings, 
if any, will generally be applied to the fund or account for which the investment is made.  
Diagrams of the application of special taxes and earnings are attached hereto as Exhibits E and F, 
respectively.   
 
A summary of account activity for the twelve months ending September 30, 2011 is shown in 
Table 2 below.  A monthly summary of account activity is attached as Exhibit G. 

 
TABLE 2 

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 1 
TRANSACTION SUMMARY 

 

BOND AND 
INTEREST FUND RESERVE FUND 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
EXPENSE FUND 

BEGINNING BALANCES  
(AS OF OCTOBER 1, 2010) $364,317.07 $1,063,909.80 $1,914.61 

EARNINGS $20.17 $76.37 $3,151.10 
SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS       
 PRIOR YEARS $24,979.28 $0.00 $0.00 
 CURRENT YEAR $759,346.26 $0.00 $0.00 
ACCOUNT TRANSFERS       
 TRANSFER TO ADMINISTRATIVE 

EXPENSE FUND  $55,224.57 ($55,224.57) $0.00 

 ALL OTHER TRANSFERS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
DEBT SERVICE       
 INTEREST AND PRINCIPAL (3/1/2011) ($443,533.13) $0.00 $0.00 
 INTEREST (9/1/2011) ($341,253.75) $0.00 $0.00 
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES $0.00 $0.00 ($4,786.84)

ENDING BALANCES  
(AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2011) $419,100.47 $1,008,761.60 $278.87 

 



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 1 Page 5 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

The calculation of the estimated bond year-end fund balances and excess reserve funds as of 
March 1, 2012 is shown in Table 3 below. 
 

TABLE 3 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 1 

ESTIMATED BOND YEAR-END FUND BALANCES  

 

BOND AND 
INTEREST FUND RESERVE FUND 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
EXPENSE FUND 

CURRENT BALANCES (AS OF 9/30/2011) $419,100.47 $1,008,761.60 $278.87 

ESTIMATED SOURCES OF FUNDS 
 (10/1/2011 – 3/1/2012)       

 EARNINGS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

 SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS  $11,747.00 $0.00 $0.00 

ESTIMATED ACCOUNT TRANSFERS 
 (10/1/2011 – 3/1/2012)       

 UNPAID ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE PREFUNDING $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

 ALL OTHER TRANSFERS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

 DRAW ON RESERVE FUND $27,406.28 ($27,406.28) $0.00 

ESTIMATED USES OF FUNDS
 (10/1/2011 – 3/1/2012)       

 DEBT SERVICE       

  INTEREST (3/1/2012) ($341,253.75) $0.00 $0.00 

  PRINCIPAL (3/1/2012) ($117,000.00) $0.00 $0.00 

 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES $0.00 $0.00 ($278.87) 

REMAINING BALANCE THROUGH 3/1/2012 $0.00 $981,355.32 $0.00 

 LESS: RESERVE REQUIREMENT $0.00 $1,063,854.00 $0.00 

 LESS: ADMIN EXPENSE PREFUNDING  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

ESTIMATED BOND YEAR-END BALANCES 
(AS OF 3/1/2012)  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

 



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 1 Page 6 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

III. Maximum, Abated, and Extended Special Taxes  
 
Pursuant to the Special Tax Roll and Report and Bond Ordinance, the 2011 Maximum Parcel 
Special Taxes equal $911,182.67.  The required abatement for prepayments is $3,961.66 
resulting in adjusted 2011 Maximum Parcel Special Taxes of $907,221.01.  Since the 2011 
Special Tax Requirement of $1,048,770.03 is greater than $907,221.01, there will be no 
abatement for parcels subject to the special tax. 
  
The maximum, abated, and extended special tax for each special tax classification is shown in 
Table 4 below.  The Amended Special Tax Roll, which lists the maximum, abated, and extended 
special tax for each parcel is attached hereto as Exhibit H. 
 

TABLE 4 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 1 

MAXIMUM, ABATED AND EXTENDED SPECIAL TAXES 

SPECIAL TAX CLASSIFICATION 

MAXIMUM 
PARCEL 

SPECIAL TAX 
ABATED 

SPECIAL TAX 
EXTENDED 

SPECIAL TAX 

TAXABLE PROPERTY    

 SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING UNIT $1,980.83 $0.00 $1,980.83

 TOWNHOME DWELLING UNIT $1,383.16 $0.00 $1,383.16

PREPAID PROPERTY      

 SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING UNIT $1,980.83 $1,980.83 $0.00

 TOWNHOME DWELLING UNIT $1,383.16 $1,383.16 $0.00

 
A comparison of the maximum and extended special tax amounts for 2011 and 2010 is shown in 
Table 5 below.   

TABLE 5 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 1 

COMPARISON OF MAXIMUM AND EXTENDED SPECIAL TAXES 

SPECIAL TAX CLASSIFICATION 2011 2010 
PERCENTAGE  

CHANGE  

MAXIMUM PARCEL SPECIAL TAX    

 SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING UNIT $1,980.83 $1,951.56 1.50%

 TOWNHOME DWELLING UNIT $1,383.16 $1,362.72 1.50%

EXTENDED SPECIAL TAX      

 SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING UNIT $1,980.83 $1,951.56 1.50%

 TOWNHOME DWELLING UNIT $1,383.16 $1,362.72 1.50%



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 1 Page 7 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

 
The schedule of the remaining SSA No. 1 Maximum Parcel Special Taxes is shown in Table 6 
below.  The Maximum Parcel Special Taxes escalate one and one-half percent (1.50%) annually 
through 2031. 
 

TABLE 6 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 1 

MAXIMUM PARCEL SPECIAL TAXES  

LEVY  
YEAR 

COLLECTION 
YEAR 

TOTAL SSA NO. 1 MAXIMUM 
PARCEL SPECIAL TAXES  

SINGLE- 
FAMILY 

PROPERTY 
TOWNHOME 
PROPERTY 

 PER BOND 
ORDINANCE 

ADJUSTED FOR 
PREPAYMENTS 

2011 2012 $911,182.67 $907,221.01 $1,980.83 $1,383.16 

2012 2013 $924,850.41 $920,829.31 $2,010.55 $1,403.91 

2013 2014 $938,723.17 $934,641.77 $2,040.70 $1,424.97 

2014 2015 $952,804.02 $948,661.40 $2,071.31 $1,446.34 

2015 2016 $967,096.08 $962,891.32 $2,102.38 $1,468.04 

2016 2017 $981,602.52 $977,334.68 $2,133.92 $1,490.06 

2017 2018 $996,326.56 $991,994.70 $2,165.93 $1,512.41 

2018 2019 $1,011,271.45 $1,006,874.61 $2,198.42 $1,535.10 

2019 2020 $1,026,440.53 $1,021,977.75 $2,231.39 $1,558.12 

2020 2021 $1,041,837.13 $1,037,307.41 $2,264.86 $1,581.50 

2021 2022 $1,057,464.69 $1,052,867.01 $2,298.84 $1,605.22 

2022 2023 $1,073,326.66 $1,068,660.02 $2,333.32 $1,629.30 

2023 2024 $1,089,426.56 $1,084,689.92 $2,368.32 $1,653.74 

2024 2025 $1,105,767.96 $1,100,960.28 $2,403.84 $1,678.55 

2025 2026 $1,122,354.48 $1,117,474.68 $2,439.90 $1,703.72 

2026 2027 $1,139,189.80 $1,134,236.80 $2,476.50 $1,729.28 

2027 2028 $1,156,277.64 $1,151,250.34 $2,513.65 $1,755.21 

2028 2029 $1,173,621.81 $1,168,519.11 $2,551.35 $1,781.54 

2029 2030 $1,191,226.14 $1,186,046.90 $2,589.62 $1,808.27 

2030 2031 $1,209,094.53 $1,203,837.59 $2,628.47 $1,835.39 

2031 2032 $1,227,230.95 $1,221,895.17 $2,667.89 $1,862.92 
 

 



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 1 Page 8 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

IV. Prior Year Special Tax Collections 
 
The SSA No. 1 special tax is billed and collected by Lake County (the "County") in the same 
manner and at the same time as general ad valorem property taxes. The Village may provide for 
other means of collecting the special tax, if necessary to meet the financial obligations of SSA 
No. 1.  
 
2010 Special Tax Receipts 
 
The County billed a total of $893,813.80 in SSA No. 1 2010 special taxes.  As of November 22, 
2011, SSA No. 1 2010 special tax receipts totaled $773,101.48.  Special taxes in the amount 
$120,712.32 are unpaid resulting in a delinquency rate of 13.51%.  A breakdown of the paid and 
unpaid special taxes by owner of record is shown in Table 7 below.   

TABLE 7 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 1 

2010 PAID AND UNPAID SPECIAL TAXES  

OWNER OF RECORD 
PAID 

SPECIAL TAXES 
UNPAID 

SPECIAL TAXES 

PERCENT 
OF TOTAL 
EXTENDED 
SPECIAL 
TAXES 

HOMEOWNERS $743,828.08 $11,694.72 84.53%

NEUMANN HOMES $29,273.40 $109,017.60 15.47%

TOTAL 2010 EXTENDED SPECIAL TAXES $773,101.48 $120712.32 100.00%

 
Tax Sales and Foreclosures 
 
The Lake County Treasurer’s Office conducted its annual tax sale on November 28 and 29, 2011 
("County Tax Sale").  Prior to County Tax Sale, holders of outstanding tax liens are eligible to 
purchase any related current year delinquent property taxes. All other eligible delinquent 
property taxes1 are subject to sale at the County Tax Sale.  As of November 22, 2011, there were 
eighty-eight (88) parcels with special taxes of $120,712.32 delinquent on payment of property 
taxes.  
 
The lien and foreclosure remedies provided for in Article 9 of the Illinois Municipal Code shall 
apply upon the nonpayment of the special tax.  No foreclosures have commenced as of the date 
of this report. 

                     
1 Property taxes owed by property owners who have filed for bankruptcy are not eligible for tax sale. 



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 1 Page 9 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

V. Development Status 
 
SSA No. 1 is comprised of three hundred seventy-nine (379) single family homes and one 
hundred sixteen (116) townhome units which is consistent with the original projections.  An 
aerial map of SSA No. 1 is attached hereto as Exhibit A.  The number of units in each plat is 
summarized in Table 8 below. 
 

TABLE 8 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 1 

LAND USE SUMMARY 

PLAT RECORDED 

NUMBER OF DWELLING UNITS 

SINGLE-FAMILY 
PROPERTY 

TOWNHOME 
PROPERTY 

1 YES 159 52 

2 YES 82 38 

3 YES 138 26 

TOTAL 379 116 

 
Equalized Assessed Value  
 
Equalized assessed value, excluding prepaid property, decreased in 2010 to $31,070,129.  The 
average assessed value per single-family and townhome dwelling unit is approximately $77,396 
and $16,310, respectively. 



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 1 Page 10 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

VI. Outstanding Bonds 
 
The Series 2003 Bonds were issued in June 2003 as fixed rate bonds with an original principal 
amount of $10,685,000.  As of September 2, 2011, the outstanding principal was $10,302,000.  
The current debt schedule is attached hereto as Exhibit B. 
 
Special Tax Prepayments  
 
The SSA No. 1 Maximum Parcel Special Tax may be prepaid and permanently satisfied, or  
prepaid in part, provided that proceeds for any such prepayment are sufficient to permit the 
redemption of Bonds in such amounts and maturities deemed necessary by the Administrator and 
in accordance with the Bond Indenture.  The prepayment calculation formula is set forth in the 
Special Tax Roll and Report. 
 
Bond Redemptions from Special Tax Prepayments 
 
As shown in Table 9 below, pursuant to receipt of special tax prepayments, $45,000 in Series 
2003 Bonds has been redeemed as shown in Table 9 below. 
 

TABLE 9 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 1 

SPECIAL  MANDATORY BOND REDEMPTIONS  
FROM SPECIAL TAX PREPAYMENTS 

REDEMPTION DATE BONDS REDEEMED 

SEPTEMBER 1, 2009 $22,000 

MARCH 1, 2010  $23,000 

TOTAL AMOUNT REDEEMED $45,000 

 
 

 



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 1 Page 11 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

VII. Equalized Assessed Value and Value to Lien Ratio 

 
The SSA No. 1 Equalized Assessed Value and Value-to-Lien Ratio is shown in Table 10 below.   

 
TABLE 10 

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 1 
EQUALIZED ASSESSED VALUE AND VALUE TO LIEN RATIO 
2010 

EQUALIZED  
ASSESSED VALUE2 

2010 
APPRAISED VALUE3 

OUTSTANDING 
SERIES 2003 BONDS4 

VALUE-TO-LIEN 
RATIO 

$31,070,129 $93,210,387 $10,302,000 9.05:1 

 
 
 

                     
2 Source: Lake County Assessor's Office. 
3 Based on three times the equalized assessed value of the special service area. 
3 As of September 2, 2011. 



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 1 Page 12 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

VIII. Ad Valorem Property Tax Rates  
 
The 2010 general ad valorem tax rates for SSA No. 1 are shown in Table 11 below.   

 

TABLE 11 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 1 

2010 AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAX RATES 
TAXING AGENCY TAX CODE 04-029

Basic Rate  
 College of Lake County #532 0.218% 
 County of Lake 0.505% 
 Forest Preserve 0.198% 
 Special Road Improvement – Antioch  0.158% 
 Road and Bridge – Antioch  0.075% 
 Township of Antioch 0.122% 
Districts  
 School District #34 3.510% 
 High School #117 2.639% 
 Antioch Public Library District 0.274% 
 Village of Antioch 0.883% 

TOTAL TAX RATE 8.582% 

 
 
 
k:\clients2\antioch\district administration\ssa 1\2010\admin report\antioch ssa 1 admin report 10.doc 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 1 
 

Aerial Exhibit of SSA Boundaries  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



V
ILLA

G
E

 O
F A

N
TIO

C
H

 S
S

A
 N

O
. 1 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TIO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T | E

X
H

IB
IT A

 | P
A

G
E

 1 of 1

DHumphries
Text Box
Village of Antioch SSA 1



 

 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 1 
 

Debt Service Schedule 
  
 



   

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 1

SPECIAL TAX BONDS SERIES 2003
ESTIMATED REVISED DEBT SERVICE AFTER MARCH 1, 2010 BOND CALL

Ending 3/1 Original Early Revised Coupon Debt
Bond Year Principal Redemptions Principal Rate Interest Service

2004 $525 012 00 $525 012 002004 $525,012.00 $525,012.00
2005    707,881.25 707,881.25
2006    707,881.25 707,881.25
2007 $38,000  $38,000 6.625% 707,881.25 745,881.25
2008 52,000  52,000 6.625% 705,363.75 757,363.75
2009 67,000  67,000 6.625% 701,918.75 768,918.75
2010 82,000  82,000 6.625% 696,751.25 778,751.25
2011 99,000 99,000 6.625% 689,066.25 788,066.252011 99,000 99,000 6.625% 689,066.25 788,066.25
2012 118,000 (1,000.00) 117,000 6.625% 682,507.50 799,507.50
2013 137,000 (1,000.00) 136,000 6.625% 674,756.25 810,756.25
2014 158,000 (1,000.00) 157,000 6.625% 665,746.25 822,746.25
2015 181,000 (1,000.00) 180,000 6.625% 655,345.00 835,345.00
2016 205,000 (1,000.00) 204,000 6.625% 643,420.00 847,420.00
2017 231,000 (1,000.00) 230,000 6.625% 629,905.00 859,905.00
2018 260,000 (1,000.00) 259,000 6.625% 614,667.50 873,667.50
2019 290 000 (1 000 00) 289 000 6 625% 597 508 75 886 508 752019 290,000 (1,000.00) 289,000 6.625% 597,508.75 886,508.75
2020 322,000 (1,000.00) 321,000 6.625% 578,362.50 899,362.50
2021 357,000 (2,000.00) 355,000 6.625% 557,096.25 912,096.25
2022 394,000 (2,000.00) 392,000 6.625% 533,577.50 925,577.50
2023 434,000 (2,000.00) 432,000 6.625% 507,607.50 939,607.50
2024 476,000 (2,000.00) 474,000 6.625% 478,987.50 952,987.50
2025 522,000 (2,000.00) 520,000 6.625% 447,585.00 967,585.00
2026 571,000 (2,000.00) 569,000 6.625% 413,135.00 982,135.002026 571,000 (2,000.00) 569,000 6.625% 413,135.00 982,135.00
2027 623,000 (3,000.00) 620,000 6.625% 375,438.75 995,438.75
2028 680,000 (3,000.00) 677,000 6.625% 334,363.75 1,011,363.75
2029 740,000 (3,000.00) 737,000 6.625% 289,512.50 1,026,512.50
2030 804,000 (3,000.00) 801,000 6.625% 240,686.25 1,041,686.25
2031 873,000 (4,000.00) 869,000 6.625% 187,620.00 1,056,620.00
2032 946,000 (4,000.00) 942,000 6.625% 130,048.75 1,072,048.75
2033 1,025,000 (4,000.00) 1,021,000 6.625% 67,641.25 1,088,641.25
Total $10,685,000 ($45,000.00) $10,640,000 N/A $15,747,274.50 $26,387,274.50

Reserve Requirement $1,064,000

   



 

 

 
 
 

 EXHIBIT C 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 1 
 

Special Tax Roll and Report  
  
 

  
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH 
SPECIAL SERVICES AREA NUMBER ONE 

DEERCREST PROJECT 
SPECIAL TAX ROLL AND REPORT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

April 29, 2003 
 
 
 

 
 
 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 1
 o

f 3
1



  

 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH 
 

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NUMBER ONE 
(DEERCREST) 

 
SPECIAL TAX ROLL AND REPORT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared for 
 

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH 
874 Main St. 

Antioch, IL 60002 
(847) 395-1000

Prepared by 
 

DAVID TAUSSIG & ASSOC., INC. 
1301 Dove St., Ste. 600 

Newport Beach, CA 92660 
(949) 955-1500 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 2
 o

f 3
1



  

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NUMBER ONE 

(DEERCREST) 
 

SPECIAL TAX ROLL AND REPORT 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

Section Page 
 
I. INTRODUCTION....................................................................................................................1 

II. SPECIAL SERVICE AREA DESCRIPTION ..............................................................................1 

III. SPECIAL SERVICES ..............................................................................................................1 

A. DESCRIPTION ............................................................................................................1 

B. ESTIMATED COSTS....................................................................................................2 

C. ALLOCATION.............................................................................................................4 

D. ALTERNATIVES, MODIFICATIONS, AND/OR SUBSTITUTIONS ...................................15 

IV. BONDED INDEBTEDNESS....................................................................................................15 

V. DETERMINATION OF SPECIAL TAXES ...............................................................................15 

A. MAXIMUM ANNUAL SPECIAL TAXES ......................................................................16 

B. APPORTIONMENT AND ABATEMENT METHODOLOGY .............................................17 

 
 
 
List of Exhibits 
 
Exhibit A – Rate and Method of Levying Special Taxes 
 
 
 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 3
 o

f 3
1



  

Special Tax Roll and Report Page 1 
Village of Antioch – Special Service Area Number One April 29, 2003 

I. INTRODUCTION 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of the "Special Service Area Act," being 35 ILCS 200/27-5 
et seq., and in accordance with the Establishing Ordinance, being Ordinance No. 02-
09-38, passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of Antioch (the "Village"), 
County of Lake, State of Illinois, on September 27, 2002, as amended by ordinance 
passed by the Board of Trustees on May 5, 2003, in connection with the proceedings 
for Special Service Area Number One (hereinafter referred to as "SSA No. 1"), this 
Special Tax Roll and Report of Special Service Area (the "Report") is herewith 
submitted. 

 
The report is organized into the following five sections: 

 
I. Introduction 
II. Special Service Area Description 
III. Special Services 
IV. Proposed Bonded Indebtedness 
V. Determination of Special Taxes 

 
II. SPECIAL SERVICE AREA DESCRIPTION 
 

SSA No. 1 consists of approximately 234 acres of land located along both the north 
and south sides of State Route 173 at its intersection with N. Savage Road in Antioch, 
Illinois, commonly known as the Deercrest Subdivision. The Deercrest Subdivision is 
approved for the development of 379 single-family homes and 116 townhomes, and 
includes 30 acres of commercial property as well as a 25 acre middle school site. All 
of the residential property is located north of State Route 173. The commercial and 
school properties are located south of State Route 173 and east of No. Savage Road. 

 
III. SPECIAL SERVICES 

 
SSA No. 1 has been established to finance certain special services conferring special 
benefit thereto and which are in addition to municipal services provided to the Village 
as a whole. A general description, estimated cost, and allocation of these special 
services are set forth below.  
 
A. DESCRIPTION 

 
The special services to be financed by SSA No. 1 consist of certain public 
sanitary sewer collection and treatment, water distribution, storm sewer, and 
road improvements with appurtenances and appurtenant work in connection 
therewith necessary to serve SSA No. 1. It is anticipated that SSA No. 1 will 
finance construction of the improvements, which may include design and/or 
engineering, construction management, inspection, and other "soft" costs. 
These improvements are located both on-site and off-site.  
 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 4
 o

f 3
1



  

Special Tax Roll and Report Page 2 
Village of Antioch – Special Service Area Number One April 29, 2003 

1. ON-SITE IMPROVEMENTS 
 
SSA No. 1 is anticipated to fund the construction of a portion of the 
on-site sanitary sewer, water, road, and storm sewer improvements. 
The on-site improvements are generally described as follows: 

• Sanitary sewer main lines of varying diameter, manholes, lift 
station, force main, and appurtenances; 

• Water main lines of varying diameter, fire hydrants, and 
appurtenances;  

• Road improvements including paving, curbs, gutters, 
sidewalks, snow removal truck, and streetlights; and 

• Storm sewer main lines of varying diameter. 
 

2. OFF-SITE IMPROVEMENTS 
 

SSA No. 1 is anticipated to fund the construction of a portion of 
certain off-site sanitary sewer, water, road, and storm sewer 
improvements. Off-site improvements funded by SSA No. 1 will be 
exclusive of recapturable costs or costs otherwise Special Service Area 
("SSA") No. 1. The portion of the costs of the off-site improvements 
which generate excess capacity and therefore are subject to recapture 
will be paid by the developer. The off-site improvements are generally 
described as follows: 

• The prepayment of a special tax established to fund Deercrest's 
share of capacity for the Mill Creek sewer treatment plant and 
sewer main line facilities located just south of State Route 173 
including construction and inspection, manholes, and 
appurtenances; 

• Water distribution facilities including construction and 
inspection of 12-inch and 16-inch main lines along State Route 
173, valves, fire hydrants, and appurtenances; and 

• Roadway improvements consisting of turn lanes at the 
intersections of N. Savage Road and State Route 173 and State 
Route 173 and State Route 45, and traffic signalization 
improvements at the intersection of N. Savage Road and State 
Route 173. 

 
B. ESTIMATED COSTS 

 
The total estimated costs for the preceding improvements and the amounts 
allocable to SSA No. 1 and Special Service Area ("SSA") No. 2 are presented 
in Table 1 on the following page. The recapturable costs shown in Table 1 are 
construction costs only (i.e., they do not include design, engineering, 
inspection, or other costs subject to recapture) and are based upon actual bids 
received. 
 
 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 5
 o

f 3
1



TA
B

LE
 1

SS
A

 N
o.

 1
 (D

EE
R

C
R

ES
T)

ES
TI

M
A

TE
D

 P
U

B
LI

C
 IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
T 

C
O

ST
S

N
on

-R
ec

ap
tu

ra
bl

e 
C

os
ts

R
ec

ap
tu

ra
bl

e
A

llo
ca

bl
e 

to
 

A
llo

ca
bl

e 
to

Pu
bl

ic
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

C
os

ts
SS

A
 N

o.
 1

SS
A

 N
o.

 2

O
n-

si
te

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 S
ew

er
$1

,9
05

,0
28

N
A 

$1
,9

05
,0

28
N

A 
W

at
er

$1
,7

86
,7

16
N

A 
$1

,7
86

,7
16

N
A 

R
oa

d
$2

,9
46

,8
08

N
A 

$2
,9

46
,8

08
N

A 
St

or
m

 S
ew

er
$1

,4
47

,3
45

N
A 

$1
,4

47
,3

45
N

A 
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

--
---

---
---

---
---

---
-- -

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
--

To
ta

l O
n-

si
te

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t C

os
ts

$8
,0

85
,8

97
N

A 
$8

,0
85

,8
97

N
A 

O
ff-

Si
te

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 S
ew

er
Fa

ir 
Sh

ar
e 

Al
lo

ca
tio

n 
fo

r M
ill 

C
re

ek
 S

ew
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t P

la
nt

$2
,9

51
,0

93
N

A 
$7

54
,3

60
$2

,1
96

,7
33

O
th

er
 S

an
ita

ry
 S

ew
er

$1
,5

87
,5

47
$8

23
,3

02
$2

96
,8

71
$4

67
,3

74
W

at
er

$1
,5

81
,3

38
$6

29
,6

89
$2

49
,2

19
$7

02
,4

30
R

oa
d St
at

e 
R

ou
te

 ("
SR

")
 1

73
 T

ur
n 

La
ne

s 
& 

Si
gn

al
iz

at
io

n
$5

10
,0

00
N

A 
$3

21
,3

95
$1

88
,6

05
Sa

va
ge

 R
oa

d 
to

 S
R

 1
73

$3
43

,7
50

N
A 

$1
89

,3
29

$1
54

,4
21

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
--

---
---

---
---

---
---

-- -
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

--
To

ta
l O

ff-
Si

te
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t C
os

ts
$6

,9
73

,7
28

$1
,4

52
,9

91
$1

,8
11

,1
74

$3
,7

09
,5

63

To
ta

l P
ub

lic
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t C
os

ts
$1

5,
05

9,
62

5
$1

,4
52

,9
91

$9
,8

97
,0

71
$3

,7
09

,5
63

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 6
 o

f 3
1



  

Special Tax Roll and Report Page 4 
Village of Antioch – Special Service Area Number One April 29, 2003 

C. ALLOCATION 
 

Special taxes levied pursuant to the Special Service Area Act must bear a 
rational relationship to the benefit received from the public improvements 
funded thereby. Therefore, the public improvements proposed to be financed 
by SSA No. 1 have been allocated in accordance with the benefit conferred to 
the property therein, with benefit estimated to be a function of (i) the service 
or benefit area for said improvements and (ii) the relative capacity for said 
improvement reserved for or used by properties within the benefit area. A 
discussion of the relevant benefit area(s) and measure of public facilities 
usage follows below.  

 
1. BENEFIT AREA AND RECAPTURE 

 
Generally, the on-site improvements benefit only those properties 
within SSA No. 1 while the off-site improvements are sized with 
sufficient capacity and are designed to serve SSA No. 1 as well as 
certain neighboring and other properties within the Village.  
 
a. ON-SITE IMPROVEMENTS 

 
The area of benefit applicable to the on-site public 
improvements is limited strictly to the property within SSA No. 
1 that is approved for residential development. The on-site 
public improvements will be physically located within the 
residential development. The vast majority of these 
improvements will bring the special services directly to the 
individual residential lots and therefore benefit is conferred to 
each dwelling unit. The commercial and school properties are 
not benefited by these on-site improvements, given their 
location across State Route 173 from the residential 
development.  
 

b. OFF-SITE IMPROVEMENTS 
 

Contrary to the on-site improvements, the benefit area for the 
off-site improvements is larger than the boundaries of SSA No. 
1. As the benefit area may vary by improvement type, separate 
discussions for each major improvement category are included 
below.  
 
i. SEWER 
 

Clearly, the Mill Creek sewer treatment plant capacity 
exceeds the treatment demand for SSA No. 1. The share 
of the treatment plant capacity allocable to SSA No. 1 
is reflected in an existing special tax levied within SSA 
No. 1 to fund the construction of the Mill Creek plant. 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 7
 o

f 3
1



  

Special Tax Roll and Report Page 5 
Village of Antioch – Special Service Area Number One April 29, 2003 

By definition, then, the component of the SSA No. 1 
special tax attributable to the refinancing of the Mill 
Creek sewer treatment plant special tax has already 
been allocated, and any additional discussion regarding 
benefit area is unnecessary.  
 
Note, only the portion of the Mill Creek plant 
attributable to the residential development will be 
prepaid through SSA No. 1. The commercial and school 
properties are expected to remain subject to the special 
tax of the existing SSA since their portion of the Mill 
Creek plant is not being financed with bond proceeds.  
 
The benefit area for the off-site sewer line facilities is 
defined in the recapture agreement (the "Recapture 
Agreement"), and includes the Clublands Subdivision, 
otherwise known as Special Service Area Number Two 
of the Village of Antioch. The costs subject to recapture 
will be financed neither by SSA No. 1 nor SSA No. 2. 
The allocation of the non-recapturable sewer line costs 
to SSA No. 1 is discussed in greater detail in Section 
III.C.2 below. 
 

ii. WATER 
 

The benefit area for the off-site water lines is also 
defined in the Recapture Agreement, and includes 
special service area ("SSA") No. 2 (Clublands) as well. 
The water costs subject to recapture will not be 
financed by either SSA.  
 

iii. ROADS 
 
All off-site road improvements benefit both SSA No. 1 
and SSA No. 2. The allocation of the off-site road 
improvements costs is discussed in Section III.C.2 
below. 
 

Furthermore, while the off-site improvements will benefit the 
commercial and school properties, SSA No. 1 will not finance 
with bond proceeds the off-site improvement costs attributable 
to such properties. As shown in the following tables, these 
properties are allocated their share of the off-site public 
improvements, but they will be funded by the developer, as the 
current property owner, and will therefore not be taxed. 

 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 8
 o

f 3
1



  

Special Tax Roll and Report Page 6 
Village of Antioch – Special Service Area Number One April 29, 2003 

2. PUBLIC FACILITY USAGE 
 
Once the benefit areas have been established, the special services may 
be allocated among the various properties within such area in 
accordance with use. As is discussed in the following sections, 
commonly accepted measures for public facility usage indicate that the 
benefit conferred by the public improvements proposed to be financed 
by SSA No. 1 applies uniformly by land use type. Note, public facility 
usage is addressed for land uses anticipated in both SSA No. 1 and 
SSA No. 2 for purposes of allocating certain off-site improvements 
which benefits both SSAs.  
 
a. SEWER AND WATER USAGE 

 
The primary determinant of sanitary sewer and water usage is 
the applicable population equivalent, or P.E. Household 
population is the criteria commonly used to project sewer and 
water service demand. Wastewater Engineering, Third Edition 
indicates that residential wastewater flow rates are typically 
determined on the basis of population density and the average 
per capita contribution of wastewater. The Illinois 
Environmental Protection Agency's criteria for water storage 
and distribution systems assume an everyday use equal to 50 
gallons per day per person. This equates to 350 and 300 gallons 
per day, respectively, for each single-family and townhome 
given the applicable IEPA's P.E. factors of 3.5 for single-
family homes and 3.0 for townhomes. 
 
Commercial sewer and water demand is a function of the 
nature and intensity of use. The commercial development is 
anticipated to include a mix of retail and commercial uses. The 
Village indicates that the P.E. for such commercial uses can 
range from fifteen (15) to thirty (30) per acre and estimates that 
a P.E. factor of twenty (20) per acre will meet anticipated 
demand. 
 
Sewer and water demand for public schools is driven by two 
factors: type of school (i.e., grammar school, middle school, or 
high school) and the estimated number of students and 
employees. A middle school, with a maximum capacity of 
1,000 students and approximately 85 employees, is anticipated 
to be built in SSA No. 1 by the school district, District No. 34. 
Applying the IEPA's standard of 25 gallons per student and 
employee per day and yields a total of 271.25 P.E. for the site. 
 
The P.E. applicable to each land use is shown in Table 2 on the 
following page. 
 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 9
 o

f 3
1



TA
B

LE
 2

SS
A

 N
o.

 1
 (D

EE
R

C
R

ES
T)

PO
PU

LA
TI

O
N

 E
Q

U
IV

A
LE

N
T 

(P
.E

.)
FO

R
 S

A
N

IT
A

R
Y 

SE
W

ER
 A

N
D

 W
A

TE
R

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
O

n-
si

te
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
O

ff-
si

te
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
Sa

ni
ta

ry
M

ill
 C

re
ek

O
th

er
 S

an
ita

ry
La

nd
 U

se
C

ou
nt

P.
E.

 F
ac

to
r

Se
w

er
W

at
er

Pl
an

t
Se

w
er

W
at

er

SS
A 

N
o.

 1
Si

ng
le

-F
am

ily
37

9
un

its
3.

5/
un

it
1,

32
6.

50
1,

32
6.

50
1,

32
6.

50
1,

32
6.

50
1,

32
6.

50
To

w
nh

om
e

11
6

un
its

3.
0/

un
it

34
8.

00
34

8.
00

34
8.

00
34

8.
00

34
8.

00
C

om
m

er
ci

al
30

ac
re

s
20

/A
cr

e
N

A 
N

A 
N

A 
60

0.
00

60
0.

00
Sc

ho
ol

St
ud

en
ts

1,
00

0
st

ud
en

ts
0.

25
/s

tu
de

nt
N

A 
N

A 
N

A 
25

0.
00

25
0.

00
Em

pl
oy

ee
s

85
em

pl
oy

ee
s

0.
25

/e
m

pl
oy

ee
N

A 
N

A 
N

A 
21

.2
5

21
.2

5
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
-

---
---

---
---

---
-

---
---

---
---

---
-

---
---

---
---

---
-

---
---

---
---

---
-

To
ta

l f
or

 S
SA

 N
o.

 1
1,

67
4.

50
1,

67
4.

50
1,

67
4.

50
2,

54
5.

75
2,

54
5.

75

SS
A 

N
o.

 2
Si

ng
le

 F
am

ily
96

0
un

its
3.

5/
un

it
N

A 
N

A 
3,

36
0.

00
3,

36
0.

00
3,

36
0.

00
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
-

---
---

---
---

---
-

---
---

---
---

---
-

---
---

---
---

---
-

---
---

---
---

---
-

To
ta

l f
or

 S
SA

 N
o.

 2
N

A 
N

A 
3,

36
0.

00
3,

36
0.

00
3,

36
0.

00

G
R

A
N

D
 T

O
TA

L
1,

67
4.

50
1,

67
4.

50
5,

03
4.

50
5,

90
5.

75
5,

90
5.

75

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 1
0 

of
 3

1



  

Special Tax Roll and Report Page 8 
Village of Antioch – Special Service Area Number One April 29, 2003 

b. ROAD USAGE 
 
Road usage is typically computed on the basis of trip 
generation. The Institute of Traffic Engineers publication Trip 
Generation, 6th Edition, indicates average weekday trips per 
single-family detached home and condominium/townhome of 
9.57 and 6.59 trips, respectively. 
 
Average weekday trips for commercial developments are 
commonly expressed per 1,000 square feet of gross leasable 
area. For shopping center development, average weekday trips 
equal 42.92 per 1,000 square feet of gross leasable area. 
However, a significant percentage of these trips will be 
considered pass-by (i.e., trips made as an intermediate stops on 
the way from an origin to a primary trip destination). This is 
particularly true for the subject shopping center development 
given its location on State Route 173 just west of U.S. 
Highway 45. Based upon data contained in Trip Generation 
Fifth Edition, it is estimated that at least thirty percent (30%) of 
the trips will be comprised of pass-by traffic, resulting in a net 
trip end facto of 30.04 per 1,000 square feet.  
 
The average weekday trips associated with a middle school are 
typically expressed per student and are estimated by Trip 
Generation Sixth Edition at 1.45 per middle school student. 
 
Total trip ends applicable to each land use is shown in Table 3 
on the following page. 
 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 1
1 

of
 3

1



TABLE 3
SSA No. 1 (DEERCREST)

TRIP ENDS
FOR ROAD IMPROVEMENTS

Off-site Improvements
On-site SR 173 Turn Savage Road

Land Use Count Trip Ends Improvements Lanes To SR 173

SSA No. 1
Single-Family 379 units 9.57/unit 3,627.03 3,627.03 NA 
Townhome 116 units 6.59/unit 764.44 764.44 NA 
Commercial 326,700 square feet 30.04/1,000 SF NA 9,814.07 9,814.07
School

Students 1,000 students 1.45/student NA 1,450.00 1,450.00
Employees 85 employees NA NA NA NA 

--------------------------- ---------------- ---------------- ----------------
Total for SSA No. 1 4,391.47 15,655.54 11,264.07

SSA No. 2
Single Family 960 units 9.57/unit NA 9,187.20 9,187.20

--------------------------- ---------------- ---------------- ----------------
Total for SSA No. 2 NA 9,187.20 9,187.20

GRAND TOTAL 4,391.47 24,842.74 20,451.27

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 1
2 

of
 3

1



  

Special Tax Roll and Report Page 10 
Village of Antioch – Special Service Area Number One April 29, 2003 

c. STORM SEWER USAGE 
 
Storm sewer facilities are sized based upon estimated storm 
flows which vary with the size of the tributary drainage area, 
slope, soil type, antecedent runoff condition, and impervious 
ground cover. In its "Urban Hydrology for Small Watersheds: 
TR-55" (the "TR-55 Manual"), the United States Department 
of Agriculture indicates average "runoff curve numbers" for 
purposes of measuring storm flows or runoff. The runoff curve 
equation estimates storm runoff given a particular volume of 
rainfall.  
 
The runoff curve numbers for fully developed urban areas 
indicated in the TR-55 Manual vary by land use type, 
impervious area, and hydrologic soil group. Assuming 
generally uniform antecedent runoff and hydrologic soil 
conditions within SSA No. 1, storm flows will tend to vary 
with land use and impervious area.  

Multiplying the impervious ground cover factor of thirty 
percent (30%) for single-family residential development with 
an average lot size of 1/3 acre by the gross land area, excluding 
open space, per single family home of approximately 13,717 
square feet results in an estimated impervious ground area per 
single-family lot of 4,115 square feet. For townhomes, the 
impervious area of 5,606 square feet per townhome is 
calculated by dividing the total area of the parcels on which the 
townhomes are to be constructed, including streets, or 
1,000,473 square feet, by the anticipated number of townhome 
units, or 116, and then multiplying the quotient by the 
impervious ground cover factor of sixty-five percent (65%) for 
townhomes. 
 
As all lots are anticipated to have approximately the same 
impervious area, the storm flow and therefore usage of the 
storm sewer system is not expected to vary in any material 
amount from single-family home to single-family home or 
from townhome to townhome.  
 
Total impervious ground area applicable to each land use is 
shown in Table 4 on the following page. 

 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 1
3 

of
 3

1



  

Special Tax Roll and Report Page 11 
Village of Antioch – Special Service Area Number One April 29, 2003 

 
TABLE 4 

IMPERVIOUS SQUARE FEET 
FOR STORM SEWER IMPROVEMENTS 

Land Use Count 
Impervious 
Square Feet 

On-site 
Improvements 

SSA No. 1    
 Single-family  379 Units 4,115/unit 1,559,435
 Townhomes 116 Units 5,606/unit 650,307
--------------------------   -------------------
Total for SSA No. 1   2,209,742

 
d. OUTLOTS, COMMON AREA, AND OPEN SPACE 

 
No costs have been allocated to property on which 
development will not occur, such as outlots, common area, or 
open space, as it places an insignificant demand on and 
therefore, derives no material benefit from the public 
improvements. 
 

3. ALLOCATED COSTS 
 

Dividing the total costs for each respective category of improvement in 
Table 1 by the total applicable usage factors in Tables 2 through 4 
above results in improvements costs per P.E., trip end, or impervious 
square foot as shown in Table 5 on the following page. Multiplying 
these "unit" costs by the applicable usage factor for each land use type 
yields the allocated public improvements costs per dwelling unit, per 
acre/building square foot, or per person, as applicable, shown in Table 
6. The amount of these improvements to be funded by SSA No. 1 is 
shown in Table 7.  
 
As all the public improvements cannot be financed through SSA No. 
1, the portion of the on-site improvements to be financed with bond 
proceeds are detailed in Table 7. All on-site improvements not 
financed through SSA No. 1 will be funded by the developer and are 
categorized as "Unfunded Residential" in Table 8. As noted 
previously, certain off-site improvement costs, excluding recapture, 
will be shared with SSA No. 2.  

 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 1
4 

of
 3

1



TABLE 5
SSA No. 1 (DEERCREST)

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT COSTS PER APPLICABLE FACTOR
Improvement

Public Improvements Cost Per Factor

On-Site Improvements
Sanitary Sewer $1,137.67 per P.E.
Water $1,067.01 per P.E.
Road $671.03 per Trip End
Storm Sewer $0.65 per I.S.F.

Off-Site Improvements
Sanitary Sewer

Mill Creek Sewer Treatment Plant for SSA No. 1 $1,762.37 per P.E.
Other Sanitary Sewer for SSA No. 1 $116.61 per P.E.

Water for SSA No. 1 $97.90 per P.E.
Road 

SR 173 Turn Lanes & Signalization $20.53 per Trip End
Savage Road to SR 173 $16.81 per Trip End

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 1
5 

of
 3

1



TA
B

LE
 6

SS
A 

N
o.

 1
 (D

EE
R

C
R

ES
T)

PU
B

LI
C

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
C

O
ST

S 
B

Y 
LA

N
D

 U
SE

Pe
r U

ni
t

Si
ng

le
 F

am
ily

C
om

m
er

ci
al

Sc
ho

ol
Pu

bl
ic

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

H
om

e
To

w
nh

om
e

Pr
op

er
ty

Si
te

37
9 

un
its

11
6 

un
its

O
n-

Si
te

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 S
ew

er
$3

,9
81

.8
4

$3
,4

13
.0

1
N

A 
N

A 
W

at
er

$3
,7

34
.5

5
$3

,2
01

.0
4

N
A 

N
A 

R
oa

d 
$6

,4
21

.7
6

$4
,4

22
.0

9
N

A 
N

A 
St

or
m

 S
ew

er
$2

,6
95

.0
0

$3
,6

71
.9

0
N

A 
N

A 
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

--
---

---
---

---
---

---
--

---
---

---
---

---
---

--
---

---
---

---
---

---
--

---
---

---
---

---
---

--
To

ta
l f

or
 O

n-
si

te
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
$1

6,
83

3.
15

$1
4,

70
8.

04
N

A 
N

A 

O
ff-

Si
te

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 S
ew

er
M

ill 
C

re
ek

 S
ew

er
 T

re
at

m
en

t P
la

nt
 fo

r S
SA

 N
o.

 1
$6

,1
68

.3
0

$5
,2

87
.1

2
N

A 
N

A 
O

th
er

 S
an

ita
ry

 S
ew

er
 fo

r S
SA

 N
o.

 1
$4

08
.1

5
$3

49
.8

4
$2

,3
32

.2
9

$2
9.

15
W

at
er

 fo
r S

SA
 N

o.
 1

$3
42

.6
4

$2
93

.6
9

$1
,9

57
.9

2
$2

4.
47

R
oa

d SR
 1

73
 T

ur
n 

La
ne

s 
& 

Si
gn

al
iz

at
io

n
$1

96
.4

6
$1

35
.2

9
$6

16
.7

0
$2

9.
77

Sa
va

ge
 R

oa
d 

to
 S

R
 1

73
N

A 
N

A 
$5

04
.9

2
$2

4.
37

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
--

---
---

---
---

---
---

--
---

---
---

---
---

---
--

---
---

---
---

---
---

--
---

---
---

---
---

---
--

To
ta

l f
or

 O
ff-

si
te

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

$7
,1

15
.5

5
$6

,0
65

.9
4

$5
,4

11
.8

3
$1

07
.7

7

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH SSA NO. 1 ADMINSTRATION REPORT | EXHIBIT C | PAGE 16 of 31



TA
B

LE
 7

SS
A 

N
o.

 1
 (D

EE
R

C
R

ES
T)

AL
LO

C
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

SS
A 

N
o.

 1
 P

U
B

LI
C

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
C

O
ST

S
D

ev
el

op
er

's
 E

qu
ity

To
ta

l A
llo

ca
bl

e 
U

nf
un

de
d

Sc
ho

ol
To

ta
l A

llo
ca

bl
e

R
ec

ap
tu

ra
bl

e
Pu

bl
ic

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
to

 S
SA

 N
o.

 1
Si

ng
le

-F
am

ily
To

w
nh

om
e

R
es

id
en

tia
l

C
om

m
er

ci
al

Si
te

to
 S

SA
 N

o.
 2

C
os

ts
G

ra
nd

 T
ot

al

O
n-

Si
te

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 S
ew

er
$1

,9
05

,0
28

$1
,3

28
,0

25
$3

48
,4

00
$2

28
,6

03
N

A 
N

A 
N

A 
N

A 
$1

,9
05

,0
28

W
at

er
$1

,7
86

,7
16

$1
,1

04
,0

08
$2

89
,6

30
$3

93
,0

78
N

A 
N

A 
N

A 
N

A 
$1

,7
86

,7
16

R
oa

d 
$2

,9
46

,8
08

$2
,3

23
,9

91
$1

63
,4

05
$4

59
,4

11
N

A 
N

A 
N

A 
N

A 
$2

,9
46

,8
08

St
or

m
 S

ew
er

$1
,4

47
,3

45
$8

47
,7

66
$3

53
,5

31
$2

46
,0

49
N

A 
N

A 
N

A 
N

A 
$1

,4
47

,3
45

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
--

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

--
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
--

---
---

---
---

---
---

--
---

---
---

---
---

---
--

---
---

---
---

---
---

--
---

---
---

---
---

---
--

To
ta

l O
n-

Si
te

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t C

os
ts

$8
,0

85
,8

97
$5

,6
03

,7
90

$1
,1

54
,9

67
$1

,3
27

,1
41

N
A 

N
A 

N
A 

N
A 

$8
,0

85
,8

97

O
ff-

Si
te

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 S
ew

er
M

ill 
C

re
ek

 S
ew

er
 T

re
at

m
en

t P
la

nt
 fo

r S
SA

 N
o.

 1
$7

54
,3

60
$5

97
,5

86
$1

56
,7

74
$0

N
A 

N
A 

$2
,1

96
,7

33
N

A 
$2

,9
51

,0
93

O
th

er
 S

an
ita

ry
 S

ew
er

 fo
r S

SA
 N

o.
 1

$2
96

,8
71

$1
54

,6
89

$4
0,

58
2

$0
$6

9,
96

9
$3

1,
63

2
$4

67
,3

74
$8

23
,3

02
$1

,5
87

,5
47

W
at

er
 fo

r S
SA

 N
o.

 1
$2

49
,2

19
$1

29
,8

59
$3

4,
06

8
$0

$5
8,

73
8

$2
6,

55
4

$7
02

,4
30

$6
29

,6
89

$1
,5

81
,3

38
R

oa
d SR

 1
73

 T
ur

n 
La

ne
s 

& 
Si

gn
al

iz
at

io
n

$3
21

,3
95

$7
4,

46
0

$1
5,

69
3

$0
$2

01
,4

74
$2

9,
76

7
$1

88
,6

05
N

A 
$5

10
,0

00
Sa

va
ge

 R
oa

d 
to

 S
R

 1
73

$1
89

,3
29

$0
$0

$0
$1

64
,9

57
$2

4,
37

2
$1

54
,4

21
N

A 
$3

43
,7

50
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

--
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
--
---
---
---
---
---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

--
---

---
---

---
---

---
--

---
---

---
---

---
---

--
---

---
---

---
---

---
--

---
---

---
---

---
---

--
To

ta
l O

ff-
Si

te
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t C
os

ts
$1

,8
11

,1
74

$9
56

,5
94

$2
47

,1
16

$0
$4

95
,1

38
$1

12
,3

25
$3

,7
09

,5
63

$1
,4

52
,9

91
$6

,9
73

,7
28

To
ta

l P
ub

lic
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t C
os

ts
$9

,8
97

,0
71

$6
,5

60
,3

84
$1

,4
02

,0
83

$1
,3

27
,1

41
$4

95
,1

38
$1

12
,3

25
$3

,7
09

,5
63

$1
,4

52
,9

91
$1

5,
05

9,
62

5

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 1
7 

of
 3

1



  

Special Tax Roll and Report Page 15 
Village of Antioch – Special Service Area Number One April 29, 2003 

D. ALTERNATIVES, MODIFICATIONS, AND/OR SUBSTITUTIONS 
 

The description of the public improvements, as set forth herein, are general in 
nature. The final description, specifications, location, and costs of 
improvements and facilities will be determined upon the preparation of final 
plans and specification. In addition, the actual amounts financed by SSA No. 
1 may increase or decrease as described in Section IV below. The final plans 
may show substitutes, in lieu or modifications to the proposed special services 
in order to accomplish the works of improvements, and any substitution, 
increase, or decrease to the amount of public improvements financed shall not 
be a change or modification in the proceedings, as long as (i) the total 
improvement costs actually funded, when allocated to each single-family 
home and townhome, is the same amount per dwelling unit within each such 
land use category and (2) such allocation results in the same ratio of the public 
improvements between these two land use types, as established in Section 
V.A below. 

 
IV. BONDED INDEBTEDNESS 

 
It is anticipated that the public improvements will be financed through the issuance of 
a single series of bonds. Total authorized bonded indebtedness is $12,000,000. Bonds 
in the approximate amount of $10,680,000 are anticipated to be issued in May 2003. 
Issuance costs are estimated to be approximately four percent of the principal amount 
of the bonds. The bond issue is estimated to include a reserve fund equal to 
approximately ten percent of the original principal amount of the bonds and 
approximately two years of capitalized interest. The bonds are expected to have a 
term of 30 years with principal amortized over 27 years. Annual debt service 
payments will increase approximately 1.5% annually. 
 
The final sizing of the bonds may be modified as appropriate to meet the objectives of 
the financing and prevailing bond market conditions. These modifications may 
include, but are not limited to, changes in the following: 
 

• Bond timing, phasing, and/or escrows; 
• Capitalized interest period; 
• Principal amortization (i.e., bond term and annual debt service payment); 
• Reserve fund size and form; and 
• Coupon rates. 

 
Therefore, the actual bonded indebtedness, and consequently the amount of public 
improvements financed by SSA No. 1, may increase or decrease depending upon 
these variables.  
 

V. DETERMINATION OF SPECIAL TAXES 
 

As mentioned previously, the public improvements allocable to the commercial and 
school properties will not be financed with bond proceeds for SSA No. 1. Therefore, 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 1
8 

of
 3

1



  

Special Tax Roll and Report Page 16 
Village of Antioch – Special Service Area Number One April 29, 2003 

these land uses will not be subject to the special tax. The discussion that follows 
applies only to the residential property. 
 
A. MAXIMUM ANNUAL SPECIAL TAXES 

 
In order to measure the relative difference in public improvement costs for 
each land use type, equivalent dwelling unit ("EDU") factors have been 
calculated. Single-family homes are deemed to typical residential unit and are 
assigned an EDU factor of 1.00. EDU factors for townhomes are based upon 
the relative difference in public improvement costs allocated thereto when 
compared to a single-family home.1 EDUs are shown in Table 8 below. 

 
TABLE 8 

EDU FACTORS 
 

Cost/Unit 
EDU 

Factor EDUs 
Single-Family Home $17,310 1.000 379.00 
Townhome $12,087 0.698 81.00 
Total 460.00 

 
The maximum annual special taxes are a function of the EDUs and the 
aggregate special taxes required to pay interest and principal on the bonds and 
administrative expenses as well as provide funds to replenish the reserve fund 
and/or mitigate delinquent special taxes. Expressed in percentage terms, 
interest and principal payments and administrative expenses less investment 
earnings on the reserve fund are projected to average ninety-one (91%) of the 
maximum annual special taxes, and the special taxes available to mitigate 
delinquencies are estimated to average nine percent (9.0%). The derivation of 
the maximum annual special taxes is shown in Table 9 below. 

 
TABLE 9 

MAXIMUM ANNUAL SPECIAL TAXES 
(2004 LEVY YEAR/COLLECTED 2005) 

 
Total 

Single-
Family Townhome 

Required Aggregate Annual Special Taxes $821,000 $676,433 $144,567 
EDUs 460.00 379.00 81.00 
Dwelling Units (DUs) 495 379 116 
Maximum Annual Special Tax/EDU $1,784.78 NA NA 
Maximum Annual Special Tax/DU NA $1,784.78 $1,246.26 

 
The required aggregate annual special taxes are based upon the bond 
assumptions set forth in Section IV above and an assumption of an average 
coupon rate of 6.75%. The maximum annual special tax per EDU is simply 

                                                 
1 By the way of example, if the improvement costs per lot for each single-family home and townhome were 
$10,000 and $7,000, respectively, the relative difference of the townhome from the single-family home would 
be computed by dividing $7,000 by $10,000. 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 1
9 

of
 3

1



  

Special Tax Roll and Report Page 17 
Village of Antioch – Special Service Area Number One April 29, 2003 

computed by dividing the required aggregate special taxes by the number of 
EDUs. Therefore, the special taxes are proportional to the cost of the public 
improvements and bear a rational relationship to the benefit that each property 
receives therefrom. 
 
Note, that while the annual increase in the maximum annual special tax is 
limited to one and one-half percent (1.50%), which is consistent with the 
anticipated graduated payment schedule for interest and principal on the 
bonds, the percentage annual change in the actual special tax collected may be 
greater depending upon actual special tax receipts, capitalized interest, 
investment earnings, and administrative expenses.  

 
B. APPORTIONMENT AND ABATEMENT METHODOLOGY 

 
Each year, the portion of maximum annual special tax that is not needed for 
payment of interest, principal, and administrative expenses and to mitigate 
delinquencies will be abated. The percentage abated will be uniform for all 
parcels. While the annual increase in the maximum special tax is limited to 
one and one-half (1.50%), the percentage annual change in the actual special 
tax collected may be greater depending upon the actual special tax receipts, 
capitalized interest, investment earnings, and administrative expenses. 
 
 

K:\Clients2\Antioch\Deercrest SSA\RMA and SSA Report\Deercrest SSA RPT 9.doc 
 
 
 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 2
0 

of
 3

1



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

RATE AND METHOD OF LEVYING SPECIAL TAXES 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 2
1 

of
 3

1



 

SSA No. 1 Page 1 of 8 April 29, 2003 

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NUMBER ONE 

(DEERCREST) 
 

 RATE AND METHOD OF LEVYING SPECIAL TAXES  
 
A Special Tax shall be extended and collected in the Village of Antioch Special Service Area 
Number One (Deercrest) ("SSA No. 1") each Calendar Year, in an amount determined by the 
Village of Antioch or its designee through the application of the procedures described below. All of 
the real property in SSA No. 1, unless exempted by the provisions hereof, shall be taxed for the 
purposes, to the extent and in the manner herein provided. 

A. DEFINITIONS 
 

The terms used herein shall have the following meanings: 
 

"Act" means the Special Service Area Tax Act, being 35 ILCS 200/27-5 et seq., as 
amended. 

 
"Administrative Expenses" means the following actual or reasonably estimated costs 
permitted in accordance with the Act and directly related to the administration of SSA No. 1 
and the Bonds as determined by the Village or its designee: the costs of computing the 
Special Taxes and of preparing the amended Special Tax Roll (whether by the Village or 
designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Special Taxes (whether by the Village, 
the County, or otherwise); the costs of remitting the Special Taxes to the fiscal agent and/or 
trustee for any Bonds; the costs of the fiscal agent and/or trustee (including its legal counsel) 
in the discharge of the duties required of it under any fiscal agent and/or trustee agreement; 
the costs of the Village or designee in computing the amount of rebatable arbitrage, if any; 
the costs of the Village or designee in complying with the disclosure requirements of 
applicable federal and state securities laws and of the Act, including, but not limited to, 
public inquiries regarding the Special Taxes; the costs associated with the release of funds 
from any escrow account or funds held pursuant to the Bond Indenture; and any termination 
payments owed by the Village in connection with any guaranteed investment contract, 
forward purchase agreement, or other investment of funds held under the Bond Indenture. 
Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts advanced by the Village for any 
administrative purpose of SSA No. 1 including the costs of computing Special Tax Bond 
Prepayment amounts, recording of lien satisfaction or other notices related to a Special Tax 
Bond Prepayment or Mandatory Special Tax Prepayment, discharge or satisfaction of 
Special Taxes; and the costs of commencing and pursuing to completion any foreclosure 
action arising from and pursuing the collection of delinquent Special Taxes and the 
reasonable fees of legal counsel to the Village incurred in connection with all of the 
foregoing. 
 
"Administrator" means the designee of the Village responsible for determining the Special 
Taxes and providing for the imposition and collection of the Special Taxes, continuing 
disclosure, and any other administrative efforts related to SSA No. 1. 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 2
2 

of
 3

1



 

SSA No. 1 Page 2 of 8 April 29, 2003 

"Association Property" means any property within the boundaries of SSA No. 1 owned by, 
dedicated to, or conveyed to a property owner association, including any master or sub-
association, which may include outlots, parks, open space, and/or wetlands but not 
Townhome Property or Single-family Property. 
  
"Board" means the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Antioch, having 
jurisdiction over SSA No. 1. 
 
"Bond Indenture" means the trust indenture and any supplemental indentures between the 
Village and the trustee named therein authorizing the issuance of the Bonds. 
 
"Bonds" means any bonds or other debt, including refunding bonds, whether in one or more 
series, issued by the Village and secured by the Maximum Parcel Special Tax for SSA No. 1, 
the proceeds of which will be used to finance inter alia, all or a portion of the public 
improvements. 
 
"Cadastral Map" means an official map of the County GIS and Mapping Division or other 
authorized County official designating parcels by permanent index number. 
 
"Calendar Year" means the twelve-month period starting January 1 and ending December 
31. 
 
"County" means the County of Lake, Illinois. 
 
"Final Plat" means a final plat of subdivision approved by the Village and recorded with 
the County. 
 
"Maximum Parcel Special Tax" means the maximum Special Tax, determined in 
accordance with Section B that can be collected by the Village in any Calendar Year on any 
Parcel. 
 
"Maximum SSA Special Taxes" means the aggregate Maximum Parcel Special Taxes, 
determined in accordance with Sections B and C that can be collected by the Village in any 
Calendar Year. 
 
"Non-Residential Property" means Parcel 02-14-300-002 and/or its successors.  
 
"Parcel" means a lot or parcel within the boundaries of SSA No. 1 shown on a Cadastral 
Map and assigned a permanent index number by the office of the County Assessor or other 
authorized County official. 
 
"Preliminary Plat" means the preliminary subdivision plat for Deercrest approved by the 
Village, as may be amended. 
 
"Public Property" means property within the boundaries of SSA No. 1 owned by, 
irrevocably offered, dedicated or conveyed to, or for which an easement for purposes of 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 2
3 

of
 3

1



 

SSA No. 1 Page 3 of 8 April 29, 2003 

public street right-of-way has been granted to the federal government, the State of Illinois, 
the Village of Antioch or any local government or other public agency. 
 
"Single-family Property" means all property within the boundaries of SSA No. 1 on which 
single-family homes have been, may be, or are anticipated to be constructed as determined 
from the Preliminary Plat, or any Final Plat, as applicable. 
 
"Special Tax" means the special tax to be collected in each Calendar Year on each Parcel to 
fund the Special Tax Requirement. 

 
"Special Tax Bond Prepayment" means that amount required to prepay the Maximum 
Parcel Special Tax computed pursuant to Section G. 

 
"Special Tax Requirement" means that amount determined by the Village or its designee 
as required in any Calendar Year to pay: (1) the Administrative Expenses, (2) debt service on 
any Bonds, (3) any amount required to replenish any reserve fund established in connection 
with such Bonds, (4) the costs of credit enhancement and fees for instruments that serve as 
the basis of a reserve fund in lieu of cash related to any such Bonds and less (5) available 
funds as directed under the Bond Indenture. 

 
"Special Tax Roll" means the Special Tax Roll included herein as Exhibit 1, as may be 
amended pursuant to Section C. 

 
"Townhome Property" means all property within the boundaries of SSA No. 1 on which 
townhomes have been, may be, or are anticipated to be constructed as determined from the 
Preliminary Plat or any Final Plat, as applicable. 
 
"Village" means the Village of Antioch, Illinois. 

B. CLASSIFICATION OF PROPERTY 
 

On or before the last Tuesday of each Calendar Year, each Parcel shall be classified as 
Association Property, Public Property, Single-family Property, Townhome Property, or Non-
Residential Property. The foregoing classifications shall be based on the Preliminary Plat or 
Final Plat, whichever is most recent as of the September 30 preceding the Calendar Year for 
which the Special Tax is being collected. The classification to which each Parcel is assigned 
shall be fixed upon the recordation of the Final Plat from which such Parcel was established.  

C. MAXIMUM PARCEL SPECIAL TAX 
 
1. Single-family Property, Townhome Property, Non-Residential Property, 

Association Property, and Public Property 
 
The Maximum Parcel Special Tax for Single-family Property, Townhome Property, 
Non-Residential Property, Association Property, and Public Property that has been 
levied in Calendar Year 2004 and which may be collected in Calendar Year 2005 is 
shown in Table 1 below. 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 2
4 

of
 3

1



 

SSA No. 1 Page 4 of 8 April 29, 2003 

 
 TABLE 1 

LEVIED CALENDAR YEAR 2004 
MAXIMUM PARCEL SPECIAL TAX AMOUNTS 

Classification 
Maximum Parcel 

Special Tax 

Single-family Property $1,784.78/lot or dwelling unit 

Townhome Property $1,246.26/lot or dwelling unit 

Association Property $0.00/Parcel 

Public Property $0.00/Parcel 

Non-Residential Property $0.00/Parcel 

 
The Maximum Parcel Special Tax for a Parcel of Single-family Property or 
Townhome Property which is not located within a Final Plat shall be calculated by 
multiplying the number of expected single-family and/or townhome lots or dwelling 
units for such Parcel, as determined from the Preliminary Plat in effect as of 
September 30 preceding the Calendar Year for which the Special Tax is being 
collected, by the corresponding Maximum Parcel Special Tax per lot or dwelling unit 
determined pursuant to Table 1 above, as increased in accordance with Section C.2 
below. 
 

2. Escalation 
 
The Maximum Parcel Special Tax that has been levied in each subsequent Calendar 
Year thereafter, commencing with Calendar Year 2005, is one and one-half percent 
(1.50%) greater than the Maximum Parcel Special Tax for the preceding Calendar 
Year rounded up to the nearest dollar.  

 
3. Maximum Parcel Special Taxes 
 

The Maximum SSA Special Taxes shall not exceed $1,227,230.95. The Special Tax 
Bond Prepayment amount and Mandatory Special Tax Prepayment amounts shall not 
exceed the Principal plus any Premium, Defeasance, and Fees as such terms are 
defined in Section G. 
 

4. Special Tax Roll Amendment 
 

Each Calendar Year, in conjunction with the abatement ordinance adopted by the 
Village, the Board shall amend the Special Tax Roll to reflect the Maximum Parcel 
Special Tax applicable to any new Parcels established by the County. The amended 
Special Tax Roll shall be recorded with the County.  

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 2
5 

of
 3

1



 

SSA No. 1 Page 5 of 8 April 29, 2003 

D. METHOD OF ABATING THE SPECIAL TAX 
 

On or before the last Tuesday of December of each Calendar Year, commencing with 
Calendar Year 2004 and for each following Calendar Year, the Village or its designee shall 
determine the Special Tax Requirement and the Maximum Parcel Special Tax authorized by 
the ordinance providing for the issuance of the Bonds shall be abated to the extent the 
amounts so extended exceed the Special Tax Requirement. The Maximum Parcel Special 
Tax applicable to each Parcel shall be abated in equal percentages until the Special Tax 
remaining equals the Special Tax Requirement. 
 
Abated in equal percentages means that the amount abated for each Parcel, computed as a 
percentage of its applicable Maximum Parcel Special Tax, is the same. The Maximum Parcel 
Special Tax is sized to cover a delinquency rate of approximately nine percent (9.0%). 

E. MANNER OF COLLECTION 
 

The Special Tax will be billed and collected by the County in the same manner and at the 
same time as general ad valorem property taxes. The lien and foreclosure remedies provided 
for in Article 9 of the Illinois Municipal Code shall apply upon the nonpayment of the 
Special Tax. The Board may provide for other means of collecting the Special Tax, if 
necessary to meet the financial obligations of SSA No. 1. 
 
1. Administrative Review 
 

Any owner of a Parcel claiming that a calculation error has been made in the amount 
of the Special Tax applicable to such Parcel for any Calendar Year may send a 
written notice describing the error to the Administrator not later than thirty (30) days 
after having paid the Special Tax which is alleged to be in error. The Administrator 
shall promptly review the notice, and if necessary, meet with the property owner, 
consider written and oral evidence regarding the alleged error and decide whether, in 
fact, such an error occurred. If the Administrator determines that an error did in fact 
occur and the Special Tax should be modified or changed in favor of the property 
owner, an adjustment shall be made in the amount of the Special Tax applicable to 
such Parcel in the next Calendar Year. Cash refunds shall only be made in the final 
Calendar Year for the Special Tax. The decision of the Administrator regarding any 
error in respect to the Special Tax shall be final. 

F. TERM 
 

The Maximum Parcel Special Tax is not levied after Calendar Year 2031 (to be collected in 
Calendar Year 2032). 

G. OPTIONAL PREPAYMENT 
 
The Maximum Parcel Special Tax for any Parcel may be prepaid and the obligation of the 
Parcel to pay the Maximum Parcel Special Tax permanently satisfied as described herein, 
provided that a prepayment may be made only if there are no delinquent Special Taxes with 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 2
6 

of
 3

1



 

SSA No. 1 Page 6 of 8 April 29, 2003 

respect to such Parcel at the time of prepayment. An owner of a Parcel intending to prepay 
the Maximum Parcel Special Tax shall provide the Village with written notice of intent to 
prepay. Within 30 days of receipt of such written notice, the Village or its designee shall 
notify such owner of the Special Tax Bond Prepayment for such Parcel and the date through 
which the amount any such prepayment shall be valid. 
 
1. Special Tax Bond Prepayment Prior to the Issuance of any Bonds 
 

The Special Tax Bond Prepayment for a Parcel of Single-family Property and 
Townhome Property prior to the issuance of any Bonds shall equal $17,310 or 
$12,087 per lot or dwelling unit, respectively, subject to changes as described in 
Section D of the Special Tax Roll and Report for SSA No. 1. If at the time of the 
prepayment, the Parcel intending to prepay is not located within a Final Plat, the 
prepayment amount shall be calculated by multiplying the number of expected 
residential lots or dwelling units for such Parcel as shown on the Preliminary Plat by 
the preceding Special Tax Bond Prepayment per lot or dwelling unit.  
 

2. Special Tax Bond Prepayment Subsequent to the Issuance of Bonds 
 
Subsequent to the issuance of Bonds, the Special Tax Bond Prepayment for a Parcel 
means an amount equal to (a) the sum of (1) Principal, (2) Premium, (3) Defeasance, 
and (4) Fees and (b) minus the Reserve Fund Credit, where the terms "Principal," 
"Premium," "Defeasance," "Fees," and "Reserve Fund Credit" have the following 
meanings: 
 

"Principal" means the principal amount of Bonds to be redeemed and equals 
the quotient derived by dividing (a) the then applicable Maximum Parcel 
Special Tax for the Parcel intending to prepay by (b) the corresponding 
aggregate Maximum Parcel Special Taxes for SSA No. 1, (and excluding 
from (b) that portion of the Maximum Parcel Special Tax for any Parcel(s) 
that has been prepaid), and multiplying the quotient by the principal amount 
of outstanding Bonds. 

 
"Premium" means an amount equal to the Principal multiplied by the 
applicable redemption premium, if any, for any Bonds so redeemed with the 
proceeds of any such prepayment. Any applicable redemption premium shall 
be as set forth in the Bond Indenture. 
 
"Defeasance" means the amount needed to pay interest on the Principal to 
be redeemed until the earliest redemption date for the outstanding Bonds less 
for any Special Tax heretofore paid and which is not needed to pay 
Administrative Expenses nor has been used for the Special Tax Requirement. 

 
"Fees" equal the expenses of SSA No. 1 associated with the Special Tax 
Bond Prepayment as calculated by the Village or its designee and include, 
but are not limited to, the costs of computing the Special Tax Bond 
Prepayment, the costs of redeeming the Bonds, and the costs of recording and 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 2
7 

of
 3

1



 

SSA No. 1 Page 7 of 8 April 29, 2003 

publishing any notices to evidence the Special Tax Bond Prepayment and the 
redemption of Bonds. 

 
"Reserve Fund Credit" shall equal the lesser of (i) the expected reduction 
in the applicable Reserve Requirement (as defined in the Bond Indenture), if 
any, following the redemption of Bonds from proceeds of the Special Tax 
Bond Prepayment or (ii) the amount derived by subtracting the new Reserve 
Requirement in effect after the redemption of Bonds from proceeds of the 
Special Tax Bond Prepayment from the balance in the Reserve Fund (as 
defined in the Bond Indenture) on the prepayment date, but in no event shall 
such amount be less than zero. Reserve Fund earnings to be applied toward 
the Special Tax Requirement shall not be considered when computing the 
Reserve Fund Credit. 

 
The Maximum Parcel Special Tax may also be prepaid in part, provided that proceeds for 
any such prepayment are sufficient to permit the redemption of Bonds in such amounts and 
maturities deemed necessary by the Administrator and in accordance with the Bond 
Indenture. The amount of any partial Special Tax Bond Prepayment shall be computed 
pursuant to the appropriate preceding section substituting the portion of the Maximum Parcel 
Special Tax to be prepaid for the Maximum Parcel Special Tax when computing Principal. 

  
The sum of the amounts calculated in Section G.1 shall be paid to the Village, deposited with 
the trustee, and used to pay for public improvements in accordance with the Bond Indenture 
and to pay the Fees associated with the Special Tax Bond Prepayment. The sum of the 
amounts calculated in the Section G.2 shall be paid to the Village, deposited with the trustee, 
and used to pay and redeem Bonds in accordance with the Bond Indenture and to pay the 
Fees associated with the Special Tax Bond Prepayment. Upon the payment of the Special 
Tax Bond Prepayment amount to the Village, the obligation to pay the portion of the 
Maximum Parcel Special Tax which is prepaid for such Parcel shall be deemed to be 
permanently satisfied, such portion of the Maximum Parcel Special Tax shall not be 
collected thereafter from such Parcel, and in the event the entire Maximum Parcel Special 
Tax is prepaid the Administrator shall cause a satisfaction of special tax lien for such Parcel 
to be recorded within 30 working days of receipt of the Special Tax Bond Prepayment.  

H. MANDATORY SPECIAL TAX PREPAYMENT 
 

If at any time the Administrator determines that there has been or will be a reduction in the 
Maximum SSA Special Taxes as a result of an amendment to the Preliminary Plat, Final 
Plat, or other event which reduces the expected number of single-family or townhome lots or 
dwelling units (i.e., 379 and 116 respectively), then a mandatory prepayment of the 
Maximum Parcel Special Tax (the "Mandatory Special Tax Prepayment") corresponding to 
such reduction shall be calculated. The Mandatory Special Tax Prepayment amount will be 
calculated using the prepayment formula described in Section G, as applicable, with the 
following modifications: 
 

The amount by which the Maximum SSA Special Taxes have been reduced 
shall serve as the numerator when computing Principal; and 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 2
8 

of
 3

1



 

SSA No. 1 Page 8 of 8 April 29, 2003 

 
No Reserve Fund Credit shall be given. 
 

The Mandatory Special Tax Prepayment shall be due prior to any development approval, 
subdivision of land, conveyance, or other action that results in a reduction in the Maximum 
SSA Special Taxes. The Mandatory Special Tax Prepayment shall be levied against the 
property on which the reduction has or will occur. The Mandatory Special Tax Prepayment 
shall have the same sale and lien priorities as are provided for regular property taxes. A 
Mandatory Special Tax Prepayment shall not reduce the Maximum Parcel Special Tax for 
any Parcel. The amount of any Mandatory Special Tax Prepayment shall not exceed the 
Principal plus any Premium, Defeasance, and Fees as such terms are defined in Section G. 

I. AMENDMENTS 
 

This Rate and Method of Levying Special Taxes may be amended by ordinance of the 
Village and, to the maximum extent permitted by the Act, such amendments may be made 
without further notice under the Act and without notice to owners of property within SSA 
No. 1 in order to (i) clarify or correct minor inconsistencies in the matters set forth herein, 
(ii) provide for lawful procedures for the collection and enforcement of the Special Tax so as 
to assure the efficient collection of the Special Tax for the benefit of the owners of the 
Bonds, (iii) otherwise improve the ability of the Village to fulfill its obligations to levy, 
extend, and collect the Special Tax and to make it available for the payment of the Bonds 
and Administrative Expenses, and (iv) make any change deemed necessary or advisable by 
the Village, provided such change is not detrimental to the owners of property subject to the 
Maximum Parcel Special Tax. No such amendment shall be approved by the Board if it 
violates any other agreement binding upon the Village and unless and until it has (i) found 
and determined that the amendment is necessary and appropriate and does not materially 
adversely affect the rights of the owners of the Bonds or the Village has obtained the consent 
of one hundred percent (100.00%) of the owners of the Bonds and (ii) received an opinion of 
a nationally recognized bond counsel to the effect that the amendment does not violate the 
Act, and is authorized pursuant to the terms of the Bond Indenture and this Rate and Method 
of Levying Special Taxes. 
 
 

K:\Clients2\Antioch\Deercrest SSA\RMA and SSA Report\Deercrest RMA 6.doc 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 2
9 

of
 3

1



 
 

EXHIBIT 1 
 

SPECIAL TAX ROLL 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 3
0 

of
 3

1



SS
A

 N
o.

 1
  O

F 
TH

E 
VI

LL
A

G
E 

O
F 

A
N

IT
O

C
H

D
EE

R
C

R
ES

T
SP

EC
IA

L 
TA

X 
R

O
LL

 (L
EV

Y 
YE

A
R

 2
00

4 
TH

R
O

U
G

H
 L

EV
Y 

YE
A

R
 2

03
1)

Pe
rm

an
en

t I
nd

ex
 N

um
be

r
M

ax
im

um
 P

ar
ce

l 
02

-1
1-

30
0-

00
7

02
-1

4-
10

0-
00

1
02

-1
4-

30
0-

00
2

Sp
ec

ia
l T

ax
 P

er
 L

ot
SF

D
TH

M
SF

D
TH

M
SF

D
TH

M
G

R
AN

D
Le

vy
 Y

ea
r

SF
D

TH
M

19
4

0
18

5
11

6
0

0
TO

TA
L

20
04

$1
,7

84
.7

8
$1

,2
46

.2
7

$3
46

,2
48

.0
3

$0
.0

0
$3

30
,1

84
.9

7
$1

44
,5

67
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$8

21
,0

00
.0

0
20

05
$1

,8
11

.5
6

$1
,2

64
.9

6
$3

51
,4

41
.7

5
$0

.0
0

$3
35

,1
37

.7
5

$1
46

,7
35

.5
1

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$8
33

,3
15

.0
0

20
06

$1
,8

38
.7

3
$1

,2
83

.9
4

$3
56

,7
13

.3
7

$0
.0

0
$3

40
,1

64
.8

1
$1

48
,9

36
.5

4
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$8

45
,8

14
.7

3
20

07
$1

,8
66

.3
1

$1
,3

03
.1

9
$3

62
,0

64
.0

7
$0

.0
0

$3
45

,2
67

.2
9

$1
51

,1
70

.5
9

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$8
58

,5
01

.9
5

20
08

$1
,8

94
.3

0
$1

,3
22

.7
4

$3
67

,4
95

.0
3

$0
.0

0
$3

50
,4

46
.3

0
$1

53
,4

38
.1

4
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$8

71
,3

79
.4

8
20

09
$1

,9
22

.7
2

$1
,3

42
.5

8
$3

73
,0

07
.4

6
$0

.0
0

$3
55

,7
02

.9
9

$1
55

,7
39

.7
2

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$8
84

,4
50

.1
7

20
10

$1
,9

51
.5

6
$1

,3
62

.7
2

$3
78

,6
02

.5
7

$0
.0

0
$3

61
,0

38
.5

4
$1

58
,0

75
.8

1
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$8

97
,7

16
.9

2
20

11
$1

,9
80

.8
3

$1
,3

83
.1

6
$3

84
,2

81
.6

1
$0

.0
0

$3
66

,4
54

.1
1

$1
60

,4
46

.9
5

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$9
11

,1
82

.6
7

20
12

$2
,0

10
.5

5
$1

,4
03

.9
1

$3
90

,0
45

.8
3

$0
.0

0
$3

71
,9

50
.9

2
$1

62
,8

53
.6

5
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$9

24
,8

50
.4

1
20

13
$2

,0
40

.7
0

$1
,4

24
.9

7
$3

95
,8

96
.5

2
$0

.0
0

$3
77

,5
30

.1
9

$1
65

,2
96

.4
6

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$9
38

,7
23

.1
7

20
14

$2
,0

71
.3

1
$1

,4
46

.3
4

$4
01

,8
34

.9
7

$0
.0

0
$3

83
,1

93
.1

4
$1

67
,7

75
.9

1
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$9

52
,8

04
.0

2
20

15
$2

,1
02

.3
8

$1
,4

68
.0

4
$4

07
,8

62
.4

9
$0

.0
0

$3
88

,9
41

.0
4

$1
70

,2
92

.5
4

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$9
67

,0
96

.0
8

20
16

$2
,1

33
.9

2
$1

,4
90

.0
6

$4
13

,9
80

.4
3

$0
.0

0
$3

94
,7

75
.1

5
$1

72
,8

46
.9

3
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$9

81
,6

02
.5

2
20

17
$2

,1
65

.9
3

$1
,5

12
.4

1
$4

20
,1

90
.1

4
$0

.0
0

$4
00

,6
96

.7
8

$1
75

,4
39

.6
4

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$9
96

,3
26

.5
6

20
18

$2
,1

98
.4

2
$1

,5
35

.1
0

$4
26

,4
92

.9
9

$0
.0

0
$4

06
,7

07
.2

3
$1

78
,0

71
.2

2
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$1

,0
11

,2
71

.4
5

20
19

$2
,2

31
.3

9
$1

,5
58

.1
2

$4
32

,8
90

.3
9

$0
.0

0
$4

12
,8

07
.8

4
$1

80
,7

42
.3

0
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$1

,0
26

,4
40

.5
3

20
20

$2
,2

64
.8

6
$1

,5
81

.5
0

$4
39

,3
83

.7
4

$0
.0

0
$4

18
,9

99
.9

6
$1

83
,4

53
.4

3
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$1

,0
41

,8
37

.1
3

20
21

$2
,2

98
.8

4
$1

,6
05

.2
2

$4
45

,9
74

.5
0

$0
.0

0
$4

25
,2

84
.9

6
$1

86
,2

05
.2

4
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$1

,0
57

,4
64

.6
9

20
22

$2
,3

33
.3

2
$1

,6
29

.3
0

$4
52

,6
64

.1
1

$0
.0

0
$4

31
,6

64
.2

3
$1

88
,9

98
.3

1
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$1

,0
73

,3
26

.6
6

20
23

$2
,3

68
.3

2
$1

,6
53

.7
4

$4
59

,4
54

.0
8

$0
.0

0
$4

38
,1

39
.2

0
$1

91
,8

33
.2

9
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$1

,0
89

,4
26

.5
6

20
24

$2
,4

03
.8

4
$1

,6
78

.5
4

$4
66

,3
45

.8
9

$0
.0

0
$4

44
,7

11
.2

8
$1

94
,7

10
.7

9
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$1

,1
05

,7
67

.9
6

20
25

$2
,4

39
.9

0
$1

,7
03

.7
2

$4
73

,3
41

.0
8

$0
.0

0
$4

51
,3

81
.9

5
$1

97
,6

31
.4

5
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$1

,1
22

,3
54

.4
8

20
26

$2
,4

76
.5

0
$1

,7
29

.2
8

$4
80

,4
41

.1
9

$0
.0

0
$4

58
,1

52
.6

8
$2

00
,5

95
.9

2
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$1

,1
39

,1
89

.8
0

20
27

$2
,5

13
.6

5
$1

,7
55

.2
1

$4
87

,6
47

.8
1

$0
.0

0
$4

65
,0

24
.9

7
$2

03
,6

04
.8

6
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$1

,1
56

,2
77

.6
4

20
28

$2
,5

51
.3

5
$1

,7
81

.5
4

$4
94

,9
62

.5
3

$0
.0

0
$4

72
,0

00
.3

5
$2

06
,6

58
.9

3
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$1

,1
73

,6
21

.8
1

20
29

$2
,5

89
.6

2
$1

,8
08

.2
7

$5
02

,3
86

.9
6

$0
.0

0
$4

79
,0

80
.3

5
$2

09
,7

58
.8

2
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$1

,1
91

,2
26

.1
4

20
30

$2
,6

28
.4

7
$1

,8
35

.3
9

$5
09

,9
22

.7
7

$0
.0

0
$4

86
,2

66
.5

6
$2

12
,9

05
.2

0
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$1

,2
09

,0
94

.5
3

20
31

$2
,6

67
.8

9
$1

,8
62

.9
2

$5
17

,5
71

.6
1

$0
.0

0
$4

93
,5

60
.5

6
$2

16
,0

98
.7

8
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$1

,2
27

,2
30

.9
5

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 1
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 | 

P
A

G
E

 3
1 

of
 3

1



 

 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT D 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 1 
 

Funds and Accounts  
  
 

  
 



SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 1
OF THE VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH

S T B S 2003SPECIAL TAX BONDS, SERIES 2003
FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS

SSA NO. 1
FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS

REBATE FUND

COST OF ISSUANCE
ACCOUNT

CAPITALIZED
INTEREST ACCOUNT

SPECIAL REDEMPTION
ACCOUNT

IMPROVEMENT
FUND

RESERVE FUNDBOND AND
INTEREST FUND

ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSE FUND

ACCOUNTINTEREST ACCOUNTACCOUNT

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH SSA NO. 1 ADMINSTRATION REPORT | EXHIBIT D | PAGE 1 of 1



 

 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT E 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 1 
 

Application of Special Tax  
  
 

  
 



SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 1
OF THE VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH

S T B S 2003SPECIAL TAX BONDS, SERIES 2003 
APPLICATION OF SPECIAL TAX1

SSA NO. 1
FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS

REBATE FUND

COST OF ISSUANCE

ACCOUNT

CAPITALIZED

INTEREST ACCOUNT

SPECIAL REDEMPTION

ACCOUNT

IMPROVEMENT

FUND

RESERVE FUNDBOND AND

INTEREST FUND

ADMINISTRATIVE

EXPENSE FUND
12 3 2

ACCOUNTINTEREST ACCOUNTACCOUNT

1Special Tax applied in sequence indicated.
2In an amount sufficient to pay interest and principal on the Bonds.

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH SSA NO. 1 ADMINSTRATION REPORT | EXHIBIT E | PAGE 1 of 1



 

 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT F 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 1 
 

Application of Earnings  
  
 

  
 



SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 1
OF THE VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH

S T B S 2003SPECIAL TAX BONDS, SERIES 2003
APPLICATION OF EARNINGS1

SSA NO. 1
FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS

REBATE FUND

COST OF ISSUANCE

ACCOUNT

CAPITALIZED

INTEREST ACCOUNT

SPECIAL REDEMPTION

ACCOUNT

IMPROVEMENT

FUND

RESERVE FUNDBOND AND

INTEREST FUND

ADMINISTRATIVE

EXPENSE FUND

ACCOUNTINTEREST ACCOUNTACCOUNT

1 Earnings remain in fund or account from which they accrued unless otherwise indicated.

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH SSA NO. 1 ADMINSTRATION REPORT | EXHIBIT F | PAGE 1 of 1



 

 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT G 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 1 
 

Monthly Sources and Uses of Funds  
  
 

  
 



 Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 1 
Deercrest - Series 2003

October 2010

ADMINISTRATIVE COST OF BOND & CAPITALIZED SPECIAL
EXPENSE IMPROVEMENT ISSUANCE INTEREST PREPAID FEES INTEREST RESERVE REBATE REDEMPTION

FUND FUND ACCOUNT FUNDFUND ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FUND FUND ACCOUNT TOTAL

BEGINNING BALANCE $1,915 $8 $0 $364,317 $0 $0 $1,063,910 $0 $618 $1,430,768

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS $0 $0 $0 $7,126 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,126
INVESTMENT AGREEMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER INVESTMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $2 $0 $0 $7 $0 $0 $9
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL SOURCES $0 $0 $0 $7,128 $0 $0 $7 $0 $0 $7,135

USES OF FUNDS
INTEREST PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL USES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TRANSFERS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ACCRUED INTEREST PAID $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ENDING BALANCE $1,915 $8 $0 $371,445 $0 $0 $1,063,917 $0 $618 $1,437,902

PRINTED: 11/07/11 12:15

PPAGE:90



 Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 1 
Deercrest - Series 2003

November 2010

ADMINISTRATIVE COST OF BOND & CAPITALIZED SPECIAL
EXPENSE IMPROVEMENT ISSUANCE INTEREST PREPAID FEES INTEREST RESERVE REBATE REDEMPTION

FUND FUND ACCOUNT FUNDFUND ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FUND FUND ACCOUNT TOTAL

BEGINNING BALANCE $1,915 $8 $0 $371,445 $0 $0 $1,063,917 $0 $618 $1,437,902

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS $0 $0 $0 $7,579 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,579
INVESTMENT AGREEMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER INVESTMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $2 $0 $0 $7 $0 $0 $10
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL SOURCES $0 $0 $0 $7,581 $0 $0 $7 $0 $0 $7,588

USES OF FUNDS
INTEREST PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL USES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TRANSFERS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ACCRUED INTEREST PAID $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ENDING BALANCE $1,915 $8 $0 $379,026 $0 $0 $1,063,924 $0 $618 $1,445,491

PRINTED: 11/07/11 12:15

PPAGE:91



 Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 1 
Deercrest - Series 2003

December 2010

ADMINISTRATIVE COST OF BOND & CAPITALIZED SPECIAL
EXPENSE IMPROVEMENT ISSUANCE INTEREST PREPAID FEES INTEREST RESERVE REBATE REDEMPTION

FUND FUND ACCOUNT FUNDFUND ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FUND FUND ACCOUNT TOTAL

BEGINNING BALANCE $1,915 $8 $0 $379,026 $0 $0 $1,063,924 $0 $618 $1,445,491

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS $0 $0 $0 $10,275 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,275
INVESTMENT AGREEMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER INVESTMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $2 $0 $0 $7 $0 $0 $9
MISCELLANEOUS $3,151 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,151

TOTAL SOURCES $3,151 $0 $0 $10,278 $0 $0 $7 $0 $0 $13,435

USES OF FUNDS
INTEREST PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES ($4,787) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($4,787)
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL USES ($4,787) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($4,787)

TRANSFERS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ACCRUED INTEREST PAID $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ENDING BALANCE $279 $8 $0 $389,303 $0 $0 $1,063,931 $0 $618 $1,454,139

PRINTED: 11/07/11 12:15

PPAGE:92



 Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 1 
Deercrest - Series 2003

January 2011

ADMINISTRATIVE COST OF BOND & CAPITALIZED SPECIAL
EXPENSE IMPROVEMENT ISSUANCE INTEREST PREPAID FEES INTEREST RESERVE REBATE REDEMPTION

FUND FUND ACCOUNT FUNDFUND ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FUND FUND ACCOUNT TOTAL

BEGINNING BALANCE $279 $8 $0 $389,303 $0 $0 $1,063,931 $0 $618 $1,454,139

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
INVESTMENT AGREEMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER INVESTMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $3 $0 $0 $8 $0 $0 $10
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL SOURCES $0 $0 $0 $3 $0 $0 $8 $0 $0 $10

USES OF FUNDS
INTEREST PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL USES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TRANSFERS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ACCRUED INTEREST PAID $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ENDING BALANCE $279 $8 $0 $389,306 $0 $0 $1,063,938 $0 $618 $1,454,149

PRINTED: 11/07/11 12:15

PPAGE:93



 Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 1 
Deercrest - Series 2003

February 2011

ADMINISTRATIVE COST OF BOND & CAPITALIZED SPECIAL
EXPENSE IMPROVEMENT ISSUANCE INTEREST PREPAID FEES INTEREST RESERVE REBATE REDEMPTION

FUND FUND ACCOUNT FUNDFUND ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FUND FUND ACCOUNT TOTAL

BEGINNING BALANCE $279 $8 $0 $389,306 $0 $0 $1,063,938 $0 $618 $1,454,149

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
INVESTMENT AGREEMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER INVESTMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $3 $0 $0 $7 $0 $0 $10
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL SOURCES $0 $0 $0 $3 $0 $0 $7 $0 $0 $10

USES OF FUNDS
INTEREST PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL USES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TRANSFERS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ACCRUED INTEREST PAID $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ENDING BALANCE $279 $8 $0 $389,309 $0 $0 $1,063,945 $0 $618 $1,454,159

PRINTED: 11/07/11 12:15

PPAGE:94



 Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 1 
Deercrest - Series 2003

March 2011

ADMINISTRATIVE COST OF BOND & CAPITALIZED SPECIAL
EXPENSE IMPROVEMENT ISSUANCE INTEREST PREPAID FEES INTEREST RESERVE REBATE REDEMPTION

FUND FUND ACCOUNT FUNDFUND ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FUND FUND ACCOUNT TOTAL

BEGINNING BALANCE $279 $8 $0 $389,309 $0 $0 $1,063,945 $0 $618 $1,454,159

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
INVESTMENT AGREEMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER INVESTMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $3 $0 $0 $7 $0 $0 $9
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL SOURCES $0 $0 $0 $3 $0 $0 $7 $0 $0 $9

USES OF FUNDS
INTEREST PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 ($443,533) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($443,533)
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL USES $0 $0 $0 ($443,533) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($443,533)

TRANSFERS $0 $0 $0 $55,225 $0 $0 ($55,225) $0 $0 $0

ACCRUED INTEREST PAID $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ENDING BALANCE $279 $8 $0 $1,003 $0 $0 $1,008,728 $0 $618 $1,010,635

PRINTED: 11/07/11 12:15

PPAGE:95



 Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 1 
Deercrest - Series 2003

April 2011

ADMINISTRATIVE COST OF BOND & CAPITALIZED SPECIAL
EXPENSE IMPROVEMENT ISSUANCE INTEREST PREPAID FEES INTEREST RESERVE REBATE REDEMPTION

FUND FUND ACCOUNT FUNDFUND ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FUND FUND ACCOUNT TOTAL

BEGINNING BALANCE $279 $8 $0 $1,003 $0 $0 $1,008,728 $0 $618 $1,010,635

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
INVESTMENT AGREEMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER INVESTMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6 $0 $0 $6
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL SOURCES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6 $0 $0 $6

USES OF FUNDS
INTEREST PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL USES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TRANSFERS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ACCRUED INTEREST PAID $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ENDING BALANCE $279 $8 $0 $1,003 $0 $0 $1,008,734 $0 $618 $1,010,641

PRINTED: 11/07/11 12:15

PPAGE:96



 Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 1 
Deercrest - Series 2003

May 2011

ADMINISTRATIVE COST OF BOND & CAPITALIZED SPECIAL
EXPENSE IMPROVEMENT ISSUANCE INTEREST PREPAID FEES INTEREST RESERVE REBATE REDEMPTION

FUND FUND ACCOUNT FUNDFUND ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FUND FUND ACCOUNT TOTAL

BEGINNING BALANCE $279 $8 $0 $1,003 $0 $0 $1,008,734 $0 $618 $1,010,641

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS $0 $0 $0 $2,927 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,927
INVESTMENT AGREEMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER INVESTMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7 $0 $0 $7
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL SOURCES $0 $0 $0 $2,927 $0 $0 $7 $0 $0 $2,934

USES OF FUNDS
INTEREST PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL USES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TRANSFERS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ACCRUED INTEREST PAID $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ENDING BALANCE $279 $8 $0 $3,930 $0 $0 $1,008,740 $0 $618 $1,013,575

PRINTED: 11/07/11 12:15

PPAGE:97



 Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 1 
Deercrest - Series 2003

June 2011

ADMINISTRATIVE COST OF BOND & CAPITALIZED SPECIAL
EXPENSE IMPROVEMENT ISSUANCE INTEREST PREPAID FEES INTEREST RESERVE REBATE REDEMPTION

FUND FUND ACCOUNT FUNDFUND ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FUND FUND ACCOUNT TOTAL

BEGINNING BALANCE $279 $8 $0 $3,930 $0 $0 $1,008,740 $0 $618 $1,013,575

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS $0 $0 $0 $380,097 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $380,097
INVESTMENT AGREEMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER INVESTMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6 $0 $0 $6
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL SOURCES $0 $0 $0 $380,097 $0 $0 $6 $0 $0 $380,103

USES OF FUNDS
INTEREST PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL USES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TRANSFERS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ACCRUED INTEREST PAID $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ENDING BALANCE $279 $8 $0 $384,027 $0 $0 $1,008,746 $0 $618 $1,393,678

PRINTED: 11/07/11 12:15

PPAGE:98



 Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 1 
Deercrest - Series 2003

July 2011

ADMINISTRATIVE COST OF BOND & CAPITALIZED SPECIAL
EXPENSE IMPROVEMENT ISSUANCE INTEREST PREPAID FEES INTEREST RESERVE REBATE REDEMPTION

FUND FUND ACCOUNT FUNDFUND ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FUND FUND ACCOUNT TOTAL

BEGINNING BALANCE $279 $8 $0 $384,027 $0 $0 $1,008,746 $0 $618 $1,393,678

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS $0 $0 $0 $4,879 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,879
INVESTMENT AGREEMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER INVESTMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $1 $0 $0 $5 $0 $0 $6
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL SOURCES $0 $0 $0 $4,880 $0 $0 $5 $0 $0 $4,885

USES OF FUNDS
INTEREST PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL USES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TRANSFERS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ACCRUED INTEREST PAID $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ENDING BALANCE $279 $8 $0 $388,907 $0 $0 $1,008,751 $0 $618 $1,398,563

PRINTED: 11/07/11 12:15

PPAGE:99



 Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 1 
Deercrest - Series 2003

August 2011

ADMINISTRATIVE COST OF BOND & CAPITALIZED SPECIAL
EXPENSE IMPROVEMENT ISSUANCE INTEREST PREPAID FEES INTEREST RESERVE REBATE REDEMPTION

FUND FUND ACCOUNT FUNDFUND ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FUND FUND ACCOUNT TOTAL

BEGINNING BALANCE $279 $8 $0 $388,907 $0 $0 $1,008,751 $0 $618 $1,398,563

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS $0 $0 $0 $9,758 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,758
INVESTMENT AGREEMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER INVESTMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $2 $0 $0 $5 $0 $0 $7
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL SOURCES $0 $0 $0 $9,760 $0 $0 $5 $0 $0 $9,765

USES OF FUNDS
INTEREST PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL USES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TRANSFERS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ACCRUED INTEREST PAID $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ENDING BALANCE $279 $8 $0 $398,667 $0 $0 $1,008,756 $0 $618 $1,408,328

PRINTED: 11/07/11 12:15

PPAGE:100



 Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 1 
Deercrest - Series 2003

September 2011

ADMINISTRATIVE COST OF BOND & CAPITALIZED SPECIAL
EXPENSE IMPROVEMENT ISSUANCE INTEREST PREPAID FEES INTEREST RESERVE REBATE REDEMPTION

FUND FUND ACCOUNT FUNDFUND ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FUND FUND ACCOUNT TOTAL

BEGINNING BALANCE $279 $8 $0 $398,667 $0 $0 $1,008,756 $0 $618 $1,408,328

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS $0 $0 $0 $361,685 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $361,685
INVESTMENT AGREEMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER INVESTMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $2 $0 $0 $5 $0 $0 $7
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL SOURCES $0 $0 $0 $361,687 $0 $0 $5 $0 $0 $361,693

USES OF FUNDS
INTEREST PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 ($341,254) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($341,254)
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL USES $0 $0 $0 ($341,254) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($341,254)

TRANSFERS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ACCRUED INTEREST PAID $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ENDING BALANCE $279 $8 $0 $419,100 $0 $0 $1,008,762 $0 $618 $1,428,767

PRINTED: 11/07/11 12:15

PPAGE:101



 

 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT H 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 1 
 

2011 Amended Special Tax Roll 
  
 

  
 
 
 



Village of Antioch
Special Service Area Number One

(Deercrest/Neuhaven)
Levy Year 2011 / Collection Year 2012

PIN Lot
Land
Use

# of
Units

Original
Amount

Levied

Amount
to be

Abated

2011 Special Tax  Levy

Amount to be
Collected/

LeviedUnitPhase
Exempt Property

02-11-304-031 $0.00PUBLIC 0 $0.00$0.00OS63
02-11-304-057 $0.00PUBLIC 0 $0.00$0.00OS103
02-14-101-001 $0.00PUBLIC 0 $0.00$0.00OS31
02-14-101-080 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00Por TH-11
02-14-101-171 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00Por TH-22
02-14-101-184 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00Por TH-23
02-14-102-005 $0.00PUBLIC 0 $0.00$0.00OS51
02-14-104-013 $0.00PUBLIC 0 $0.00$0.00OS41
02-14-104-039 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00OS21
02-14-104-079 $0.00PUBLIC 0 $0.00$0.00POR OS11
02-14-104-080 $0.00PUBLIC 0 $0.00$0.00POR OS11
02-14-105-001 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00OUTLOT B1
02-14-106-001 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00OUTLOT C1
02-14-107-001 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00OUTLOT A1
02-14-108-001 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00Por OS91
02-14-108-002 $0.00PUBLIC 0 $0.00$0.00OS82
02-14-108-023 $0.00PUBLIC 0 $0.00$0.00Por OS92
02-14-109-018 $0.00PUBLIC 0 $0.00$0.00OS72
02-14-110-001 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00Por TH-23

Subtotal $0.000 $0.00$0.00

Prepaid Property
02-11-304-049 $1,980.83SFD 1 $0.00$1,980.832943
02-11-305-008 $1,980.83SFD 1 $0.00$1,980.832072

Subtotal $0.002 $3,961.66$3,961.66

Single Family Property
02-11-301-001 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832801
02-11-301-002 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832791
02-11-301-003 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832781
02-11-301-004 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832771
02-11-301-005 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832761
02-11-301-006 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832751
02-11-301-007 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832661
02-11-301-008 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832671
02-11-301-009 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832681
02-11-301-010 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832691
02-11-301-011 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832701
02-11-301-012 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832711
02-11-301-013 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832721
02-11-301-014 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832651
02-11-301-015 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832641
02-11-301-016 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832631
02-11-301-017 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832621
02-11-301-018 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832611
02-11-301-019 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832601
02-11-302-001 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832511
02-11-302-002 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832521

Page 1 of 11



Village of Antioch
Special Service Area Number One

(Deercrest/Neuhaven)
Levy Year 2011 / Collection Year 2012

PIN Lot
Land
Use

# of
Units

Original
Amount

Levied

Amount
to be

Abated

2011 Special Tax  Levy

Amount to be
Collected/

LeviedUnitPhase
02-11-302-003 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832531
02-11-303-001 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832001
02-11-303-002 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831991
02-11-303-003 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831981
02-11-303-004 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831971
02-11-303-005 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831961
02-11-303-006 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831951
02-11-303-007 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832011
02-11-303-008 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832021
02-11-303-009 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832031
02-11-303-010 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832041
02-11-303-011 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832051
02-11-303-012 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832061
02-11-304-001 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.83791
02-11-304-002 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.83781
02-11-304-003 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.83771
02-11-304-004 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.83761
02-11-304-005 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.83751
02-11-304-006 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.83741
02-11-304-007 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.83952
02-11-304-008 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.83942
02-11-304-009 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.83932
02-11-304-010 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.83922
02-11-304-011 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.83912
02-11-304-012 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.83902
02-11-304-013 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.83892
02-11-304-014 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.83882
02-11-304-015 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.83872
02-11-304-016 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.83862
02-11-304-017 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.83852
02-11-304-018 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.83842
02-11-304-019 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.83832
02-11-304-020 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.83822
02-11-304-021 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.83812
02-11-304-022 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.83802
02-11-304-023 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832933
02-11-304-024 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832923
02-11-304-025 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832913
02-11-304-026 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832903
02-11-304-027 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832893
02-11-304-028 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832883
02-11-304-029 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832873
02-11-304-030 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832863
02-11-304-032 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831123
02-11-304-033 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831113
02-11-304-034 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831103
02-11-304-035 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831093
02-11-304-036 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831083
02-11-304-037 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831073

Page 2 of 11



Village of Antioch
Special Service Area Number One

(Deercrest/Neuhaven)
Levy Year 2011 / Collection Year 2012

PIN Lot
Land
Use

# of
Units

Original
Amount

Levied

Amount
to be

Abated

2011 Special Tax  Levy

Amount to be
Collected/

LeviedUnitPhase
02-11-304-038 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831063
02-11-304-039 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831053
02-11-304-040 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831043
02-11-304-041 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831033
02-11-304-042 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831023
02-11-304-043 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831013
02-11-304-044 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831003
02-11-304-045 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.83993
02-11-304-046 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.83983
02-11-304-047 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.83973
02-11-304-048 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.83963
02-11-304-050 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832953
02-11-304-051 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832963
02-11-304-052 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832973
02-11-304-053 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832983
02-11-304-054 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832993
02-11-304-055 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833003
02-11-304-056 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833013
02-11-304-058 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833073
02-11-304-059 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833063
02-11-304-060 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833053
02-11-304-061 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833043
02-11-304-062 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833033
02-11-304-063 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833023
02-11-304-064 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833083
02-11-304-065 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833093
02-11-304-066 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833103
02-11-304-067 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833113
02-11-304-068 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833123
02-11-304-069 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832843
02-11-304-070 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832853
02-11-304-071 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832833
02-11-304-072 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832823
02-11-304-073 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832813
02-11-304-074 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831133
02-11-304-075 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831143
02-11-304-076 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831153
02-11-304-077 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831163
02-11-304-078 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831173
02-11-304-079 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831183
02-11-304-080 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831193
02-11-305-001 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832142
02-11-305-002 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832132
02-11-305-003 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832122
02-11-305-004 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832112
02-11-305-005 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832102
02-11-305-006 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832092
02-11-305-007 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832082
02-11-305-009 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832152

Page 3 of 11



Village of Antioch
Special Service Area Number One

(Deercrest/Neuhaven)
Levy Year 2011 / Collection Year 2012

PIN Lot
Land
Use

# of
Units

Original
Amount

Levied

Amount
to be

Abated

2011 Special Tax  Levy

Amount to be
Collected/

LeviedUnitPhase
02-11-305-010 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832162
02-11-305-011 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832172
02-11-305-012 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832182
02-11-305-013 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832192
02-11-305-014 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832202
02-11-305-015 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832212
02-11-305-016 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.832222
02-11-306-001 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831802
02-11-306-002 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831812
02-11-306-003 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831822
02-11-306-004 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831832
02-11-306-005 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831842
02-11-306-006 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831683
02-11-306-007 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831673
02-11-306-008 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831663
02-11-306-009 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831653
02-11-306-010 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831643
02-11-306-011 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831633
02-11-306-012 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831623
02-11-306-013 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831613
02-11-306-014 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831603
02-11-306-015 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831593
02-11-306-016 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831583
02-11-306-017 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831573
02-11-306-018 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831563
02-11-306-019 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831693
02-11-306-020 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831703
02-11-306-021 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831713
02-11-306-022 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831723
02-11-306-023 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831733
02-11-306-024 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831743
02-11-306-025 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831753
02-11-306-026 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831763
02-11-306-027 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831773
02-11-306-028 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831783
02-11-306-029 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831793
02-11-307-001 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831443
02-11-307-002 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831433
02-11-307-003 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831423
02-11-307-004 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831413
02-11-307-005 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831403
02-11-307-006 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831393
02-11-307-007 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831383
02-11-307-008 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831373
02-11-307-009 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831363
02-11-307-010 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831353
02-11-307-011 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831453
02-11-307-012 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831463
02-11-307-013 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831473

Page 4 of 11



Village of Antioch
Special Service Area Number One

(Deercrest/Neuhaven)
Levy Year 2011 / Collection Year 2012

PIN Lot
Land
Use

# of
Units

Original
Amount

Levied

Amount
to be

Abated

2011 Special Tax  Levy

Amount to be
Collected/

LeviedUnitPhase
02-11-307-014 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831483
02-11-307-015 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831493
02-11-307-016 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831503
02-11-307-017 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831513
02-11-307-018 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831523
02-11-307-019 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831533
02-11-307-020 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831543
02-11-307-021 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831553
02-11-308-001 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831263
02-11-308-002 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831253
02-11-308-003 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831243
02-11-308-004 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831233
02-11-308-005 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831223
02-11-308-006 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831213
02-11-308-007 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831203
02-11-308-008 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831273
02-11-308-009 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831283
02-11-308-010 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831293
02-11-308-011 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831303
02-11-308-012 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831313
02-11-308-013 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831323
02-11-308-014 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831333
02-11-308-015 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.831343
02-14-101-002 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842741
02-14-101-003 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842731
02-14-101-004 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842581
02-14-101-005 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842591
02-14-101-006 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842431
02-14-101-007 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842421
02-14-101-008 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842411
02-14-101-009 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842401
02-14-101-010 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842391
02-14-101-011 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842381
02-14-101-012 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842371
02-14-101-013 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842361
02-14-101-014 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842321
02-14-101-015 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842331
02-14-101-016 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842341
02-14-101-017 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842351
02-14-101-018 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842311
02-14-101-019 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842301
02-14-101-020 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842291
02-14-101-021 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842251
02-14-101-022 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842241
02-14-101-023 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842231
02-14-101-024 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842261
02-14-101-025 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842271
02-14-101-026 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842281
02-14-102-001 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842541

Page 5 of 11



Village of Antioch
Special Service Area Number One

(Deercrest/Neuhaven)
Levy Year 2011 / Collection Year 2012

PIN Lot
Land
Use

# of
Units

Original
Amount

Levied

Amount
to be

Abated

2011 Special Tax  Levy

Amount to be
Collected/

LeviedUnitPhase
02-14-102-002 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842551
02-14-102-003 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842561
02-14-102-004 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842571
02-14-102-006 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842501
02-14-102-007 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842491
02-14-102-008 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842481
02-14-102-009 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842471
02-14-102-010 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842461
02-14-102-011 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842451
02-14-102-012 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.842441
02-14-103-001 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.841851
02-14-103-002 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.841861
02-14-103-003 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.841871
02-14-103-004 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.841881
02-14-103-005 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.841891
02-14-103-006 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.841901
02-14-103-007 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.841911
02-14-103-008 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.841921
02-14-103-009 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.841931
02-14-103-010 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.841941
02-14-104-001 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84731
02-14-104-002 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84721
02-14-104-003 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84711
02-14-104-004 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84701
02-14-104-005 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84691
02-14-104-006 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84681
02-14-104-007 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84671
02-14-104-008 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84661
02-14-104-009 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84621
02-14-104-010 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84631
02-14-104-011 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84641
02-14-104-012 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84651
02-14-104-014 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84561
02-14-104-015 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84551
02-14-104-016 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84541
02-14-104-017 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84571
02-14-104-018 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84581
02-14-104-019 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84591
02-14-104-020 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84601
02-14-104-021 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84611
02-14-104-022 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84371
02-14-104-023 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84381
02-14-104-024 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84391
02-14-104-025 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84401
02-14-104-026 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84411
02-14-104-027 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84421
02-14-104-028 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84431
02-14-104-029 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84531
02-14-104-030 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84521

Page 6 of 11



Village of Antioch
Special Service Area Number One

(Deercrest/Neuhaven)
Levy Year 2011 / Collection Year 2012

PIN Lot
Land
Use

# of
Units

Original
Amount

Levied

Amount
to be

Abated

2011 Special Tax  Levy

Amount to be
Collected/

LeviedUnitPhase
02-14-104-031 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84511
02-14-104-032 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84501
02-14-104-033 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84491
02-14-104-034 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84481
02-14-104-035 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84471
02-14-104-036 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84461
02-14-104-037 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84451
02-14-104-038 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84441
02-14-104-040 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84321
02-14-104-041 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84331
02-14-104-042 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84341
02-14-104-043 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84351
02-14-104-044 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84361
02-14-104-045 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84271
02-14-104-046 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84281
02-14-104-047 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84291
02-14-104-048 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84301
02-14-104-049 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84311
02-14-104-051 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84261
02-14-104-052 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84251
02-14-104-053 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84241
02-14-104-054 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84231
02-14-104-055 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84221
02-14-104-056 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84211
02-14-104-057 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84201
02-14-104-058 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84191
02-14-104-059 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84181
02-14-104-060 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84171
02-14-104-061 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84161
02-14-104-062 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84151
02-14-104-063 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84141
02-14-104-065 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.8421
02-14-104-066 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.8431
02-14-104-067 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.8441
02-14-104-068 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.8451
02-14-104-069 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.8461
02-14-104-070 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.8471
02-14-104-071 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.8481
02-14-104-072 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.8491
02-14-104-073 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84101
02-14-104-074 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84111
02-14-104-075 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84121
02-14-104-076 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.84131
02-14-104-078 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.84$1,980.8411
02-14-108-003 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833632
02-14-108-004 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833622
02-14-108-005 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833612
02-14-108-006 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833602
02-14-108-007 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833592

Page 7 of 11



Village of Antioch
Special Service Area Number One

(Deercrest/Neuhaven)
Levy Year 2011 / Collection Year 2012

PIN Lot
Land
Use

# of
Units

Original
Amount

Levied

Amount
to be

Abated

2011 Special Tax  Levy

Amount to be
Collected/

LeviedUnitPhase
02-14-108-008 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833582
02-14-108-009 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833572
02-14-108-010 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833562
02-14-108-011 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833552
02-14-108-012 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833542
02-14-108-013 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833532
02-14-108-014 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833522
02-14-108-015 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833642
02-14-108-016 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833652
02-14-108-017 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833662
02-14-108-018 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833672
02-14-108-019 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833682
02-14-108-020 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833692
02-14-108-021 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833702
02-14-108-022 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833712
02-14-108-024 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833722
02-14-108-025 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833732
02-14-108-026 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833742
02-14-108-027 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833792
02-14-108-028 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833782
02-14-108-029 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833772
02-14-108-030 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833762
02-14-108-031 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833752
02-14-108-032 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833363
02-14-108-033 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833353
02-14-108-034 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833343
02-14-108-035 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833333
02-14-108-036 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833323
02-14-108-037 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833313
02-14-108-038 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833303
02-14-108-039 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833373
02-14-108-040 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833383
02-14-108-041 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833393
02-14-108-042 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833403
02-14-108-043 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833413
02-14-108-044 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833423
02-14-108-045 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833473
02-14-108-046 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833483
02-14-108-047 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833493
02-14-108-048 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833503
02-14-108-049 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833513
02-14-108-050 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833463
02-14-108-051 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833453
02-14-108-052 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833433
02-14-108-053 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833443
02-14-109-001 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833142
02-14-109-002 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833132
02-14-109-003 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833152
02-14-109-004 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833162

Page 8 of 11



Village of Antioch
Special Service Area Number One

(Deercrest/Neuhaven)
Levy Year 2011 / Collection Year 2012

PIN Lot
Land
Use

# of
Units

Original
Amount

Levied

Amount
to be

Abated

2011 Special Tax  Levy

Amount to be
Collected/

LeviedUnitPhase
02-14-109-005 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833172
02-14-109-006 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833182
02-14-109-007 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833212
02-14-109-008 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833202
02-14-109-009 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833192
02-14-109-010 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833222
02-14-109-011 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833232
02-14-109-012 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833242
02-14-109-013 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833252
02-14-109-014 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833262
02-14-109-015 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833272
02-14-109-016 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833282
02-14-109-017 $0.00SFD 1 $1,980.83$1,980.833292

Subtotal $746,774.10377 $0.00$746,774.10

Townhome Property
02-14-101-081 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174621
02-14-101-082 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174631
02-14-101-083 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174641
02-14-101-084 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174651
02-14-101-085 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174661
02-14-101-086 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174671
02-14-101-087 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174681
02-14-101-088 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174691
02-14-101-089 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174701
02-14-101-090 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174711
02-14-101-091 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174721
02-14-101-092 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174731
02-14-101-093 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174741
02-14-101-094 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174751
02-14-101-095 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174761
02-14-101-096 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174771
02-14-101-097 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174781
02-14-101-098 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164791
02-14-101-099 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164801
02-14-101-100 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164811
02-14-101-101 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164841
02-14-101-102 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164851
02-14-101-103 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164831
02-14-101-104 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164821
02-14-101-105 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164861
02-14-101-106 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164871
02-14-101-107 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164881
02-14-101-108 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164891
02-14-101-109 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164901
02-14-101-110 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164911
02-14-101-111 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164921
02-14-101-112 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164931
02-14-101-113 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164941

Page 9 of 11



Village of Antioch
Special Service Area Number One

(Deercrest/Neuhaven)
Levy Year 2011 / Collection Year 2012

PIN Lot
Land
Use

# of
Units

Original
Amount

Levied

Amount
to be

Abated

2011 Special Tax  Levy

Amount to be
Collected/

LeviedUnitPhase
02-14-101-114 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164951
02-14-101-115 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174611
02-14-101-116 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174601
02-14-101-117 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174591
02-14-101-118 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174581
02-14-101-119 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174501
02-14-101-120 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174511
02-14-101-121 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174521
02-14-101-122 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174531
02-14-101-123 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174541
02-14-101-124 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174551
02-14-101-125 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174561
02-14-101-126 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174571
02-14-101-127 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174491
02-14-101-128 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174481
02-14-101-129 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174471
02-14-101-130 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174461
02-14-101-131 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174451
02-14-101-132 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.17$1,383.174441
02-14-101-133 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.163922
02-14-101-134 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.163932
02-14-101-135 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.163942
02-14-101-136 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.163952
02-14-101-137 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.163962
02-14-101-138 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.163972
02-14-101-139 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.163982
02-14-101-140 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.163992
02-14-101-141 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164002
02-14-101-142 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164012
02-14-101-143 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164022
02-14-101-144 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164032
02-14-101-145 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164042
02-14-101-146 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164052
02-14-101-147 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164132
02-14-101-148 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164122
02-14-101-149 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164142
02-14-101-150 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164152
02-14-101-151 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164162
02-14-101-152 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164172
02-14-101-153 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164182
02-14-101-154 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164192
02-14-101-155 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164202
02-14-101-156 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164212
02-14-101-157 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164222
02-14-101-158 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164232
02-14-101-159 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164112
02-14-101-160 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164102
02-14-101-161 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164092
02-14-101-162 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164082

Page 10 of 11



Village of Antioch
Special Service Area Number One

(Deercrest/Neuhaven)
Levy Year 2011 / Collection Year 2012

PIN Lot
Land
Use

# of
Units

Original
Amount

Levied

Amount
to be

Abated

2011 Special Tax  Levy

Amount to be
Collected/

LeviedUnitPhase
02-14-101-163 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164072
02-14-101-164 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164062
02-14-101-165 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164292
02-14-101-166 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164282
02-14-101-167 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164272
02-14-101-168 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164262
02-14-101-169 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164252
02-14-101-170 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164242
02-14-101-172 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.163803
02-14-101-173 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.163813
02-14-101-174 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.163823
02-14-101-175 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.163833
02-14-101-176 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.163843
02-14-101-177 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.163853
02-14-101-178 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.163863
02-14-101-179 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.163873
02-14-101-180 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.163883
02-14-101-181 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.163893
02-14-101-182 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.163903
02-14-101-183 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.163913
02-14-110-002 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164433
02-14-110-003 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164423
02-14-110-004 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164413
02-14-110-005 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164403
02-14-110-006 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164393
02-14-110-007 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164383
02-14-110-008 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164373
02-14-110-009 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164363
02-14-110-010 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164353
02-14-110-011 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164343
02-14-110-012 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164333
02-14-110-013 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164323
02-14-110-014 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164313
02-14-110-015 $0.00THM 1 $1,383.16$1,383.164303

Subtotal $160,446.91116 $0.00$160,446.91

GRAND TOTALS

(taxes levied)(# of units) (maximum taxes) (taxes abated)

$907,221.01495 $3,961.66$911,182.67

11/30/11
K:\CLIENTS2\Antioch\District Administration\SSA 1\2011\Database\ssa1 tax 

ll 11

Page 11 of 11



 Request For Board Action 
 

 

 

REFERRED TO BOARD   December 5, 2011 AGENDA ITEM NO: 11 

 
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT:  Finance Department  
 

SUBJECT:  Consideration of an Ordinance for Special Service Area number two Special Tax Bonds, 
series 2003 (Clublands project) approving Administrative Report and amended Special Tax Roll for Levy 
Year 2011 and abating Special Service Area Taxes. 

 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER: 

David Taussig & Associates, the Consultant of the Village, has prepared an Administrative Report Levy 
for Year 2011, and has determined that the Special Tax Requirement for the SSA No. 2 Bonds for Levy 
Year 2011 is $936,417.02. The Maximum Parcel Special Taxes that may be levied on taxable property for 
Levy Year 2011 as calculated by the Consultant pursuant to the Administrative Report and taking into 
account prepayments is $1,876,088.79. 

 
Of the $1,897,834.80 of Special Taxes levied for calendar year 2011 pursuant to Section 6 of the 
Clublands Bond Ordinance $961,417.78 of such Special Taxes is hereby abated resulting in a 2011 
calendar year levy of $936,417.02. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   None 
 

 

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: 
 

1. Ordinance 
2. Administrative Report and special tax roll 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  

 

MOVE TO ACCEPT AS PRESENTED:  An Ordinance for Special Service Area number two  
approving Administrative Report and amended Special Tax Roll for Levy Year 2011 and abating Special 
Service Area Taxes. 



 

4823-5828-3534.1 

Ordinance No. ______ 

 

ORDINANCE FOR VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH, ILLINOIS 

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NUMBER TWO 

APPROVING ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT AND  

AMENDED SPECIAL TAX ROLL FOR LEVY YEAR 2011 AND 

ABATING SPECIAL SERVICE AREA TAXES 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH, LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. It is found and declared by the President and Board of Trustees of the 

Village of Antioch, Lake County, Illinois (the “Village”), as follows: 

(a) The President and Board of Trustees of the Village adopted Ordinance No. 

03-05-20 on May 5, 2003, as supplemented by a Determination dated May 29, 2003 (the 

“Clublands Bond Ordinance”) which: (i) provided for the issuance of $13,850,000 of Special 

Service Area Number Two Special Tax Bonds, Series 2003 (Clublands Project) (the “SSA No. 2 

Bonds”) of the Village of Antioch for the purpose of paying the costs of certain improvements 

benefiting the Village’s Special Service Area Number Two (the “Special Service Area”); and 

(ii) provided for the levy of Special Taxes upon all taxable property within the Special Service 

Area sufficient to pay the principal of the SSA No. 2 Bonds for each year at maturity or 

mandatory sinking fund redemption dates and to pay interest and Administrative Expenses of the 

Special Service Area for each such year and to fund any required reserve funds.  The Clublands 

Bond Ordinance also directs the Village to calculate or to cause the Consultant approved by the 

Village to calculate the Special Tax Requirement; to amend the Special Tax Roll; to adopt an 

ordinance approving the amount of the current calendar year’s Special Tax Requirement (as 

defined in the Clublands Bond Ordinance) and abate the taxes levied pursuant to the Clublands 

Bond Ordinance to the extent the taxes levied exceed the Special Tax Requirement as calculated 

pursuant to the Village of Antioch Special Service Area Number Two (Clublands) Special Tax 



 

2 
4823-5828-3534.1 

Roll and Report dated April 29, 2003 (the “Special Tax Report”) prepared by David Taussig & 

Associates, Inc. (the “Consultant”). 

(b) Pursuant to the Special Tax Report, the Consultant of the Village has 

prepared a report for Levy Year 2011 dated November 30, 2011 (the “Administrative Report”) 

which includes as Exhibit H thereto the 2011 Amended Special Tax Roll (the “Amended Special 

Tax Roll”) a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, and has determined that the Special 

Tax Requirement for the SSA No. 2 Bonds for Levy Year 2011 is $936,417.02.  The Maximum 

Parcel Special Taxes that may be levied on taxable property for Levy Year 2011 as calculated by 

the Consultant pursuant to the Administrative Report and taking into account prepayments is 

$1,876,088.79. 

Section 2. Of the $1,897,834.80 of Special Taxes levied for calendar year 2011 

pursuant to Section 6 of the Clublands Bond Ordinance $961,417.78 of such Special Taxes is 

hereby abated resulting in a 2011 calendar year levy of $936,417.02. 

Section 3. It is the duty of the County Clerk of Lake County to abate those taxes for 

levy year 2011 as provided in Section 2 of this Ordinance and as provided in the Amended 

Special Tax Roll. 

Section 4. The President and Board of Trustees of the Village hereby approve the 

Administrative Report and the Amended Special Tax Roll for Levy Year 2011 for the Special 

Service Area prepared by the Consultant as set forth in Exhibit A. 

Section 5. All ordinances, resolutions and orders or parts of ordinances, resolutions 

and orders in conflict with this ordinance are repealed to the extent of such conflict.  The Village 

Clerk shall cause this Ordinance to be published in pamphlet form.  This Ordinance shall be in 

full force and effect after passage and publication as provided by law. 



 

3 
4823-5828-3534.1 

Section 6. A copy of this Ordinance together with the Amended Special Tax Roll 

shall be filed with the County Clerk of Lake County and recorded with the Recorder of Deeds of 

Lake County.  The County Clerk of Lake County is hereby directed to extend the Special Tax in 

accordance with the Amended Special Tax Roll. 

Section 7. Terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in 

the Clublands Bond Ordinance. 



 

4 
4823-5828-3534.1 

PASSED by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village this December __, 2011. 

Voting Aye (list names):             

Voting Nay (list names):             

Abstaining (list names):             

Absent (list names):              

       
  Village Clerk 

SIGNED by the President this December ___, 2011. 

       
  President 

ATTEST: 

      
 Village Clerk 

Published in pamphlet form December ___, 2011. 
 



 

4823-5828-3534.1 

EXHIBIT A 

 

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH 

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NUMBER TWO 

 

Administrative Report Levy Year 2011 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH 
 

 
 

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 2 
(CLUBLANDS PROJECT) 

 
ADMINISTRATION REPORT 

LEVY YEAR 2011 
 
 

NOVEMBER 30, 2011 
 
 
 
 

 

    
 

 ASSOCIATES, INC. 

Public Finance 
Facilities Planning 
Urban Economics 

Newport Beach 
Riverside 

San Francisco 

DAVID 

TAUSSIG 
&  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 2 

 

2011 ADMINISTRATION REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PREPARED FOR 

 
VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH 

874 Main Street 
Antioch, IL 60002 

 
 

PREPARED BY 
 

DAVID TAUSSIG & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 

Corporate Office 
5000 Birch Street, Suite 6000 

Newport Beach, California  92660 
 

Division Offices 
Riverside, California 

San Francisco, California 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

i 

Table of Contents 
 
 
 
Section Page 
 

INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................................1 
AUTHORIZED SPECIAL SERVICES ..........................................................................................1 
BONDED INDEBTEDNESS .......................................................................................................1 
SPECIAL TAXES .....................................................................................................................2 

I.  SPECIAL TAX REQUIREMENT ..............................................................................................3 

II.  ACCOUNT ACTIVITY SUMMARY..........................................................................................4 

III.  MAXIMUM, ABATED, AND EXTENDED SPECIAL TAXES ......................................................6 

IV.  PRIOR YEAR SPECIAL TAX COLLECTIONS .......................................................................11 
2010 SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS ..............................................................................................11 
TAX SALES AND FORECLOSURES ........................................................................................11 

V.  DEVELOPMENT STATUS .....................................................................................................12 
EQUALIZED ASSESSED VALUE ............................................................................................12 

VI.  OUTSTANDING BONDS .......................................................................................................13 
SPECIAL TAX PREPAYMENTS ..............................................................................................13 
BOND  REDEMPTIONS FROM SPECIAL TAX PREPAYMENTS ..................................................13 

VII.  EQUALIZED ASSESSED VALUE AND VALUE TO LIEN RATIO ............................................14 

VIII.  AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAX RATES ..............................................................................15 
 
 

EXHIBIT A AERIAL EXHIBIT OF SSA BOUNDARIES 

EXHIBIT B DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE 

EXHIBIT C SPECIAL TAX ROLL AND REPORT  

EXHIBIT D FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS 

EXHIBIT E APPLICATION OF SPECIAL TAX 

EXHIBIT F APPLICATION OF EARNINGS 

EXHIBIT G SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

EXHIBIT H 2011 AMENDED SPECIAL TAX ROLL 



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 2 Page 1 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

Introduction 
 
This report calculates the 2011 special taxes required to pay annual debt service on the Village of 
Antioch (the "Village") Special Service Area Number Two ("SSA No. 2") Special Tax Bonds, 
Series 2003 (Clublands Project) (the "Series 2003 Bonds") and administrative expenses and 
apportions the special taxes to each taxable parcel within SSA No. 2.  Pursuant to the Special 
Service Area Act (the "Act"), the Village Board is the governing body of SSA No. 2.  The 
Village Board must annually, prior to the last Tuesday of December, approve by ordinance the 
special taxes to be collected, abate the Maximum Parcel Special Taxes in excess of the special 
taxes to be collected, and direct the County Clerk of Lake County to extend the special taxes for 
collection.  The special taxes will be billed on the tax bill for ad valorem property taxes.   
 
SSA No. 2 was established by Ordinance No. 02-09-39 adopted by the Village Board on 
September 27, 2002, as amended by Ordinance No. 03-05-18 adopted by the Village Board on 
May 5, 2003 (the "Establishing Ordinance").  An aerial map of SSA No. 2 is attached hereto as 
Exhibit A.  The Establishing Ordinance authorized SSA No. 2 to provide special services, issue 
bonds, and levy a special tax to repay the bonds.   
 
Authorized Special Services  
 
The authorized special services include: 
 

• Certain engineering; 
• Soil testing and appurtenant work; 
• Mass grading and demolition; 
• Storm water management facilities; 
• Storm drainage systems and storm sewers; 
• Site clearing and tree removal; 
• Public water facilities; 
• Sanitary sewer facilities;  
• Erosion control measures; 
• Roads, streets, curbs, gutters, street lighting, traffic controls, equestrian paths and 

related street improvements; 
• Equipment and materials necessary for the maintenance thereof, landscaping, 

wetland mitigation and tree installation; 
• Costs for land and easement acquisitions relating to any of the foregoing 

improvements; and 
• Required tap-on and related fees for water or sanitary sewer services and other 

eligible costs.   
 
Bonded Indebtedness  
 
Ordinance No. 03-05-20 (the "Bond Ordinance"), adopted on May 5, 2003, approved the form of 
a trust indenture and preliminary limited offering memorandum and provided for the issuance of 
not more than $15,000,000 in Series 2003 Bonds.  The Series 2003 Bonds were issued in the 
amount of $13,850,000 in June 2003.  The current debt service schedule is attached hereto as 
Exhibit B and a brief summary of any optional redemption of bonds is contained in Section VI 
herein. 



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 2 Page 2 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

 
Special Taxes  
 
The Establishing Ordinance incorporates the Village of Antioch Special Service Area Number 
Two Special Tax Roll and Report (the "Special Tax Roll and Report").  The Special Tax Roll 
and Report sets forth the Maximum Parcel Special Taxes which have been levied for the 
payment of principal of and interest on the Series 2003 Bonds and the administration of SSA No. 
2 and is attached hereto as Exhibit C.  A table of the Maximum Parcel Special Taxes is included 
in Section III herein. 
 
 
 



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 2 Page 3 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

I. Special Tax Requirement 
 
 
The 2011 Special Tax Requirement for SSA No. 2 is equal to $936,417.02.  As shown in Table 1 
below, the 2011 Special Tax Requirement is equal to the sum of the Series 2003 Bonds debt 
service for the twelve months ending March 1, 2013, estimated administrative expenses for such 
period, and the contingency for estimated delinquent special taxes and less the estimated fund 
balances and excess reserve funds as of March 1, 2012.   
 

TABLE 1 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 2 

2011 SPECIAL TAX REQUIREMENT 
SOURCES OF FUNDS     $277,015.09 
ESTIMATED BALANCES AS OF MARCH  1, 2012   $277,015.09   
 BOND AND INTEREST FUND $277,015.09     
 RESERVE FUND $0.00     
 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE FUND  $0.00     

USES OF FUNDS      $1,213,432.11 
DEBT SERVICE   $1,042,285.00   
 INTEREST (9/1/2012) $433,142.50     
 INTEREST (3/1/2013) $433,142.50     
 PRINCIPAL (3/1/2013) $176,000.00     

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES   $143,057.20   
 VILLAGE FEES  $1,500.00     
 TRUSTEE FEES  $6,000.00     
 ARBITRAGE REBATE FEES  $2,250.00     
 SSA CONSULTANT $10,302.00     
 LEGAL FEES – BOND COUNSEL $10,000.00     
 LEGAL FEES – BANKRUPTCY COUNSEL $100,000.00     
 LEGAL FEES – TRUSTEE  $0.00     
 CONTINGENCY  $13,005.20     

DELINQUENCY CONTINGENCY   $28,089.91   
 DELINQUENT SPECIAL TAXES $28,089.91     

2011 SPECIAL TAX REQUIREMENT     $936,417.02 
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)     $0.00 



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 2 Page 4 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

II. Account Activity Summary 
 
The Trust Indenture for the Series 2003 Bonds (the "2003 Indenture") establishes five funds and 
three accounts.  The five funds are the Bond and Interest Fund, Reserve Fund, Improvement 
Fund, Administrative Expense Fund, and Rebate Fund.  Within the Bond and Interest Fund are 
the Capitalized Interest Account and Special Redemption Account.  Within the Improvement 
Fund is the Cost of Issuance Account.  A diagram of the funds and accounts is attached hereto as 
Exhibit D.  
 
Money held in any of the funds and accounts can be invested at the direction of the Village and 
in conformance with the limitations set forth in the 2003 Indenture.  Investment interest earnings, 
if any, will generally be applied to the fund or account for which the investment is made.  
Diagrams of the application of special taxes and earnings are attached hereto as Exhibits E and F, 
respectively.   
 
A summary of account activity for the twelve months ending September 30, 2011 is shown in 
Table 2 below.  A monthly summary of account activity is attached as Exhibit G. 

 
TABLE 2 

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 2 
TRANSACTION SUMMARY 

 
BOND AND 

INTEREST FUND RESERVE FUND 
ADMINISTRATIVE 
EXPENSE FUND 

BEGINNING BALANCES  
(AS OF OCTOBER 1, 2010) $895,939.12 $1,372,009.23 $212,774.00 

EARNINGS $50.36 $100.96 $13.01 

SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS       

 PRIOR YEARS $16,992.12 $0.00 $0.00 

 CURRENT YEAR $542,539.83 $0.00 $0.00 

ACCOUNT TRANSFERS       

 TRANSFERS TO ADMINISTRATIVE 
 EXPENSE FUND $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

 ALL OTHER TRANSFERS  $103.10 ($103.10) $0.00 

DEBT SERVICE       

 INTEREST AND PRINCIPAL 
 (3/1/2011) ($570,351.25) $0.00 $0.00 

 INTEREST (9/1/2011) ($438,111.25) $0.00 $0.00 

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES $0.00 $0.00 ($86,239.12) 

MISCELLANEOUS USES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

ENDING BALANCES  
(AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2011) $447,162.03 $1,372,007.09 $126,547.89 

 



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 2 Page 5 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

The calculation of the estimated fund balances and excess reserve funds as of March 1, 2012 is 
shown in Table 3 below. 
 

TABLE 3 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 2 

ESTIMATED BOND YEAR-END FUND BALANCES  

 
BOND AND 

INTEREST FUND RESERVE FUND 
ADMINISTRATIVE 
EXPENSE FUND 

CURRENT BALANCES (AS OF 9/30/2011) $447,162.03 $1,372,007.09 $126,547.89 

ESTIMATED SOURCES OF FUNDS 
 (10/1/2011 – 3/1/2012)       

 EARNINGS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

 SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS  $522,167.77 $0.00 $0.00 

ESTIMATED ACCOUNT TRANSFERS 
 (10/1/2011 – 3/1/2012)       

 UNPAID ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE PREFUNDING ($111,205.35) $0.00 $111,205.35 

 TRANSFER OF EARNINGS $7.09 ($7.09) $0.00 

ESTIMATED USES OF FUNDS  
 (10/1/2011 – 3/1/2012) 

      

 DEBT SERVICE       

  INTEREST (3/1/2012) ($438,111.25) $0.00 $0.00 

  PRINCIPAL (3/1/2012) ($150,000.00) $0.00 $0.00 

 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES $0.00 $0.00 ($87,701.24) 

REMAINING BALANCE THROUGH 3/1/2012 $270,020.29 $1,372,000.00 $150,052.00 

 LESS: RESERVE REQUIREMENT1 $0.00 $1,372,000.00 $0.00 

 LESS: ADMIN EXPENSE PREFUNDING $0.00 $0.00 $150,052.00 

ESTIMATED BOND YEAR-END BALANCES
 (AS OF 3/1/2012)  $270,020.29 $0.00 $0.00 

 

                     
1 Reserve requirement after September 1, 2010 bond call. 



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 2 Page 6 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

III. Maximum, Abated, and Extended Special Taxes  
 
Pursuant to the Special Tax Roll and Report, the 2011 Maximum Parcel Special Taxes equal 
$1,897,834.80.  The required abatement for prepayments is $21,746.01 resulting in adjusted 
2011 Maximum Parcel Special Taxes of $1,876,088.79.  Subtracting the 2011 Special Tax 
Requirement of $936,417.02 from $1,876,088.79 results in an abatement of $939,671.77 for 
parcels of property subject to the special tax and a total abatement of $961,417.78.  In 
accordance with the Special Tax Roll and Report the Maximum Parcel Special Tax applicable to 
each Parcel in SSA No. 2 Tax is abated in the following three steps: 
 

First: Up to nine percent (9.00%) of the Maximum Parcel Special Tax is abated on all 
parcels of property subject to the special tax; 
 
Second: Up to the remaining ninety-one percent (91.00%) of the Maximum Parcel 
Special Tax is abated on all parcels of "Undeveloped Property1;" and 
 
Third: Up to the remaining ninety-one percent (91.00%) of the Maximum Parcel Special 
Tax is abated on all parcels of "Developed Property2."  

  
The aggregate amounts to be abated pursuant to each step of the abatement methodology set 
forth in the Special Tax Roll and Report are shown in Tables 4 through 8 below. 
 

TABLE 4 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 2 

ABATEMENT FOR PREPAYMENTS 

SPECIAL TAX CLASSIFICATION 

MAXIMUM 
PARCEL 

SPECIAL TAXES 

ABATEMENT 
FOR 

PREPAYMENTS 

REMAINING 
MAXIMUM 

PARCEL 
SPECIAL TAXES 

SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING UNITS    

 DEVELOPED PROPERTY $1,190,101.02 $0.00 $1,190,101.02

 UNDEVELOPED PROPERTY $685,987.77 $0.00 $685,987.77

PREPAID PROPERTY      

 OPTIONAL PREPAYMENT $11,861.46 $11,861.46 $0.00

 MANDATORY PREPAYMENT – PAID $3,953.82 $3,953.82 $0.00

 MANDATORY PREPAYMENT – UNPAID $5,930.73 $5,930.73 $0.00

TOTAL $1,897,834.80 $21,746.01 $1,876,088.79

 

                     
1 The Rate and Method of Levying Special Taxes which is attached as Exhibit A to the SSA Report defines Undeveloped 

Property as all property that is not exempt from the special tax and is not classified as Developed Property. 
2 Prior to the issuance of Second Series Bonds and the expenditure of capitalized interest attributable thereto, the Rate and 

Method of Levying Special Taxes defines Developed Property as all Single-family Property located in a Final Plat for which the 
initial building permit was issued as of September 30 preceding the calendar year in which the Special Tax is being collected. 



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 2 Page 7 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

TABLE 5 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 2 

STEP 1 ABATEMENT 

SPECIAL TAX CLASSIFICATION 

MAXIMUM 
PARCEL 

SPECIAL TAXES 
AFTER 

ABATEMENT 
FOR 

PREPAYMENTS 
STEP 1 

ABATEMENT  

REMAINING 
MAXIMUM 

PARCEL 
SPECIAL TAXES 

AFTER STEP 1 
ABATEMENT 

SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING UNITS    

 DEVELOPED PROPERTY $1,190,101.02 $253,684.00 $936,417.02

 UNDEVELOPED PROPERTY $685,987.77 $61,738.90 $624,248.87

PREPAID PROPERTY      

 OPTIONAL PREPAYMENT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

 MANDATORY PREPAYMENT – PAID $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

 MANDATORY PREPAYMENT – UNPAID $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

TOTAL $1,876,088.79 $315,422.90 $1,560,665.89

 
TABLE 6 

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 2 
STEP 2 ABATEMENT 

SPECIAL TAX CLASSIFICATION 

REMAINING 
MAXIMUM 

PARCEL 
SPECIAL TAXES 

AFTER STEP 1 
ABATEMENT 

STEP 2 
ABATEMENT 

REMAINING 
MAXIMUM 

PARCEL 
SPECIAL TAXES 

AFTER STEP 2 
ABATEMENT 

SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING UNITS    

 DEVELOPED PROPERTY $936,417.02 $0.00 $936,417.02

 UNDEVELOPED PROPERTY $624,248.87 $624,248.87 $0.00

PREPAID PROPERTY      

 OPTIONAL PREPAYMENT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

 MANDATORY PREPAYMENT – PAID $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

 MANDATORY PREPAYMENT – UNPAID $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

TOTAL $1,560,665.89 $624,248.87 $936,417.02

 
 



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 2 Page 8 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

TABLE 7 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 2 

STEP 3 ABATEMENT 

SPECIAL TAX CLASSIFICATION 

REMAINING 
MAXIMUM 

PARCEL 
SPECIAL TAXES 

AFTER STEP 2 
ABATEMENT 

STEP 3 
ABATEMENT 

REMAINING 
MAXIMUM 

PARCEL 
SPECIAL TAXES 

AFTER STEP 3 
ABATEMENT 

SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING UNITS    

 DEVELOPED PROPERTY $936,417.02 $0.00 $936,417.02

 UNDEVELOPED PROPERTY $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

PREPAID PROPERTY      

 OPTIONAL PREPAYMENT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

 MANDATORY PREPAYMENT – PAID $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

 MANDATORY PREPAYMENT – UNPAID $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

TOTAL $936,417.02 $0.00 $936,417.02

 
 

TABLE 8 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 2 

AGGREGATE MAXIMUM, ABATED AND EXTENDED SPECIAL TAXES 

SPECIAL TAX CLASSIFICATION 

MAXIMUM 
PARCEL 

SPECIAL TAXES 
TOTAL 

ABATEMENT 

TOTAL SPECIAL 
TAX TO BE 
EXTENDED 

SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING UNITS    

 DEVELOPED PROPERTY $1,190,101.02 $253,684.00 $936,417.02

 UNDEVELOPED PROPERTY $685,987.77 $685,987.77 $0.00

PREPAID PROPERTY      

 OPTIONAL PREPAYMENT $11,861.46 $11,861.46 $0.00

 MANDATORY PREPAYMENT – PAID $3,953.82 $3,953.82 $0.00

 MANDATORY PREPAYMENT – UNPAID $5,930.73 $5,930.73 $0.00

TOTAL $1,897,834.80 $961,417.78 $936,417.02

 
 
The maximum, abated, and extended special tax for each special tax classification is shown in 
Table 9 on the following page.  The Amended Special Tax Roll, which lists the maximum, 
abated, and extended special tax for each parcel is attached hereto as Exhibit H. 



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 2 Page 9 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

 
TABLE 9 

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 2 
MAXIMUM, ABATED AND EXTENDED SPECIAL TAXES PER PARCEL 

SPECIAL TAX CLASSIFICATION 

NUMBER 
OF 

PARCELS 

MAXIMUM 
PARCEL 

SPECIAL TAX 
ABATED 

SPECIAL TAX 
EXTENDED 

SPECIAL TAX 

SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING UNITS     

 DEVELOPED PROPERTY 602 $1,976.91 $421.40 $1,555.51

 UNDEVELOPED PROPERTY 347 $1,976.91 $1,976.91 $0.00

PREPAID PROPERTY        

 OPTIONAL PREPAYMENT 6 $1,976.91 $1,976.91 $0.00

 MANDATORY PREPAYMENT – PAID 2 $1,976.91 $1,976.91 $0.00

 MANDATORY PREPAYMENT – UNPAID 3 $1,976.91 $1,976.91 $0.00

 
A comparison of the maximum and extended special tax amounts for 2011 and 2010 is shown in 
Table 10 below.   

 
TABLE 10 

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 2 
COMPARISON OF MAXIMUM AND EXTENDED SPECIAL TAXES 

SPECIAL TAX CLASSIFICATION 2011 2010 
PERCENTAGE  

CHANGE  

MAXIMUM PARCEL SPECIAL TAX      

SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING UNITS      

 DEVELOPED PROPERTY $1,976.91 $1,947.70 1.50%

 UNDEVELOPED PROPERTY $1,976.91 $1,947.70 1.50%

EXTENDED SPECIAL TAX      

SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING UNITS      

 DEVELOPED PROPERTY $1,555.51 $1,772.41 -12.24%

 UNDEVELOPED PROPERTY $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

 



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 2 Page 10 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

The schedule of the remaining SSA No. 2 Maximum Parcel Special Taxes is shown in Table 11 
below.  The Maximum Parcel Special Taxes escalate one and one-half percent (1.50%) annually 
through 2031. 
 

TABLE 11 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 2 

MAXIMUM PARCEL SPECIAL TAXES  

LEVY  
YEAR 

COLLECTION 
YEAR 

TOTAL SSA NO. 2 MAXIMUM 
PARCEL SPECIAL TAXES 

DEVELOPED 
SINGLE- 
FAMILY 

DWELLING 
UNIT 

UNDEVELOPED 
SINGLE- 
FAMILY 

DWELLING 
UNIT 

PER BOND 
ORDINANCE 

ADJUSTED FOR 
PREPAYMENTS 

2011 2012 $1,897,834.80 $1,876,088.79 $1,976.91 $1,976.91 

2012 2013 $1,926,302.32 $1,904,230.16 $2,006.56 $2,006.56 

2013 2014 $1,955,196.86 $1,932,793.60 $2,036.66 $2,036.66 

2014 2015 $1,984,524.81 $1,961,785.50 $2,067.21 $2,067.21 

2015 2016 $2,014,292.68 $1,991,212.26 $2,098.22 $2,098.22 

2016 2017 $2,044,507.07 $2,021,080.48 $2,129.69 $2,129.69 

2017 2018 $2,075,174.68 $2,051,396.64 $2,161.64 $2,161.64 

2018 2019 $2,106,302.30 $2,082,167.64 $2,194.06 $2,194.06 

2019 2020 $2,137,896.83 $2,113,400.05 $2,226.98 $2,226.98 

2020 2021 $2,169,965.29 $2,145,101.11 $2,260.38 $2,260.38 

2021 2022 $2,202,514.77 $2,177,277.58 $2,294.29 $2,294.29 

2022 2023 $2,235,552.49 $2,209,936.79 $2,328.70 $2,328.70 

2023 2024 $2,269,085.77 $2,243,085.84 $2,363.63 $2,363.63 

2024 2025 $2,303,122.06 $2,276,732.07 $2,399.09 $2,399.09 

2025 2026 $2,337,668.89 $2,310,883.12 $2,435.07 $2,435.07 

2026 2027 $2,372,733.93 $2,345,546.33 $2,471.60 $2,471.60 

2027 2028 $2,408,324.93 $2,380,729.56 $2,508.67 $2,508.67 

2028 2029 $2,444,449.81 $2,416,440.51 $2,546.30 $2,546.30 

2029 2030 $2,481,116.56 $2,452,687.06 $2,584.50 $2,584.50 

2030 2031 $2,518,333.30 $2,489,477.44 $2,623.26 $2,623.26 

2031 2032 $2,556,108.30 $2,526,819.59 $2,662.61 $2,662.61 
 

 



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 2 Page 11 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

IV. Prior Year Special Tax Collections 
 
The SSA No. 2 special tax is billed and collected by Lake County (the "County") in the same 
manner and at the same time as general ad valorem property taxes. The Village may provide for 
other means of collecting the special tax, if necessary to meet the financial obligations of SSA 
No. 2.  
 
2010 Special Tax Receipts 
 
The County billed a total of $1,068,763.23 in SSA No. 2 2010 special taxes.  As of November 
22, 2011, SSA No. 2 2010 special tax receipts totaled $1,064,707.60.  Special taxes in the 
amount of $4,055.63 are unpaid resulting in a delinquency rate of 0.38%.  A breakdown of the 
paid and unpaid special taxes by owner of record is shown in Table 12 below.   
 

TABLE 12 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 2 

2010 PAID AND UNPAID SPECIAL TAXES  

OWNER OF RECORD 
PAID 

SPECIAL TAXES 
UNPAID 

SPECIAL TAXES 

PERCENT 
OF TOTAL 
EXTENDED 
SPECIAL 
TAXES 

HOMEOWNERS $554,253.52 $4,055.63 52.24%

BMB ASSOCIATES I LLC $510,454.08 $0.00 47.76%

TOTAL 2010 EXTENDED SPECIAL TAXES $1,064,707.60 $4,055.63 100.00%

 
Tax Sales and Foreclosures 
 
The Lake County Treasurer’s Office conducted its annual tax sale on November 28 and 29, 2011 
("County Tax Sale").  Prior to County Tax Sale, holders of outstanding tax liens are eligible to 
purchase any related current year delinquent property taxes. All other eligible delinquent 
property taxes1 are subject to sale at the County Tax Sale.  As of November 22, 2011, there were 
four (4) parcels with special taxes of $4,055.63 delinquent on payment of property taxes.  
 
The lien and foreclosure remedies provided for in Article 9 of the Illinois Municipal Code shall 
apply upon the nonpayment of the special tax.  No foreclosures have commenced as of the date 
of this report. 
 

                     
1 Property taxes owed by property owners who have filed for bankruptcy are not eligible for tax sale. 



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 2 Page 12 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

V. Development Status 
 
The preliminary plat for SSA No. 2 includes 960 single-family home lots.  Four plats (Phase 1, 
Phase 2, Phase 3 West, Phase 3 East) were recorded encompassing 613 single-family home lots.  
On September 14, 2006, the Village approved a plat amending a portion of Phase 3 East ("3 East 
Re-Plat") resulting in a reduction of five (5) single-family home lots in Phase 3 East.   As a result 
the recorded plats currently encompass six hundred and eight (608) single-family home lots.  An 
aerial map of SSA No. 2 is attached hereto as Exhibit A.  The number of units in each plat is 
summarized in Table 13 below. 
 

TABLE 13 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 2 

LAND USE SUMMARY 

PLAT RECORDED 

NUMBER OF SINGLE-FAMILY PROPERTY 
DWELLING UNITS 

DEVELOPED 
PROPERTY 

UNDEVELOPED 
PROPERTY 

1 YES 104 0 

2 YES 91 0 

3 WEST YES 195 0 

3 EAST YES 169 0 

3 EAST (RE-PLAT) YES 49 0 

4 NO 0 347 

TOTAL 608 347 

 
Equalized Assessed Value  
 
Equalized assessed value, excluding prepaid property, decreased in 2010 to $30,936,783.  The 
average assessed value per dwelling unit is approximately $32,565.



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 2 Page 13 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

VI. Outstanding Bonds 
 
The Series 2003 Bonds were issued in June 2003 as fixed rate bonds with an original principal 
amount of $13,850,000.  As of September 2, 2011, the outstanding principal was $13,226,000.  
The current debt schedule adjusted for early redemptions from special tax prepayments is 
attached hereto as Exhibit B. 
 
Special Tax Prepayments  
 
The SSA No. 2 Maximum Parcel Special Tax may be prepaid and permanently satisfied, or  
prepaid in part, provided that proceeds for any such prepayment are sufficient to permit the 
redemption of Bonds in such amounts and maturities deemed necessary by the Administrator and 
in accordance with the Bond Indenture.  The prepayment calculation formula is set forth in the 
Special Tax Roll and Report. 
 
Bond Redemptions from Special Tax Prepayments  
 
As a result of special tax prepayments received from property owners, $188,000 of the Series 
2003 Bonds has been redeemed as shown in Table 14 below.  
 

TABLE 14 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 2 

SPECIAL  MANDATORY BOND REDEMPTIONS  
FROM SPECIAL TAX PREPAYMENTS 

REDEMPTION DATE BONDS REDEEMED 

MARCH 1, 2005 $106,000 

MARCH 1, 2007 $53,000 

SEPTEMBER 1, 2010 $29,000 

TOTAL AMOUNT REDEEMED $188,000 

 
 

 
 
 



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 2 Page 14 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

VII. Equalized Assessed Value and Value to Lien Ratio 

 
The SSA No. 2 Equalized Assessed Value and Value-to-Lien Ratio is shown in Table 15 below.   

 
TABLE 15 

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 2 
EQUALIZED ASSESSED VALUE AND VALUE TO LIEN RATIO 
2010 

EQUALIZED  
ASSESSED VALUE1 

2010  
APPRAISED VALUE2 

OUTSTANDING 
SERIES 2003 BONDS3 

VALUE-TO-LIEN 
RATIO 

$30,936,783 $92,810,349 $13,226,000 7.02:1 

 
 
 

                     
1 Source: Lake County Assessor's Office. 
2 Based on three times the equalized assessed value of the special service area. 
3 As of September 2, 2011. 



 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 2 Page 15 
2011 Administration Report November 30, 2011 

VIII. Ad Valorem Property Tax Rates  
 
The 2010 general ad valorem tax rates for SSA No. 2 are shown in Table 16 below.   

 

TABLE 16 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 2 

2010 AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAX RATES 
TAXING AGENCY TAX CODE 04-031

Basic Rate  
 College of Lake County #532 0.218% 
 County of Lake 0.505% 
 Forest Preserve 0.198% 
 Special Road Improvement – Antioch  0.158% 
 Road and Bridge – Antioch  0.075% 
 Township of Antioch 0.122% 
Districts  
 School District #34 3.510% 
 High School #117 2.639% 
 Antioch Public Library District 0.274% 
 Village of Antioch 0.883% 

TOTAL TAX RATE 8.582% 
 
 

 
 
k:\clients2\antioch\district administration\ssa 2\2010\admin report\antioch ssa2 admin report 10.doc 
 
 



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 2 
 

Aerial Exhibit of SSA Boundaries  
  
 

 
 
  



V
ILLA

G
E

 O
F A

N
TIO

C
H

 S
S

A
 N

O
. 2 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TIO
N

 R
E

P
O

R
T: E

X
H

IB
IT A

 | P
A

G
E

 1 of 1

DHumphries
Text Box
Village of Antioch SSA 2



 

 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 2 
 

Debt Service Schedule 
  
 



  Prepared by David Taussig & Associates, Inc.

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH SSA
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 2

SPECIAL TAX BONDS SERIES 2003: REVISED DEBT SERVICE AFTER SEPTEMBER 2010 BOND CALL

Ending 3/1 Original Optional Revised Coupon Debt
Bond Year Principal Redemptions Principal Rate Interest Service

2004    $680,526.00 $680,526.00
2005    917,562.50 917,562.50
2006    910,540.00 910,540.00
2007 $50,000  $50,000 6.625% 910,540.00 960,540.00
2008 67,000  67,000 6.625% 903,716.25 970,716.25
2009 86,000 ($1,000.00) 85,000 6.625% 899,277.50 984,277.50
2010 107,000 (1,000.00) 106,000 6.625% 893,646.25 999,646.25
2011 129,000 (1,000.00) 128,000 6.625% 885,663.13 1,013,663.13
2012 152,000 (2,000.00) 150,000 6.625% 876,222.50 1,026,222.50
2013 178,000 (2,000.00) 176,000 6.625% 866,285.00 1,042,285.00
2014 205,000 (3,000.00) 202,000 6.625% 854,625.00 1,056,625.00
2015 235,000 (4,000.00) 231,000 6.625% 841,242.50 1,072,242.50
2016 266,000 (4,000.00) 262,000 6.625% 825,938.75 1,087,938.75
2017 300,000 (4,000.00) 296,000 6.625% 808,581.25 1,104,581.25
2018 336,000 (5,000.00) 331,000 6.625% 788,971.25 1,119,971.25
2019 376,000 (5,000.00) 371,000 6.625% 767,042.50 1,138,042.50
2020 417,000 (6,000.00) 411,000 6.625% 742,463.75 1,153,463.75
2021 462,000 (7,000.00) 455,000 6.625% 715,235.00 1,170,235.00
2022 511,000 (7,000.00) 504,000 6.625% 685,091.25 1,189,091.25
2023 562,000 (7,000.00) 555,000 6.625% 651,701.25 1,206,701.25
2024 618,000 (9,000.00) 609,000 6.625% 614,932.50 1,223,932.50
2025 677,000 (9,000.00) 668,000 6.625% 574,586.25 1,242,586.25
2026 740,000 (11,000.00) 729,000 6.625% 530,331.25 1,259,331.25
2027 808,000 (11,000.00) 797,000 6.625% 482,035.00 1,279,035.00
2028 881,000 (12,000.00) 869,000 6.625% 429,233.75 1,298,233.75
2029 959,000 (13,000.00) 946,000 6.625% 371,662.50 1,317,662.50
2030 1,042,000 (14,000.00) 1,028,000 6.625% 308,990.00 1,336,990.00
2031 1,131,000 (15,000.00) 1,116,000 6.625% 240,885.00 1,356,885.00
2032 1,227,000 (17,000.00) 1,210,000 6.625% 166,950.00 1,376,950.00
2033 1,328,000 (18,000.00) 1,310,000 6.625% 86,787.50 1,396,787.50
Total $13,850,000 ($188,000.00) $13,662,000 N/A $20,231,265.38 $33,893,265.38

K:\CLIENTS2\Antioch\District Administration\SSA 2\Prepayment\Debt Service Schedule SSA 2.xls
12/3/2010   



 

 

EXHIBIT C 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 2 
 

Special Tax Roll and Report  
  
 

  
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH 

SPECIAL SERVICES AREA NUMBER TWO 

CLUBLANDS 

SPECIAL TAX ROLL AND REPORT 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

April 29, 2003 
 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
1 

of
 3

3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH 
 

SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NUMBER TWO 
(CLUBLANDS) 

 
SPECIAL TAX ROLL AND REPORT 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Prepared for 
 

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH 
874 Main Street  

Antioch, IL 60002 
(847) 395-1000  

 
 

 
 

Prepared by 
 

DAVID TAUSSIG & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
1301 Dove Street, Suite 600 
Newport Beach, CA 92660 

(949) 955-1500

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
2 

of
 3

3



 

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NUMBER TWO 

(CLUBLANDS) 
 

SPECIAL TAX ROLL AND REPORT 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

Section Page 
 
I. INTRODUCTION....................................................................................................................1 

II. SPECIAL SERVICE AREA DESCRIPTION ..............................................................................1 

III. SPECIAL SERVICES ..............................................................................................................1 

A. DESCRIPTION ................................................................................................................1 

B. ESTIMATED COSTS........................................................................................................3 

C. ALLOCATION.................................................................................................................5 

D. ALTERNATIVES, MODIFICATIONS, AND/OR SUBSTITUTIONS .......................................16 

IV. BONDED INDEBTEDNESS....................................................................................................16 

V. DETERMINATION OF SPECIAL TAXES ...............................................................................16 

A. MAXIMUM ANNUAL SPECIAL TAXES ..........................................................................16 

B. APPORTIONMENT AND ABATEMENT METHODOLOGY .................................................17 

 
List of Exhibits 
 
Exhibit A – Rate and Method of Levying Special Taxes 
 
 
 
 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
3 

of
 3

3



 

Special Tax Roll and Report  Page 1 
Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 2 April 29, 2003  

I. INTRODUCTION 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of the "Special Service Area Act," being 35 ILCS 200/27-5 et 
seq., and in accordance with the Establishing Ordinance, being Ordinance No. 02-09-39 
passed by the Board of Trustees of the Village of Antioch (the "Village"), County of 
Lake, State of Illinois, on September 27, 2002, as amended by ordinance passed by the 
Board of Trustees on May 5, 2003, in connection with the proceedings for Special 
Service Area Number Two (Clublands) (hereinafter referred to as "SSA No. 2"), this 
Special Tax Roll and Report of Special Service Area (the "Report") is herewith 
submitted. 

 
The report is organized into the following five sections: 

 
I. Introduction 
II. Special Service Area Description 
III. Special Services 
IV. Bonded Indebtedness 
V. Determination of Special Taxes 

 
II. SPECIAL SERVICE AREA DESCRIPTION 
 

SSA No. 2, otherwise known as the Clublands of Antioch, consists of approximately 450 
acres which will be bisected by an extension of Savage Road that is generally located 
south of State Route 173 and north of Miller Road. The SSA is roughly equidistant 
between Deep Lake Road (on the west) and U.S. Highway 45 (on the east). The 
Clublands is approved for 960 single-family homes which are anticipated to be built in 
four phases.  

 
III. SPECIAL SERVICES  
 

SSA No. 2 has been established to finance certain special services conferring special 
benefit thereto and which are in addition to the municipal services provided to the Village 
as a whole. A general description, estimated cost, and allocation of these special services 
is set forth below. 
 
A. DESCRIPTION  
 

The special services to be financed by SSA No. 2 consist of certain public 
sanitary sewer collection and treatment, water distribution, storm sewer, and road 
improvements with appurtenances and appurtenant work in connection therewith 
necessary to serve SSA No. 2. It is anticipated that SSA No. 2 will finance the 
construction of the improvements, which may include construction management, 
inspection, and other "soft" costs. These improvements are located both on and 
off-site.  

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
4 

of
 3

3



 

Special Tax Roll and Report  Page 2 
Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 2 April 29, 2003  

1. ON-SITE IMPROVEMENTS  
 

SSA No. 2 is anticipated to fund the construction of all on-site sanitary 
sewer, water, and storm sewer improvements and a portion of the on-site 
road improvements. The on-site improvements are generally described as 
follows: 

• Sanitary sewer main lines of varying diameter, manholes, and 
appurtenances; 

• Water main lines of varying diameter, fire hydrants, and 
appurtenances; 

• Road improvements including paving, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, 
right-of-way, and streetlights; and 

• Storm sewers of varying diameter and appurtenances. 
 

2. OFF-SITE IMPROVEMENTS  
 

SSA No. 2 is anticipated to fund the construction of a portion of certain 
off-site sanitary sewer, water, road, and storm sewer improvements. Off-
site improvements funded by SSA No. 2 will be exclusive of recapturable 
costs or costs otherwise allocable Special Service Area ("SSA") No. 1 
since bond proceeds will only fund that portion of the off-site 
improvements actually benefiting SSA No. 2. The portion of the off-site 
improvements which generate excess capacity and therefore are subject to 
recapture will be paid by the developer. The off-site improvements are 
generally described as follows: 

• The prepayment of a special tax established to fund the Clublands' 
share of capacity for the Mill Creek sewer treatment plant and 
sewer line facilities located just north of SSA No. 2 including 
construction and inspection, manholes, and appurtenances; 

• Water distribution facilities including construction and inspection 
of 12-inch and 16- inch main lines along State Route 173, valves, 
fire hydrants, and appurtenances; 

• Road improvements including the construction of N. Savage Road 
to State Route 173 and to the Village of Antioch Township line 
south of Miller Road, traffic signalization improvements at the 
intersection of N. Savage Road and State Route 173, and turn lanes 
at the intersections of N. Savage Road and State Route 173, State 
Route 173 and U.S. Highway 45, and Miller Road and U.S. 
Highway 45; and 

• Storm sewer improvements along Miller Road including 
construction of a 30- inch storm sewer and related drainage 
structures. 

 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
5 

of
 3

3



 

Special Tax Roll and Report  Page 3 
Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 2 April 29, 2003  

B. ESTIMATED COSTS  
 

The total estimated costs for the preceding improvements and the amounts 
allocable to SSA No. 2 and SSA No. 1 are presented in Table 1 on the following 
page. The recapturable costs shown in Table 1 are construction costs only (i.e., 
they do not include design, engineering, inspection, or other costs subject to 
recapture) and are based upon actual bids received. Note, the public 
improvements to be financed through bond proceeds for SSA No. 2 are expected 
to issued through two series of bonds. (The phasing of the bonds is discussed in 
greater detail in Section IV below.) 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
6 

of
 3

3



TA
B

LE
 1

SS
A

 N
o.

 2
 (C

LU
B

LA
N

D
S)

ES
TI

M
A

TE
D

 P
U

B
LI

C
 IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
T 

C
O

ST
S

N
on

-R
ec

ap
tu

ra
bl

e 
C

os
ts

R
ec

ap
tu

ra
bl

e
A

llo
ca

bl
e 

to
A

llo
ca

bl
e 

to
Pu

bl
ic

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
G

ra
nd

 T
ot

al
C

os
ts

SS
A

 N
o.

 2
SS

A
 N

o.
 1

O
n-

Si
te

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 S
ew

er
$3

,1
77

,0
00

N
A 

$3
,1

77
,0

00
N

A 
W

at
er

$2
,7

16
,7

63
N

A 
$2

,7
16

,7
63

N
A 

R
oa

d 
$5

,6
42

,0
03

N
A 

$5
,6

42
,0

03
N

A 
St

or
m

 S
ew

er
$2

,5
61

,0
00

N
A 

$2
,5

61
,0

00
N

A 
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

--
---

---
---

---
---

---
--

---
---

---
---

---
---

-- -
---

---
---

---
---

---
-

---
---

---
---

---
---

--
To

ta
l O

n-
Si

te
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t C
os

ts
$1

4,
09

6,
76

6
N

A 
$1

4,
09

6,
76

6
N

A 

O
ff-

Si
te

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 S
ew

er
Fa

ir 
Sh

ar
e 

Al
lo

ca
tio

n 
fo

r M
ill 

C
re

ek
 S

ew
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t P

la
nt

$2
,9

51
,0

93
N

A 
$2

,1
96

,7
33

$7
54

,3
60

O
th

er
 S

an
ita

ry
 S

ew
er

$1
,5

87
,5

47
$8

23
,3

02
$4

67
,3

74
$2

96
,8

71
W

at
er

$1
,5

81
,3

38
$6

29
,6

89
$7

02
,4

30
$2

49
,2

19
R

oa
d St
at

e 
R

ou
te

 ("
SR

")
 1

73
 T

ur
n 

La
ne

s 
& 

Si
gn

al
iz

at
io

n
$5

10
,0

00
N

A 
$1

88
,6

05
$3

21
,3

95
Sa

va
ge

 R
oa

d 
to

 S
R

 1
73

$3
43

,7
50

N
A 

$1
54

,4
21

$1
89

,3
29

Sa
va

ge
 R

oa
d 

to
 T

ow
ns

hi
p 

Li
ne

$3
5,

75
0

N
A 

$3
5,

75
0

N
A 

M
ille

r R
oa

d 
Tu

rn
 L

an
e

$3
3,

00
0

N
A 

$3
3,

00
0

N
A 

St
or

m
 S

ew
er

$2
40

,0
00

N
A 

$2
40

,0
00

N
A 

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
--

---
---

---
---

---
---

--
---

---
---

---
---

---
-- -

---
---

---
---

---
---

-
---

---
---

---
---

---
--

To
ta

l O
ff-

Si
te

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t C

os
ts

$7
,2

82
,4

78
$1

,4
52

,9
91

$4
,0

18
,3

13
$1

,8
11

,1
74

To
ta

l P
ub

lic
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t C
os

ts
$2

1,
37

9,
24

4
$1

,4
52

,9
91

$1
8,

11
5,

07
9

$1
,8

11
,1

74

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
7 

of
 3

3



 

Special Tax Roll and Report  Page 5 
Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 2 April 29, 2003  

C. ALLOCATION 
 

Special taxes levied pursuant to the Special Service Area Act must bear a rational 
relationship to the benefit received from the public improvements funded thereby. 
Therefore, the public improvements proposed to be financed by SSA No. 2 have 
been allocated in accordance with the benefit conferred to the property therein, 
with benefit estimated to be a function of (i) the service or benefit area for said 
improvements and (ii) the relative capacity for said improvements reserved for or 
used by properties within the benefit area. A discussion of the relevant benefit 
area(s) and measures of public facilities usage follows below. 
 
1. BENEFIT AREA  
 

Generally, the on-site improvements benefit only those properties within 
the SSA, while the off-site improvements are sized with sufficient 
capacity and are designed to serve the SSA as well as certain neighboring 
and other properties within the Village. 
  
a. ON-SITE IMPROVEMENTS  

 
The on-site public improvements will be physically located within 
each of the four phases of the Clublands development. The vast 
majority of these improvements will bring the special services 
directly to the individual residential lots therein (i.e., these are 
improvements typically within local street rights-of-way).  
 
Certain other of the on-site improvements can be categorized as 
collector or common improvements (e.g., that portion of N. Savage 
Road within the boundaries of the SSA). While still local in nature, 
these improvements provide a more collective benefit to the SSA 
by conveying traffic to and from the development and/or providing 
a point of connection to community-wide or regional 
infrastructure.  
 
In either case, the on-site improvements will be constructed to 
provide special services specifically to all four phases of 
development within the SSA. 

.  
b. OFF-SITE IMPROVEMENTS  

 
Contrary to the on-site improvements, the benefit area for all but 
the off-site storm sewer improvements is larger than the 
boundaries of the SSA. As the benefit area may vary by 
improvement type, separate discussions for each major 
improvement category are included below. 

 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
8 

of
 3

3



 

Special Tax Roll and Report  Page 6 
Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 2 April 29, 2003  

i. SEWER  
 

Clearly, the Mill Creek sewer treatment plant capacity exceeds 
the treatment demand for SSA No. 2. The share of treatment 
plant capacity allocable to SSA No. 2 is reflected in an existing 
special tax levied within the SSA to fund the construction of 
the Mill Creek plant. By definition, then, the component of the 
SSA No. 2 special tax attributable to the refinancing of the Mill 
Creek sewer treatment plant special tax has already been 
allocated, and any additional discussion regarding benefit area 
is unnecessary.  
 
The benefit area for the off-site sewer line facilities is defined 
in the recapture agreement (the "Recapture Agreement"), and 
includes the Deercrest Subdivision, otherwise known as 
Special Service Area Number One of the Village of Antioch. 
The costs subject to recapture will be financed neither by SSA 
No. 1 nor SSA No. 2. The allocation of the non-recapturable 
sewer line costs to SSA No. 2 is discussed in greater detail in 
Section III.C.2 below.  

 
ii. WATER  

 
The benefit area for the off-site water lines is also defined in 
the Recapture Agreement, and includes SSA No. 1 as well. The 
water costs subject to recapture will be not be financed by 
either SSA. The allocation of the non-recapturable sewer line 
costs to SSA No. 2 is discussed in Section III.C.2 below.  

 
iii. ROADS  

 
With the exception of the Miller Road turn lane improvements, 
all off-site road improvements benefit both SSA No. 1 and 
SSA No. 2. The allocation of the off-site road improvement 
costs is discussed in Section III.C.2 below. 

 
iv. STORM SEWER  

 
The storm sewer to be constructed along Miller Road is part of 
the storm sewer system designed to serve the Clublands 
development, and therefore strictly benefits SSA No. 2.  

 
2. PUBLIC FACILITY USAGE 

 
Once the benefit areas have been established, the special services may be 
allocated among the various properties within such area in accordance 
with use. As is discussed in the following sections, commonly accepted 
measures for public facility usage indicate that the benefit conferred by the 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
9 

of
 3

3



 

Special Tax Roll and Report  Page 7 
Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 2 April 29, 2003  

public improvements proposed to be financed by SSA No. 2 applies 
uniformly by land use type. Note, public facility usage is addressed for 
land uses anticipated in both SSA No. 1 and SSA No. 2 for purposes of 
allocating certain off-site improvements which benefit both SSAs. 
 
a. SEWER AND WATER USAGE 

 
The primary determinant of sanitary sewer and water usage is the 
applicable population equivalent, or P.E. Household population is 
the criteria commonly used to project sewer and water service 
demand. Wastewater Engineering, Third Edition indicates that 
residential wastewater flow rates are typically determined on the 
basis of population density and the average per capita contribution 
of wastewater. The Illinois Environmental Protection Agency’s 
criteria for water storage and distribution systems assume an 
everyday use equal to 50 gallons per day per person. In addition, 
an emergency capacity is set at 50 gallons per day per person. This 
equates to 350 and 300 gallons per day, respectively, for each 
single-family and townhome given the applicable IEPA's P.E. 
factors of 3.5 for single-family homes and 3.0 for townhomes.  

 
Commercial sewer and water demand is a function of the nature 
and intensity of use. The commercial development is anticipated to 
include a mix of retail and commercial uses. The Village indicates 
that the P.E. for such commercial uses can range from fifteen (15) 
to thirty (30) per acre and estimates that a P.E. factor of twenty 
(20) per acre will meet anticipated demand.  

 
Sewer and water demand for public schools is driven by two 
factors: type of school (i.e., grammar school, middle school, or 
high school) and the estimated number of students and employees. 
A middle school, with a capacity of 1,000 students and 
approximately 85 employees, is anticipated to be built in SSA No. 
1 by School District Number 34. Applying the IEPA standards of 
25.0 gallons per student and employee per day yields a total P.E. of 
271.25 for the proposed middle school.  
 
The P.E. applicable to each land use is shown in Table 2 on the 
following page.  

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
10

 o
f 3

3



TA
B

LE
 2

SS
A

 N
o.

 2
 (C

LU
B

LA
N

D
S)

PO
PU

LA
TI

O
N

 E
Q

U
IV

A
LE

N
T 

(P
.E

.)
FO

R
 S

A
N

IT
A

R
Y 

SE
W

ER
 A

N
D

 W
A

TE
R

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
O

n-
si

te
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
O

ff-
si

te
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
Sa

ni
ta

ry
M

ill
 C

re
ek

O
th

er
 S

an
ita

ry
La

nd
 U

se
C

ou
nt

P.
E.

 F
ac

to
r

Se
w

er
W

at
er

Pl
an

t
Se

w
er

W
at

er

SS
A 

N
o.

 2
Si

ng
le

 F
am

ily
96

0
un

its
3.

5/
un

it
3,

36
0.

00
3,

36
0.

00
3,

36
0.

00
3,

36
0.

00
3,

36
0.

00
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
-

---
---

---
---

---
-

---
---

---
---

---
-

---
---

---
---

---
-

---
---

---
---

---
-

To
ta

l f
or

 S
SA

 N
o.

 2
3,

36
0.

00
3,

36
0.

00
3,

36
0.

00
3,

36
0.

00
3,

36
0.

00

SS
A 

N
o.

 1
Si

ng
le

-F
am

ily
37

9
un

its
3.

5/
un

it
N

A 
N

A 
1,

32
6.

50
1,

32
6.

50
1,

32
6.

50
To

w
nh

om
e

11
6

un
its

3.
0/

un
it

N
A 

N
A 

34
8.

00
34

8.
00

34
8.

00
C

om
m

er
ci

al
30

ac
re

s
20

/A
cr

e
N

A 
N

A 
N

A 
60

0.
00

60
0.

00
Sc

ho
ol

St
ud

en
ts

1,
00

0
st

ud
en

ts
0.

25
/s

tu
de

nt
N

A 
N

A 
N

A 
25

0.
00

25
0.

00
Em

pl
oy

ee
s

85
em

pl
oy

ee
s

0.
25

/e
m

pl
oy

ee
N

A 
N

A 
N

A 
21

.2
5

21
.2

5
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
-

---
---

---
---

---
-

---
---

---
---

---
-

---
---

---
---

---
-

---
---

---
---

---
-

To
ta

l f
or

 S
SA

 N
o.

 1
N

A 
N

A 
N

A 
2,

54
5.

75
2,

54
5.

75

G
R

A
N

D
 T

O
TA

L
3,

36
0.

00
3,

36
0.

00
3,

36
0.

00
5,

90
5.

75
5,

90
5.

75

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
11

 o
f 3

3



 

Special Tax Roll and Report  Page 9 
Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 2 April 29, 2003  

b. Road Usage 
 
Road usage is typically computed on the basis of anticipated trip 
generation. The Institute of Traffic Engineers publication Trip 
Generation Sixth Edition, indicates average weekday trips per 
single-family detached home and condominium/townhome of 9.57 
and 6.59 trips, respectively.  
 
Average weekday trip for commercial developments are 
commonly expressed per 1,000 square feet of gross leasable area. 
For a shopping center development, such as that proposed for SSA 
No. 1, average weekday trips equal 42.92 per 1,000 square feet of 
gross leasable area. However, a significant percentage of these are 
typically pass-by trips (i.e., trips made as intermediate stops on the 
way from an origin to a primary trip destination). This is 
particularly true for the subject shopping center development given 
its location on State Route 173 just west of U.S. Highway 45. 
Based upon data contained in Trip Generation, the March 2001 
Edition, it is estimated that at least thirty percent of the trips will be 
comprised of pass-by traffic, resulting in a net trip end factor of 
30.04 per 1,000 square feet. 
 
The average weekday trips associated with a middle school are 
typically expressed per student and are estimated by Trip 
Generation Sixth Edition at 1.45 per middle school student. 
 
Total trip ends applicable to each land use are shown in Table 3 on 
the following page. 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
12

 o
f 3

3



TA
B

LE
 3

SS
A

 N
o.

 2
 (C

LU
B

LA
N

D
S)

TR
IP

 E
N

D
S

FO
R

 R
O

A
D

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
O

ff-
si

te
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
O

n-
si

te
SR

 1
73

 T
ur

n
Sa

va
ge

 R
oa

d
Sa

va
ge

 R
oa

d
M

ill
er

 R
oa

d
La

nd
 U

se
C

ou
nt

Tr
ip

 E
nd

s
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
La

ne
s

To
 S

R
 1

73
To

 T
ow

ns
hi

p
Tu

rn
 L

an
e

SS
A 

N
o.

 2
Si

ng
le

 F
am

ily
96

0
un

its
9.

57
/u

ni
t

9,
18

7.
20

9,
18

7.
20

9,
18

7.
20

9,
18

7.
20

9,
18

7.
20

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

-
---

---
---

---
---

-
---

---
---

---
---

-
---

---
---

---
---

-
---

---
---

---
---

-
To

ta
l f

or
 S

SA
 N

o.
 2

9,
18

7.
20

9,
18

7.
20

9,
18

7.
20

9,
18

7.
20

9,
18

7.
20

SS
A 

N
o.

 1
Si

ng
le

-F
am

ily
37

9
un

its
9.

57
/u

ni
t

N
A 

3,
62

7.
03

N
A 

N
A 

N
A 

To
w

nh
om

e
11

6
un

its
6.

59
/u

ni
t

N
A 

76
4.

44
N

A 
N

A 
N

A 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
32

6,
70

0
sq

ua
re

 fe
et

30
.0

4/
1,

00
0 

SF
N

A 
9,

81
4.

07
9,

81
4.

07
N

A 
N

A 
Sc

ho
ol

St
ud

en
ts

1,
00

0
st

ud
en

ts
1.

45
/s

tu
de

nt
N

A 
1,

45
0.

00
1,

45
0.

00
N

A 
N

A 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s

85
em

pl
oy

ee
s

N
A 

N
A 

N
A 

N
A 

N
A 

N
A 

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

-
---

---
---

---
---

-
---

---
---

---
---

-
---

---
---

---
---

-
---

---
---

---
---

-
To

ta
l f

or
 S

SA
 N

o.
 1

N
A 

15
,6

55
.5

4
11

,2
64

.0
7

0.
00

0.
00

G
R

A
N

D
 T

O
TA

L
9,

18
7.

20
24

,8
42

.7
4

20
,4

51
.2

7
9,

18
7.

20
9,

18
7.

20

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
13

 o
f 3

3



 

Special Tax Roll and Report  Page 11 
Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 2 April 29, 2003  

c. Storm Sewer Usage 
 
Storm sewer facilities are sized based upon estimated storm flows 
which vary with the size of the tributary drainage area, slope, soil 
type, antecedent runoff condition, and impervious ground cover. In 
its "Urban Hydrology for Small Watersheds: TR-55" (the "TR-55 
Manual"), the United States Department of Agriculture indicates 
average "runoff curve numbers" for purposes of measuring storm 
flows or runoff. The runoff curve equation estimates storm runoff 
given a particular volume of rainfall.  
 
The runoff curve numbers for fully developed urban areas 
indicated in the TR-55 Manual vary by land use type, impervious 
area, and hydrologic soil group. Assuming generally uniform 
antecedent runoff and hydrologic soil conditions within the SSA, 
storm flows will tend to vary with land use and impervious area. 
SSA No. 2 is approved for single family residential development, 
with a uniform density throughout.  
 
Multiplying the impervious ground cover factor of thirty percent 
(30%) for single-family residential development with an average 
lot size of 1/3 acre by the gross land area, excluding open space, 
per single family home of approximately 13,167 square feet results 
in an estimated impervious ground area per single family lot of 
3,950 square feet. As all lots are anticipated to have approximately 
the same impervious area, the storm flow and therefore usage of 
the storm sewer system is not expected to vary in any material 
amount from home to home.  
 
Total impervious ground area is shown in Table 4 below. 
 

TABLE 4 
IMPERVIOUS SQUARE FEET 

FOR STORM SEWER IMPROVEMENTS 

Land Use Count 
Impervious 
Square Feet 

On-site 
Improvements 

Off-site 
Improvements

SSA No. 2     
 Single-family  960 Units 3,950/unit 3,791,811 3,791,811
--------------------------   ------------------- ------------------
Total for SSA No. 2   3,791,811 3,791,811

 
d. Outlots, Common Area, Open Space, and Clubhouse 

 
No costs have been allocated to property on which development 
will not occur, such as outlots, common area, or open space, as it 
places an insignificant demand on and therefore, derives no 
material benefit from the public improvements. 

 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
14

 o
f 3

3



 

Special Tax Roll and Report  Page 12 
Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 2 April 29, 2003  

Additionally, no costs have been allocated to the clubhouse and 
related recreation facilities. Use of the clubhouse, which will be 
owned by the homeowner's association, will be limited to the 
residents of the Clublands project. Consequently, any benefit 
conferred to the clubhouse will be enjoyed by the residents thereby 
removing the need for a separate clubhouse allocation.  

  
3. ALLOCATED COSTS  
 

Dividing the total costs for each respective category of improvement in 
Table 1 by the total applicable usage factors in Tables 2 through 4 above 
results in improvements costs per P.E., trip end, or impervious square foot 
as shown in Table 5 on the following page. Multiplying these "unit" costs 
by the applicable usage factor for each land use type yields the allocated 
public improvements costs per residential dwelling unit shown in Table 6. 
The amount of these improvements to be funded by SSA No. 2 is shown 
in Table 7.  
 
SSA No. 2 is not anticipated to fund all the public improvements allocable 
thereto with bond proceeds. The portion of the on-site improvements to be 
financed is detailed in Table 7. All on-site improvements not funded with 
bond proceeds will be paid by the developer and are categorized as 
"Developer's Equity". As noted previously, certain off-site improvement 
costs, excluding recapture, will be shared with SSA No. 1. Note, the Table 
7 costs are grouped in accordance with the expected phasing of bonds.  

 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
15

 o
f 3

3



TABLE 5
SSA No. 2 (CLUBLANDS)

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT COSTS PER APPLICABLE FACTOR
Improvement

Public Improvements Cost Per Factor

On-Site Improvements
Sanitary Sewer $945.54 per P.E.
Water $808.56 per P.E.
Road $614.12 per Trip End
Storm Sewer $0.68 per I.S.F.

Off-Site Improvements
Sanitary Sewer

Mill Creek Sewer Treatment Plant for SSA No. 2 $792.89 per P.E.
Other Sanitary Sewer for SSA No. 2 $139.10 per P.E.

Water for SSA No. 2 $209.06 per P.E.
Road

SR 173 Turn Lanes & Signalization $20.53 per Trip End
Savage Road to SR 173 $16.81 per Trip End
Savage Road to Township Line $3.89 per Trip End
Miller Road Turn Lane $3.59 per Trip End

Storm Sewer $0.06 per I.S.F.

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
16

 o
f 3

3



TABLE 6
SSA No. 2 (CLUBLANDS)

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT COSTS BY DEVELOPMENT PHASE
Total for All

Phases Development
Public Improvements Per Unit 1, 2, and 3 Phase 4 Phases

497 units 463 units 960 units
On-Site Improvements

Sanitary Sewer $3,309.38 $1,644,759 $1,532,241 $3,177,000
Water $2,829.96 $1,406,491 $1,310,272 $2,716,763
Road $5,877.09 $2,920,912 $2,721,091 $5,642,003
Storm Sewer $2,667.71 $1,325,851 $1,235,149 $2,561,000

----------------------------------------------------- -------------------- -------------------- ----------------------------------------
Total for On-site Improvements $14,684.13 $7,298,013 $6,798,753 $14,096,766

Off-Site Improvements
Sanitary Sewer

Mill Creek Sewer Treatment Plant for SSA No. 2 $2,775.11 $1,379,230 $1,284,877 $2,664,107
Other Sanitary Sewer for SSA No. 2 $486.85 $241,963 $225,411 $467,374

Water for SSA No. 2 $731.70 $363,654 $338,776 $702,430
Road

SR 173 Turn Lanes & Signalization $196.46 $97,643 $90,963 $188,605
Savage Road to SR 173 $160.85 $79,945 $74,476 $154,421
Savage Road to Township Line $37.24 $18,508 $17,242 $35,750
Miller Road Turn Lane $34.38 $17,084 $15,916 $33,000

Storm Sewer $250.00 $124,250 $115,750 $240,000
----------------------------------------------------- -------------------- -------------------- ----------------------------------------
Total for Off-site Improvements $4,672.59 $2,322,278 $2,163,409 $4,485,687

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
17

 o
f 3

3



TA
B

LE
 7

SS
A 

N
o.

 2
 (C

LU
B

LA
N

D
S)

AL
LO

C
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

SS
A 

N
o.

 2
 P

U
B

LI
C

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
C

O
ST

S
To

ta
l A

llo
ca

bl
e

B
on

d 
Se

rie
s

B
on

d 
Se

rie
s 

20
03

B
on

d 
Se

rie
s 

20
05

D
ev

el
op

er
's

To
ta

l A
llo

ca
bl

e
R

ec
ap

tu
ra

bl
e

Pu
bl

ic
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

to
 S

SA
 N

o.
 2

G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

Ph
as

es
 1

, 2
, 3

Ph
as

e 
4

Ph
as

es
 1

, 2
, 3

Ph
as

e 
4

Eq
ui

ty
to

 S
SA

 N
o.

 1
C

os
ts

G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

O
n-

Si
te

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 S
ew

er
$3

,1
77

,0
00

$3
,1

77
,0

00
$1

,6
44

,7
59

$0
$0

$1
,5

32
,2

41
$0

N
A 

N
A 

$3
,1

77
,0

00
W

at
er

$2
,7

16
,7

63
$2

,7
16

,7
63

$1
,4

06
,4

91
$0

$0
$1

,3
10

,2
72

$0
N

A 
N

A 
$2

,7
16

,7
63

R
oa

d
$5

,6
42

,0
03

$5
,0

47
,5

26
$2

,7
75

,8
93

$0
$0

$2
,2

71
,6

33
$5

94
,4

77
N

A 
N

A 
$5

,6
42

,0
03

St
or

m
 S

ew
er

$2
,5

61
,0

00
$2

,5
61

,0
00

$1
,3

25
,8

51
$0

$0
$1

,2
35

,1
49

$0
N

A 
N

A 
$2

,5
61

,0
00

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
--

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

--
---

---
---

---
---

---
--

---
---

---
---

---
---

--
---

---
---

---
---

---
--

---
---

---
---

---
---

--
---

---
---

---
---

---
--

---
---

---
---

---
---

--
To

ta
l O

n-
Si

te
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t C
os

ts
$1

4,
09

6,
76

6
$1

3,
50

2,
28

9
$7

,1
52

,9
95

$0
$0

$6
,3

49
,2

95
$5

94
,4

77
N

A 
N

A 
$1

4,
09

6,
76

6

O
ff-

Si
te

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 S
ew

er
M

ill 
C

re
ek

 S
ew

er
 T

re
at

m
en

t P
la

nt
 fo

r S
SA

 N
o.

 2
$2

,1
96

,7
33

$2
,1

96
,7

33
$1

,1
37

,2
67

$1
,0

59
,4

66
$0

$0
$0

N
A 

N
A 

$2
,1

96
,7

33
O

th
er

 S
an

ita
ry

 S
ew

er
 fo

r S
SA

 N
o.

 2
$4

67
,3

74
$4

67
,3

74
$2

41
,9

63
$2

25
,4

11
$0

$0
$0

$2
96

,8
71

$8
23

,3
02

$1
,5

87
,5

47
W

at
er

 fo
r S

SA
 N

o.
 2

$7
02

,4
30

$7
02

,4
30

$3
63

,6
54

$3
38

,7
76

$0
$0

$0
$2

49
,2

19
$6

29
,6

89
$1

,5
81

,3
38

R
oa

d SR
 1

73
 T

ur
n 

La
ne

s 
& 

Si
gn

al
iz

at
io

n
$1

88
,6

05
$9

0,
96

3
$0

$0
$0

$9
0,

96
3

$9
7,

64
3

$3
21

,3
95

N
A 

$5
10

,0
00

Sa
va

ge
 R

oa
d 

to
 S

R
 1

73
$1

54
,4

21
$7

4,
47

6
$0

$0
$0

$7
4,

47
6

$7
9,

94
5

$1
89

,3
29

N
A 

$3
43

,7
50

Sa
va

ge
 R

oa
d 

to
 T

ow
ns

hi
p 

Li
ne

$3
5,

75
0

$1
7,

24
2

$0
$0

$0
$1

7,
24

2
$1

8,
50

8
$0

N
A 

$3
5,

75
0

M
ille

r R
oa

d 
Tu

rn
 L

an
e

$3
3,

00
0

$1
5,

91
6

$0
$0

$0
$1

5,
91

6
$1

7,
08

4
$0

N
A 

$3
3,

00
0

St
or

m
 S

ew
er

$2
40

,0
00

$1
15

,7
50

$0
$0

$0
$1

15
,7

50
$1

24
,2

50
N

A 
N

A 
$2

40
,0

00
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

--
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
--

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

--
---

---
---

---
---

---
--

---
---

---
---

---
---

--
---

---
---

---
---

---
--

---
---

---
---

---
---

--
To

ta
l O

ff-
Si

te
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t C
os

ts
$4

,0
18

,3
13

$3
,6

80
,8

83
$1

,7
42

,8
84

$1
,6

23
,6

53
$0

$3
14

,3
46

$3
37

,4
30

$1
,0

56
,8

14
$1

,4
52

,9
91

$6
,5

28
,1

18

To
ta

l P
ub

lic
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t C
os

ts
$1

8,
11

5,
07

9
$1

7,
18

3,
17

3
$8

,8
95

,8
79

$1
,6

23
,6

53
$0

$6
,6

63
,6

41
$9

31
,9

07
$1

,0
56

,8
14

$1
,4

52
,9

91
$2

0,
62

4,
88

4
To

ta
l A

pp
lic

ab
le

 U
ni

ts
96

0
96

0
To

ta
l C

os
t P

er
 L

ot
$1

8,
87

0
$1

7,
89

9

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
18

 o
f 3

3



 

Special Tax Roll and Report  Page 16 
Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 2 April 29, 2003  

D. ALTERNATIVES, MODIFICATIONS, AND/OR SUBSTITUTIONS  
 

The description of the public improvements, as set forth herein, are general in 
nature. The final description, specifications, location, and costs of improvements 
and facilities will be determined upon the preparation of final plans and 
specifications and completion of the improvements. The final plans may show 
substitutes, in lieu or modifications to the proposed special services in order to 
accomplish the works of improvements, and any substitution, increase, or 
decrease to the amount of public improvements financed shall not be a change or 
modification in the proceedings as long as the total improvement costs actually 
funded, when allocated on a per dwelling unit basis, is equivalent for each single-
family home within SSA No. 2. 

 
IV. BONDED INDEBTEDNESS  
 

It is anticipated that the public improvements will be financed through the issuance of 
two series of bonds. Total authorized bonded indebtedness is $30,000,000. Bonds in the 
approximate amount of $13,885,000 and $8,780,000 are anticipated to be issued in May 
2003 and March 2005, respectively. Issuance costs are estimated to be approximately 
four percent of the principal amount of the bonds. Each bond issue is estimated to include 
a reserve fund equal to approximately ten percent of the original principal amount of the 
bonds and approximately two years of capitalized interest. The term of the bonds is 
expected to range from 28 to 30 years, with principal amortized over a period of 
approximately 25 to 27 years. Annual debt service payments will increase approximately 
1.50% annually. Pursuant to the Bond Ordinance, special taxes have been levied 
assuming $22,570,000 of principal at an average coupon rate of 6.875%. 
 
The final sizing of the bonds may be modified as appropriate to meet the objectives of the 
financing and prevailing bond market conditions. These modifications may include, but 
are not limited to, changes in the following: 

 
• Bond timing, phasing, and/or escrows;  
• Capitalized interest period; 
• Principal amortization (i.e., bond term and annual debt service payment); 
• Reserve fund size and form; and 
• Coupon rates. 

 
Therefore, the actual bonded indebtedness, and consequently the amount of public 
improvements financed by SSA No. 2, may increase or decrease depending upon these 
variables. 

 
V. DETERMINATION OF SPECIAL TAXES  

 
A. MAXIMUM ANNUAL SPECIAL TAXES  
 

The maximum annual special taxes are a function of the cost allocation shown in 
Table 7 and the aggregate special taxes required to pay interest and principal on 
the bonds and administrative expenses, as well as provide funds to replenish the 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
19

 o
f 3

3



 

Special Tax Roll and Report  Page 17 
Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 2 April 29, 2003  

reserve fund and/or mitigate delinquent special taxes. Expressed in percentage 
terms, interest and principal payments and administrative expenses less the 
investment earnings on the reserve fund are projected to average ninety-one 
percent (91.0%) of maximum annual special taxes, and the special taxes available 
to mitigate delinquencies are estimated to average nine percent (9.0%). Since the 
funded special services costs per dwelling unit is the same for all single-family 
homes, the maximum annual special tax is also the same for each home. The 
derivation of the maximum annual special tax is shown in Table 8 below. 

 
TABLE 8 

MAXIMUM ANNUAL SPECIAL TAXES 
(2004 LEVY YEAR/COLLECTED 2005) 

Required Maximum Annual Special Taxes $1,710,000 
Single Family Homes 960 
Maximum Annual Special Tax/Single Family Home $1,781.25 

 
The required maximum annual special taxes are based upon the bond assumptions 
set forth in Section IV above and an assumption of an average coupon rate of 
6.75%. The maximum annual special tax per single family home is simply 
computed by dividing the required maximum annual special taxes by the number 
of single-family homes. Therefore, the special taxes are proportional to the cost of 
the public improvements and bear a rational relationship to the benefit that each 
property receives therefrom. 
 
Note, that while the annual increase in the maximum annual special tax is limited 
to one and one-half percent (1.50%), which is consistent with the anticipated 
graduated payment schedule for interest and principal on the bonds, the 
percentage annual change in the actual special tax collected may be greater 
depending upon actual special tax receipts, capitalized interest, investment 
earnings, and administrative expenses. 
 

B. APPORTIONMENT AND ABATEMENT METHODOLOGY  
 
1. DEVELOPED AND UNDEVELOPED PROPERTY  
 

Benefit will be conferred in increments or phases, in accordance with the 
two series of bonds. The entire SSA will be benefited by the off-site 
improvements funded from the first series of bonds. However, the on-site 
improvements will benefit those subdivisions which are the first to be 
developed. Therefore, two classes of property have been established to 
reflect the different levels of benefit conferred prior to the second series of 
bonds.  
 
Property for which a final plat has been recorded with the County of Lake 
and in which at least one building permit has been issued will be classified 
as "Developed Property." All other property that is subject to the special 
tax will be classified as "Undeveloped Property." Following the issuance 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
20

 o
f 3

3



 

Special Tax Roll and Report  Page 18 
Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 2 April 29, 2003  

of the second series of bonds and the expenditure of all capitalized interest 
applicable thereto, the public improvement costs will be uniformly 
distributed and this distinction will no longer be necessary. 

 
2. ABATEMENT METHODOLOGY  
 

Each year, on or before the last Tuesday of December, a determination 
will be made as to the interest and principal payable on the bonds for the 
ensuing bond year, projected administrative expenses, and an allowance 
for delinquent special taxes. In the aggregate, the difference between the 
maximum annual special taxes and the sum of the preceding amounts will 
be abated. However, the abatement procedure set forth in Rate and 
Method of Levying Special Taxes ("RML") is designed to reflect the 
composition of the special tax as well as the different levels of benefit 
described in Section V.B.1 above. 

 
First, up to nine percent (9.0%) of the special tax for both Developed 
Property and Undeveloped Property is abated Second, up to the remaining 
ninety-one percent (91.0%) of the special tax for Undeveloped Property is 
abated Third, up to the remaining ninety-one percent (91.0%) of the 
special tax for Developed Property is abated. Again, the special tax that 
will be collected after the abatement procedure is completed will equal the 
estimated interest and principal on the bonds, administrative expenses, and 
delinquent special taxes.  
 
The end result is that (i) both Developed Property and Undeveloped 
Property share in the obligation to mitigate the impact of delinquent 
special taxes and (ii) the special tax collected from lots in developing 
subdivisions is commensurate with the total improvement costs to be 
funded by the SSA as set forth in Table 7, while the special tax for the 
remaining property reflects the reduced benefit attributable thereto 
pending the sale of the second series of bonds. 
 
For further details, please see Exhibit A attached hereto.  

 
 

K:\Clients2\Antioch\Clublands SSA\RMA and SSA Report\Clublands SSA RPT 7.doc

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
21

 o
f 3

3



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 

RATE AND METHOD OF LEVYING SPECIAL TAXES 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
22

 o
f 3

3



 

SSA No. 2 Page 1 of 9 April 29, 2003 

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH 
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NUMBER TWO 

(CLUBLANDS) 
 

 RATE AND METHOD OF LEVYING SPECIAL TAXES  
 
A Special Tax shall be extended and collected in the Village of Antioch Special Service Area 
Number Two (Clublands) ("SSA No. 2") each Calendar Year, in an amount determined by the 
Village of Antioch or its designee through the application of the procedures described below. All of 
the real property in SSA No. 2, unless exempted by the provisions hereof, shall be taxed for the 
purposes, to the extent and in the manner herein provided. 
 
A. DEFINITIONS 
 

The terms used herein shall have the following meanings: 
 

"Act" means the Special Service Area Tax Act, being 35 ILCS 200/27-5 et seq., as 
amended. 

 
"Administrative Expenses" means the following actual or reasonably estimated costs 
permitted in accordance with the Act and directly related to the administration of SSA No. 2 
and the Bonds as determined by the Village or its designee: the costs of computing the 
Special Taxes and of preparing the amended Special Tax Roll (whether by the Village or 
designee thereof or both); the costs of collecting the Special Taxes (whether by the Village, 
the County, or otherwise); the costs of remitting the Special Taxes to the fiscal agent and/or 
trustee for any Bonds; the costs of the fiscal agent and/or trustee (including its legal counsel) 
in the discharge of the duties required of it under any fiscal agent and/or trustee agreement; 
the costs of the Village or designee in computing the amount of rebatable arbitrage, if any; 
the costs of the Village or designee in complying with the disclosure requirements of 
applicable federal and state securities laws and of the Act, including, but not limited to, 
public inquiries regarding the Special Taxes; the costs associated with the release of funds 
from any escrow account or funds held pursuant to the Bond Indenture; and any termination 
payments owed by the Village in connection with any guaranteed investment contract, 
forward purchase agreement, or other investment of funds held under the Bond Indenture. 
Administrative Expenses shall also include amounts advanced by the Village for any 
administrative purpose of SSA No. 2 including the costs of computing Special Tax Bond 
Prepayment amounts, recording of lien satisfaction or other notices related to a Special Tax 
Bond Prepayment or Mandatory Special Tax Prepayment, discharge or satisfaction of 
Special Taxes; and the costs of commencing and pursuing to completion any foreclosure 
action arising from and pursuing the collection of delinquent Special Taxes and the 
reasonable fees of legal counsel to the Village incurred in connection with all of the 
foregoing. 
 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
23

 o
f 3

3



 

SSA No. 2 Page 2 of 9 April 29, 2003 

"Administrator" means the designee of the Village responsible for determining the Special 
Taxes and providing for the imposition and collection of the Special Taxes, continuing 
disclosure, and any other administrative efforts related to SSA No. 2. 
"Association Property" means any property within the boundaries of SSA No. 2 owned by, 
dedicated to, or conveyed to a property owner association, including any master or sub-
association, which may include outlots, parks, open space, and/or wetlands but not Single-
family Property. 
  
"Board" means the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Antioch, having 
jurisdiction over SSA No. 2. 
 
"Bond Indenture" means the trust indenture and any supplemental indentures between the 
Village and the trustee named therein authorizing the issuance of the Bonds. 
 
"Bonds" means any bonds or other debt, including refunding bonds, whether in one or more 
series, issued by the Village and secured by the Maximum Parcel Special Tax for SSA No. 2, 
the proceeds of which will be used to finance inter alia, all or a portion of the public 
improvements. 
 
"Cadastral Map" means an official map of the County GIS and Mapping Division or other 
authorized County official designating parcels by permanent index number. 
 
"Calendar Year" means the twelve-month period starting January 1 and ending December 
31. 
 
"County" means the County of Lake, Illinois. 
 
"Developed Property" means (i) prior to the issuance of the Second Series and the 
expenditure of capitalized interest attributable thereto all Single-family Property located in a 
Final Plat for which the initial building permit for residential construction within such Final 
Plat has been issued as of the September 30 preceding the Calendar Year in which the 
Special Tax is being collected and (ii) after the issuance of the Second Series and the 
expenditure of capitalized interest attributable thereto all Single-family Property. 
 
"Final Plat" means a final plat of subdivision approved by the Village and recorded with 
the County. 
 
"First Series" means the first series of Bonds issued for SSA No. 2. 
 
"Maximum Parcel Special Tax" means the maximum Special Tax, determined in 
accordance with Section B that can be collected by the Village in any Calendar Year on any 
Parcel. 
 
"Maximum SSA Special Taxes" means the aggregate Maximum Parcel Special Taxes, 
determined in accordance with Sections B and C that can be collected by the Village in any 
Calendar Year. 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
24

 o
f 3

3



 

SSA No. 2 Page 3 of 9 April 29, 2003 

 
"Parcel" means a lot or parcel within the boundaries of SSA No. 2 shown on a Cadastral 
Map and assigned a permanent index number by the office of the County Assessor or other 
authorized County official. 
 
"Preliminary Plat" means the preliminary subdivision plat for Clublands approved by the 
Village, as may be amended. 
 
"Public Property" means property within the boundaries of SSA No. 2 owned by, 
irrevocably offered, dedicated or conveyed to, or for which an easement for purposes of 
public street right-of-way has been granted to the federal government, the State of Illinois, 
the Village of Antioch or any local government or other public agency. 
 
"Second Series" means the second series of Bonds issued for SSA No. 2 (exclusive of any 
refunding Bonds). 

 
"Single-family Property" means all property within the boundaries of SSA No. 2 on which 
single-family homes have been, may be, or are anticipated to be constructed as determined 
from the Preliminary Plat, or any Final Plat, as applicable. 
 
"Special Tax" means the special tax to be collected in each Calendar Year on each Parcel to 
fund the Special Tax Requirement. 
 
"Special Tax Bond Prepayment" means that amount required to prepay the Maximum 
Parcel Special Tax computed pursuant to Section G. 

 
"Special Tax Requirement" means that amount determined by the Village or its designee 
as required in any Calendar Year to pay: (1) the Administrative Expenses, (2) debt service on 
any Bonds, (3) any amount required to replenish any reserve fund established in connection 
with such Bonds, (4) the costs of credit enhancement and fees for instruments that serve as 
the basis of a reserve fund in lieu of cash related to any such Bonds and less (5) available 
funds as directed under the Bond Indenture. 

 
"Special Tax Roll" means the Special Tax Roll included herein as Exhibit 1, as may be 
amended pursuant to Section C. 

 
"Village" means the Village of Antioch, Illinois. 
 
"Undeveloped Property" means all Single-family Property not classified as Developed 
Property. 
 

B. CLASSIFICATION OF PROPERTY 
 
On or before the last Tuesday of each Calendar Year, each Parcel shall be classified as 
Association Property, Public Property, or Single-family Property. The foregoing 
classifications shall be based on the Preliminary Plat or Final Plat, whichever is most recent 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
25

 o
f 3

3



 

SSA No. 2 Page 4 of 9 April 29, 2003 

as of the September 30 preceding the Calendar Year for which the Special Tax is being 
collected. The classification to which each Parcel is assigned shall be fixed upon the 
recordation of the Final Plat from which such Parcel was established.  
 

C. MAXIMUM PARCEL SPECIAL TAX 
 

1. Single-family Property, Association Property, and Public Property 
 

The Maximum Parcel Special Tax for Single-family Property, Association Property, 
and Public Property that has been levied in Calendar Year 2004 and which may be 
collected in Calendar Year 2005 is shown in Table 1 below. 

 

TABLE 1 
 LEVIED CALENDAR YEAR 2004 

MAXIMUM PARCEL SPECIAL TAX AMOUNTS 

Classification 
Maximum Parcel  

Special Tax 

Single-family Property $1,781.25/lot or dwelling unit 

Association Property $0.00/Parcel 

Public Property $0.00/Parcel 

 
The Maximum Parcel Special Tax for a Parcel of Single-family Property which is not 
located within a Final Plat shall be calculated by multiplying the number of expected 
single-family lots or dwelling units for such Parcel, as determined from the 
Preliminary Plat in effect as of September 30 preceding the Calendar Year for which 
the Special Tax is being collected, by the corresponding Maximum Parcel Special 
Tax per lot or dwelling unit determined pursuant to Table 1 above, as increased in 
accordance with the Section C.2 below. 

 
2. Escalation 

 
The Maximum Parcel Special Tax that has been levied in each subsequent Calendar 
Year thereafter, commencing with Calendar Year 2005, is one and one-half percent 
(1.50%) greater than the Maximum Parcel Special Tax for the preceding Calendar 
Year rounded up to the nearest dollar. 

 
3. Maximum Parcel Special Taxes 

 
The Maximum SSA Special Taxes shall not exceed $2,556,108.30. The Special Tax 
Bond Prepayment amount and Mandatory Special Tax Prepayment amounts shall not 
exceed the Principal plus any Premium, Defeasance, and Fees as such terms are 
defined in Section G.  

 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
26

 o
f 3

3



 

SSA No. 2 Page 5 of 9 April 29, 2003 

4. Special Tax Roll Amendment 
 

Each Calendar Year, in conjunction with the abatement ordinance adopted by the 
Village, the Board shall amend the Special Tax Roll to reflect the Maximum Parcel 
Special Tax applicable to any new Parcels established by the County. The amended 
Special Tax Roll shall be recorded with the County.  
 

D. METHOD OF ABATING THE SPECIAL TAX 
 

On or before the last Tuesday of December of each Calendar Year, commencing with 
Calendar Year 2004 and for each following Calendar Year, the Village or its designee shall 
determine the Special Tax Requirement and the Maximum Parcel Special Tax authorized by 
the ordinance providing for the issuance of the Bonds shall be abated as follows: 
 
First:  The Maximum Parcel Special Tax shall be abated in equal percentages on each Parcel 
of Developed Property and Undeveloped Property up to nine percent (9.00%) of the 
applicable Maximum Parcel Special Tax until the amount remaining equals the Special Tax 
Requirement;  
 
Second:  If the remaining Maximum Parcel Special Taxes levied is greater than the Special 
Tax Requirement, then the Maximum Parcel Special Tax shall be abated in equal 
percentages on each Parcel of Undeveloped Property up to one hundred percent (100%) of 
the applicable Maximum Parcel Special Tax until the amount remaining equals the Special 
Tax Requirement; and 
 
Third:  If the remaining Maximum Parcel Special Taxes levied is greater than the Special 
Tax Requirement, then the Special Tax shall be abated in equal percentages on each Parcel 
of Developed Property up to one hundred percent (100%) of the applicable Maximum Parcel 
Special Tax until the amount remaining equals the Special Tax Requirement. 
 
Abated in equal percentages means that the amount abated for each Parcel, computed as a 
percentage of its applicable Maximum Parcel Special Tax, is the same. The Maximum Parcel 
Special Tax is sized to cover a delinquency rate of approximately nine percent (9%). 
 

E. MANNER OF COLLECTION 
 

The Special Tax will be billed and collected by the County in the same manner and at the 
same time as general ad valorem property taxes. The lien and foreclosure remedies provided 
for in Article 9 of the Illinois Municipal Code shall apply upon the nonpayment of the 
Special Tax. The Board may provide for other means of collecting the Special Tax, if 
necessary to meet the financial obligations of SSA No. 2. 
 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
27

 o
f 3

3



 

SSA No. 2 Page 6 of 9 April 29, 2003 

1. Administrative Review 
 

Any owner of a Parcel claiming that a calculation error has been made in the amount 
of the Special Tax applicable to such Parcel for any Calendar Year may send a 
written notice describing the error to the Administrator not later than thirty (30) days 
after having paid the Special Tax which is alleged to be in error. The Administrator 
shall promptly review the notice, and if necessary, meet with the property owner, 
consider written and oral evidence regarding the alleged error, and decide whether, in 
fact, such an error occurred. If the Administrator determines that an error did in fact 
occur and the Special Tax should be modified or changed in favor of the property 
owner, an adjustment shall be made in the amount of the Special Tax applicable to 
such Parcel in the next Calendar Year. Cash refunds shall only be made in the final 
Calendar Year for the Special Tax). The decision of the Administrator regarding any 
error in respect to the Special Tax shall be final. 
 

F. TERM 
 

The Maximum Parcel Special Tax is not levied after Calendar Year 2031 (to be collected in 
Calendar Year 2032). 
 

G. OPTIONAL PREPAYMENT 
 

The Maximum Parcel Special Tax for any Parcel may be prepaid and the obligation of the 
Parcel to pay the Maximum Parcel Special Tax permanently satisfied as described herein, 
provided that a prepayment may be made only if there are no delinquent Special Taxes with 
respect to such Parcel at the time of prepayment. An owner of a Parcel intending to prepay 
the Maximum Parcel Special Tax shall provide the Village with written notice of intent to 
prepay. Within 30 days of receipt of such written notice, the Village or its designee shall 
notify such owner of the Special Tax Bond Prepayment for such Parcel and the date through 
which the amount any such prepayment shall be valid. 
 
1. Special Tax Bond Prepayment Prior to the Issuance of Bonds 
 

The Special Tax Bond Prepayment for a Parcel of Single-family Property prior to the 
issuance of any Bonds shall equal $17,899 per single-family lot or dwelling unit, 
subject to changes as described in Section D of the Special Tax Roll and Report for 
SSA No. 2. If at the time of the prepayment, the Parcel intending to prepay is not 
located within a Final Plat, the prepayment amount shall be calculated by multiplying 
the number of expected single-family lots or dwelling units for such Parcel as shown 
on the Preliminary Plat by the preceding Special Tax Bond Prepayment per lot or 
dwelling unit.  
 

2. Special Tax Bond Prepayment After First Series but Prior to Second Series 
 
The Special Tax Bond Prepayment for a Parcel of Single-family Property after the 
First Series but prior to the Second Series shall equal the net present value of the 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
28

 o
f 3

3



 

SSA No. 2 Page 7 of 9 April 29, 2003 

remaining Maximum Parcel Special Taxes that have been levied for such Parcel, but 
not collected, less any Reserve Fund Credit as such term is defined in Section G.3 
below. The present value of the remaining Maximum Parcel Special Taxes shall be 
computed using as the discount rate the yield on the outstanding Bonds. The 
Maximum Parcel Special Taxes shall be present valued to the later of the year in 
which the prepayment is made or the year in which all capitalized interest will be 
expended. If at the time of the prepayment, the Parcel intending to prepay is not 
located within a Final Plat, the prepayment amount shall be calculated by multiplying 
the number of expected single-family lots or dwelling units for such Parcel as shown 
on the Preliminary Plat by the corresponding prepayment amount per single-family 
lot or dwelling unit.  
 

3. Special Tax Bond Prepayment Subsequent to the Second Series 
 
Subsequent to the issuance of the Second Series, the Special Tax Bond Prepayment 
for a Parcel means an amount equal to (a) the sum of (1) Principal, (2) Premium, (3) 
Defeasance, and (4) Fees and (b) minus the Reserve Fund Credit, where the terms 
"Principal," "Premium," "Defeasance," "Fees," and "Reserve Fund Credit" have the 
following meanings: 
 

"Principal" means the principal amount of Bonds to be redeemed and equals 
the quotient derived by dividing (a) the then applicable Maximum Parcel 
Special Tax for the Parcel intending to prepay by (b) the corresponding 
aggregate Maximum Parcel Special Taxes for SSA No. 2, (and excluding 
from (b) that portion of the Maximum Parcel Special Tax for any Parcel(s) 
that has been prepaid), and multiplying the quotient by the principal amount 
of outstanding Bonds. 

 
"Premium" means an amount equal to the Principal multiplied by the 
applicable redemption premium, if any, for any Bonds so redeemed with the 
proceeds of any such prepayment. Any applicable redemption premium shall 
be as set forth in the Bond Indenture. 

 
"Defeasance" means the amount needed to pay interest on the Principal to 
be redeemed until the earliest redemption date for the outstanding Bonds less 
for any Special Tax heretofore paid and which is not needed to pay 
Administrative Expenses nor has been used for the Special Tax Requirement. 

 
"Fees" equal the expenses of SSA No. 2 associated with the Special Tax 
Bond Prepayment as calculated by the Village or its designee and include, 
but are not limited to, the costs of computing the Special Tax Bond 
Prepayment, the costs of redeeming the Bonds, and the costs of recording and 
publishing any notices to evidence the Special Tax Bond Prepayment and the 
redemption of Bonds. 
"Reserve Fund Credit" shall equal the lesser of (i) the expected reduction 
in the applicable Reserve Requirement (as defined in the Bond Indenture), if 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
29

 o
f 3

3



 

SSA No. 2 Page 8 of 9 April 29, 2003 

any, following the redemption of Bonds from proceeds of the Special Tax 
Bond Prepayment or (ii) the amount derived by subtracting the new Reserve 
Requirement in effect after the redemption of Bonds from proceeds of the 
Special Tax Bond Prepayment from the balance in the Reserve Fund (as 
defined in the Bond Indenture) on the prepayment date, but in no event shall 
such amount be less than zero. Reserve Fund earnings to be applied toward 
the Special Tax Requirement shall not be considered when computing the 
Reserve Fund Credit. 

 
The Maximum Parcel Special Tax may also be prepaid in part, provided that proceeds for 
any such prepayment are sufficient to permit the redemption of Bonds in such amounts and 
maturities deemed necessary by the Administrator and in accordance with the Bond 
Indenture. The amount of any partial Special Tax Bond Prepayment shall be computed 
pursuant to the appropriate preceding section substituting the portion of the Maximum Parcel 
Special Tax to be prepaid for the Maximum Parcel Special Tax when computing Principal. 

  
The sum of the amounts calculated in Section G.1 shall be paid to the Village, deposited with 
the trustee, and used to pay for public improvements in accordance with the Bond Indenture 
and to pay the Fees associated with the Special Tax Bond Prepayment. The sum of the 
amounts calculated in the Sections G.2 and G.3 shall be paid to the Village, deposited with 
the trustee, and used to pay and redeem Bonds in accordance with the Bond Indenture and to 
pay the Fees associated with the Special Tax Bond Prepayment. Upon the payment of the 
Special Tax Bond Prepayment amount to the Village, the obligation to pay the portion of the 
Maximum Parcel Special Tax which is prepaid for such Parcel shall be deemed to be 
permanently satisfied, such portion of the Maximum Parcel Special Tax shall not be 
collected thereafter from such Parcel, and in the event the entire Maximum Parcel Special 
Tax is prepaid the Administrator shall cause a satisfaction of special tax lien for such Parcel 
to be recorded within 30 working days of receipt of the Special Tax Bond Prepayment.  
 

H. MANDATORY SPECIAL TAX PREPAYMENT 
 

If at any time the Administrator determines that there has been or will be a reduction in the 
Maximum SSA Special Taxes as a result of an amendment to the Preliminary Plat, Final 
Plat, or other event which reduces the expected number of single-family lots or dwelling 
units (i.e., 960), then a mandatory prepayment of the Maximum Parcel Special Tax (the 
"Mandatory Special Tax Prepayment") corresponding to such reduction shall be calculated. 
The Mandatory Special Tax Prepayment amount will be calculated using the prepayment 
formula described in Section G, as applicable, with the following modifications: 
 

The amount by which the Maximum SSA Special Taxes have been reduced 
shall serve as the numerator when computing Principal; and 
 
No Reserve Fund Credit shall be given. 

The Mandatory Special Tax Prepayment shall be due prior to any development approval, 
subdivision of land, conveyance, or other action that results in a reduction in the Maximum 
SSA Special Taxes. The Mandatory Special Tax Prepayment shall be levied against the 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
30

 o
f 3

3



 

SSA No. 2 Page 9 of 9 April 29, 2003 

property on which the reduction has or will occur. The Mandatory Special Tax Prepayment 
shall have the same sale and lien priorities as are provided for regular property taxes. A 
Mandatory Special Tax Prepayment shall not reduce the Maximum Parcel Special Tax for 
any Parcel. The amount of any Mandatory Special Tax Prepayment shall not exceed the 
Principal plus any Premium, Defeasance, and Fees as such terms are defined in Section G. 
 

I. AMENDMENTS 
 

This Rate and Method of Levying Special Taxes may be amended by ordinance of the 
Village and, to the maximum extent permitted by the Act, such amendments may be made 
without further notice under the Act and without notice to owners of property within SSA 
No. 2 in order to (i) clarify or correct minor inconsistencies in the matters set forth herein, 
(ii) provide for lawful procedures for the collection and enforcement of the Special Tax so as 
to assure the efficient collection of the Special Tax for the benefit of the owners of the 
Bonds, (iii) otherwise improve the ability of the Village to fulfill its obligations to levy, 
extend, and collect the Special Tax and to make it available for the payment of the Bonds 
and Administrative Expenses, and (iv) make any change deemed necessary or advisable by 
the Village, provided such change is not detrimental to the owners of property subject to the 
Maximum Parcel Special Tax. No such amendment shall be approved by the Board if it 
violates any other agreement binding upon the Village and unless and until it has (i) found 
and determined that the amendment is necessary and appropriate and does not materially 
adversely affect the rights of the owners of the Bonds or the Village has obtained the consent 
of one hundred percent (100.00%) of the owners of the Bonds and (ii) received an opinion of 
a nationally recognized bond counsel to the effect that the amendment does not violate the 
Act, and is authorized pursuant to the terms of the Bond Indenture and this Rate and Method 
of Levying Special Taxes. 
 
 

K:\Clients2\Antioch\Clublands SSA\RMA and SSA Report\Clublands RMA 5.doc 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
31

 o
f 3

3



 
 

EXHIBIT 1 
 

SPECIAL TAX ROLL 

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
32

 o
f 3

3



SS
A

 N
o.

 2
  O

F 
TH

E 
VI

LL
A

G
E 

O
F 

A
N

IT
O

C
H

C
LU

B
LA

N
D

S
SP

EC
IA

L 
TA

X 
R

O
LL

 (L
EV

Y 
YE

A
R

 2
00

4 
TH

R
O

U
G

H
 L

EV
Y 

YE
A

R
 2

03
1)

M
ax

im
um

Pe
rm

an
en

t I
nd

ex
 N

um
be

r
Le

vy
Pa

rc
el

 S
pe

ci
al

02
-2

2-
20

0-
00

4
02

-2
2-

20
0-

00
7

02
-2

2-
20

0-
00

9
02

-2
2-

40
0-

00
2

02
-2

3-
30

0-
00

1
02

-2
3-

30
0-

00
2

02
-2

3-
30

0-
00

3
02

-2
3-

40
0-

00
1

G
R

AN
D

Ye
ar

Ta
x 

Pe
r L

ot
82

38
3

13
3

42
13

3
5

14
1

41
TO

TA
L

20
04

$1
,7

81
.2

5
$1

46
,0

62
.5

0
$6

82
,2

18
.7

5
$2

36
,9

06
.2

5
$7

4,
81

2.
50

$2
36

,9
06

.2
5

$8
,9

06
.2

5
$2

51
,1

56
.2

5
$7

3,
03

1.
25

$1
,7

10
,0

00
.0

0
20

05
$1

,8
07

.9
7

$1
48

,2
53

.4
4

$6
92

,4
52

.0
3

$2
40

,4
59

.8
4

$7
5,

93
4.

69
$2

40
,4

59
.8

4
$9

,0
39

.8
4

$2
54

,9
23

.5
9

$7
4,

12
6.

72
$1

,7
35

,6
50

.0
0

20
06

$1
,8

35
.0

9
$1

50
,4

77
.2

4
$7

02
,8

38
.8

1
$2

44
,0

66
.7

4
$7

7,
07

3.
71

$2
44

,0
66

.7
4

$9
,1

75
.4

4
$2

58
,7

47
.4

5
$7

5,
23

8.
62

$1
,7

61
,6

84
.7

5
20

07
$1

,8
62

.6
1

$1
52

,7
34

.4
0

$7
13

,3
81

.3
9

$2
47

,7
27

.7
4

$7
8,

22
9.

81
$2

47
,7

27
.7

4
$9

,3
13

.0
7

$2
62

,6
28

.6
6

$7
6,

36
7.

20
$1

,7
88

,1
10

.0
2

20
08

$1
,8

90
.5

5
$1

55
,0

25
.4

1
$7

24
,0

82
.1

1
$2

51
,4

43
.6

6
$7

9,
40

3.
26

$2
51

,4
43

.6
6

$9
,4

52
.7

7
$2

66
,5

68
.0

9
$7

7,
51

2.
71

$1
,8

14
,9

31
.6

7
20

09
$1

,9
18

.9
1

$1
57

,3
50

.7
9

$7
34

,9
43

.3
5

$2
55

,2
15

.3
1

$8
0,

59
4.

31
$2

55
,2

15
.3

1
$9

,5
94

.5
6

$2
70

,5
66

.6
1

$7
8,

67
5.

40
$1

,8
42

,1
55

.6
5

20
10

$1
,9

47
.7

0
$1

59
,7

11
.0

6
$7

45
,9

67
.5

0
$2

59
,0

43
.5

4
$8

1,
80

3.
22

$2
59

,0
43

.5
4

$9
,7

38
.4

8
$2

74
,6

25
.1

1
$7

9,
85

5.
53

$1
,8

69
,7

87
.9

8
20

11
$1

,9
76

.9
1

$1
62

,1
06

.7
2

$7
57

,1
57

.0
1

$2
62

,9
29

.2
0

$8
3,

03
0.

27
$2

62
,9

29
.2

0
$9

,8
84

.5
6

$2
78

,7
44

.4
9

$8
1,

05
3.

36
$1

,8
97

,8
34

.8
0

20
12

$2
,0

06
.5

6
$1

64
,5

38
.3

2
$7

68
,5

14
.3

6
$2

66
,8

73
.1

3
$8

4,
27

5.
73

$2
66

,8
73

.1
3

$1
0,

03
2.

82
$2

82
,9

25
.6

5
$8

2,
26

9.
16

$1
,9

26
,3

02
.3

2
20

13
$2

,0
36

.6
6

$1
67

,0
06

.4
0

$7
80

,0
42

.0
8

$2
70

,8
76

.2
3

$8
5,

53
9.

86
$2

70
,8

76
.2

3
$1

0,
18

3.
32

$2
87

,1
69

.5
4

$8
3,

50
3.

20
$1

,9
55

,1
96

.8
6

20
14

$2
,0

67
.2

1
$1

69
,5

11
.4

9
$7

91
,7

42
.7

1
$2

74
,9

39
.3

7
$8

6,
82

2.
96

$2
74

,9
39

.3
7

$1
0,

33
6.

07
$2

91
,4

77
.0

8
$8

4,
75

5.
75

$1
,9

84
,5

24
.8

1
20

15
$2

,0
98

.2
2

$1
72

,0
54

.1
7

$8
03

,6
18

.8
5

$2
79

,0
63

.4
7

$8
8,

12
5.

30
$2

79
,0

63
.4

7
$1

0,
49

1.
11

$2
95

,8
49

.2
4

$8
6,

02
7.

08
$2

,0
14

,2
92

.6
8

20
16

$2
,1

29
.6

9
$1

74
,6

34
.9

8
$8

15
,6

73
.1

3
$2

83
,2

49
.4

2
$8

9,
44

7.
18

$2
83

,2
49

.4
2

$1
0,

64
8.

47
$3

00
,2

86
.9

8
$8

7,
31

7.
49

$2
,0

44
,5

07
.0

7
20

17
$2

,1
61

.6
4

$1
77

,2
54

.5
0

$8
27

,9
08

.2
3

$2
87

,4
98

.1
6

$9
0,

78
8.

89
$2

87
,4

98
.1

6
$1

0,
80

8.
20

$3
04

,7
91

.2
8

$8
8,

62
7.

25
$2

,0
75

,1
74

.6
8

20
18

$2
,1

94
.0

6
$1

79
,9

13
.3

2
$8

40
,3

26
.8

5
$2

91
,8

10
.6

3
$9

2,
15

0.
73

$2
91

,8
10

.6
3

$1
0,

97
0.

32
$3

09
,3

63
.1

5
$8

9,
95

6.
66

$2
,1

06
,3

02
.3

0
20

19
$2

,2
26

.9
8

$1
82

,6
12

.0
2

$8
52

,9
31

.7
6

$2
96

,1
87

.7
9

$9
3,

53
2.

99
$2

96
,1

87
.7

9
$1

1,
13

4.
88

$3
14

,0
03

.6
0

$9
1,

30
6.

01
$2

,1
37

,8
96

.8
3

20
20

$2
,2

60
.3

8
$1

85
,3

51
.2

0
$8

65
,7

25
.7

3
$3

00
,6

30
.6

1
$9

4,
93

5.
98

$3
00

,6
30

.6
1

$1
1,

30
1.

90
$3

18
,7

13
.6

5
$9

2,
67

5.
60

$2
,1

69
,9

65
.2

9
20

21
$2

,2
94

.2
9

$1
88

,1
31

.4
7

$8
78

,7
11

.6
2

$3
05

,1
40

.0
7

$9
6,

36
0.

02
$3

05
,1

40
.0

7
$1

1,
47

1.
43

$3
23

,4
94

.3
6

$9
4,

06
5.

73
$2

,2
02

,5
14

.7
7

20
22

$2
,3

28
.7

0
$1

90
,9

53
.4

4
$8

91
,8

92
.2

9
$3

09
,7

17
.1

7
$9

7,
80

5.
42

$3
09

,7
17

.1
7

$1
1,

64
3.

50
$3

28
,3

46
.7

7
$9

5,
47

6.
72

$2
,2

35
,5

52
.4

9
20

23
$2

,3
63

.6
3

$1
93

,8
17

.7
4

$9
05

,2
70

.6
8

$3
14

,3
62

.9
3

$9
9,

27
2.

50
$3

14
,3

62
.9

3
$1

1,
81

8.
16

$3
33

,2
71

.9
7

$9
6,

90
8.

87
$2

,2
69

,0
85

.7
7

20
24

$2
,3

99
.0

9
$1

96
,7

25
.0

1
$9

18
,8

49
.7

4
$3

19
,0

78
.3

7
$1

00
,7

61
.5

9
$3

19
,0

78
.3

7
$1

1,
99

5.
43

$3
38

,2
71

.0
5

$9
8,

36
2.

50
$2

,3
03

,1
22

.0
6

20
25

$2
,4

35
.0

7
$1

99
,6

75
.8

8
$9

32
,6

32
.4

9
$3

23
,8

64
.5

4
$1

02
,2

73
.0

1
$3

23
,8

64
.5

4
$1

2,
17

5.
36

$3
43

,3
45

.1
2

$9
9,

83
7.

94
$2

,3
37

,6
68

.8
9

20
26

$2
,4

71
.6

0
$2

02
,6

71
.0

2
$9

46
,6

21
.9

7
$3

28
,7

22
.5

1
$1

03
,8

07
.1

1
$3

28
,7

22
.5

1
$1

2,
35

7.
99

$3
48

,4
95

.3
0

$1
01

,3
35

.5
1

$2
,3

72
,7

33
.9

3
20

27
$2

,5
08

.6
7

$2
05

,7
11

.0
9

$9
60

,8
21

.3
0

$3
33

,6
53

.3
5

$1
05

,3
64

.2
2

$3
33

,6
53

.3
5

$1
2,

54
3.

36
$3

53
,7

22
.7

2
$1

02
,8

55
.5

4
$2

,4
08

,3
24

.9
3

20
28

$2
,5

46
.3

0
$2

08
,7

96
.7

5
$9

75
,2

33
.6

2
$3

38
,6

58
.1

5
$1

06
,9

44
.6

8
$3

38
,6

58
.1

5
$1

2,
73

1.
51

$3
59

,0
28

.5
7

$1
04

,3
98

.3
8

$2
,4

44
,4

49
.8

1
20

29
$2

,5
84

.5
0

$2
11

,9
28

.7
1

$9
89

,8
62

.1
3

$3
43

,7
38

.0
2

$1
08

,5
48

.8
5

$3
43

,7
38

.0
2

$1
2,

92
2.

48
$3

64
,4

13
.9

9
$1

05
,9

64
.3

5
$2

,4
81

,1
16

.5
6

20
30

$2
,6

23
.2

6
$2

15
,1

07
.6

4
$1

,0
04

,7
10

.0
6

$3
48

,8
94

.0
9

$1
10

,1
77

.0
8

$3
48

,8
94

.0
9

$1
3,

11
6.

32
$3

69
,8

80
.2

0
$1

07
,5

53
.8

2
$2

,5
18

,3
33

.3
0

20
31

$2
,6

62
.6

1
$2

18
,3

34
.2

5
$1

,0
19

,7
80

.7
1

$3
54

,1
27

.5
0

$1
11

,8
29

.7
4

$3
54

,1
27

.5
0

$1
3,

31
3.

06
$3

75
,4

28
.4

1
$1

09
,1

67
.1

3
$2

,5
56

,1
08

.3
0

V
IL

LA
G

E
 O

F 
A

N
TI

O
C

H
 S

S
A

 N
O

. 2
 A

D
M

IN
S

TR
A

TI
O

N
 R

E
P

O
R

T 
| E

X
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

S
P

E
C

IA
L 

TA
X

 R
O

LL
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
O

R
T 

| P
A

G
E

 P
ag

e 
33

 o
f 3

3



 

 

 EXHIBIT D 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 2 
 

Funds and Accounts  
  
 

  
 



SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 2
OF THE VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH

S T B S 2003SPECIAL TAX BONDS, SERIES 2003
FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS

SSA NO. 2
FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS

REBATE FUND

IMPROVEMENT
ACCOUNT

CAPITALIZED
INTEREST ACCOUNT

SPECIAL REDEMPTION
ACCOUNT

IMPROVEMENT
FUND

RESERVE FUNDBOND AND
INTEREST FUND

ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSE FUND

COST OF ISSUANCE
ACCOUNTACCOUNTINTEREST ACCOUNTACCOUNT ACCOUNT

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH SSA NO. 2 ADMINSTRATION REPORT: EXHIBIT D | PAGE 1 of 1



 

 

 EXHIBIT E 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 2 
 

Application of Special Tax  
  
 

  
 



SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 2
OF THE VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH

S T B S 2003SPECIAL TAX BONDS, SERIES 2003 
APPLICATION OF SPECIAL TAX1

SSA NO. 2
FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS

REBATE FUND

CAPITALIZED

INTEREST ACCOUNT

SPECIAL REDEMPTION

ACCOUNT

IMPROVEMENT

FUND

RESERVE FUNDBOND AND

INTEREST FUND

ADMINISTRATIVE

EXPENSE FUND
12 3 2

IMPROVEMENT
ACCOUNT

COST OF ISSUANCE
ACCOUNTINTEREST ACCOUNTACCOUNT ACCOUNT ACCOUNT

1Special Tax applied in sequence indicated.
2In an amount sufficient to pay interest and principal on the Bonds.

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH SSA NO. 2 ADMINSTRATION REPORT: EXHIBIT E | PAGE 1 of 1



 

 

 EXHIBIT F 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 2 
 

Application of Earnings  
  
 

  
 



SPECIAL SERVICE AREA NO. 2
OF THE VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH

S T B S 2003SPECIAL TAX BONDS, SERIES 2003
APPLICATION OF EARNINGS1

SSA NO. 2
FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS

REBATE FUND

CAPITALIZED

INTEREST ACCOUNT

SPECIAL REDEMPTION

ACCOUNT

IMPROVEMENT

FUND

RESERVE FUNDBOND AND

INTEREST FUND

ADMINISTRATIVE

EXPENSE FUND

IMPROVEMENT
ACCOUNT

COST OF ISSUANCE
ACCOUNTINTEREST ACCOUNTACCOUNT ACCOUNT ACCOUNT

1 Earnings remain in fund or account from which they accrued unless otherwise indicated.

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH SSA NO. 2 ADMINSTRATION REPORT: EXHIBIT F | PAGE 1 of 1



 

 

 EXHIBIT G 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 2 
 

Monthly Sources and Uses of Funds  
  
 

  
 



 Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 2
Clublands - Series 2003

October 2010

ADMINISTRATIVE COST OF BOND & CAPITALIZED SPECIAL
EXPENSE IMPROVEMENT ISSUANCE INTEREST PREPAID FEES INTEREST RESERVE REBATE REDEMPTION

FUND FUND ACCOUNT FUNDFUND ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FUND FUND ACCOUNT TOTAL

BEGINNING BALANCE $212,774 $321,090 $0 $895,939 $0 $0 $1,372,009 $0 $76 $2,801,888

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS $0 $0 $0 $5,414 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,414
INVESTMENT AGREEMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER INVESTMENT EARNINGS $1 $2 $0 $5 $0 $0 $9 $0 $0 $17
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL SOURCES $1 $2 $0 $5,419 $0 $0 $9 $0 $0 $5,432

USES OF FUNDS
INTEREST PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES ($6,302) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($6,302)
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL USES ($6,302) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($6,302)

TRANSFERS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ACCRUED INTEREST PAID $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ENDING BALANCE $206,473 $321,092 $0 $901,358 $0 $0 $1,372,018 $0 $76 $2,801,018

PRINTED: 11/07/11 12:16
PPAGE:32



 Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 2
Clublands - Series 2003

November 2010

ADMINISTRATIVE COST OF BOND & CAPITALIZED SPECIAL
EXPENSE IMPROVEMENT ISSUANCE INTEREST PREPAID FEES INTEREST RESERVE REBATE REDEMPTION

FUND FUND ACCOUNT FUNDFUND ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FUND FUND ACCOUNT TOTAL

BEGINNING BALANCE $206,473 $321,092 $0 $901,358 $0 $0 $1,372,018 $0 $76 $2,801,018

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS $0 $0 $0 $2,157 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,157
INVESTMENT AGREEMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER INVESTMENT EARNINGS $1 $2 $0 $6 $0 $0 $9 $0 $0 $18
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL SOURCES $1 $2 $0 $2,163 $0 $0 $9 $0 $0 $2,175

USES OF FUNDS
INTEREST PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES ($1,119) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($1,119)
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL USES ($1,119) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($1,119)

TRANSFERS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ACCRUED INTEREST PAID $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ENDING BALANCE $205,356 $321,094 $0 $903,521 $0 $0 $1,372,027 $0 $76 $2,802,074

PRINTED: 11/07/11 12:16
PPAGE:33



 Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 2
Clublands - Series 2003

December 2010

ADMINISTRATIVE COST OF BOND & CAPITALIZED SPECIAL
EXPENSE IMPROVEMENT ISSUANCE INTEREST PREPAID FEES INTEREST RESERVE REBATE REDEMPTION

FUND FUND ACCOUNT FUNDFUND ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FUND FUND ACCOUNT TOTAL

BEGINNING BALANCE $205,356 $321,094 $0 $903,521 $0 $0 $1,372,027 $0 $76 $2,802,074

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS $0 $0 $0 $9,421 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,421
INVESTMENT AGREEMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER INVESTMENT EARNINGS $1 $2 $0 $6 $0 $0 $9 $0 $0 $17
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL SOURCES $1 $2 $0 $9,426 $0 $0 $9 $0 $0 $9,438

USES OF FUNDS
INTEREST PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES ($11,317) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($11,317)
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL USES ($11,317) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($11,317)

TRANSFERS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ACCRUED INTEREST PAID $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ENDING BALANCE $194,041 $321,096 $0 $912,947 $0 $0 $1,372,035 $0 $76 $2,800,195

PRINTED: 11/07/11 12:16
PPAGE:34



 Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 2
Clublands - Series 2003

January 2011

ADMINISTRATIVE COST OF BOND & CAPITALIZED SPECIAL
EXPENSE IMPROVEMENT ISSUANCE INTEREST PREPAID FEES INTEREST RESERVE REBATE REDEMPTION

FUND FUND ACCOUNT FUNDFUND ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FUND FUND ACCOUNT TOTAL

BEGINNING BALANCE $194,041 $321,096 $0 $912,947 $0 $0 $1,372,035 $0 $76 $2,800,195

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
INVESTMENT AGREEMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER INVESTMENT EARNINGS $1 $2 $0 $6 $0 $0 $9 $0 $0 $19
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL SOURCES $1 $2 $0 $6 $0 $0 $9 $0 $0 $19

USES OF FUNDS
INTEREST PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES ($5,151) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($5,151)
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL USES ($5,151) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($5,151)

TRANSFERS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ACCRUED INTEREST PAID $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ENDING BALANCE $188,891 $321,098 $0 $912,954 $0 $0 $1,372,045 $0 $76 $2,795,063

PRINTED: 11/07/11 12:16
PPAGE:35



 Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 2
Clublands - Series 2003

February 2011

ADMINISTRATIVE COST OF BOND & CAPITALIZED SPECIAL
EXPENSE IMPROVEMENT ISSUANCE INTEREST PREPAID FEES INTEREST RESERVE REBATE REDEMPTION

FUND FUND ACCOUNT FUNDFUND ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FUND FUND ACCOUNT TOTAL

BEGINNING BALANCE $188,891 $321,098 $0 $912,954 $0 $0 $1,372,045 $0 $76 $2,795,063

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
INVESTMENT AGREEMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER INVESTMENT EARNINGS $1 $2 $0 $6 $0 $0 $10 $0 $0 $20
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL SOURCES $1 $2 $0 $6 $0 $0 $10 $0 $0 $20

USES OF FUNDS
INTEREST PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL USES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TRANSFERS $0 $0 $0 $54 $0 $0 ($54) $0 $0 $0

ACCRUED INTEREST PAID $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ENDING BALANCE $188,892 $321,100 $0 $913,014 $0 $0 $1,372,000 $0 $76 $2,795,083

PRINTED: 11/07/11 12:16
PPAGE:36



 Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 2
Clublands - Series 2003

March 2011

ADMINISTRATIVE COST OF BOND & CAPITALIZED SPECIAL
EXPENSE IMPROVEMENT ISSUANCE INTEREST PREPAID FEES INTEREST RESERVE REBATE REDEMPTION

FUND FUND ACCOUNT FUNDFUND ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FUND FUND ACCOUNT TOTAL

BEGINNING BALANCE $188,892 $321,100 $0 $913,014 $0 $0 $1,372,000 $0 $76 $2,795,083

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
INVESTMENT AGREEMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER INVESTMENT EARNINGS $1 $2 $0 $6 $0 $0 $9 $0 $0 $18
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL SOURCES $1 $2 $0 $6 $0 $0 $9 $0 $0 $18

USES OF FUNDS
INTEREST PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 ($570,351) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($570,351)
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES ($26,646) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($26,646)
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL USES ($26,646) $0 $0 ($570,351) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($596,997)

TRANSFERS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ACCRUED INTEREST PAID $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ENDING BALANCE $162,248 $321,102 $0 $342,669 $0 $0 $1,372,009 $0 $76 $2,198,104

PRINTED: 11/07/11 12:16
PPAGE:37



 Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 2
Clublands - Series 2003

April 2011

ADMINISTRATIVE COST OF BOND & CAPITALIZED SPECIAL
EXPENSE IMPROVEMENT ISSUANCE INTEREST PREPAID FEES INTEREST RESERVE REBATE REDEMPTION

FUND FUND ACCOUNT FUNDFUND ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FUND FUND ACCOUNT TOTAL

BEGINNING BALANCE $162,248 $321,102 $0 $342,669 $0 $0 $1,372,009 $0 $76 $2,198,104

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
INVESTMENT AGREEMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER INVESTMENT EARNINGS $1 $2 $0 $2 $0 $0 $9 $0 $0 $15
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL SOURCES $1 $2 $0 $2 $0 $0 $9 $0 $0 $15

USES OF FUNDS
INTEREST PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES ($9,446) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($9,446)
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL USES ($9,446) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($9,446)

TRANSFERS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ACCRUED INTEREST PAID $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ENDING BALANCE $152,803 $321,105 $0 $342,671 $0 $0 $1,372,018 $0 $76 $2,188,673

PRINTED: 11/07/11 12:16
PPAGE:38



 Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 2
Clublands - Series 2003

May 2011

ADMINISTRATIVE COST OF BOND & CAPITALIZED SPECIAL
EXPENSE IMPROVEMENT ISSUANCE INTEREST PREPAID FEES INTEREST RESERVE REBATE REDEMPTION

FUND FUND ACCOUNT FUNDFUND ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FUND FUND ACCOUNT TOTAL

BEGINNING BALANCE $152,803 $321,105 $0 $342,671 $0 $0 $1,372,018 $0 $76 $2,188,673

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
INVESTMENT AGREEMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER INVESTMENT EARNINGS $1 $2 $0 $2 $0 $0 $9 $0 $0 $14
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL SOURCES $1 $2 $0 $2 $0 $0 $9 $0 $0 $14

USES OF FUNDS
INTEREST PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES ($8,476) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($8,476)
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL USES ($8,476) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($8,476)

TRANSFERS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ACCRUED INTEREST PAID $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ENDING BALANCE $144,328 $321,107 $0 $342,674 $0 $0 $1,372,027 $0 $76 $2,180,211

PRINTED: 11/07/11 12:16
PPAGE:39



 Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 2
Clublands - Series 2003

June 2011

ADMINISTRATIVE COST OF BOND & CAPITALIZED SPECIAL
EXPENSE IMPROVEMENT ISSUANCE INTEREST PREPAID FEES INTEREST RESERVE REBATE REDEMPTION

FUND FUND ACCOUNT FUNDFUND ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FUND FUND ACCOUNT TOTAL

BEGINNING BALANCE $144,328 $321,107 $0 $342,674 $0 $0 $1,372,027 $0 $76 $2,180,211

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS $0 $0 $0 $277,069 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $277,069
INVESTMENT AGREEMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER INVESTMENT EARNINGS $1 $2 $0 $2 $0 $0 $8 $0 $0 $12
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL SOURCES $1 $2 $0 $277,070 $0 $0 $8 $0 $0 $277,081

USES OF FUNDS
INTEREST PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES ($2,250) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($2,250)
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL USES ($2,250) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($2,250)

TRANSFERS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ACCRUED INTEREST PAID $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ENDING BALANCE $142,078 $321,109 $0 $619,744 $0 $0 $1,372,035 $0 $76 $2,455,042

PRINTED: 11/07/11 12:16
PPAGE:40



 Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 2
Clublands - Series 2003

July 2011

ADMINISTRATIVE COST OF BOND & CAPITALIZED SPECIAL
EXPENSE IMPROVEMENT ISSUANCE INTEREST PREPAID FEES INTEREST RESERVE REBATE REDEMPTION

FUND FUND ACCOUNT FUNDFUND ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FUND FUND ACCOUNT TOTAL

BEGINNING BALANCE $142,078 $321,109 $0 $619,744 $0 $0 $1,372,035 $0 $76 $2,455,042

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS $0 $0 $0 $6,568 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,568
INVESTMENT AGREEMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER INVESTMENT EARNINGS $1 $2 $0 $3 $0 $0 $7 $0 $0 $12
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL SOURCES $1 $2 $0 $6,571 $0 $0 $7 $0 $0 $6,580

USES OF FUNDS
INTEREST PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES ($15,533) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($15,533)
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL USES ($15,533) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($15,533)

TRANSFERS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ACCRUED INTEREST PAID $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ENDING BALANCE $126,547 $321,110 $0 $626,315 $0 $0 $1,372,042 $0 $76 $2,446,090

PRINTED: 11/07/11 12:16
PPAGE:41



 Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 2
Clublands - Series 2003

August 2011

ADMINISTRATIVE COST OF BOND & CAPITALIZED SPECIAL
EXPENSE IMPROVEMENT ISSUANCE INTEREST PREPAID FEES INTEREST RESERVE REBATE REDEMPTION

FUND FUND ACCOUNT FUNDFUND ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FUND FUND ACCOUNT TOTAL

BEGINNING BALANCE $126,547 $321,110 $0 $626,315 $0 $0 $1,372,042 $0 $76 $2,446,090

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS $0 $0 $0 $9,748 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,748
INVESTMENT AGREEMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER INVESTMENT EARNINGS $1 $2 $0 $3 $0 $0 $7 $0 $0 $13
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL SOURCES $1 $2 $0 $9,751 $0 $0 $7 $0 $0 $9,761

USES OF FUNDS
INTEREST PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL USES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TRANSFERS $0 $0 $0 $49 $0 $0 ($49) $0 $0 $0

ACCRUED INTEREST PAID $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ENDING BALANCE $126,547 $321,112 $0 $636,115 $0 $0 $1,372,000 $0 $76 $2,455,850

PRINTED: 11/07/11 12:16
PPAGE:42



 Village of Antioch Special Service Area No. 2
Clublands - Series 2003

September 2011

ADMINISTRATIVE COST OF BOND & CAPITALIZED SPECIAL
EXPENSE IMPROVEMENT ISSUANCE INTEREST PREPAID FEES INTEREST RESERVE REBATE REDEMPTION

FUND FUND ACCOUNT FUNDFUND ACCOUNT ACCOUNT FUND FUND ACCOUNT TOTAL

BEGINNING BALANCE $126,547 $321,112 $0 $636,115 $0 $0 $1,372,000 $0 $76 $2,455,850

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SPECIAL TAX RECEIPTS $0 $0 $0 $249,155 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $249,155
INVESTMENT AGREEMENT EARNINGS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
OTHER INVESTMENT EARNINGS $1 $2 $0 $3 $0 $0 $7 $0 $0 $13
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL SOURCES $1 $2 $0 $249,158 $0 $0 $7 $0 $0 $249,167

USES OF FUNDS
INTEREST PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 ($438,111) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($438,111)
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
MISCELLANEOUS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL USES $0 $0 $0 ($438,111) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($438,111)

TRANSFERS $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ACCRUED INTEREST PAID $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ENDING BALANCE $126,548 $321,113 $0 $447,162 $0 $0 $1,372,007 $0 $76 $2,266,906

PRINTED: 11/07/11 12:16
PPAGE:43



 

 

EXHIBIT H 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Village of Antioch SSA No. 2 
 

2011 Amended Special Tax Roll 
  
 

  
 
 
 

 



Village of Antioch
Special Service Area Number Two

(Clublands)
Levy Year 2011 / Collection Year 2012

PIN Lot
Land
Use

# of
Units

Original
Amount

Levied

Amount
to be

Abated

2011 Special Tax  Levy

Amount to be
Collected/

LeviedPhase

PAID $3,953.82PREPAY 2 $0.00$3,953.82
UNPAID $5,930.73PREPAY 3 $0.00$5,930.73

Subtotal $0.005 $9,884.55$9,884.55

Exempt Property
02-15-401-001 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00G1
02-15-401-002 $0.00PUBLIC 0 $0.00$0.00A1
02-15-401-003 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00L2
02-22-201-006 $0.00PUBLIC 0 $0.00$0.00B1
02-22-201-013 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00C1
02-22-201-031 $0.00PUBLIC 0 $0.00$0.00K2
02-22-201-041 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00M3 West
02-22-201-042 $0.00PUBLIC 0 $0.00$0.00TOT 23 West
02-22-201-075 $0.00PUBLIC 0 $0.00$0.00TOT 13 West
02-22-201-076 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00N3 West
02-22-205-001 $0.00PUBLIC 0 $0.00$0.00I2
02-22-205-002 $0.00PUBLIC 0 $0.00$0.00TOT 12
02-22-205-003 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00J2
02-22-206-017 $0.00PUBLIC 0 $0.00$0.00H2
02-22-206-018 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00Q3 West
02-22-210-001 $0.00PUBLIC 0 $0.00$0.00O3 West
02-22-210-018 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00P3 West
02-23-101-026 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00D1
02-23-104-001 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00F1
02-23-104-015 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00S3 East
02-23-105-001 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00E1
02-23-106-016 $0.00PUBLIC 0 $0.00$0.00A3 Replat
02-23-107-001 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00U3 East
02-23-110-001 $0.00PUBLIC 0 $0.00$0.00TOT 13 East
02-23-301-002 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00R3 East
02-23-301-032 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00X3 East
02-23-307-004 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00Y3 East
02-23-308-001 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00W3 East
02-23-309-001 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00Z3 East
02-23-401-001 $0.00HOA 0 $0.00$0.00V3 East

Subtotal $0.000 $0.00$0.00

Prepaid Property - Single Family Property
02-22-201-011 $1,976.91SFD 1 $0.00$1,976.91731
02-22-207-014 $1,976.91SFD 1 $0.00$1,976.912423 West
02-23-101-001 $1,976.91SFD 1 $0.00$1,976.91331
02-23-101-012 $1,976.91SFD 1 $0.00$1,976.91221
02-23-101-013 $1,976.91SFD 1 $0.00$1,976.91211
02-23-101-015 $1,976.91SFD 1 $0.00$1,976.91341

Subtotal $0.006 $11,861.46$11,861.46

Single Family Property - Developed
02-22-201-001 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92821

Page 1 of 14



Village of Antioch
Special Service Area Number Two

(Clublands)
Levy Year 2011 / Collection Year 2012

PIN Lot
Land
Use

# of
Units

Original
Amount

Levied

Amount
to be

Abated

2011 Special Tax  Levy

Amount to be
Collected/

LeviedPhase
02-22-201-002 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92811
02-22-201-003 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92801
02-22-201-004 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92791
02-22-201-005 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92781
02-22-201-007 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92771
02-22-201-008 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92761
02-22-201-009 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92751
02-22-201-010 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92741
02-22-201-012 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92721
02-22-201-014 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92711
02-22-201-015 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92701
02-22-201-016 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92691
02-22-201-017 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92681
02-22-201-018 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.921832
02-22-201-019 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.921842
02-22-201-020 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.921852
02-22-201-021 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.921862
02-22-201-022 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.921872
02-22-201-023 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.921882
02-22-201-024 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.921892
02-22-201-025 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.921902
02-22-201-026 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.921912
02-22-201-027 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.921922
02-22-201-028 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.921932
02-22-201-029 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.921942
02-22-201-030 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.921952
02-22-201-032 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912083 West
02-22-201-033 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912073 West
02-22-201-034 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912063 West
02-22-201-035 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912053 West
02-22-201-036 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912043 West
02-22-201-037 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912033 West
02-22-201-038 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912023 West
02-22-201-039 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912013 West
02-22-201-040 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912003 West
02-22-201-043 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911993 West
02-22-201-044 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911983 West
02-22-201-045 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911973 West
02-22-201-046 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911963 West
02-22-201-047 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912093 West
02-22-201-048 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912103 West
02-22-201-049 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912113 West
02-22-201-050 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912123 West
02-22-201-051 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912133 West
02-22-201-052 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912143 West
02-22-201-053 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912153 West
02-22-201-054 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912163 West
02-22-201-055 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912173 West
02-22-201-056 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912183 West

Page 2 of 14



Village of Antioch
Special Service Area Number Two

(Clublands)
Levy Year 2011 / Collection Year 2012

PIN Lot
Land
Use

# of
Units

Original
Amount

Levied

Amount
to be

Abated

2011 Special Tax  Levy

Amount to be
Collected/

LeviedPhase
02-22-201-057 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912193 West
02-22-201-058 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912203 West
02-22-201-059 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912213 West
02-22-201-060 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912223 West
02-22-201-061 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912233 West
02-22-201-062 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912243 West
02-22-201-063 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912283 West
02-22-201-064 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912523 West
02-22-201-065 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912533 West
02-22-201-066 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912273 West
02-22-201-067 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912263 West
02-22-201-068 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912253 West
02-22-201-069 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912543 West
02-22-201-070 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912553 West
02-22-201-071 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912563 West
02-22-201-072 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912573 West
02-22-201-073 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912583 West
02-22-201-074 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912593 West
02-22-201-077 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913543 West
02-22-201-078 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913553 West
02-22-201-079 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913563 West
02-22-201-080 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913573 West
02-22-201-081 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913583 West
02-22-201-082 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913593 West
02-22-201-083 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913603 West
02-22-202-001 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.921001
02-22-202-002 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92831
02-22-202-003 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92841
02-22-202-004 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92851
02-22-202-005 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92861
02-22-202-006 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92871
02-22-202-007 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92881
02-22-202-008 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92891
02-22-202-009 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92901
02-22-202-010 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92991
02-22-202-011 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92981
02-22-202-012 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92971
02-22-202-013 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92961
02-22-202-014 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92951
02-22-202-015 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92941
02-22-202-016 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92931
02-22-202-017 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92921
02-22-202-018 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92911
02-22-203-001 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.921381
02-22-203-002 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.921371
02-22-203-003 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.921361
02-22-203-004 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.921351
02-22-203-005 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911392
02-22-203-006 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911402

Page 3 of 14



Village of Antioch
Special Service Area Number Two

(Clublands)
Levy Year 2011 / Collection Year 2012

PIN Lot
Land
Use

# of
Units

Original
Amount

Levied

Amount
to be

Abated

2011 Special Tax  Levy

Amount to be
Collected/

LeviedPhase
02-22-203-007 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911412
02-22-203-008 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911422
02-22-203-009 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911432
02-22-203-010 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911442
02-22-203-011 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911452
02-22-203-012 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911462
02-22-203-013 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911472
02-22-203-014 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911482
02-22-203-015 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911492
02-22-203-016 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911502
02-22-203-017 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911512
02-22-203-018 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911172
02-22-203-019 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911182
02-22-203-020 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911342
02-22-203-021 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911332
02-22-203-022 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911322
02-22-203-023 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911312
02-22-203-024 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911302
02-22-203-025 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911292
02-22-203-026 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911282
02-22-203-027 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911272
02-22-203-028 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911262
02-22-203-029 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911252
02-22-203-030 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911242
02-22-203-031 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911232
02-22-203-032 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911222
02-22-203-033 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911212
02-22-203-034 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911202
02-22-203-035 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911192
02-22-204-001 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.921822
02-22-204-002 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.921812
02-22-204-003 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.921802
02-22-204-004 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911792
02-22-204-005 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911782
02-22-204-006 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911772
02-22-204-007 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911762
02-22-204-008 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911752
02-22-204-009 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911742
02-22-204-010 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911732
02-22-204-011 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911722
02-22-204-012 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911712
02-22-204-013 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.921702
02-22-204-014 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.921692
02-22-204-015 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.921682
02-22-204-016 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.921672
02-22-204-017 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911522
02-22-204-018 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911532
02-22-204-019 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911542
02-22-204-020 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911552

Page 4 of 14



Village of Antioch
Special Service Area Number Two

(Clublands)
Levy Year 2011 / Collection Year 2012

PIN Lot
Land
Use

# of
Units

Original
Amount

Levied

Amount
to be

Abated

2011 Special Tax  Levy

Amount to be
Collected/

LeviedPhase
02-22-204-021 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911562
02-22-204-022 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911572
02-22-204-023 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911582
02-22-204-024 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911592
02-22-204-025 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911602
02-22-204-026 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911612
02-22-204-027 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911622
02-22-204-028 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911632
02-22-204-029 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911642
02-22-204-030 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911652
02-22-204-031 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.921662
02-22-204-032 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912603 West
02-22-204-033 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912613 West
02-22-204-034 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912623 West
02-22-204-035 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912633 West
02-22-204-036 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912643 West
02-22-204-037 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912653 West
02-22-204-038 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912663 West
02-22-204-039 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912673 West
02-22-204-040 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912793 West
02-22-204-041 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912783 West
02-22-204-042 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912773 West
02-22-204-043 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912763 West
02-22-204-044 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912753 West
02-22-204-045 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912743 West
02-22-204-046 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912733 West
02-22-204-047 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912723 West
02-22-204-048 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912713 West
02-22-204-049 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912703 West
02-22-204-050 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912693 West
02-22-204-051 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912683 West
02-22-206-001 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911012
02-22-206-002 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911022
02-22-206-003 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911032
02-22-206-004 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911042
02-22-206-005 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911052
02-22-206-006 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911062
02-22-206-007 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911072
02-22-206-008 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911082
02-22-206-009 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911092
02-22-206-010 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911102
02-22-206-011 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911112
02-22-206-012 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911122
02-22-206-013 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911132
02-22-206-014 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911142
02-22-206-015 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911152
02-22-206-016 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.911162
02-22-207-001 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912393 West
02-22-207-002 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912403 West

Page 5 of 14



Village of Antioch
Special Service Area Number Two

(Clublands)
Levy Year 2011 / Collection Year 2012

PIN Lot
Land
Use

# of
Units

Original
Amount

Levied

Amount
to be

Abated

2011 Special Tax  Levy

Amount to be
Collected/

LeviedPhase
02-22-207-003 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912413 West
02-22-207-004 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912383 West
02-22-207-005 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912373 West
02-22-207-006 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912363 West
02-22-207-007 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912353 West
02-22-207-008 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912343 West
02-22-207-009 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912333 West
02-22-207-010 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912323 West
02-22-207-011 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912313 West
02-22-207-012 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912303 West
02-22-207-013 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912293 West
02-22-207-015 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912433 West
02-22-207-016 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912443 West
02-22-207-017 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912453 West
02-22-207-018 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912463 West
02-22-207-019 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912473 West
02-22-207-020 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912483 West
02-22-207-021 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912493 West
02-22-207-022 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912503 West
02-22-207-023 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912513 West
02-22-208-001 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912803 West
02-22-208-002 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912813 West
02-22-208-003 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912823 West
02-22-208-004 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912833 West
02-22-208-005 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912843 West
02-22-208-006 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912853 West
02-22-208-007 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912863 West
02-22-208-008 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912873 West
02-22-208-009 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912883 West
02-22-208-010 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912893 West
02-22-208-011 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912903 West
02-22-208-012 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912913 West
02-22-208-013 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913043 West
02-22-208-014 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913033 West
02-22-208-015 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913023 West
02-22-208-016 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913013 West
02-22-208-017 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913003 West
02-22-208-018 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912993 West
02-22-208-019 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912983 West
02-22-208-020 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912973 West
02-22-208-021 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912963 West
02-22-208-022 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912953 West
02-22-208-023 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912943 West
02-22-208-024 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912933 West
02-22-208-025 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.912923 West
02-22-209-001 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913463 West
02-22-209-002 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913473 West
02-22-209-003 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913483 West
02-22-209-004 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913493 West

Page 6 of 14



Village of Antioch
Special Service Area Number Two

(Clublands)
Levy Year 2011 / Collection Year 2012

PIN Lot
Land
Use

# of
Units

Original
Amount

Levied

Amount
to be

Abated

2011 Special Tax  Levy

Amount to be
Collected/

LeviedPhase
02-22-209-005 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913503 West
02-22-209-006 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913513 West
02-22-209-007 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913523 West
02-22-209-008 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913533 West
02-22-209-009 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913053 West
02-22-209-010 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913063 West
02-22-209-011 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913073 West
02-22-209-012 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913083 West
02-22-209-013 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913093 West
02-22-209-014 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913103 West
02-22-209-015 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913113 West
02-22-209-016 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913123 West
02-22-209-017 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913133 West
02-22-209-018 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913143 West
02-22-209-019 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913153 West
02-22-209-020 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913163 West
02-22-209-021 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913173 West
02-22-209-022 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913183 West
02-22-209-023 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913193 West
02-22-209-024 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913203 West
02-22-209-025 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913213 West
02-22-209-026 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913453 West
02-22-209-027 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913443 West
02-22-209-028 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913433 West
02-22-209-029 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913423 West
02-22-209-030 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913413 West
02-22-209-031 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913403 West
02-22-209-032 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913393 West
02-22-209-033 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913383 West
02-22-209-034 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913373 West
02-22-209-035 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913363 West
02-22-209-036 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913353 West
02-22-209-037 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913343 West
02-22-209-038 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913333 West
02-22-209-039 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913323 West
02-22-209-040 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913313 West
02-22-209-041 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913303 West
02-22-209-042 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913293 West
02-22-209-043 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913283 West
02-22-209-044 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913273 West
02-22-209-045 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913263 West
02-22-209-046 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913253 West
02-22-209-047 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913243 West
02-22-209-048 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913233 West
02-22-209-049 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913223 West
02-22-210-002 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913633 West
02-22-210-003 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913643 West
02-22-210-004 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913653 West
02-22-210-005 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913663 West

Page 7 of 14



Village of Antioch
Special Service Area Number Two

(Clublands)
Levy Year 2011 / Collection Year 2012

PIN Lot
Land
Use

# of
Units

Original
Amount

Levied

Amount
to be

Abated

2011 Special Tax  Levy

Amount to be
Collected/

LeviedPhase
02-22-210-006 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913623 West
02-22-210-007 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913613 West
02-22-210-008 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913673 West
02-22-210-009 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913683 West
02-22-210-010 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913733 West
02-22-210-011 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913743 West
02-22-210-012 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913753 West
02-22-210-013 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913763 West
02-22-210-014 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913773 West
02-22-210-015 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913783 West
02-22-210-016 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913793 West
02-22-210-017 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913803 West
02-22-210-019 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913813 West
02-22-210-020 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913823 West
02-22-210-021 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913833 West
02-22-210-022 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913843 West
02-22-210-023 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913853 West
02-22-210-024 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913863 West
02-22-210-025 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913873 West
02-22-210-026 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913883 West
02-22-210-027 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913893 West
02-22-210-028 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913903 West
02-22-210-029 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913723 West
02-22-210-030 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913713 West
02-22-210-031 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913703 West
02-22-210-032 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.913693 West
02-23-101-002 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92321
02-23-101-003 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92311
02-23-101-004 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92301
02-23-101-005 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92291
02-23-101-006 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92281
02-23-101-007 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92271
02-23-101-008 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92261
02-23-101-009 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92251
02-23-101-010 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92241
02-23-101-011 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92231
02-23-101-014 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92201
02-23-101-016 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92351
02-23-101-017 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92361
02-23-101-018 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92371
02-23-101-019 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92381
02-23-101-020 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92191
02-23-101-021 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92181
02-23-101-022 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92171
02-23-101-023 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92161
02-23-101-024 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92151
02-23-101-025 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92141
02-23-102-001 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92421
02-23-102-002 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92411

Page 8 of 14



Village of Antioch
Special Service Area Number Two

(Clublands)
Levy Year 2011 / Collection Year 2012

PIN Lot
Land
Use

# of
Units

Original
Amount

Levied

Amount
to be

Abated

2011 Special Tax  Levy

Amount to be
Collected/

LeviedPhase
02-23-102-003 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92401
02-23-102-004 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92391
02-23-102-005 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92431
02-23-102-006 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92441
02-23-102-007 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92451
02-23-102-008 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92461
02-23-103-001 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92511
02-23-103-002 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92501
02-23-103-003 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92491
02-23-103-004 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92481
02-23-103-005 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92471
02-23-103-006 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92521
02-23-103-007 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92531
02-23-103-008 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92541
02-23-103-009 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92551
02-23-103-010 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92561
02-23-103-011 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92651
02-23-103-012 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92661
02-23-103-013 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92671
02-23-103-014 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92641
02-23-103-015 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92631
02-23-103-016 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92621
02-23-103-017 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92611
02-23-103-018 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92571
02-23-103-019 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92581
02-23-103-020 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92591
02-23-103-021 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92601
02-23-104-002 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.9291
02-23-104-003 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92101
02-23-104-004 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92111
02-23-104-005 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92121
02-23-104-006 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.92131
02-23-104-007 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.9281
02-23-104-008 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.9271
02-23-104-009 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.9261
02-23-104-010 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.9251
02-23-104-011 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.9241
02-23-104-012 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.9231
02-23-104-013 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.9221
02-23-104-014 $421.41SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.9211
02-23-104-016 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916533 East
02-23-104-017 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916523 East
02-23-104-018 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916513 East
02-23-104-019 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916503 East
02-23-104-020 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916493 East
02-23-104-021 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916483 East
02-23-104-022 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916473 East
02-23-104-023 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916463 East
02-23-104-024 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916453 East

Page 9 of 14



Village of Antioch
Special Service Area Number Two

(Clublands)
Levy Year 2011 / Collection Year 2012

PIN Lot
Land
Use

# of
Units

Original
Amount

Levied

Amount
to be

Abated

2011 Special Tax  Levy

Amount to be
Collected/

LeviedPhase
02-23-104-025 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916443 East
02-23-104-026 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916433 East
02-23-106-017 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91493 Replat
02-23-106-018 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91483 Replat
02-23-106-019 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91473 Replat
02-23-106-020 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91463 Replat
02-23-106-021 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91453 Replat
02-23-106-022 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91443 Replat
02-23-106-023 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91433 Replat
02-23-106-024 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91423 Replat
02-23-106-025 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91413 Replat
02-23-106-026 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91403 Replat
02-23-106-027 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91393 Replat
02-23-106-028 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91383 Replat
02-23-106-029 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91373 Replat
02-23-107-002 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917303 East
02-23-107-003 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917313 East
02-23-107-004 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917323 East
02-23-107-005 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917333 East
02-23-107-006 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917343 East
02-23-108-001 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917493 East
02-23-108-002 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917483 East
02-23-108-003 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917473 East
02-23-108-004 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917463 East
02-23-108-005 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917453 East
02-23-108-006 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917443 East
02-23-108-007 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917433 East
02-23-108-008 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917423 East
02-23-108-009 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917413 East
02-23-108-010 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917403 East
02-23-108-011 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917393 East
02-23-108-012 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917383 East
02-23-108-013 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917373 East
02-23-108-014 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917363 East
02-23-108-015 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917353 East
02-23-108-016 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917503 East
02-23-108-017 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917513 East
02-23-108-018 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917523 East
02-23-108-019 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917533 East
02-23-108-020 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917543 East
02-23-108-021 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917553 East
02-23-108-022 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917563 East
02-23-108-023 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917573 East
02-23-108-024 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917583 East
02-23-108-025 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917593 East
02-23-108-026 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917603 East
02-23-108-027 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917613 East
02-23-108-028 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917623 East
02-23-108-029 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917633 East

Page 10 of 14



Village of Antioch
Special Service Area Number Two

(Clublands)
Levy Year 2011 / Collection Year 2012

PIN Lot
Land
Use

# of
Units

Original
Amount

Levied

Amount
to be

Abated

2011 Special Tax  Levy

Amount to be
Collected/

LeviedPhase
02-23-108-030 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917643 East
02-23-109-001 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917733 East
02-23-109-002 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917723 East
02-23-109-003 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917713 East
02-23-109-004 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917703 East
02-23-109-005 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917693 East
02-23-109-006 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917683 East
02-23-109-007 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917673 East
02-23-109-008 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917663 East
02-23-109-009 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917653 East
02-23-109-010 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917953 East
02-23-109-011 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917963 East
02-23-109-012 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917973 East
02-23-109-013 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917983 East
02-23-109-014 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917993 East
02-23-110-002 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916823 East
02-23-110-003 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916833 East
02-23-110-004 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916843 East
02-23-110-005 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916853 East
02-23-110-006 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916863 East
02-23-110-007 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916873 East
02-23-110-008 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916883 East
02-23-110-009 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916893 East
02-23-110-010 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916903 East
02-23-110-011 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916913 East
02-23-110-012 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916923 East
02-23-201-001 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917293 East
02-23-201-002 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917273 East
02-23-201-003 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917263 East
02-23-201-004 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917253 East
02-23-201-005 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917243 East
02-23-201-006 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917233 East
02-23-201-007 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917283 East
02-23-202-001 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917743 East
02-23-202-002 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917753 East
02-23-202-003 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917763 East
02-23-202-004 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917773 East
02-23-202-005 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917783 East
02-23-202-006 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917793 East
02-23-202-007 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917803 East
02-23-202-008 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917813 East
02-23-202-009 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917823 East
02-23-202-010 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917833 East
02-23-202-011 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917943 East
02-23-202-012 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917933 East
02-23-202-013 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917923 East
02-23-202-014 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917913 East
02-23-202-015 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917903 East
02-23-202-016 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917893 East

Page 11 of 14



Village of Antioch
Special Service Area Number Two

(Clublands)
Levy Year 2011 / Collection Year 2012

PIN Lot
Land
Use

# of
Units

Original
Amount

Levied

Amount
to be

Abated

2011 Special Tax  Levy

Amount to be
Collected/

LeviedPhase
02-23-202-017 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917883 East
02-23-202-018 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917873 East
02-23-202-019 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917863 East
02-23-202-020 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917853 East
02-23-202-021 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917843 East
02-23-203-001 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.918173 East
02-23-203-002 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.918163 East
02-23-203-003 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.918153 East
02-23-203-004 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.918143 East
02-23-203-005 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.918133 East
02-23-203-006 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.918123 East
02-23-203-007 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.918113 East
02-23-203-008 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.918103 East
02-23-203-009 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.918003 East
02-23-203-010 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.918013 East
02-23-203-011 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.918023 East
02-23-203-012 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.918033 East
02-23-203-013 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.918043 East
02-23-203-014 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.918053 East
02-23-203-015 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.918063 East
02-23-203-016 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.918073 East
02-23-203-017 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.918083 East
02-23-203-018 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.918093 East
02-23-204-001 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916933 East
02-23-204-002 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916943 East
02-23-204-003 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916953 East
02-23-204-004 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916963 East
02-23-204-005 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916973 East
02-23-204-006 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916983 East
02-23-204-007 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916993 East
02-23-204-008 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917003 East
02-23-204-009 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917013 East
02-23-204-010 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917023 East
02-23-204-011 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917033 East
02-23-204-012 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917223 East
02-23-204-013 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917213 East
02-23-204-014 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917203 East
02-23-204-015 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917193 East
02-23-204-016 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917183 East
02-23-204-017 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917173 East
02-23-204-018 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917163 East
02-23-204-019 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917153 East
02-23-204-020 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917143 East
02-23-204-021 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917133 East
02-23-204-022 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917123 East
02-23-204-023 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917113 East
02-23-204-024 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917103 East
02-23-204-025 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917093 East
02-23-204-026 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917083 East

Page 12 of 14



Village of Antioch
Special Service Area Number Two

(Clublands)
Levy Year 2011 / Collection Year 2012

PIN Lot
Land
Use

# of
Units

Original
Amount

Levied

Amount
to be

Abated

2011 Special Tax  Levy

Amount to be
Collected/

LeviedPhase
02-23-204-027 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917073 East
02-23-204-028 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917063 East
02-23-204-029 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917053 East
02-23-204-030 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.917043 East
02-23-301-001 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916423 East
02-23-301-003 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916413 East
02-23-301-004 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916403 East
02-23-301-005 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916393 East
02-23-301-033 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91233 Replat
02-23-301-035 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91213 Replat
02-23-301-036 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91203 Replat
02-23-301-037 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91193 Replat
02-23-301-038 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91183 Replat
02-23-301-039 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91173 Replat
02-23-301-040 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91163 Replat
02-23-301-041 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91153 Replat
02-23-301-042 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91143 Replat
02-23-301-043 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.9113 Replat
02-23-301-044 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.9123 Replat
02-23-301-045 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.9133 Replat
02-23-301-046 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.9143 Replat
02-23-301-047 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.9153 Replat
02-23-301-048 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.9163 Replat
02-23-301-049 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.9173 Replat
02-23-301-050 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.9183 Replat
02-23-301-051 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.9193 Replat
02-23-301-052 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91103 Replat
02-23-301-053 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91113 Replat
02-23-301-054 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91123 Replat
02-23-301-055 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91133 Replat
02-23-301-056 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91223 Replat
02-23-302-009 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91283 Replat
02-23-302-010 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91293 Replat
02-23-302-011 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91303 Replat
02-23-302-012 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91313 Replat
02-23-302-013 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91273 Replat
02-23-302-014 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91263 Replat
02-23-302-015 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91253 Replat
02-23-302-016 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91243 Replat
02-23-303-007 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91363 Replat
02-23-303-008 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91353 Replat
02-23-303-009 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91343 Replat
02-23-303-010 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91333 Replat
02-23-303-011 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.91323 Replat
02-23-305-001 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.914773 East
02-23-305-002 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.914783 East
02-23-305-003 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.914793 East
02-23-305-004 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.914803 East
02-23-306-001 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.915313 East

Page 13 of 14



Village of Antioch
Special Service Area Number Two

(Clublands)
Levy Year 2011 / Collection Year 2012

PIN Lot
Land
Use

# of
Units

Original
Amount

Levied

Amount
to be

Abated

2011 Special Tax  Levy

Amount to be
Collected/

LeviedPhase
02-23-306-002 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.915323 East
02-23-306-003 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.915333 East
02-23-306-004 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.915343 East
02-23-306-005 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.915353 East
02-23-306-006 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.915363 East
02-23-306-007 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.915373 East
02-23-306-008 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.915383 East
02-23-306-009 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.915393 East
02-23-306-010 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.915403 East
02-23-306-011 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.915413 East
02-23-307-001 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916103 East
02-23-307-002 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916113 East
02-23-307-003 $421.40SFD 1 $1,555.51$1,976.916123 East

Subtotal $936,417.02602 $253,684.00$1,190,101.02

Single Family Property - Undeveloped
02-22-200-015 $75,122.58SFD 38 $0.00$75,122.58NA74
02-22-400-002 $83,030.22SFD 42 $0.00$83,030.22NA84
02-23-300-012 $245,136.84SFD 124 $0.00$245,136.84NA94
02-23-300-013 $237,229.20SFD 120 $0.00$237,229.20NA114
02-23-300-014 $45,468.93SFD 23 $0.00$45,468.93NA104
02-23-400-012 $0.00SFD 0 $0.00$0.00NA124

Subtotal $0.00347 $685,987.77$685,987.77

GRAND TOTALS

(taxes levied)(# of units) (maximum taxes) (taxes abated)

$936,417.02960 $961,417.78$1,897,834.80

11/23/11
K:\CLIENTS2\Antioch\District Administration\SSA 2\2011\Database\ssa2 tax 

ll 11

Page 14 of 14



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Request For Board Action 

REFERRED TO BOARD:  December 5, 2011 AGENDA ITEM NO: 12 

 
 
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT:  Administration  
 
 
SUBJECT:  Consideration of a Resolution Approving the 2012 Special Events Sponsored by the 

Antioch Chamber of Commerce and waiving all fees. 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER:  
The Antioch Chamber of Commerce hosts a series of annual events which require the Village of Antioch 
to close certain streets.  Chamber Director Barbara Porch has forwarded a list of Special Events for 2012 
listed below, and is requesting approval for the events.  Staff has met with Chamber representatives to 
discus ways to streamline the events.  The Chamber has offered to reimburse the Village for the traffic 
control associated with the closing of Orchard during the Taste of Summer estimated to be 
approximately $1,500.00. 
 

Antioch's Summer Arts & Crafts Faire 
June 16 & 17, 2012 

(Held on Toft Street and in the Municipal Lot) 
 

Antioch's Taste of Summer 
July 19-22, 2012   (Thursday through Sunday) 

(Orchard Street would be closed on Tuesday, 7/17 at 7 pm) 
 

Antioch's Fall Arts & Crafts Faire 
September 8 & 9, 2012 

(Held on Toft Street and in the Municipal Lot) 
 

 Santa’s Enchanted Castle, Nov 23 daily thru Dec 23  
Off Toft Street  

 
DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:   
1. Resolution. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
Move to approve a resolution approving the 2012 special events sponsored by the Antioch Chamber of 
Commerce, waiving all fees. 



 

  

 

RESOLUTION NO.  11- 

 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE 2012 SPECIAL EVENTS SPONSORED BY THE 

ANTIOCH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Antioch (“Village”) is a municipality located in Lake 
County, Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, the Village of Antioch is in receipt of request from the Antioch 
Chamber of Commerce for permission to hold special events in 2012; and 

WHEREAS, the special events are annual events that have traditionally been 
held within the Village of Antioch; and   

WHEREAS, the Antioch Chamber of Commerce has offered to reimbursed the 
Village for the traffic control associated with the closing of Orchard Street during the 
Taste of Summer, estimated to be approximately $1,500 ; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Board of Trustees of 
the Village as follows: 

On behalf of the Village, the Antioch Chamber of Commerce is granted 
permission to host 201 events as listed in the request for board action dated December 
5, 2011, including: Antioch’s Summer Arts and Crafts Faire on June 16, 17, Antioch’s 
Taste of Summer Festival on July 19-22,  Antioch’s Fall Arts and Craft Faire on 
September 8, 9, and Santa’s Enchanted Castle on November 23 daily thru December 
23. 

PASSED and APPROVED this 5th day of December, 2011 

 
 
 
 
 

      
 
             
      Lawrence M. Hanson 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 

      
Candi L. Rowe 
Village Clerk 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Request For Board Action 

REFERRED TO BOARD:  December 5, 2011 AGENDA ITEM NO: 13    
 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT:    Village Administrator’s Office 
  
SUBJECT:  Consideration of an Ordinance Amending Section 1-4-6 of the Municipal Code of 
Antioch Adding Rules for Remote Meeting Attendance 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER:  

At the November 16, 2011 Committee of the Whole meeting, Board Members discussed the 
adoption of an Ordinance allowing for remote meeting attendance.  The ordinance is consistent 
with state statute, and regulates remote attendance in appropriate settings. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  None.       
 

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:   

  
1.  Ordinance. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:   

Motion to accept the first reading of an Ordinance Amending Section 1-4-6 of the Municipal Code 
of Antioch Adding Rules for Remote Meeting Attendance. 
 



ORDINANCE 11 - ______________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING § 1-4-6 

 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF ANTIOCH 

ADDING RULES FOR REMOTE MEETING ATTENDANCE 

 

 

WHEREAS,  the Illinois Open Meetings Act allows elected officials to attend meetings by 

remote audio or video link under specified conditions (5 ILCS 120/7), and 

 

WHEREAS, the corporate authorities are required to adopt internal rules and regulations 

consistent with those specified conditions by by the said statute when the Board wishes to allow 

remote attendance, and 

 

WHEREAS,  the corporate authorities have reviewed the draft rules set forth on Exhibit A 

hereto and find that the same meet the requisites of the said statute, allow for remote attendance 

in appropriate settings and still favoring personal attendance at meetings, and 

 

WHEREAS,  the corporate authorities find that the draft rules set forth on Exhibit A should be 

adopted, 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Village of Antioch, Lake County, Illinois, as 

follows: 

 

SECTION ONE:   Section 1-4-6 of the Antioch Municipal Code is hereby amended and shall 

hereafter read as set forth on Exhibit A hereto.  

 

SECTION TWO:  

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, approval and 

publication as required by law. 

 

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH, ILLINOIS, 

ON THIS ____ DAY OF _______________, 2011. 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

       ___________________________________ 

       LAWRENCE M. HANSON, MAYOR 

 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

CANDI L. ROWE, VILLAGE CLERK 



EXHIBIT A 

(additions underlined, deletions in strikeout) 

 

1-4-6: RULES AND ORDER:  
 

A. Meeting Rules Adopted: Subject to the provisions of Section F relating to remote 
attendance at meetings, and except Except as provided in rule 2 below, the village 
board of trustees shall observe at its meetings the following rules and order of 
business: 

Rule 1. The mayor shall, if present, take the chair at the hour appointed for the meeting 
of the village board. If he be not present, the village board shall elect a temporary chair, 
who shall act in his stead. 
 
Rule 2. The order of business of the village board shall be as follows: 

1. Roll call. 

2. Approval of the balance of the meeting agenda by the village board of trustees. 

3. Minutes of the preceding meeting or meetings. 

4. Petitions. 

5. Reports of village officers. 

6. Communications. 

7. Citizens wishing to address the board. 

8. Reports of standing committees. 

9. Reports of select committees. 

10. Adjournment. 

1. Call to Order. 

2. Pledge of Allegiance. 

3. Roll call. 

3. Mayor’s report. 

4. Citizens wishing to address the board. 

5. Consent Agenda including minutes of prior meetings and routine matters, provided that 
any elected official may ask that one or more items be removed and voted on 
separately as a matter of personal privilege. 



6. Regular businss, including set motions, resolutions and Ordinances for debate and/or 
adoption. 

7. Administrator’s report. 

8. Clerk’s report. 

9. Trustee and Liaison reports. 

10. Executive session. 

11. Adjournment. 
 
 
So long as there is complete compliance with the provisions of the Illinois open 
meetings act, the village board of trustees may, prior to its approval, alter or amend the 
contents of the proposed meeting agenda upon motion duly made, seconded, and 
receiving a majority vote of the trustees present at the duly convened meeting. For 
example, and without limitation, matters on the proposed agenda may be stricken 
therefrom or the sequence of the items on the proposed agenda may be rearranged. 

Rule 3. The mayor shall preserve order and decorum. He may speak to points of order 
in preference to any other member and shall decide points of order, subject to an 
appeal to the village board by any two (2) members; on which appeal no member shall 
speak more than once, unless by leave of the board of trustees. 
 
Rule 4. The mayor may call upon any member to perform the duties of chair; no such 
substitution, however, shall extend beyond the adjournment of the particular meeting. 
 
Rule 5. No member shall speak more than twice to the same question, unless permitted 
by the village board. 
 
Rule 6. No motion shall be put or debated until it is seconded, and every question shall 
be distinctly stated by the mayor before it is open for debate. 
 
Rule 7. Every member present when a vote is taken shall vote unless excused by the 
board of trustees, or unless he shall or may become directly interested in the matter 
pending, in which case no such member shall vote. 
 
Rule 8. In all cases, when a resolution is offered or motion made, it shall be entered on 
the journal of the board of trustees; the name of the member offering or making the 
same shall also be entered on such record. And it is further provided that, in case such 
motion or resolution is not seconded, it shall not be entered upon the journal unless the 
member presenting such motion or resolution requests that the same be so entered. 
 
Rule 9. When a question before the board of trustees contains two (2) or more distinct 
propositions, any member of the board of trustees may call for a division of the 



question, and the vote shall be taken on each distinct proposition separately. 
 
Rule 10. Every ordinance shall, when introduced, be laid over until a future meeting. 
 
Rule 11. The foregoing rules of procedure and order of business shall be adhered to by 
the mayor and board of trustees unless the same shall be temporarily suspended by a 
majority vote of all the members of the board of trustees present. These rules shall be 
subject to amendment or modification at a regular meeting next following a regular 
meeting at which notice in writing specifying the proposed amendment is presented. 

 

B. Rescinding Action: No vote or action of the village board of trustees shall be 
rescinded at any special meeting unless there be present at such special meeting as 
many members of the village board of trustees as were present at the meeting when 
such vote or action was taken, as is provided by statute. 

 

C. Addressing Meetings: Except during the time allotted for public comment, no person 
other than the mayor or a member of the village board of trustees shall address the 
village board at any regular or special meeting except upon the consent of a majority 
of the members present. 

 

D. Disturbing Meetings: It shall be unlawful to disturb any regular or special meeting of 
the village board of trustees or of any committee thereof, or to behave in a 
disorderly manner at any such meeting. Any person violating the provisions of this 
subsection shall be fined not less than one dollar ($1.00) nor more than one 
hundred dollars ($100.00) for each offense. 

 

E. Robert's Rules Of Order: "Robert's Rules Of Order" shall govern the deliberations of 
the board of trustees, except when in conflict with any of the foregoing rules.  

F. Remote Attendance At Board Of Trustees Meeting. 

Policy Considerations:   

It is the policy of the Corporate Authorities of Antioch that the presence of the elected 
officials at all public meetings is highly desireable.  The public’s ability to view actions 
being taken by elected officials and to make meaningful input into the decision-
making process will be materially impaired by the lack of direct access to elected 
officials in the public forum provided by meetings of the Board of Trustees.  
Accordingly, the provisions for remote attendance at meetings set forth in this section 
are intended to provide for the public’s good, not necessarily for the convenience or 
ease of the elected officials.  As such, this policy should be used sparingly and in 
strict conformance with the provisions described herein. 

  

1. Definitions  



 
For purposes of this policy, the following terms shall have the following 
meanings:  

 

(a) “Attend by electronic means” means attending by audio or video 
conference.  

(b) “Meeting” means any gathering, whether in person or by video or audio 
conference, telephone call, electronic means (such as, without limitation 
electronic mail, electronic chat, and instant messaging), or other means of 
contemporaneous interactive communications, of a majority of a quorum 
of the members of the Board of Trustees held for the purposes of 
discussing public business.  

(c) “Public building” means any building or portion thereof owned or 
leased by any public body.  

2.  Electronic Participation  
 

(a) If a quorum of the members of the Board of Trustees is physically 
present as required by 5 ILCS 120/7, a majority of those members present 
may allow a member to attend the meeting by means of video or audio 
conference if the member is prevented from physically attending because 
of the following exclusive reasons and no others:  

(a) personal illness or disability; or  
(b) employment purposes; or  
(c) business of the public body; or  
(d) a family or other emergency.  

 
3.  Notification Requirements  
 

(a) If a member wishes to attend a meeting by audio or video conference, 
then the member must notify the Clerk before the meeting unless such 
advance notice is impractical.  

4.  Consideration of Request for Electronic Participation and Placement on the Agenda  
 

(a) Consideration of a member’s request for electronic participation shall 
occur immediately after roll call is taken, and prior to any other business 
being conducted.  

(b) Such consideration shall appear on the agenda as “Consideration of 
and possible actions on any requests for electronic participation in 
meeting” and be placed on the agenda immediately following “Roll Call.”  

(c) Those members physically present shall consider whether any such 
request meets the requirements of Paragraph 2, and vote regarding 
whether such member may be allowed to participate electronically.  



(d) Any member requesting to attend the meeting by electronic means 
must have such request approved by a majority vote of those members 
physically present.  

(e) Any member requesting to attend the meeting by electronic means 
may participate in the debate on such question but may not vote on the 
approval of their own request.  

(f) If more than one member requests to attend the meeting by electronic 
means, such requests will be considered in the order in which notification 
was received by the Clerk as required in Paragraph 3.  

(g) Any member whose request to attend the meeting by electronic means 
is approved may not vote on the approval of any other member’s request 
considered during that meeting, but may participate in any debate on the 
question.  

(h) Any member whose request for attendance by electronic means is 
denied may continue to listen to and/or view the meeting via electronic 
means, but may only participate to the same extent in which a member of 
the public physically present at the meeting could participate.  

5.  Closed Sessions  
 

(a) Any member’s request to attend by electronic means only the closed 
session of any such meeting shall be considered and voted upon in open 
session and otherwise in accordance with the Open Meetings Act.  

6.  Reimbursement of costs associated with attendance by electronic means  
 

(a) Reasonable costs associated with or occasioned by a member’s 
attendance at a meeting by electronic means shall be reimbursed by the 
Village to the member.  

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Request For Board Action 

REFERRED TO BOARD:  December 5, 2011 AGENDA ITEM NO: 14   
 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT:    Village Administrator’s Office 
  
SUBJECT:  Consideration of a Resolution Initiating the submission of a Public Question to 

Authorize the Village to Adopt and “Opt-Out” Program for the supply of electricity to 
Residential and Small Commercial Retail Customers. 

 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER:  

Section 1-92 of the Illinois Power Agency Act allows the Village to adopt an ordinance creating a 
program to solicit bids and enter into service agreements for the sale and purchase of electricity if 
authorized by referendum.  The program would apply to residential and small commercial retail 
customers in the Village who do not chose to opt-out. 
 
The attached Resolution initiates the submission of the public question to be submitted to the 
voters of the Village of Antioch at the March 20, 2012 general election, and asks, “Shall the Village 
of Antioch have the authority to arrange for the supply of electricity for its residential and small 
commercial retail customers who have not opted out of such program?”  If approved, the Village 
Clerk will file the authorizing Resolution and other related items with the County Election officials 
for placement on the ballot. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  None.       
 

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:   

  
1. Resolution 
 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:   

Motion to approve Resolution Initiating the submission of a Public Question to Authorize the 
Village to Adopt and “Opt-Out” Program for the supply of electricity to Residential and Small 
Commercial Retail Customers 



 

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 11-XX 

 

A RESOLUTION INITIATING THE SUBMISSION OF A PUBLIC 

QUESTIONTO AUTHORIZE THE VILLAGE TO ADOPT AN “OPT-OUT”  

PROGRAM FOR THE SUPPLY OF ELECTRICITY TO RESIDENTIAL  

AND SMALL COMMERCIAL RETAIL CUSTOMERS 
 

WHEREAS, Section 1-92 of the Illinois Power Agency Act, 20 ILCS 3855/1-92 
(“Act”), permits the corporate authorities of the Village, if authorized by referendum, to 
adopt an ordinance creating a program to allow the Village to solicit bids and enter into 
service agreements for the sale and purchase of electricity and related services and 
equipment to residential and small commercial retail customers in the Village who do 
not choose to opt-out (“Program”); and   

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements of Illinois law, the corporate authorities 

of the Village of Antioch hereby desire to place on the March 20, 2012 ballot a public 
question to be considered by the voters in the Village regarding the authorization of the 
Village to pursue the implementation of the Program; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 

THE VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH, LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 

SECTION ONE: RECITALS: The foregoing recitals are incorporated as if 
fully set forth in this Resolution. 
 
 SECTION TWO: PUBLIC QUESTION ON PROGRAM FOR AGGREGATION 

OF ELECTRICITY:  A public question shall be submitted to the voters of the Village of 
Antioch, County of Lake, State of Illinois, at the March 20, 2012 general election (or at 
the next available election permitted by the general election law), as follows: 
 

 
Shall the Village of Antioch have the authority to arrange for the 
supply of electricity for its residential and small commercial retail 
customers who have not opted out of such program? 
 

 
YES 
____ 

 
NO 

____ 
 

 
SECTION THREE: FILING:  The Village Clerk is hereby authorized and directed 

to file this authorizing Resolution and other related matters with the appropriate election 
officials in accordance with applicable law. 

 
SECTION FOUR: EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Resolution shall become effective 

following its passage and approval in the manner provided by law. 



 2 
#9962899_v1 

 
 
PASSED this _________ day of _______, 2011. 
 
AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
APPROVED this _________ day of _______, 2011. 
 
 
 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Lawrence M. Hanson, Mayor          

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Candi L. Rowe, Village Clerk 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Request For Board Action 

REFERRED TO BOARD:  December 05, 2011 AGENDA ITEM NO: 15    
 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: Community Development   
 
SUBJECT:  Consideration of the Planning and Zoning Board’s Recommendation to Approve with 

Conditions, a text amendment to Title 10-6 of the Village Code allowing a Day Care in 
a Business Zone and for preliminary subdivision plat approval upon the petition of 
John Lavelle; PZB 11-06. 

 

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER:  

The Combined Planning Commission and Zoning Board conducted a public hearing on August 
11th, 2011 following notification as required by State Law and Village Ordinances to consider a 
text amendment to allow a Day Care in a business zone and for preliminary subdivision plat 
request pursuant to Title 10-15 of the Village Code.     
 
The Lavelle proposal is a for a four lot commercial subdivision. The development site consists of 
approximately 10 acres of incorporated and commercially zoned property located on the 
southwestern corner of Illinois Route 173 Deep Lake Road. As depicted in Plate 7 of the Village’s 
Comprehensive Plan, the site is identified as future Commercial Development.    
 
The two land use requests are described as followed: 
 
Subdivision: 

The Village Subdivision Code states that wherever any subdivision of land shall be laid out within 
the incorporated limits of the village or within contiguous territory not more than one and one-half 
(1 1/2) miles beyond the incorporated boundary of the village, the subdivider or his agent shall 
submit both a preliminary and a final subdivision plat to the plan commission for their approval. 
 
Text Amendment: 

At this time a child care facility is not identified as permitted use within the commercial zoning 
designations.  Staff and the PZB found no objection to adding the use to the list of permitted uses, 
as the child care facility does not, by its typical circumstance and operation, result in nuisance 
impacts to neighboring commercial uses.    
 
Based upon its compatibility with current land uses and the comprehensive plan for Illinois Route 
173, the Planning and Zoning Board unanimously recommended that the text amendment and 
preliminary plat be approved with the condition that outstanding engineering issues be resolved . 
 



Outstanding technical issues were primarily based around utility locations, detention, stormwater, 
and wetland buffering of the site.   
 
These matters were reviewed the under the scope of preliminary plat and engineering in 
accordance with 11-3-2 of the Subdivision Code, the Village’s Watershed Development Ordinance, 
in concert with Storm Water Management and the US Army Corp of Engineers 404 permit.   The 
review was set at the level of regulatory compliance and feasibility to construct.  As part of the 
Planning and Zoning Board’s recommendation for approval of the preliminary plat, the condition 
to resolve outstanding technical issues of engineering prior to being heard before the Village Board 
was to be satisfied.  At this time staff believes that the applicant has addressed these matters to the 
code’s satisfaction for preliminary engineering, allowing the project to move forward for approval.     
 
As a special note regarding the requested utility waiver and sidewalk deferral, the Village Board 
will have to authorize, via ordinance, the applicant’s request to limit the extension of water and 
sewer services to the southern limits of the property.    
 
Per Section 8-1-1 B of the Village Code, Mandatory Water Supply And Sewer Extensions: Any 
person required under the provisions of this chapter to connect to the public water system of the 
village or any person desirous of connecting to the public water system is required, at his expense, 
to extend any water line through the entire frontage or depth of the person's property as the case 
may be, to the end of the person's property line. It is the intent of this subsection to provide that all 
extensions of public water lines shall be to the end of any person's property, thus making future 
extensions more readily accessible to adjacent property owners.  
 
 Staff acknowledges a number of environmental and jurisdictional limiting factors to the extension 
of public improvements along the Deep Lake Frontage as well as the possibility that due to the 
existing wetland, the Army Corp may not permit the request, regardless of Village regulations. As 
part of the applicant’s presentation to the Board, it is still their responsibility to make the case for 
the practical design difficulties that would justify waiving this requirement.   
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:   None    
 

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:   
1. LaVelle Petition Package 
2. Letter of Recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Board   
3. Staff report 
4. Exhibits to the subdivision plat and engineering commentary.  
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION:   

Motion to accept the Planning and Zoning Board’s findings and recommendation to approve a text 
amendment to Title 10-6 of the Village allowing a Day Care in a business zone, the approval of the 
preliminary plat of subdivision, and authorize the Village Attorney to draft necessary ordinances.   
 



 

 

  

DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY  

 

PERMIT  

 
 

  

 

PERMITTEE:   Mr. John Lavelle 

  

APPLICATION:  200400396 

 

ISSUING OFFICE:   U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Chicago District 

 

 

DATE: 

 

You are hereby authorized to perform work in accordance with the terms and conditions 

specified below.   

 

Note:  The term "you" and its derivatives, as used in this authorization, means the permittee or 

any future transferee.  The term "this office" refers to the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, 

Chicago District. 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  Commercial development consisting of two buildings, parking 

lots and a stormwater basin resulting in 0.14 acres of impact to high quality wetland as as 

described in your notification and as shown on the plans titled, "Site Dimensional and Paving 

Plan,” dated December 5, 2005 (revised May 1, 2006), prepared by Manhard Consulting, Ltd.   

 

To offset project impacts, you have provided funding for approximately 15 acres of wetland 

enhancement at the Chain O’Lakes State Park as described in the approved mitigation plan 

entitled “Proposal for Chain O’Lakes State Park Ecological Restoration,” dated November 30, 

2006, and prepared by Hey and Associates, Inc. 

 

PROJECT LOCATION:  Southwest of Deep Lake Road and IL Route 173 in Antioch, Lake 

County, IL (Section 15, Township 46 N, Range 10 E. 

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS:   

 

1.  The time limit for completing the authorized work ends on October 28, 2014. If you find that 

you need more time to complete the authorized activity(s), submit your request for a time 

extension to this office for consideration at least 60 days before the above date is reached. 

 

  



 

 

- 2 - 

 

2.  You must maintain the activity authorized by this permit in good condition and in 

conformance with the terms and conditions of this permit.  You are not relieved of this 

requirement if you abandon the permitted activity, although you may make a good faith transfer 

to a third party in compliance with General Condition 4 below.  Should you wish to cease to 

maintain the authorized activity or should you desire to abandon it without a good faith transfer, 

you must obtain a modification of this permit from this office, which may require restoration of 

the area. 

 

3.  If you discover any previously unknown historic or archaeological remains while 

accomplishing the activity authorized by this permit, you must immediately notify this office of 

what you have found.  We will initiate the Federal and State coordination required to determine if 

the remains warrant a recovery effort or if the site is eligible for listing in the National Register of 

Historic Places. 

 

4.  If you sell the property associated with this permit, you must obtain the signature of the new 

owner in the space provided and forward a copy of the permit to this office to validate the 

transfer of this authorization. 

 

5.  You shall comply with the water quality certification issued under Section 401 of the Clean 

Water Act by the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency for the project.  Conditions of the 

certification are conditions of this authorization.  For your convenience, a copy of the 

certification is attached if it contains such conditions. 

 

6.  You must allow representatives from this office to inspect the authorized activity at any time 

deemed necessary to ensure that it is being accomplished in accordance with the terms and 

conditions of your permit. 

 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:  To ensure that the activity has minimal individual and cumulative 

impacts, the following special conditions are required: 

 

1.   This authorization is based on the materials submitted as part of application number 

200400396.  Failure to comply with the terms and conditions of this authorization may result in 

suspension and revocation of your authorization. 

 

2.   You shall undertake and complete the project as described in the plans titled, "Site 

Dimensional and Paving Plan,” dated December 5, 2005 (revised May 1, 2006), prepared by 

Manhard Consulting, Ltd and, including all relevant documentation to the project plans as 

proposed. 

 

3.   You shall comply with the water quality certification issued under Section 401 of the Clean 

Water Act by the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency for the project. 

 

4.   This authorization is contingent upon implementing and maintaining soil erosion and 

sediment controls in a serviceable condition throughout the duration of the project.  You shall 

comply with the Lake County Stormwater Management Commission (LCSMC)'s written and 



 

 

- 3 - 

verbal recommendations regarding the soil erosion and sediment control (SESC) plan and the 

installation and maintenance requirements of the SESC practices on-site.   

         

5.   You shall insure that all remaining wetlands adjacent upland buffers are protected through a 

conservation easement.  You shall enter into negotiations with a nonprofit conservation group or 

agency willing to accept a conservation easement on the property.  The approved construction 

drawings and USACE authorization number shall be included as an exhibit in the conservation 

easement and be recorded with the Registrar of Deeds or other appropriate office charged with 

the responsibility for maintain records of title or interest in real estate property.  Within 30 days 

of receipt of this authorization, you shall submit to this office a draft copy of the conservation 

easement for review.  Recording of the approved document shall occur upon approval from this 

office.    

 

6.   You shall install educational signs which identify the presence of Federally-protected 

wetlands, highlighting the values of wetlands in terms of wildlife habitat, water quality, and flood 

control.  The signs shall be spaced every 200 feet at the boundary of all adjacent upland buffers 

and installed by the end of construction. 

 

7.   You must fully implement the “Monitoring and Maintenance Plan Best Management 

Practices Vegetated Swales and Stormwater Detention Basins” dated February 2006, prepared by 

Huff & Huff, Inc.  As discussed in this plan you are required to submit yearly monitoring reports 

to our office discussing the establishment and management of vegetation in the buffers, detention 

area and the vegetated swales.   

 

8.   You are responsible for all work authorized herein and for ensuring that all contractors are 

aware of the terms and conditions of this authorization.  A copy of this authorization must be 

present at the project site during all phases of construction. 

 

9.   You shall notify this office of any proposed modifications to the project, including revisions 

to any of the plans or documents cited in this authorization.  You must receive approval from this 

office before work affected by the proposed modification is performed. 

 

10.   You shall ensure that any wetland areas created or preserved as mitigation for work 

authorized by this permit shall not be made subject to any future construction and/or fill 

activities, except for the purposes of enhancing or restoring the mitigation area associated with 

this permit.  All plans are to be approved by this office prior to commencement of any work.  

 

11.   You shall notify this office prior to the transfer of this authorization and liabilities 

associated with compliance with its terms and conditions.  The transferee must sign the 

authorization in the space provided and forward a copy of the authorization to this office. 

 

Further Information: 

 

1.  Congressional Authorities.  You have been authorized to undertake the activity described 

above pursuant to: 

 



 

 

- 4 - 

    ( ) Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 (33 U.S.C. 403). 

 

    (x) Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1344). 

 

    ( ) Section 103 of the Marine Protection, Research and Sanctuaries Act of 1972 (33 U.S.C. 

1413). 

 

2.  Limits of this Authorization. 

 

    a. This permit does not obviate the need to obtain other federal, state, or local authorizations 

required by law. 

 

    b. This permit does not grant any property rights or exclusive privileges. 

 

    c. This permit does not authorize any injury to the property or rights of others. 

 

    d. This permit does not authorize interference with any existing or proposed Federal project. 

 

3.  Limits of Federal Liability.  The Federal Government does not assume any liability for the 

following: 

 

    a. Damages to the permitted project or uses thereof as a result of other permitted or 

unpermitted activities or from natural causes. 

 

    b. Damages to the permitted project or uses thereof as a result of current or future activities 

undertaken by or on the behalf of the United States in the public interest. 

 

    c. Damages to persons, property, or to other permitted or unpermitted activities or structures 

caused by the activity authorized by this permit. 

 

    d. Design or construction deficiencies associated with the permitted work. 

 

    e. Damage claims associated with any future modifications, suspension, or revocation of this 

permit. 

 

4.  Reliance on Applicant's Data:  The determination of this office that issuance of this permit is 

not contrary to the public interest was made in the reliance on the information you provided. 

 

5.  Reevaluation of Permit Decision.  The office may reevaluate its decision on this permit at any 

time the circumstances warrant.  Circumstances that could require a reevaluation include, but are 

not limited to, the following: 

 

    a. You fail to comply with the terms and conditions of this permit. 

 

    b. The information provided by you in support of your permit application proves to have been 

false, incomplete, or inaccurate (see 4 above). 



 

 

- 5 - 

 

    c. Significant new information surfaces which this office did not consider in reaching the 

original public interest decision. 

 

Such a reevaluation may result in a determination that it is appropriate to use the suspension, 

modification, and revocation procedures contained in 33 CFR 325.7 or enforcement procedures 

such as those contained in 33 CFR 326.4 and 326.5.  The referenced enforcement procedures 

provide for the issuance of an administrative order requiring you to comply with the terms and 

conditions of your permit and for the initiation of legal action where appropriate.  You will be 

required to pay for any corrective measures ordered by this office, and if you fail to comply with 

such directive, this office may in certain situations (such as those specified in 33 CFR 209.170) 

accomplish the corrective measures by contract or otherwise and bill you for the cost. 

 

6.  Extensions.  General Condition 1 established a time limit for the completion of the activity 

authorized by this permit.  Unless there are circumstances requiring either a prompt completion 

of the authorized activity or a reevaluation of the public interest decision, the Corps will 

normally give favorable consideration to a request for an extension of this time limit.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

- 6 - 

Your signature below, as permittee, indicates that you accept and agree to comply with the terms 

and conditions of this authorization. 

 

 

________________________________________                 ____________________ 

PERMITTEE       DATE  

Mr. JOHN LAVELLE 

 

                                                                            

 

200400396 

________________________________________ 

Corps Authorization Number  

 

 

This authorization becomes effective when the Federal official, designated to act for the 

Secretary of the Army, has signed below. 

 

 

________________________________________                 ____________________ 

For and on behalf of                                                                DATE                                   

Frederick Drummond 

Colonel, U.S. Army 

District Commander 

 

 

If the structures or work authorized by this authorization are still in existence at the time the 

property is transferred, the terms and conditions of this authorization will continue to be binding 

on the new owner(s) of the property.  To validate the transfer of this authorization and the 

associated liabilities associated with compliance with its terms and conditions, have the 

transferee sign and date below. The document shall be attached to a copy of the permit and 

submitted to the Corps. 

 

 

________________________________ 

CORPS PROJECT NUMBER 

 

________________________________________               _____________________ 

TRANSFEREE                                                                      DATE 

 

________________________________________ 

ADDRESS 

 

________________________________________ 

TELEPHONE 











MAYOR  TRUSTEES 

Lawrence M. Hanson Dennis B. Crosby 

  Jay Jozwiak 

CLERK  Scott A. Pierce 

Candi L. Rowe  Ted P. Poulos 

  George C. Sakas 

  Mary Dominiak 

   

 
August 18, 2011 
 
To:       The Honorable Larry Hanson, Mayor; and 

Members of the Village Board of Trustees 
 

From:   Vern Burdick, Chairman  
Combined Planning and Zoning Commission  

 
RE:  Request for Text Amendment and Preliminary Plat of Subdivision upon the petition of John LaVelle,  
PIN 02-16-400-022 in Lake County, Illinois. Located on the Southwest Corner of Illinois Route 173 and Deep Lake Road, 
Antioch Illinois 60002. PZB 11-06; 
 

The Combined Planning Commission and Zoning Board conducted a public hearing on August 11th, 2011 following 
notification as required by State Law and Village Ordinances to consider a text amendment allowing a Day Care in a 
business zone and for a preliminary subdivision plat request pursuant to Title 10-15 of the Village Code.     
 
Manhard Consulting, representing John Lavelle, presented the petition. The Lavelle proposal would be comprised of a 
four lot commercial subdivision. The development site consists of approximately 10 acres of incorporated and 
commercially zoned property located on the southwestern corner of Illinois Route 173 Deep Lake Road. As depicted in 
Plate 7 of the Village’s Comprehensive Plan, the site is identified as future Commercial Development.    
   
Dustin Nilsen, Director of Community presented his report. He summarized the standards for a zoning text amendment 
listed under Title 10, Chapter 15, of the Village Code, made the staff findings, and recommendation for approval with the 
condition that engineering issues be satisfied prior to the petition and recommendation be heard before the Village 
Board.   
 
Mike Clifton Representing Loon Lake Management Association spoke in regards to the development’s proximity to 
sensitive wetlands areas.  In response to his concerns staff noted that of the 10 acres, nearly half was going to remain 
undisturbed, with nearly an acre of naturalized detention constructed between the development and the balance of the 
site.   
 
Based on the code criteria and comprehensive plan designations, the applicant’s proposal is found to be in general 
harmony with the spirit and intent of the zoning code, existing zoning designation, and the comprehensive plan for land 
use. Due its proximity to sensitive environmental wetlands, special attention and review of engineering practices should 
be undertaken to ensure compliance with the pending permits of the Army Corp of Engineers and Watershed 
Development Ordinance prior to the recommendation for approval by the Board.     
 
With those findings the Planning and Zoning Board unanimously recommends the approval of the text amendment and 
the preliminary plat of subdivision with the condition that technical engineering issues be satisfied prior to the 
presentation before the Board of Trustees. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Vernon Burdick, Chairman  
Combined Planning Commission and Zoning Board 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MEMO 
 
TO:  Vern Burdick, Chairman; and Members of the 
  Combined Planning Commission and Zoning Board 
 
FROM:  Dustin Nilsen, AICP  

Community Development Director 
 
DATE:  July 27, 2011  
 
RE: Proposed preliminary plat of subdivision and Zoning Text Amendment; LaVelle Subdivision; SW corner 
of Rt.173 and Deep Lake Road; John Lavelle; PZB11-06; RECOMMENDATION TO APPROVE THE TEXT 
AMENDMENT. REQUEST TO CONTINUE THE SUBDIVISION PENDING RESOLUTION OF OUTSTANDING 
TECHINCAL ISSUES. 

BACKGROUND 

This report is in preparation for the P&Z Board’s meeting scheduled for Thursday, August 11th; 2011  7:30 PM.   

Recent Site Visit: July 27, 2011, Approx. 2 PM.  

Size of Site:  Approximately 10 Acres 

*Existing Zoning:   B-3,  Service and Wholesale     

*Adjacent Zoning:  North:  B-2, PUD General Retail 
      South:  RE-1, Rural Estate    

East:  Unincorporated Lake County 
West:  B-3, Service and Wholesale      

*See ATTACHMENT #1 for Immediate Vicinity Zoning Map 

Existing Use:  Vacant  

Adjacent Uses:  North:  Route 173 and Antioch Crossing 
   South:  Residential  

West:  Antioch Tire/Fast Tire/Jimmy Johns 
   East:  Vacant Commercial Land and Beautiful Savior Church    

      

 



PZB11-06 

Lavelle Subdivision 

July 27, 2011 

2 

REVIEW COMMENTS:   

As a part of the preliminary plat request the applicant has requested a zoning text amendment to the Village 
Code allowing a Child Care Facility within a B-3 Zone.  A concept plan was reviewed by staff in March and April 
of 2007.  Amongst others, issues raised during the meetings included traffic access points, internal circulation, 
wetland impacts, stormwater management, and architecture. The following is a brief summary of the zoning and 
subdivision issues identified by staff in the review of the preliminary plan.   

General Land Use and Zoning Designations. The Lavelle proposal is a for a four lot commercial subdivision. The 
development site consists of approximately 10 acres of incorporated and commercially zoned property located 
on the southwestern corner of Illinois Route 173 Deep Lake Road. As depicted in Plate 7 the Village’s 
Comprehensive Plan, the site is identified as future Commercial Development.    

At time a child care facility is not identified as permitted use within the commercial zoning designations.  Staff 
has no objection to adding the use to the list of permitted uses, as the child care facility does not, by its typical 
circumstance and operation, result in nuisance impacts to neighboring commercial uses.   

The commercial subdivision is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan Land Use Designation. 

Land Use Request.  The Village Subdivision Code states that wherever any subdivision of land shall be laid out 
within the incorporated limits of the village or within contiguous territory not more than one and one-half (1 1/2) 
miles beyond the incorporated boundary of the village, the subdivider or his agent shall submit both a preliminary 
and a final subdivision plat to the plan commission for their approval. The subdivision plats and all procedures 
relating thereto, shall in all respects be in full compliance with these regulations. 

Included in the request is the preliminary platting documentation.  If approved by the Village, the 
applicant shall be required to complete final engineering documents and submit final plat 
documents, in substantial conformance with the preliminary plan and plat for approval.   

Project Coordination and Performance. The developer is responsible for coordination of the overall project, and 
is obligated by Title 11 of the Village Code to post the required bond to guarantee construction of the public and 
quasi-public improvements, including the stormwater detention facility.   

As part of the ordinance approving the final plat, these necessary security instruments and 
private covenants to manage common areas shall be required by the Village.   Language and 
documentation of the common areas shall be explicit as language on the plat documents 
themselves.   

Site Engineering.  The applicant shall comply with the Village Engineer’s review comments.  In all respects, the 
final plat must comply with Village Code Title 11 and 12, which include adoption by reference of the current Lake 
County Watershed Development Ordinance and additional erosion control and sedimentation control regulations.  

 Revisions required as part of the preliminary plat are listed below. 

Architecture.  Remodeled or new buildings within the B-1, B-2 and B-3 zoning districts; multiple-family 
buildings consisting of three (3) or more units located within the R-4 and R-5 zoning districts; and any property 
located within the downtown overlay district (regardless of the underlying zoning district), are to be constructed 
with all exterior facades of masonry with an exposed finished surface. Such masonry facades shall have a 
minimum nominal dimension of four inch (4") wall thickness.  
  



PZB11-06 

Lavelle Subdivision 

July 27, 2011 

3 

The applicant has provided typical elevations for the first known tenant of the site. From the 
information provided in these elevations the proposed structure will require revisions in order 
to meet the masonry requirements. This will require a brick façade for the first eight feet of the 
building.  Final construction plans of the facility shall include the revised elevations.  Staff does 
not recommend a variance, nor has one been requested to omit the masonry façade. 

 
Subdivision Improvements.  Sidewalks shall be required on both sides of streets in residential subdivisions with 
lot sizes of twenty thousand (20,000) square feet or less, and in commercial and industrial areas.  
 

The applicant has proposed perimeter walks along Deep Lake and 173. In addition there is an 
internal walk system shall be required to provide accessible routes from the structures, 
Accessible Parking stalls, to the public walks.   
 
The sidewalk shall be extended to the southern limits of the property in order to allow for future 
connections.  This is not demonstrated at this time and will require revisions to the preliminary 
engineering.   
 

All telephone, electric and gas service lines shall be placed underground entirely throughout a subdivision area; 
conduits or cables shall be placed within easements or dedicated public ways in a manner which will not conflict 
with other underground service. Aboveground structures identified with the underground facilities shall be 
located so as not to be unsightly or hazardous to the public. 
  

The applicant is obligated to adhere to the aforementioned subdivision codes and should revise 
its engineering to reflect the underground requirements.  

 
 
List of Additional Necessary Plan Revisions: 
 
Within the corporate limits of the Village, all lots shall abut on a publicly dedicated street. Please revise the lot 
layout so that Lot 2 abuts Deep Lake Road.  The western most retail building on lot 1 does not have an identified 
lot at this time.  Please revise the lot lines in order to create a unique lot that abuts a public owned right of way.   
 
Mandatory Water Supply And Sewer Extensions: Persons connecting to the public water system of the village 
are required, at their expense, to extend any water line through the entire frontage or depth of the person's 
property as the case may be, to the end of the person's property line. It is the intent of this subsection to provide 
that all extensions of public water lines shall be to the end of any person's property, thus making future 
extensions more readily accessible to adjacent property owners. (1976 Code § 52.011). 
 
This will require the extension of the utilities as well as the public walk to the southern limits of the property in 
order to allow for future connections for Properties south onto Deep Lake Road.  The plan must be revised to 
extend the eight inch water main to the southern limits of the property.  Based on the information supplied, it is 
unclear that there is sufficient pressure and volume in this line to provide fire suppression for the structures 
proposed.  Please provide hydraulic calculations to demonstrate that the eight inch as proposed has sufficient 
supply to service the facilities.  Lee Shannon, Life Safety Inspector has provided the following comments 
regarding the utilities. 
 
Water main of 8” is shown to be extended from the area of Fast Tire/Jimmy Johns east towards Deep lake Road.  
Water main then heads south in front of lot #1 footprint of building before proceeding west between lot 3’ 1 & 2.  
Water main stops midway on the north side of the proposed daycare facility.  This does not allow for extension of 
the water main south on Deep Lake Road to other future water users. This water main should be brought along 



PZB11-06 

Lavelle Subdivision 

July 27, 2011 

4 

Deep Lake Road the south end of lot #2.  If water is to be brought into the daycare facility from this area, a “T” 
connection should be installed and water main run from Deep Lake Road west to position.   
 
Provide the manner in which you will connect to the existing force main to the west.   Provide data that this is 
sufficient to provide sewer service.    
 
Prior to the connection and issuance of site development permits you are obliged to pay to mandatory recapture 
fees for the installation of the Route 173 Sanitary Sewer and Water Service.  These fees are based on final PE 
determinations and the actual amount of metered water used upon the initiation of service.   
 
Parcel 1, now blended with lot 1 of the subdivision shall be a subdivided lot, included in the subdivision with 
maintenance obligations assigned to the three lots associated within the development.  Stormwater easements 
and necessary deed restrictions shall be put in place to assure the lot is reserved for stormwater purposes and 
that parties responsible for the maintenance and functionality of the system are recorded.   
 
Please provide a stormwater management report.  It is unclear how effective the dry well will function in lieu of a 
pond outlet.   
 
Please include the base flood elevations for the site.   
 
Provide LCDOT access permit for Deep Lake Road.  Approved access to this county right of way is required for 
a second point of access.   
 
Please provide a copy of your Army Corp Permit for wetland disturbance. 
 
Provide language that describes the easements on the subdivision plat.  
 
Provide lighting and photometric plan in your submission.  Include cut sheets of the proposed fixtures and their 
locations.   
 
FIRE AND LIFE SAFETY 
 
Water service shows a 1-1/2” service to be brought into the building.  If a fire protection (sprinkler) system is to 
be installed within the daycare, a separate service at a minimum of 4” in diameter will be required for fire 
protection. 
 
Fire hydrants are required to be spaced every 300 feet.  The only fire hydrant indicated is the one the currently 
exists just outside the Jimmy Johns business.  Additional fire hydrants shall be located at the southwest corner 
of Deep Lake Road and W IL Route 173 as well as fire hydrants along the west side of Deep Lake Road. 
 
The plan indicates islands at each entrance/exit drive.  In addition, the landscape plan calls for trees to be 
planted on these islands.  The lane width and lane around the proposed building are proper for fire lane.  
However, when trees mature in these islands, they could cause serious damage to emergency vehicles that will 
probably be frequenting this facility.   
 
Past history of this area presents a genuine concern for fire due to the wetland area directly west and south of 
the properties involved in this review.  There is no way to stop the fire from occurring and when such fires do 
take place, the protection of developed properties, adjacent to the wetland receives first priority. This protection 
measure does become costly especially when the developed properties have limited fire protection built into their 
buildings.  Without seeing construction documents, it is too early to tell if these developments will be required to 



PZB11-06 

Lavelle Subdivision 

July 27, 2011 

5 

install fire protection (sprinkler) systems.  It would be a very strong recommendation that any development along 
this area be mandated to install and maintain fire protection (sprinkler) systems.   
 
Once the information is provided, a detailed consultant review will be required.  This will require additional 
escrow funds to be provided. Please contact the Village staff to discuss the issues mentioned prior to the 
hearing.   
 

RECOMMENDATION 

I recommend that the P&Z Board consider a motion to approve the text amendment, and continue the request 
for the subdivision plan in order to review and address outstanding technical issues.  

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Dustin Nilsen, AICP 

Community Development Director  



PZB11-06 

Lavelle Subdivision 

July 27, 2011 

6 

ATTACHMENT #1:  file PZB11-06 Immediate Vicinity Zoning Map 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MEMO 
 
TO:  Vern Burdick, Chairman; and Members of the 
  Combined Planning Commission and Zoning Board 
 
FROM:  Dustin Nilsen, AICP  

Community Development Director 
 
DATE:  July 27, 2011  
 
RE: Proposed preliminary plat of subdivision and Zoning Text Amendment; LaVelle Subdivision; SW corner 
of Rt.173 and Deep Lake Road; John Lavelle; PZB11-06; RECOMMENDATION TO APPROVE THE TEXT 
AMENDMENT. REQUEST TO CONTINUE THE SUBDIVISION PENDING RESOLUTION OF OUTSTANDING 
TECHINCAL ISSUES. 

BACKGROUND 

This report is in preparation for the P&Z Board’s meeting scheduled for Thursday, August 11th; 2011  7:30 PM.   

Recent Site Visit: July 27, 2011, Approx. 2 PM.  

Size of Site:  Approximately 10 Acres 

*Existing Zoning:   B-3,  Service and Wholesale     

*Adjacent Zoning:  North:  B-2, PUD General Retail 
      South:  RE-1, Rural Estate    

East:  Unincorporated Lake County 
West:  B-3, Service and Wholesale      

*See ATTACHMENT #1 for Immediate Vicinity Zoning Map 

Existing Use:  Vacant  

Adjacent Uses:  North:  Route 173 and Antioch Crossing 
   South:  Residential  

West:  Antioch Tire/Fast Tire/Jimmy Johns 
   East:  Vacant Commercial Land and Beautiful Savior Church    

      

 



PZB11-06 

Lavelle Subdivision 

July 27, 2011 

2 

REVIEW COMMENTS:   

As a part of the preliminary plat request the applicant has requested a zoning text amendment to the Village 
Code allowing a Child Care Facility within a B-3 Zone.  A concept plan was reviewed by staff in March and April 
of 2007.  Amongst others, issues raised during the meetings included traffic access points, internal circulation, 
wetland impacts, stormwater management, and architecture. The following is a brief summary of the zoning and 
subdivision issues identified by staff in the review of the preliminary plan.   

General Land Use and Zoning Designations. The Lavelle proposal is a for a four lot commercial subdivision. The 
development site consists of approximately 10 acres of incorporated and commercially zoned property located 
on the southwestern corner of Illinois Route 173 Deep Lake Road. As depicted in Plate 7 the Village’s 
Comprehensive Plan, the site is identified as future Commercial Development.    

At time a child care facility is not identified as permitted use within the commercial zoning designations.  Staff 
has no objection to adding the use to the list of permitted uses, as the child care facility does not, by its typical 
circumstance and operation, result in nuisance impacts to neighboring commercial uses.   

The commercial subdivision is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan Land Use Designation. 

Land Use Request.  The Village Subdivision Code states that wherever any subdivision of land shall be laid out 
within the incorporated limits of the village or within contiguous territory not more than one and one-half (1 1/2) 
miles beyond the incorporated boundary of the village, the subdivider or his agent shall submit both a preliminary 
and a final subdivision plat to the plan commission for their approval. The subdivision plats and all procedures 
relating thereto, shall in all respects be in full compliance with these regulations. 

Included in the request is the preliminary platting documentation.  If approved by the Village, the 
applicant shall be required to complete final engineering documents and submit final plat 
documents, in substantial conformance with the preliminary plan and plat for approval.   

Project Coordination and Performance. The developer is responsible for coordination of the overall project, and 
is obligated by Title 11 of the Village Code to post the required bond to guarantee construction of the public and 
quasi-public improvements, including the stormwater detention facility.   

As part of the ordinance approving the final plat, these necessary security instruments and 
private covenants to manage common areas shall be required by the Village.   Language and 
documentation of the common areas shall be explicit as language on the plat documents 
themselves.   

Site Engineering.  The applicant shall comply with the Village Engineer’s review comments.  In all respects, the 
final plat must comply with Village Code Title 11 and 12, which include adoption by reference of the current Lake 
County Watershed Development Ordinance and additional erosion control and sedimentation control regulations.  

 Revisions required as part of the preliminary plat are listed below. 

Architecture.  Remodeled or new buildings within the B-1, B-2 and B-3 zoning districts; multiple-family 
buildings consisting of three (3) or more units located within the R-4 and R-5 zoning districts; and any property 
located within the downtown overlay district (regardless of the underlying zoning district), are to be constructed 
with all exterior facades of masonry with an exposed finished surface. Such masonry facades shall have a 
minimum nominal dimension of four inch (4") wall thickness.  
  



PZB11-06 

Lavelle Subdivision 

July 27, 2011 

3 

The applicant has provided typical elevations for the first known tenant of the site. From the 
information provided in these elevations the proposed structure will require revisions in order 
to meet the masonry requirements. This will require a brick façade for the first eight feet of the 
building.  Final construction plans of the facility shall include the revised elevations.  Staff does 
not recommend a variance, nor has one been requested to omit the masonry façade. 

 
Subdivision Improvements.  Sidewalks shall be required on both sides of streets in residential subdivisions with 
lot sizes of twenty thousand (20,000) square feet or less, and in commercial and industrial areas.  
 

The applicant has proposed perimeter walks along Deep Lake and 173. In addition there is an 
internal walk system shall be required to provide accessible routes from the structures, 
Accessible Parking stalls, to the public walks.   
 
The sidewalk shall be extended to the southern limits of the property in order to allow for future 
connections.  This is not demonstrated at this time and will require revisions to the preliminary 
engineering.   
 

All telephone, electric and gas service lines shall be placed underground entirely throughout a subdivision area; 
conduits or cables shall be placed within easements or dedicated public ways in a manner which will not conflict 
with other underground service. Aboveground structures identified with the underground facilities shall be 
located so as not to be unsightly or hazardous to the public. 
  

The applicant is obligated to adhere to the aforementioned subdivision codes and should revise 
its engineering to reflect the underground requirements.  

 
 
List of Additional Necessary Plan Revisions: 
 
Within the corporate limits of the Village, all lots shall abut on a publicly dedicated street. Please revise the lot 
layout so that Lot 2 abuts Deep Lake Road.  The western most retail building on lot 1 does not have an identified 
lot at this time.  Please revise the lot lines in order to create a unique lot that abuts a public owned right of way.   
 
Mandatory Water Supply And Sewer Extensions: Persons connecting to the public water system of the village 
are required, at their expense, to extend any water line through the entire frontage or depth of the person's 
property as the case may be, to the end of the person's property line. It is the intent of this subsection to provide 
that all extensions of public water lines shall be to the end of any person's property, thus making future 
extensions more readily accessible to adjacent property owners. (1976 Code § 52.011). 
 
This will require the extension of the utilities as well as the public walk to the southern limits of the property in 
order to allow for future connections for Properties south onto Deep Lake Road.  The plan must be revised to 
extend the eight inch water main to the southern limits of the property.  Based on the information supplied, it is 
unclear that there is sufficient pressure and volume in this line to provide fire suppression for the structures 
proposed.  Please provide hydraulic calculations to demonstrate that the eight inch as proposed has sufficient 
supply to service the facilities.  Lee Shannon, Life Safety Inspector has provided the following comments 
regarding the utilities. 
 
Water main of 8” is shown to be extended from the area of Fast Tire/Jimmy Johns east towards Deep lake Road.  
Water main then heads south in front of lot #1 footprint of building before proceeding west between lot 3’ 1 & 2.  
Water main stops midway on the north side of the proposed daycare facility.  This does not allow for extension of 
the water main south on Deep Lake Road to other future water users. This water main should be brought along 



PZB11-06 

Lavelle Subdivision 

July 27, 2011 

4 

Deep Lake Road the south end of lot #2.  If water is to be brought into the daycare facility from this area, a “T” 
connection should be installed and water main run from Deep Lake Road west to position.   
 
Provide the manner in which you will connect to the existing force main to the west.   Provide data that this is 
sufficient to provide sewer service.    
 
Prior to the connection and issuance of site development permits you are obliged to pay to mandatory recapture 
fees for the installation of the Route 173 Sanitary Sewer and Water Service.  These fees are based on final PE 
determinations and the actual amount of metered water used upon the initiation of service.   
 
Parcel 1, now blended with lot 1 of the subdivision shall be a subdivided lot, included in the subdivision with 
maintenance obligations assigned to the three lots associated within the development.  Stormwater easements 
and necessary deed restrictions shall be put in place to assure the lot is reserved for stormwater purposes and 
that parties responsible for the maintenance and functionality of the system are recorded.   
 
Please provide a stormwater management report.  It is unclear how effective the dry well will function in lieu of a 
pond outlet.   
 
Please include the base flood elevations for the site.   
 
Provide LCDOT access permit for Deep Lake Road.  Approved access to this county right of way is required for 
a second point of access.   
 
Please provide a copy of your Army Corp Permit for wetland disturbance. 
 
Provide language that describes the easements on the subdivision plat.  
 
Provide lighting and photometric plan in your submission.  Include cut sheets of the proposed fixtures and their 
locations.   
 
FIRE AND LIFE SAFETY 
 
Water service shows a 1-1/2” service to be brought into the building.  If a fire protection (sprinkler) system is to 
be installed within the daycare, a separate service at a minimum of 4” in diameter will be required for fire 
protection. 
 
Fire hydrants are required to be spaced every 300 feet.  The only fire hydrant indicated is the one the currently 
exists just outside the Jimmy Johns business.  Additional fire hydrants shall be located at the southwest corner 
of Deep Lake Road and W IL Route 173 as well as fire hydrants along the west side of Deep Lake Road. 
 
The plan indicates islands at each entrance/exit drive.  In addition, the landscape plan calls for trees to be 
planted on these islands.  The lane width and lane around the proposed building are proper for fire lane.  
However, when trees mature in these islands, they could cause serious damage to emergency vehicles that will 
probably be frequenting this facility.   
 
Past history of this area presents a genuine concern for fire due to the wetland area directly west and south of 
the properties involved in this review.  There is no way to stop the fire from occurring and when such fires do 
take place, the protection of developed properties, adjacent to the wetland receives first priority. This protection 
measure does become costly especially when the developed properties have limited fire protection built into their 
buildings.  Without seeing construction documents, it is too early to tell if these developments will be required to 



PZB11-06 

Lavelle Subdivision 

July 27, 2011 

5 

install fire protection (sprinkler) systems.  It would be a very strong recommendation that any development along 
this area be mandated to install and maintain fire protection (sprinkler) systems.   
 
Once the information is provided, a detailed consultant review will be required.  This will require additional 
escrow funds to be provided. Please contact the Village staff to discuss the issues mentioned prior to the 
hearing.   
 

RECOMMENDATION 

I recommend that the P&Z Board consider a motion to approve the text amendment, and continue the request 
for the subdivision plan in order to review and address outstanding technical issues.  

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Dustin Nilsen, AICP 

Community Development Director  



PZB11-06 

Lavelle Subdivision 

July 27, 2011 

6 

ATTACHMENT #1:  file PZB11-06 Immediate Vicinity Zoning Map 

 















4 3 2 1

TRASH ENCLOSURE, SEE
ELEVATION 3/A5

16"x16" PRECAST STONE
QUOINS
PRECAST STONE SILL
MASONRY SOLDIER COURSE

OWENS CORNING 30-YEAR FIBERGLASS
ASPHALT ARCHITECTURAL ROOF
SHINGLES, ONYX BLACK

EXTERIOR FIBER CEMENT LAP SIDING
(HARDIEPLANK OR EQ.), TYPE &
COLOR BY OWNERS
PREFINISHED ALUMINUM GUTTER,
MIN. SIZE: 6"x4 1/2"

1"x10" FASCIA BOARD
1"x8" FASCIA BOARD

1"x4" FASCIA BOARD

1"x4" FASCIA BOARD

PVC COLUMN WRAP,
FYPON OR EQUAL

1'
 - 

4" 10
 5

/8
"

FASCIA RETURNS (TYP.)

18"x48" PAINTED WOOD
SHUTTERS (TYP.)

CJ CJ

A

B/Ceiling
10' - 0"

T/Roof Peak
22' - 0 7/8"

T/Slab
0"

T/Grade
-6"

B/Footing
-4' - 0"

T/Steel
11' - 6"

OWENS CORNING 30-YEAR FIBERGLASS
ASPHALT ARCHITECTURAL ROOF
SHINGLES, ONYX BLACK

EXTERIOR FIBER CEMENT LAP SIDING
(HARDIEPLANK OR EQ.), TYPE &
COLOR BY OWNERS

PROVIDE ALTERNATE TO ADD
SHUTTERS ON REMAINING
WINDOWS ON WEST AND
SOUTH ELEVATIONS

MASONRY VENEER, BRAMPTON
BRICK VIENNA MODULAR
CONTINUOUS PRECAST STONE SILL

EXTERIOR FIBER CEMENT LAP SIDING
(HARDIEPLANK OR EQ.), TYPE &
COLOR BY OWNERS

PREFINISHED ALUMINUM GUTTER,
MIN. SIZE: 6"x4 1/2"
PROVIDE 1"x6" TRIM AT ALL CORNERS
U.N.O.

EXTERIOR WALL PACK LIGHT
FIXTURE, SEE ELECTRICAL
LIGHTING PLAN

CJ

PROVIDE CONCEALED STEP FLASHING
(TYP. AT ALL CONDITIONS WHERE WALL
MEETS ROOF)

PREFINISHED ALUMINUM DOWNSPOUT,
MIN. SIZE: 3 3/4"x4 3/4"

SCALE : N.T.S.

OPP.

CAULK JOINT-
DEPTH SHALL BE
1/2 THE WIDTH-
EA. SIDE

BACKER ROD
EA. SIDE

SEE ELEVATIONS FOR LOCATIONS
OF CONTROL JOINTS

3/8" U.N.O. ON
ELEVATIONS OR
PLANS

Project number

Date Drawn by

Checked by

SHT. NO.

© Copyright  Richard  Preves & Associates, P.C. 2009

Issues For:

DESIGN BIDDING PERMIT CONSTRUCTION

Revisions:

GENERAL CONDITIONS:
-GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONSTRUCTION TO BE PER
LATEST EDITION AIA DOCUMENT A201
-ANY DISCEPREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS
OR FIELD CONDITIONS SHOULD BE BROUGHT TO THE
ATTENTION OF THE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO PROCEESING WITH
WORK.
-ALL WORK TO BE IN CONFORMANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE
MUNICIPLE COUNTY, STATE & FEDERAL AMENDMENTS.
-DO NOT SCALE FROM DRAWINGS

Richard Preves &
Associates, P.C.
Architecture Planning

704 Florsheim Drive, Suite 10
Libertyville, Illinois 60048

847.362.9373
Fax 847.362.6315

email: info@prevesassociates.com

PROJECT TEAM:
GENERAL CONTRACTOR:
  PLATFORD CORPORATION
  26575 W. COMMERCE DRIVE, SUITE 613
  VOLO, ILLINOIS 60073
  TEL: 847.546.2400
  FAX: 847.546.5765

ARCHITECT & PLUMBING DESIGN:
  RICHARD PREVES & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
  704 FLORSHEIM DRIVE, SUITE 10
  LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS 60048
  TEL: 847.362.9373
  FAX:847.362.6315

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER:
  HARRY E. MARSHALL, LTD.
  1707 SHERMER ROAD, SUITE 210
  NORTHBROOK, ILLINOIS 60062
  TEL:847.291.0640
  FAX:847.291.0643

MECHANICAL & ELECTRICAL ENGINEER:
  DESIGN BUILD

FIRE ALARM & FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEM:
  DESIGN BUILD

6/
8/

20
09

 1
0:

40
:4

4 
AM

1159 Adams Drive
McHenry, Illinois

A4
09105

May 15, 2009 KS

RP

Early Learning Center
A Child's Place

Exterior Elevations

 3/16" = 1'-0"2 East Elevation

 3/16" = 1'-0"1 North Elevation

No. Description Date
1 McHenry Plan Review and

Owner/Contractor Revisions
June 5, 2009

 1 1/2" = 1'-0"3 Control Joint Detail

mailto:info@prevesassociates.com


A

OWENS CORNING 30-YEAR
FIBERGLASS ASPHALT
ARCHITECTURAL ROOF SHINGLES,
ONYX BLACK

EXTERIOR FIBER CEMENT LAP SIDING
(HARDIEPLANK OR EQ.), TYPE & COLOR BY
OWNERS

MASONRY VENEER, BRAMPTON BRICK
VIENNA MODULAR

PVC COLUMN WRAP, FYPON OR
EQUAL

PRE-MANUFACTURED VINYL
CUPOLA , TYPE & COLOR BY
OWNERS

PREFINISHED ALUMINUM GUTTER

TRASH ENCLOSURE BEYOND, SEE 3/A5
& 2/A8 FOR TYPICAL CONSTRUCTION

PREFINISHED ALUMINUM DOWNSPOUT,
MIN. SIZE: 3 3/4"x4 3/4"

WRAP MASONRY VENEER & PRECAST
STONE SILL AT TERMINATION AS
REQ'D

B/Ceiling
10' - 0"

T/Roof Peak
22' - 0 7/8"

T/Slab
0"
T/Grade
-6"
B/Footing
-4' - 0"

T/Steel
11' - 6"

OWENS CORNING 30-YEAR FIBERGLASS
ASPHALT ARCHITECTURAL ROOF
SHINGLES, ONYX BLACK

EXTERIOR FIBER CEMENT LAP SIDING
(HARDIEPLANK OR EQ.), TYPE &
COLOR BY OWNERS

PREFINISHED ALUMINUM GUTTER,
MIN. SIZE: 6"x4 1/2"
PROVIDE 1"x6" TRIM AT ALL CORNERS
U.N.O.

TRASH ENCLOSURE BEYOND, SEE 3/A5
& 2/A8 FOR TYPICAL CONSTRUCTION

DRINKING FOUNTAIN w/FREEZE
PROTECTION & FROST PROOF HOSE
BIBB BELOW, (SEE PLUMBING PLANS)

PREFINISHED ALUMINUM DOWNSPOUT,
MIN. SIZE: 3 3/4"x4 3/4"

GATE FRAMING ONLY: 1"x6"
CEDAR FENCING FASTENED TO
METAL FRAME WITH 3/8"
CARRIAGE BOLTS

PROVIDE 1/2" STEEL CANE BOLT
w/WELDED STOP PIN, BORE
HOLE IN CONCRETE AS REQ'D

WELDED FRAME
CONSTRUCTED WITH
L3"x3"x5/16" ANGLES
STEEL FRAME TO BE TO
CONCEALED SIDE OF GATE

6' - 0"

PROVIDE 1/2" STEEL SLIDE
BOLT w/WELDED STOP PIN

Project number

Date Drawn by

Checked by

SHT. NO.

© Copyright  Richard  Preves & Associates, P.C. 2009

Issues For:

DESIGN BIDDING PERMIT CONSTRUCTION

Revisions:

GENERAL CONDITIONS:
-GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONSTRUCTION TO BE PER
LATEST EDITION AIA DOCUMENT A201
-ANY DISCEPREPANCIES IN DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS
OR FIELD CONDITIONS SHOULD BE BROUGHT TO THE
ATTENTION OF THE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO PROCEESING WITH
WORK.
-ALL WORK TO BE IN CONFORMANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE
MUNICIPLE COUNTY, STATE & FEDERAL AMENDMENTS.
-DO NOT SCALE FROM DRAWINGS

Richard Preves &
Associates, P.C.
Architecture Planning

704 Florsheim Drive, Suite 10
Libertyville, Illinois 60048

847.362.9373
Fax 847.362.6315

email: info@prevesassociates.com

PROJECT TEAM:
GENERAL CONTRACTOR:
  PLATFORD CORPORATION
  26575 W. COMMERCE DRIVE, SUITE 613
  VOLO, ILLINOIS 60073
  TEL: 847.546.2400
  FAX: 847.546.5765

ARCHITECT & PLUMBING DESIGN:
  RICHARD PREVES & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
  704 FLORSHEIM DRIVE, SUITE 10
  LIBERTYVILLE, ILLINOIS 60048
  TEL: 847.362.9373
  FAX:847.362.6315

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER:
  HARRY E. MARSHALL, LTD.
  1707 SHERMER ROAD, SUITE 210
  NORTHBROOK, ILLINOIS 60062
  TEL:847.291.0640
  FAX:847.291.0643

MECHANICAL & ELECTRICAL ENGINEER:
  DESIGN BUILD

FIRE ALARM & FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEM:
  DESIGN BUILD

6/
8/

20
09

 1
0:

41
:4

4 
AM

1159 Adams Drive
McHenry, Illinois

A5
09105

May 15, 2009 KS

RP

Early Learning Center
A Child's Place

Exterior Elevations

 3/16" = 1'-0"1 South Elevation

 3/16" = 1'-0"2 West Elevation

 3/8" = 1'-0"3 Trash Enclouse East Elevation

No. Description Date
1 McHenry Plan Review and

Owner/Contractor Revisions
June 5, 2009

mailto:info@prevesassociates.com
















 1 

 
 

November 30, 2011  
 
John Lavelle 
Tredlock Corp  
321 North Clark Street, #2440 
Chicago, IL 60610 
 
Re: Preliminary Plat Review:  LaVelle Subdivision 
 Petition Number: PZB 11-06 
 
Dear John: 
 
Thank you for your second amended preliminary plan revision, which staff began processing on November 29th, 
2011.  We have conducted a portion of the review and attached our comments along with this cover letter.  The 
following highlights the forthcoming process and conceptual issues that shall be documented as part of final 
ordinances. The balance of the review will contain more specific comments, including those received from our 
engineering and wetland consultant, HR Green and those discussed at our November 30, 2011 meeting 
attended by Village Staff, HR Green, Manhard Consulting and you. 
 
As you have done in the past, when you resubmit your revised plans include a cover letter specifically 
responding to the items listed below. The Village reserves the right to reject any resubmissions that fail to 
address these items.  If you have made any other changes to your documents other than those requested, be 
sure to also specifically list them in your letter. 
 
Your estimated Committee of the Village Board Meeting is set for Wednesday, December 05th, 2011.   
 
As always, if you have any comments or concerns, please give me a call.  I may be reached at (847) 395-1000.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Dustin Nilsen, AICP   
Director of Community Development  
 
cc: Jim Keim, Village Administrator  
  
   

 

 

 

Community Development 
Department 

 874 Main Street 

Antioch, IL 60002 

 Phone:  847-395-1000 

 Fax:  847-395-1920 

 www.antioch.il.gov 

  



 2 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
SUMMARY OF KEY COMMENTS  
 
Please note that this plan and process that you are undertaking falls under the scope of preliminary plat and 
engineering in accordance with 11-3-2 of the Subdivision Code.   The level of detail and issues that are to be 
resolved are not conducted at a construction level.  The review is set at the level of regulatory compliance and 
feasibility to construct.  As part of the Planning and Zoning Board’s recommendation for approval of the 
preliminary plat, the condition to resolve outstanding technical issues of engineering prior to being heard before 
the Village Board was to be satisfied.  We have resolved a number of issues, and it appears that final revisions 
discussed at our meeting would satisfy preliminary engineering comments and allow us to move forward.     
 
As a special note regarding your utility waiver and sidewalk deferral, the Village Board will have to authorize, via 
ordinance, your request to limit the extension of water and sewer services to the southern limits of the property.   
Per Section of the Village Code, 8-1-1 B. Mandatory Water Supply And Sewer Extensions: Any person required 
under the provisions of this chapter to connect to the public water system of the village or any person desirous of 
connecting to the public water system is required, at his expense, to extend any water line through the entire 
frontage or depth of the person's property as the case may be, to the end of the person's property line. It is the 
intent of this subsection to provide that all extensions of public water lines shall be to the end of any person's 
property, thus making future extensions more readily accessible to adjacent property owners.  
 
ISSUE SPECIFIC COMMENTS 
 
Public Utility Waiver 
We acknowledge there are a number of environmental and jurisdictional limiting factors to the extension of public 
improvements along the Deep Lake Frontage as well as the possibility that due to the existing wetland, the Army 
Corp may not permit the request, regardless of Village regulations. As part your presentation to the Board, it is 
your responsibility to make the case for the practical design difficulties that would justify waiving this requirement.  
Please submit your justification to the Village Board in writing.  See key comments.  
 
Phasing Plan 
Please include a revised phasing schedule of the development.  As noted with the staff meeting. Detention, 
stormwater management systems, mass excavations, stabilization, and public improvements to the entire site 
shall be included in Phase 1 of the development.    
 
Overhead Utilities 
The adjacent property owner has a requirement tied to its annexation agreement to underground its overhead 
utilities.  Upon the request of that developer, a deferral was offered upon the condition that when development 
was initiated on this parcel all overhead utilities would be buried in order to gain an economy of scale of the 
burial.  Please include your commitment and timing of the utility burial.   
 
Wetland Buffer 
From the information you have provided, it appears that the ADID wetland buffering area calculations and 
requirements have been met and are in compliance with the Army Corp 404 permit as well as the Village’s 
Watershed Development Ordinance.  Final revisions, addressing the impervious area calculations, first 
discussed before Lake County Storm Water Management Commission and again raised and discussed at our 
November 30, 2011 meeting shall be submitted for preliminary approval and exhibit to the preliminary plat 
ordinance.    
 
Stormwater Detention and Stormwater Lift Station 
From the latest submission it appears that the detention and compensatory storage calculations have been met. 
These improvements are quasi public and shall be bonded as part of the initial public improvements and include 
a perpetual maintenance and operation procedure as well as a Dormant SSA provision that will allow the Village 
to utilize special tax proceeds in the event maintenance or operation become necessary.   
 
 

 Second Amended Submission Review 



 3 

Municipal Utility in Parking Lot 
Utilities located within the parking lot shall be located within a non-restorative municipal utility easement.  In the 
event of a repair or maintenance issue, the Village will not assume the responsibility of parking lot restoration 
and paving.  Please include the language for the non restorative MUE within your subdivision plat and merchants 
association documentation.   
 
Dormant SSA Provision 
Recourse and Security Instruments shall be established ensuring the Village’s right but not the obligation to 
utilize adopted Dormant SSA funds in order to restore or maintain private detention, sanitary, and stormwater 
facilities, in the case where the merchants association fails to do so.   
 
Operational Conditions Agreed to as Part of Army Corp and Department of Natural Resources  
Consultation 
Monitoring and Maintenance Plan of Wetland Buffer Areas complying with the conditions prepared by your 
wetland and environmental consultant shall be included in the ordinance and shall be binding upon you as the 
developer, your owners, successors, and their assigns.   These include special construction, development, and 
operating procedures, reports, and compliance measures included in your Army Corp permit.   
 
Zoning Compliance 
 

Signage:  All signage shall comply with Village Code 10-14, entitled Village Street Graphics Ordinance 
and comply with limited lighting restrictions set forth in your Department of Natural Resources 
Consultation. 

 
Landscaping:  All landscaping shall comply with Village Ordinances and native vegetation planting 
requirements as set by the WDO, your proposed buffers, and Army Corp Permit, and DNR consultation.  
Additional planting specifications shall be required in final engineering documents.  

 
Lighting: Include in your construction documents final lighting specs and photometric plans.  All lighting 
shall be less than 20 feet in height and include full cutoff fixtures to avoid light pollution and spillover.  
This is mandated by village code as well as your DNR consultation.   

 
Final Engineering Process 
Following an approval of your preliminary engineering and subdivision plat you will be required to undertake final 
engineering submissions and approval through the Combined Planning and Zoning and the Village Board.  We 
have discussed the required meetings, and if you so desire, a special meeting may be scheduled at your cost to 
expedite the review time.  Required submission matters include but, are not limited to, the completion of 
construction level documents, phasing plans, technical specifications and calculations, the approval and 
recording of the final plat, the posting of construction and security instruments for public improvements and 
stormwater management facilities, and final agency sign off including Lake County Stormwater Management 
Commission, the USACE, the EPA, Lake County DOT, as well as the Village.      
 
Once all final engineering documents approved by the Village Board, security instruments, final plats, deeds, 
easements, and management plans recorded, agency sign offs are given, and site development and utility fees 
paid, you will then be eligible for site development permits.   
 
 
 
 



 1 

 
 

November 30, 2011  
 
John Lavelle 
Tredlock Corp  
321 North Clark Street, #2440 
Chicago, IL 60610 
 
Re: Preliminary Plat Review:  LaVelle Subdivision 
 Petition Number: PZB 11-06 
 
Dear John: 
 
Thank you for your second amended preliminary plan revision, which staff began processing on November 29th, 
2011.  We have conducted a portion of the review and attached our comments along with this cover letter.  The 
following highlights the forthcoming process and conceptual issues that shall be documented as part of final 
ordinances. The balance of the review will contain more specific comments, including those received from our 
engineering and wetland consultant, HR Green and those discussed at our November 30, 2011 meeting 
attended by Village Staff, HR Green, Manhard Consulting and you. 
 
As you have done in the past, when you resubmit your revised plans include a cover letter specifically 
responding to the items listed below. The Village reserves the right to reject any resubmissions that fail to 
address these items.  If you have made any other changes to your documents other than those requested, be 
sure to also specifically list them in your letter. 
 
Your estimated Committee of the Village Board Meeting is set for Wednesday, December 05th, 2011.   
 
As always, if you have any comments or concerns, please give me a call.  I may be reached at (847) 395-1000.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Dustin Nilsen, AICP   
Director of Community Development  
 
cc: Jim Keim, Village Administrator  
  
   

 

 

 

Community Development 
Department 

 874 Main Street 

Antioch, IL 60002 

 Phone:  847-395-1000 

 Fax:  847-395-1920 

 www.antioch.il.gov 

  



 2 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
SUMMARY OF KEY COMMENTS  
 
Please note that this plan and process that you are undertaking falls under the scope of preliminary plat and 
engineering in accordance with 11-3-2 of the Subdivision Code.   The level of detail and issues that are to be 
resolved are not conducted at a construction level.  The review is set at the level of regulatory compliance and 
feasibility to construct.  As part of the Planning and Zoning Board’s recommendation for approval of the 
preliminary plat, the condition to resolve outstanding technical issues of engineering prior to being heard before 
the Village Board was to be satisfied.  We have resolved a number of issues, and it appears that final revisions 
discussed at our meeting would satisfy preliminary engineering comments and allow us to move forward.     
 
As a special note regarding your utility waiver and sidewalk deferral, the Village Board will have to authorize, via 
ordinance, your request to limit the extension of water and sewer services to the southern limits of the property.   
Per Section of the Village Code, 8-1-1 B. Mandatory Water Supply And Sewer Extensions: Any person required 
under the provisions of this chapter to connect to the public water system of the village or any person desirous of 
connecting to the public water system is required, at his expense, to extend any water line through the entire 
frontage or depth of the person's property as the case may be, to the end of the person's property line. It is the 
intent of this subsection to provide that all extensions of public water lines shall be to the end of any person's 
property, thus making future extensions more readily accessible to adjacent property owners.  
 
ISSUE SPECIFIC COMMENTS 
 
Public Utility Waiver 
We acknowledge there are a number of environmental and jurisdictional limiting factors to the extension of public 
improvements along the Deep Lake Frontage as well as the possibility that due to the existing wetland, the Army 
Corp may not permit the request, regardless of Village regulations. As part your presentation to the Board, it is 
your responsibility to make the case for the practical design difficulties that would justify waiving this requirement.  
Please submit your justification to the Village Board in writing.  See key comments.  
 
Phasing Plan 
Please include a revised phasing schedule of the development.  As noted with the staff meeting. Detention, 
stormwater management systems, mass excavations, stabilization, and public improvements to the entire site 
shall be included in Phase 1 of the development.    
 
Overhead Utilities 
The adjacent property owner has a requirement tied to its annexation agreement to underground its overhead 
utilities.  Upon the request of that developer, a deferral was offered upon the condition that when development 
was initiated on this parcel all overhead utilities would be buried in order to gain an economy of scale of the 
burial.  Please include your commitment and timing of the utility burial.   
 
Wetland Buffer 
From the information you have provided, it appears that the ADID wetland buffering area calculations and 
requirements have been met and are in compliance with the Army Corp 404 permit as well as the Village’s 
Watershed Development Ordinance.  Final revisions, addressing the impervious area calculations, first 
discussed before Lake County Storm Water Management Commission and again raised and discussed at our 
November 30, 2011 meeting shall be submitted for preliminary approval and exhibit to the preliminary plat 
ordinance.    
 
Stormwater Detention and Stormwater Lift Station 
From the latest submission it appears that the detention and compensatory storage calculations have been met. 
These improvements are quasi public and shall be bonded as part of the initial public improvements and include 
a perpetual maintenance and operation procedure as well as a Dormant SSA provision that will allow the Village 
to utilize special tax proceeds in the event maintenance or operation become necessary.   
 
 

 Second Amended Submission Review 



 3 

Municipal Utility in Parking Lot 
Utilities located within the parking lot shall be located within a non-restorative municipal utility easement.  In the 
event of a repair or maintenance issue, the Village will not assume the responsibility of parking lot restoration 
and paving.  Please include the language for the non restorative MUE within your subdivision plat and merchants 
association documentation.   
 
Dormant SSA Provision 
Recourse and Security Instruments shall be established ensuring the Village’s right but not the obligation to 
utilize adopted Dormant SSA funds in order to restore or maintain private detention, sanitary, and stormwater 
facilities, in the case where the merchants association fails to do so.   
 
Operational Conditions Agreed to as Part of Army Corp and Department of Natural Resources  
Consultation 
Monitoring and Maintenance Plan of Wetland Buffer Areas complying with the conditions prepared by your 
wetland and environmental consultant shall be included in the ordinance and shall be binding upon you as the 
developer, your owners, successors, and their assigns.   These include special construction, development, and 
operating procedures, reports, and compliance measures included in your Army Corp permit.   
 
Zoning Compliance 
 

Signage:  All signage shall comply with Village Code 10-14, entitled Village Street Graphics Ordinance 
and comply with limited lighting restrictions set forth in your Department of Natural Resources 
Consultation. 

 
Landscaping:  All landscaping shall comply with Village Ordinances and native vegetation planting 
requirements as set by the WDO, your proposed buffers, and Army Corp Permit, and DNR consultation.  
Additional planting specifications shall be required in final engineering documents.  

 
Lighting: Include in your construction documents final lighting specs and photometric plans.  All lighting 
shall be less than 20 feet in height and include full cutoff fixtures to avoid light pollution and spillover.  
This is mandated by village code as well as your DNR consultation.   

 
Final Engineering Process 
Following an approval of your preliminary engineering and subdivision plat you will be required to undertake final 
engineering submissions and approval through the Combined Planning and Zoning and the Village Board.  We 
have discussed the required meetings, and if you so desire, a special meeting may be scheduled at your cost to 
expedite the review time.  Required submission matters include but, are not limited to, the completion of 
construction level documents, phasing plans, technical specifications and calculations, the approval and 
recording of the final plat, the posting of construction and security instruments for public improvements and 
stormwater management facilities, and final agency sign off including Lake County Stormwater Management 
Commission, the USACE, the EPA, Lake County DOT, as well as the Village.      
 
Once all final engineering documents approved by the Village Board, security instruments, final plats, deeds, 
easements, and management plans recorded, agency sign offs are given, and site development and utility fees 
paid, you will then be eligible for site development permits.   
 
 
 
 







 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Request For Board Action 

REFERRED TO BOARD:   December 5, 2011 AGENDA ITEM NO: 16 
 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: Administration 
 
SUBJECT:  Consideration of a request for a liquor license for Club Energy 
   

SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER:  

Per an email request sent on Monday, November 28, 2011, Club Energy would like to request to 
reapply for a liquor license. 
 
The applicant’s previous request made at the August 15, 2011 Village Board meeting was denied.  
At that meeting Board members indicated that they did not want to create a new license.  The 
applicant is now requesting to reapply for a full liquor license. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:   None    
 

DOCUMENTS ATTACHED: None 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION:   


	11-21-11 Meeting Minutes.pdf
	I.  CALL TO ORDER
	II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	III. ROLL CALL




